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Frank & Laubach, Interior of Store, AKrOn. .. 1449
Crerman Lutheran Churceh, AKTONL G i, 20
Girace School, Akron...., 3
Howe School, Akron.. 23
Henry School, Akron.... 26
Hotel Buchtel, Akron 43
High Dridge Glens, Cuay ahoga Fulls o v 137
Iolton, . H., Tesidence, ARTON . i 145
High Bridge lens, Pavilion, Cuyahoga Falls. . 177
TR HTIIATY , COUIEY corrrarirennrescoine e s e st e a6
Jennings School, AKTON .o e 32
Johnston, W. A., Residence, Darberwui e v 177
Kent Sehool, AKTON e e e 19
Kirkham Art Tile & Pottery Works, Barber.on...o..... 1Y
Lake Anna, Barberton. o e v B0
Legpett Sehool, AKION e - b1
Marshall, Thomas €., Residence, ARron ..o .o 148
National Hotel, Barberton.onn... v 44
Perking Schanl, ARTON e 28
Spicer Sehook, ARTON s e 24
The Thomas Phillips Paper Mill, Akron......... . 150
View of Fair Ground. e v 1406
walnut Grove Farm, Everett, Frank Reifsnid er, Proprietor..... 2
Windzor Hotel, AKTOn oo erae e eereere . 39
PORTRAITS AND BIOGRAPHIES.
Allen, William T...ooees eevvennees e ererriireren aeareani e tebararee raas TR 61
ATIYIy ABEL Grirreirerireiins s ssrne st e b 62
Allen, George G .venenns crerrereniereunarianie 67
Atterholt, Frank M i 67
Adams, Charles L..... 60
Barber, Ohio C.......... 45
Baird, Charles....... 46
Baird, Charles.......... 66
Bailey, Cyrus........ 46
Brown, William R....ecenrene 47
Burton, Merrick..... tees ertereeeeeisesceessvareteeeesrennereseenanenes 4T
Bock, Philip P VPPN 49
Burkhardt, William... . 44

Boyd, Dr. JAMes Poaimieiii s 50
Burgess, George A\ RPN eerenreneen verienees 51
Buckingham, Capt, G, Bdward...crmnmn a1l
Buacehtel, John R ...oeeens eeneeessnarsersarares . 59
Barber, Alfred M... 03
Bartlett, Maj. A. A.... v 03
Billow, Capt. GeOrge..cciieecer e B I 55
Beck, T MATIL coovieeneiin i i 55
Bowen, Dr. WIlHam e A7
Belden, Dr. Albert Cooinirinnnes rererrernanines TR 58
Barnett, Willlam......cecnnine frevenrenenennes ereereereneenee e G2
Bk, Su I coruriireaieniisss i sananssnssnn s e .. 62
PBartges, Dr. Samuel Wi, 64
PBrewster, George W anan.s (i)
Bunn, David R....... Cirrenirenns e e . G5
Bryan, Frederick C......... ceerens e e e naes . e rareees e 66
Bartges, Arthur T oo, Crenres v 07
Beck, Bva Catharine ..o 62
Carr, Dr. Charles Bo....ooieeeene T cervenen 65
Cadwell, George M (ovivvsnnieencine poreeeanes R . 64
Campbell, J. Bem....... rervreeessa e s v 64
Clark, Benjamin F ..o 5
Carpenter, Judge James S v 67
Cobbs, Charles S......... terseeeveesrsearerrraasie TR i)
Chalker, NeWEOL oo ivenimniunessssssentnnninnneaenss B

Cassidy, Frank Da oo 63
Derhammer, Joseph Haoo v e A1
Doyle, John H e 52
Davies, T J o - 58
Dick, Charles W. Fooiiininnes veveens . O i 1]
Dick, Charles W, Fooonnn . veee BA
Doyle, William B ..ooovveinee ons e 61
Doyle, Dayton A ceeenees DOV PO PP PPN 66
Dietz, Charles..eeeee. eeeetrreanrasaneeetieserraastrrerrrn Sanaanbe sreas 59
Evans, Josephl B i, 46
Twart, Capt. JOseDh Coii i e e 40
Edgerton, ITon. Sidney i st s 68
Fink, William J. Jr. i i 48
Edwards, Mark Lo oo sassee 59
Tz BIOLIEIS ciiisrereeeereareeinverseersivnrsseerasses s asenreassaiseeans sovnsanss 50
Joseph M, Heber M., Dr. Abner E., Hiram H,, John K.
Foltz, Dr. Abner Eo.oo e pesissmrer e e aeenes Ceereers e iee e nan 51
Foltz, Dr. William Koo e e et A3
Foltz, Dr. Kent Q. vininmemreenii i s a3
Fuehs, To WllIAm e s i ad
Findley, ATVIN Lo ciiin e 59
Falor, Moszes......... et tbaeeeveeiaeteiaaieetserees e ers b eas et nan s bananerraaate 03
Frederick, HENTY o rrieees e st e 63
Foster, Horace B....... et e eeeeeesienereanerieretrastetrri b tertaaernaens 63
Frank, John C.. o ST P TN 68
Talor, OLVEr P e ierieresenr it e e 61
Gonder, GIegory Joviims s e 52
Glines, George Wi 52
Girant, Charles R e 68
Grant, Charles R, i1
Gioodhue, Nathaniel P oo 65
Green, BEdwin P 3
Hitcheoek, Dr. Elizur.........
Hoye, Michael W.......
Hower, M. Otis....cocomeoeon

Harrison, Capt. ITughlin ..
Holfman, Peter IT....
Hine, Charles C.......
Humphrey, Calvin P.....
Housel, Ernest Coovveenns
Jaeobs, Dr. William C......
T=" -gton, Washington G-
Jacksu., Feorge C..
Kirkham, ou%ph..

Koplin, Solomon..... .
Kuhlke, J. Frederick..........veun.
Kittleberger, Christian [J ...
Kubler, Edward G.........

Knox, Eugene O...
Kohler, Jacob A..
Kepler, Houston..
Leach, N. P.........
Libig, Francis J ...
Leohner, Noah N..oviiiininnne

Lane, Samuel A.....ovvviririninan TN cesesanens
Lamb, Chester F............... SO

Merrill, Edwin H........... Creereerres e ens
Myers, GeOTge A..veeviiinnnininn .
Manderbach, Benj. F

Morton, Charles M....ovvieeene evreneer e en eerrerernreener veveed
Miller, William H..........o. rerrvanns et
Moore, Joseph......ooeinuien s cereer s
Moore, Joseph....coverenieinn, reer erest e
Mihills, Lee K.ovioriieiennnnnee
Marvin, David L ...... veeeertrrernsaanneey rreeaeeeniane
Marvin, Ulysses L......... bessarseeresaraneene
Morse, Nathail. oo veares e
MceNamara, John ... PP cveneiraran 55
MeCausland, John....eivininirien
MecCausland, Mary Ann.............. NPT
MeDonald, William Z vevvnnniiienee
MeNeil, James Convvecnveninien.
Noaly, Andrew o,
Norrig, Dr. Charles B occovcnninnnen
Oviatt, EmMmons S....covreriersnirinns
Oviatt, Edward...cccoavveensen
Otis, Bdwin Do
O'Marr, Daniel....ooevvevnnn
Paige, Albert T ....oeveein e
Pendleton, JOy Hoens i,

Parshall, Samuel W..........
Pfeiffer, Charles ....coevvviennens
Proehl, Dr. Louis J....oveeais

Paul, Hosea Sr.oeee. U
Patll, GROIE .. uverrererserversiriremmssses
Paul, RODErt 8.t
Paul, T\ DwWighte. o,
Perkins, Charles E




—Churches, (Also see Special Article, and Statistical
Tables)...c..iiveireeveeenne, e ervenae P
Akron Ministerial Association—Mechanics’ Association—
Mechanies’ Library— Akron Lyceum and Library Associa-
tion—Philo-Lexicon-~Literary Debating Club—Lecture
Association—Library Association—Number of Books, 1891
—Tirst Public Burial Place-—Middlebury Cemetery Associ-
ation—Spicer Cemetery—Ladies’ Cemetery Association—
Memorial Chapel—Postoffice—Free Delivery—Indigents—
Infirmary—Childrens’ Home— De Roo Hospital—Akron
Board of Charities—First N ewspaper—*“Ohio Canal Advo-
cate” —‘ Portage Journal” —“Akron Post’ — ¢4 kron
Journal ¥ —“American Balance” —“Akron Buzzard’’—
“Pestalozzian ’—¢Ohioan "~ New Era'—« Glad Ti-
dings ”—* Summit County Beacon”—“American Demo-
crat” —“Akron Eagle” —“Akron Free Democrat® -
‘ Btandard ’—¢“ Summit Democrat” — ¢ Buzzard ’—(gs-
cade Roarer ”—¢ Ohio Educational Monthly " Summit
County Journal”’~—“Sunday Gazette’—: Sunday Tele-
gram”—"“Akron Republican *—¢ Beacon "—¢ Beacon and
Republican "— American Farm News”..ooceoe,oo
“akron Germania® —¢ Frele Presse ' —¢ Commercial »
‘“Reformed Herald ”’— Reporter and Western Reserve
Farmer”—* People’s Monthly 7’—« Daily News” ¢South
End News” —“Trade 2nd Labor Journal " — « Issue”
—** Star”’—* Illuminator '—“Advance "—Summit County
Fair Association — Richfield Agricultural Club—TUnioun
Agricultural and Mechanics’ Art Society—Union Fair
Association — Military Record — Early Militia— Summit
(tuards—Akron Rifles, 0. V. N, Marriner Riflemen—Reg-
iments of the Civil War—Porter Zouaves—Bierce Cadets—
Akron City Guards—Sth and 9th Regiments, 0. N. (+.—6th
Battery —1st Regiment, O. L. A.—German Guards—
Company Buchtel—Co. A. & B., Buchtel College Battal-
ion—TFire Department

Appointed OHicers......cooovvvinviiniieevees o,
ABBEISOT ettt e v e e e e s .
Apostles’ Creed

Barn Towxsure, History of
Topography—Stock Raising—Streams—Soil—Sandstone—
Water — Iron Ore—Original Name—Surveys—Villages—
Military Record—Oldest Woolen Factory in the State—
First School— First House —  Meeting House ""—Clinton

Bosrox Towxsnre, History of
Equalizing Township—Early Settlement—( ‘uyahoga River
Topography — Organization of Township—Adoption of
Name—First Settlement—Tirst Male Child—First Female
Child—First Wedding—0Oldest Orchard in the County by
Whom Planted—Peninsula—First Buildings—Cheese Fac-
tories—Sandstone—First School House—Later Schools...
First Teacher — Early Churches — Postoffice — Military

Record—Ice Storage—Cheese Manufacturing..................
SChOOS et e

Benevolent Institutions.................. R

SanserTox, History of....

Cuyahoga Falls Township, Organization of........cocooo oo

County, Organization of, Size, Number of Acres and Value

Census 1840 10 1890 ceeeivviveesreennn .

Correy Towxsure, History of,
Original Location—Organization of Township—Original
Nzune—'l‘ol>ugraphy-—1{oads———Ditches—Swmnps—~Creeks—
Streams~Tonds— Fort Island—Anecient Fortifications—
Early Churches—First Temperance Organization—Distill-
eries - First Saw and Grist Mill— First Settler—Town
Iall - First Teacher—Center School Distriet—Churches—
Military Record —Agriculture—Buildings...........con..... .
8ehools. i i

Covestry Towxsmip, History of.
Boundaries—The Red Men—Early Factories—Hopocan—
Treaty of Fort-MeIntosh—Treaty of Fort Industry—First
Settler —First Orchard—Cider Mill.......... T
Glass Factory — Mormons—Counterfeit Money—Pioneer
Preachers—Rarly Churches—Libertine Dixon—¢¢ Starling”
~Early School Organization of Pownship—First Murder
~-Firgt Grist Mill — Topography — Peat — Ley-Swartz-
Thomas Tragedy— Military Record..............
BEROOIS ottt

Cuvanoea Farnis, History of
Early History—Old Village, First Name—TFirst Hotel—
Dam—Paper Mill—Financial Disaster and Crisis—P. & 0,
Canal—TIncorporation—First Election - Fire Insurance—
County Seat—Cuyahoga Falls Band—Pioneer Temper~
ance Society — Topography—‘ The Fallg,” Picturesque
Scenery—Sandstone—Water—Coal—State Bank of Ohio—
Other Banks—JFires —8chools—Churches.
Schools ., e ,

Country Schools..

Cireuit Judge oveennn. N

Common’ Pleas Judges .........

County Commiss.oners.....,

Clerk of the Courts..................

COTONET vnriivecierer i i e,

Chalnmen. ..o frvic i

rrene susaan

S teetitatiraain,, tesvany

;

66 Ilard, E. J., Restaurant and Feed Stable, Akron.............. evan 74
68  Mitcheock, Gallery, Photographs, AKTOM...oovvevevvevereesrennn 832
58  Horn, E. E., Furniture, Akron ............ . 86
4 Hammel, P., Business College, Akron 43
47 Hallinan, Laurence, General Contractor, Akron N 151
48 Hill & Cahill, Sanitury Plambing, Akron........... ... 128
58  Ieath, F. 8. & Co., Druggists, Cuyahoga Falls ....cccoevvrvvvvonn.n 133
67 1lowe & Co., Flour, Cuyahoga FallS....eecvvveeeesoreeeneeeoon 142
68 Herberich, David, Insurance, AKIOD..cccicveecervenreeiees o 161
..... 49 Housel, E. C., Attorney and Justice of the Peace, Akron........ 178
Stellar, William H........ eeeeareerrereras e aa, 50 IHuber, C. L., Grocer, THOMASIOWIL cveueeeeereeeeeeeeeeossoresressenn,
Seward, Col. Dudley.......cvvves oo 53 Jacksun, George C. & Co., Job Printing, Akron
Sisler, Dr. Lewis E ....................................... 54 Kittleberger, C., Oak Tanned Leather, Cuyahoga Falls ..........
Stahli, Frederick .vuuovveveeeeeninieeeneoo 54 Koch, Christ, Wholesale Liquors, Bample Room and Restau-
Sehuler, Charles ..ooueeeevee v, ettt n e tra s et e ronin 56 TATE) ARTOMccts ciiiiiiin e e 173
Stinehour, Robert Ao vvveoieioeeees oo 56 Kreuder, John, Grain, Flour, Feed and Produce, Akron......... 178
Shaw, George A .............. 58  Leopold, Joseph & Co., Armour & Co. Meats, Akron.....ccee...... 7
Stevens, George Du.oeeecoovueeeeeeennnnn., . 60 Lind, J. D. Slate Roofing, AKIOD...c.covvooevmes oo oo, 150
Sherbondy, Curtis Cuvveeeenevveennnnn i y .. 63  Lukesh, Frank, Contractor and Builder, Akron..........coone.. . 161
Smith, Eleevnenriiciis e s oo - 65  Loomus, L. W, Stoves, Hardware, ete., Cuyahoga Ialls - 142
BEYMOUT, TAMES Fl.evvitvvrirecee oo eeeesssoseessoe oo . 65 Memmer, John, Insurance, Akron....... et e . 83
Stuart, BAwin W e oo 65  Mahaffey & Wells, Furniture, AKron......ovveveeneoovonn. eveeren 43
Seward, Louis D .......... 67 Moon, C. H. & Son, Livery, Feed and Sale Stable, Cuyahoga F 142
Sauder, Henry K et e et e eran reeraaees srrran e eenee 67 May & Fiebeger, Furnaces, Stoves, etc., Akron .............. e el 145
Slabaugh, Watson E......... Cen e et eetar s eneeeseteanns < 67 Morris, P. M., Real Estate and Insurance, AKron.................. 146
Sieber, George W...coooovvvveeveeveeevinn, T s 68 Moss, H, W., Custom Tailor, AKron...... ... ... 178
Sawyer, WIHAIM T ..oo.ooveriieriieeee e 68  Mangold, Wendel, Dry Goods, Akron ... 176
Smith, Rial M....... e 68 McCausland Bros., Brick, Akron......cvveeueeiennnn. SR W 175
Tait, Dr. T. Eliot............. . 47 Otis & Otis, Attorneys, Akron.............. Cerreeerereaneeen . coee 108
Theigs, Dr. Herman C... . 52 Pardee’s Troy Laundry, AKZON . coocvviiiieeeeeee oo 81
Taylor, Hudson K........... ceevirnnnnnn 59 Paul Bros,, Civil Engineers and Surveyors, Akron........... T 158
Thomas, Col. David W..e.oovevevveviiirinennnnn, soverevninee 61 Parks, C. ., Funeral Director, AKron..................... . 179
Taggart, Maj. Emmet F v... 04 (Reeser, C. A, Livery und Boarding Stable, Akron.....eo.oovveino.. 135
Tinker, AIbert Buvveovoveeiiiriee e eese oo oo .. #6  Reporter, Weekly Newspaper and Job Office, Cuyahoga Falls 187
Theiss, FTank Buooooo o coiiisececeeeesesose oo see 67 Rogers & Wilhelm, Attorneys, ARIOD.c..ovrveresorsna 57
Tibbals, Newell D.... .. 68 Richards, W. ., Barbers’ Supplies, Akron.......uv........
‘ Thompson, OS Reveeevue veeieeiee s eeentes oo eeeeeesesan v 187 Smith & Hamlin, Stoves, Ilardware, etc., Akron. ................. 73
Underwood, Dr. Warren J .....o.ocieeeveeieerivnnees oo 49 Swigart, 8. (i, Civil Engineer and Surveyor, Akron .......... 1344135
: Upson, William H.....oooovvviiceece e ve v e e ve e 66 Sapp, J. R., Hardware, Stoves, etc., Cuyahoga Falls............... 187
L Van Campen, Harry D 47  Sabin, Dr. F. A,, Dentist, Cuyahoga FallS....ovveeieeevnnnnineni 137
7 || Voris, Gen. AIin Coovrrroooooooooooeseoosoms - 8 Steele Bros., Hardware, Lumber and Timber, Cuyahoga Falls 138
- Voris, EAWIN Facovriieieiivee e e e e eeeees ww (6 Shumway, H. L., Photographer, Cuyahoga Falls . 188
‘Waters, Thomas..... 48 Schnee, F & Co., Druggists, Cuyahoga Falls............. .. 138
Wildes, James......... 51 Simmong, J. K., Sample Room, Akron...... .............. e 157
Wilhelm, Charles ..... 51 Schuler, Charles, Marble & Granite, ARION..e.ovsvvirven v 161
Werner, Frank....... g e et eerers sttt resaan s on 56 Schloss, M., Clothier, ARCON......ocoovio oo et 163
Warner, HATTY Avvereeeerverivcccieesosesieaens .. 87 Stahli, Fred,, Wholesale Beer, ete., Akron.....eiiinii i, 174
Warner, Walltce W.oooovviees covrevsveireseornnsnnn.s ... 30 Schumucher & Gammeter, Tea Store, Akron.. e 176
Wiese, EAWATd W..oo ovvcvvverre e vereeeesvveenen e 66 The Akron Hardware Couueeenierooneoeneeeno 90
: WALTS, FYANK Hlvovirrvoovosvooceeinne oo 66 The Akron Building and Cabiset Co., High Cla 110
\‘ Wright, George M......ocvvv.n., e e 66 The Akron Sh_«)e Co., I::P,jts, Sloes, et..vriniieariirrins v 113
kY Walsh, Thomas Fu.oo wovovvvieeeons oo 66 The Akron Prmti.ng an 1 Publishing Co..oos cvveeviivin L e 122
‘s, Willson, THOTatio Tueveeeeeierioneeeneeoi oo 66 The People’s Savin #Banlk, AKTOI v, 128
VLo, Orlando. ... e mﬁ/_ﬁ']‘,hwacker (J'o., Crackers, Cakes and Bread..,.............: 131
Yakeman, Theodore 1V ....... 6 The New York Clothing Co., AKron ...ooveeeveovv o 132
N . 66 TheJ. C. MeXNeil Co., Boilers, Tanks, ete., Akron.................... 134
_____ v reveeeeenevennnnn.. B0 The Thomas Lumber and Building Co., Akron «e........... L 185
R o The Falls Savings and Loan A ssociation, Cuyahoga Falls . 137
A;V\E{TISERS. Thompson, O, R., Silver Creek Stock Farm, Cuyahoga Falls... 137
e . Thomas Bros,, Coal, Cuyahoga Falls......... berererne . 158
e BAOC b i see s eenenen et eeria, }b Towler & Inskeep, Dry Goods, Cayahoga Falls..... coeeees, . 142
R 'W.Savings Bank i e _’_3 The D. . Morgan Boiler Co., Steam Heating Boilers, Akron... 148
{ im: City Times, Weekly Niwspaper T R ALITIVCIL LTI TP PPIRSIPP Y rhe Gl HL Grimm Manufacturing Co., Champion Evaporators,
shemnan Bottling Works, ARTON v TEOASOM ¢
#yn Fermania, German Newspaper : yue  Lhe Akron Engraving Co., Printing and Engraving
#lms, Robert, Livery and Feed Stable, Cuyahoga Falls......... 133 Tibhals, N D, Attorney, AKTOD..o.ovieeeio
Jn Brush Waorks, Brushes ... vovcnecincrneienonisseesnsonnns 139 Tittt, Geo. C., Meat, Cuyahoga Fallse.oooiivneeins
sirew, Angelo, Paints‘,‘j&kron t—\lon """"" seesesneeneene ]l‘:_:. Vogan, D., Horse Shoeing, Carriage and Road Wagons,
e, John, Buggies, Wagons, ete., Akron...... e, i Cuynhoga Falls
;}gt?n’Steam Dye Works, AKIOD.oooiviviiieiiii i 1‘\'3 Valley Railway .o 150
mstedt, Adolph, Carriages and Wagons, Akron...... preesessieees ]‘f’ Weeks & Kingshury, China, Crockery, ete., Akron................. 76
wrmore, L. A., Furniture, Akr‘f“”"”"'j" """""""""""""""" '_’: Wolfram, Claus, Pianos and Organs, Prof, of Music, Akron..... U3
arnett, William, Contractor Brick and Stone. Akron......... ™ Walf, John, Dry Goods, OtCy ARYOM e 10&116
Jerrodin, Bugene, Harness, etc., AKTON.....iivrinneeeennene. (1’6’ Wileox, Orlando, Attorney, Cuyahoga Falls.....coooeeureevnnnn 188
) Black, The Dr_ugglist, z(}.kroi} ..... Yor]('lnﬂy ............ 1&‘) zz'ninlxezl‘}rm., Gra;xite and Marble, Cayahoga Falls e 142
aritannica Encyeclopedia, New CULLY, Do Xonvinnens : . “elsh & Sawyer, ttorneys, Akron........ e e e e 146
I];i:l?khf?r.dt: Margaretha, Brewtel', él\mmllioml‘xll\ """""""""" ifl Werner, Frank, Boots and Shoes, Akron........o............_.... 148
: n. G 'ness, ete., Cuys a Fallsi i, 3¢ rabstor. (' T oo Tt (o o -
Bla kbun;][i Géx't’chst%?zszjﬁe};ﬁ’lder}, Cfl)gahoga FallS.ooeeruvnnn,, 188 }/‘ il:'l“é;r’:“‘}?lp\i‘l f‘lf,lf’ ;\lﬁi}ltn& Ll?] ‘?;er)f? """" eron i’?,
:léifﬁs” ‘%’;flll'i’mﬁ, Carriages and Wagons, Cuyahoga Falls........ 15 CWEEn DR Sew Domestic Sewing Machine, Akron........... 2
‘:Bod‘e%::_»_ll.‘,. Meats, Akron ..... FOTOIPION eoreerrseesrsrans e 17:8 HISTORY, GEOLOGY, SO1L, SCIIOOLS, ETC.
{ e orge, Funeral Director,_ Akron.... e R lgg A.
ind Y 'Y Stati it AK tesssuus
,:“é* er, Findley & Co., B?Oks, »S.t(ltlonelj s ¢te., Alron ;;() Akron Townghip, Organization of..oov.veeeivvrnesnn ceevenerane 17
. George H., Laundry, AKIOD.. . eeaeerecrina, R ron “Lownship, |
TITET v vrreeeesssesreeesasessenseesenns oeomssmnmsessssssnn s esenen s 102 Arxox, History of.
N e v Fealla a7 Boundary — Uppertown—altitude — Incorporation — First
w Thompson, Sewer Pipe, ete., Cuyahoga Falls......... v 187 sound Yy . iI \ o e porat : &
i, George C., Grocer, Cuyahoga Fallg......oveveeeeenreeenn 138 ]u].ectlon —V 1»1 ages — City — Mnldlelfuly ~ Ohio Canal —
/”'"17’ ()g ' ;ﬁ , Akron e e 174 Middlebury Hydraulie Company-—First Tavern—Stores—
ol Efsoi?,lnct%lnhﬁ’i;si(jll M-é;'.c.ilm;ts, ;\kron ,,,,, . 80 M:‘mut’a?‘t‘ure ‘of Stove.?‘unvd Nails—Carding and Fulling
'~,1e‘s;'Li"ver,y and Boarding Stable........ 184 M}ll —‘_l‘ irst A:School - Fown I‘Iall—r-‘lll(:orpc?ratcatttl_t— An-
. hers, Fine Job Printing, Cuyahoga Falls................ 142 nexation - blxth"\\ z}fd — kal"on‘ lOWIlSl'l‘lp‘-’— ﬂUn.d.er-
h TH, Dyé Works, Akron...... e e e ens 150 g:rround Rzuquad — MISSUU}‘I ”CJ0111PT()1111§“3 ‘.—1‘ ugitive
', H., Wall Paper, 0il Cloth, Paints, etc., Akron..... 164 Sluve La‘w—“ 01d Ossyvstbtoglle“ —His E_xec;utlon ------ e 25
¢, Millinery, AKIOn «.oooveveennee. rere ettt aaan s e 175 lxmlroads—” Great Western’'— Akron' & T errysburg ’—
; ’u Dyeing, AKION..ewrereern... rreee v e s araarin 188 “Aleron & Richmond”’—“Cleveland & Pittsburg’— Akron
’l'”‘ y tg7 nd Builder, AKION..ievevcsrercernerorres 75 & Canton”’—“Akron Branch Railroad ’—¢«C. A. & G
g Contmeir And B e, S 3&5 “Franklin & Warren "—“A. & (. W."—«Valley " D,
’ ;Zh& OO:]Z s O1 1 g"&kfon errsenrrnanee 49 Y. & O (NOW P. & “r.)_uB’ & O.”—“P. A& Wor—
} ghach, }jc;we :?{mein &kron . 167 Banks of Akron—“George D. Bates & C0."—Second
;[.‘ryorll), ’ ;:shitect Aii'o;l _______ e 7 National” — “Tixchange Bank” — “ First National' —
'I{Ifab?;ovgs, Tin, Ha-r’dware, ete., Hudson....ce....... e 150 “Bank of Akron ’:’—':‘Cib_Y' Ban‘k”‘—“Citizensz’ Savings :&
‘ac C, Ingurance and Pension Agent, Akron......... 1:3 Loan  Association — A}uon Saw_ngls ﬁBank T_Peoplei,g
3‘»:, Painter and Decorator, ARTON.....c.ccovvevirrenninens 179 o Savings Bank,not mentioned, capita $100,000; gee Ad?).
| . - e —
= e
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28

36
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- ‘ 146 SOUTH
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HOWARD STREET AKRON OHIO

THE STRICTLY

? ONE PRICE CLOTHIERS
%f% . % % AND FURNISHERS.

C.
Commizsion Soldiers’ Relief ...
Clerk of Townships...iin i e e
ComStADIeS. o i i
CRUECRER. i e it e e e 42,
0o.
DIreetors, TNHrNMIATY oo e vt e
=.

Enveatiox N SoaMIr CouNTy.
Akron Students and Akron Schools—Preface Division of
Subjects —1st. Legislation —2nd. Early Schouls—ird.
ALkron Sehool LIS ciiiiiiieimeonne irsesnrminee sreissssessianiinee
4th. Board of Edueation—ith, Districts and Buildings...
Jennings — Bowen — Perking — Npicer — Crosby —Allen—
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The Manufactories of Summit County and What They Make.

1. AMERICAN STRAW Boamrp Co., New Portage, Ohio, Straw
Board and Straw Lumber. Organized, 1889. Capital Stock, $6,000,-
000. Males, 150. Pay roll, $52,000 per year. Capacity, 25 tons
Straw Board per day.

9. Axrox Sream Force Co., Old Forge, Akron. Car Axleg,
Line and Engine Shafts, and every description of Hammered Iron.
Organized, 1886, Capital stock, $65,000. Capitalinvested, $75,000.
Males, 50. Output, $125,000.

3. Axrox LumBer Co., Lumber Yard. Contraciors and
Builders. Dealers in Lumber, Sash, Doors and Blinds.

4. J. PARk ALEXANDER, Proprietor Diamond Fire Brick
Works, Canal 8t., Akron.

5. Arrex & Co., proprietors of Allen Mills, Canal 8t., Akron,
Manufacturers of Flour. Organized, 1868. Males, 20. Capacity.
300 barrels per day.

6. AxroN Smwrr Pree Co. See American Sewer Iipe Co,

7. AvULTMAN, Mituer & Co., “Buckeye Works.” Organized
in 1868, Capital, $1,000,000; mnow $2,500,000. Manufacturers of
Mowers, Reapersand Binders. Hands employed, 750. Output
annually, 24,000 machines. Plant covers 15 acres,

8. GmomGk M. Arrex, Carriage and Wagon Manufacturer,
Akron. ‘

9. Wi A. ArrEy, Carriage and Wagon Manufacturer, Lock?7,
Ohio Canal, Akron. .

10. Jowx AneNE, Wagons, Akron, 0. .

11. Axnox Irox Co., Akron, Best grade of Common Bar Iron,
Refined Tron, Special Trons for Agricultural Implements, and Sole
M'f'g of Calendered Iron and Steel Shafts.  Organized, 1866.

Capital stock, $400,000. Males, 400. Pay roll, $4,000 per week. -

Capacity, 15,000 net tons.

12. AXRON BrICK ASSOCIATION.
of Akron Building Brick manufactured by Akron Brick and Tile
Co., Cooper Brick Co., John Bailey, McCausland Bros.,
Briggs. 75 hands.

13. Axnon PorisaINg AND Prarise Works., Nickel Plating.
(teorge M. Smith, proprietor, 401 8. Broadway, second floor.

14. G. H. Arnise, Howard St., Akron. Rubber Stamps.
Organized, 1880, Capital, $1,000.

15. Perer L. ALuEN, Richfield; Harness,

16. E. L. ATuisG. Lightning Dish Washing Machine for large
hotels and restaurants. Washes 60 pieces a minute.

17. AXRON STONEWARE AGENCY. Representing the eight stone-
ware manufactories herein mentioned which have a capital rep-
resented of $500,000. Manufacture yearly 9,350,000 gallons or
1,800 car loads. Employ 350 hands. Pay roll, 15,000 per month.

18. Axrox Brick & Trne Co., Akron, Ohio. Corner Irvin and
Mathews Streets. Brick and Tile.

19. AxroN FIre Brrcx Co., B. M. Allison, proprietor, 105
Bank Street, 6th Ward, Akron, O. Fire Brick; Locomotive Arch
Brick; Stove, Furnace and Range Linings.

90. Ozris Bamrser, with Taplin, Rice & Co., Akron, Ohio.
Manufacturers of Sewer Pipe Machinery.

91. A.A. BarrLETT & Co., Cor. State and Ohio Canal, Akron.
Manufacturers of Sash, Doors, Blinds, ete. Organized, 1884.
Capital Stock, $15,000. Males, 19. Pay roll, $600 per month.

93. J.A. BranpoN & Co. Mitering Machines and Picture

- Frames,.
X 94. Mrs. M. BurxmarpT, Beer Brewer, 152, 154, and 156,
tiSherman St., Akron. :

95. ApoLPH BonsTEDT, proprietor Akron Carriage Works.
Carriage and Wagon Manufacturer. Exchange and Middlebury
sts., Akron.

26, Jomx BRUNER, Carpet Weaver. 103 Wooster ave., Akron.

27. Marcus BurTsch, Carpet Weaver, Akron.

98. J. B, BerropiN, Harness Makers, and Horse Furnishers.

20. Buckev: SEwer Pree Co. See American Sewer Pipe Co.,
6th Ward, Akron. Capital stock, $100,000. Organized, 1872.
70 hands.

30. Baxpr, McMitres & Co., 107 Ash St, Akron. Manu-
facturers of small turned Wood Work, either plain, polished or
enameled. 90 hands employed. Incorporated, 1890. Capital
Stock, $120,000. _

31. N. H. Basserr, Akron, Ohio.
Shedder Curry Comb,; Males, 4. _

32, Prrer Brextz, Stow Township; P. O. Address, Metz, Ohio.
Manufacturer of Swiss Cheese.

. B.S.BrappOCK, One mile north-east of center of Rich-
field Center. Manufacturer of Brick and Tile. Capital invested,
$6,000; 5 males; capacity, 200,000; only runs in season.

34, BrEWSTER BroTHERS. Flour mill, Krumroy, O.

35. (roRGE W. BLackpury. Harness, Cuyahoga Falls.

36, Wirrtam Broxe. Wagons, Cuyahoga Falls.

37. L. Brmrcg, Carriage and Wagon Manufacturer,
madge, O.

38, T.C. Buwp, 6th Ward, Akron, Ohio.

Jp—

Manufacturer of Buckeye

Tall-

Hydraulic Ma-
chinery.

89, Henry B. Cross, proprietor Akron Broom Works, Lock1, .

Ohio Canal, Broom Manufacturer, Akron, O.

40. CorrIys Bueay Co., South Main and Church sts., Akron.
Fine Carriages, Open and Top Buggies, Sleighsand Spring Wagons.

41, M. H. CRuMERINE, Proprietor Akron Marble Works, 112 N.
High 8t. Monuments, Mantels and Grates, Marble and Granite
Work. Output, $30,000 per year. 8 hands employed.

42, E. Correrepo, Manufacturer of Harnesses, 117 South
Main St., Akron, O

43, Coox, FAteBANKs & Co. See Akron Stoneware Agency.
Akron Stoneware, 650,000 gallons yearly. )

44, Camow Punr Co., 225 W. Market St., Akron. Wooden and
Chain Pumps. Organized, 1871. Capital Invested, $4,000.
Males, 4.

45. Caswarr & ALDERFER, Manufacturing Confectioners, 117
8. Howard St., Akron, O.

46. Comx M'we Co., Main St., opposite City Building, Akron,
0. Awnings, Tents, Horse and Wagon Covers, Tarpauling, Stack
Covers, Flags and Canvas Goods, and Water roof Goods. Es-
tablished, 1867. Males, 7, Females, 15. Pay roll, 850 per month.

48. N.A.Cmapmax, Twinsburg, Ohio, Manufacturer of Car-
riages. Wagons, Ete. General repairs of Farm Machinery.
Organized, 1885. Capital, $500.

49. Cayp & TmomrsoN, Office, Cuyahoga Falls, 0. Works,
Cuyahoga Falls and Greentown, Ohio. Manufacturers of Summit
Co. Sewer Pipe, Glazed Drain Tile, Hollow Brick, Red Brick,
Hansen’s Patent Chimney Tops, and Wall Coping, and other clay
produects. Organized, 1887. ~Capital invested, $100,000. Males,
100. :Pay roll, $4,200 per mon th.

50, CLEVELAND Paprr Co., Cleveland, Ohio. Mills, Monroe
TFalls. Paper. Organized, 1860. Capital invested, $28,000. Males,
310, Females, 10. Pay roll, $1,300 per month. Capacity, 8 tonsper
day.

51. Jomx Crayrow, near High Bridge Glens, Cuyahoga Falls.

Wagons and Carriages, Organized, 1884. Males, 4. Pay roll,
$48 per week. ’ )

52. Epwarp Craxz, Ira, Ohio. Cheese.

58. Awpmew B. Cassipy, Manufacturer of Cheese, Peninsula.

54. H.C. CurriEr, Manufacturer of Grindstones, Peninsnla.

55. E. Crousg, Tinner, Twinsburgh. ‘

56. N.A.Cmarmaw, Wagonmaker, Twinsburgh.

57. Carrony & Currick, 142 South Howard Street, Akron, O.
General Job Printers. ! ‘

Controlling the entire output

Hugill &

58, EsraTe of W. B. Doyre, Main st., Akron. Al kinds of
Wood-Work for Furnishing Houses, Cabinet Cases for Railroads
and Express Cos. Lumber Yard. Organized, 1853, by Wilson
'Esdwards. Capital stock, $30,000. Males, 50. Pay roll per week,
$5,200., i

59. Dopcr & PruMEer, 124 8. Howard st:, Akron, Parlor Suits,
Couches, Rockers, Lounges, Mattresses, ete. Males, 11; females, 3.

60. Drasoxnp Marexn Co. The largest in the country. 100,
000,000 matches daily. Employ 638 hands in Akron branch., Xs-
tablished, 1847. Present capital, $3,000,000. :

$1. Mewry Devrscu, Greenshurgh. Brick and Tile.

#2. Jomx M. Dickrxsow, Brooms, Peninsula.

$3. Durry Bros., Cuyahoga Falls, Book and Job Printers.

g4, J. C. Ewarr & Co., Akron Roofing Tile Works, 110 Brook
st. on C. A. & C. Ry, Akron. Roofing, Tile, Crestings, etc.
Organized, 1875, Males, 65.

65. WrirLiax EpgRirarp, 104 Sherman street, Akron, Ohio,
Machine Shop. -

66. L. D.Ewixg, 121 Kirkwood street, Akron,
Moulding, Frames, Mantels.

67. J.7%W. Foster, Boat Builder, Lock 3, Ohio Canal.

y 68. War. FREUDEMAN, Cigar Manufacturer, 833 South Main st.,
Akron.

69. Axos M. Fisnury, Harness-Maker and Horse Turnisher,
178 South Howard st., Akron.

70. Farrts Horrow Sraysorr Co., Cuyahoga Falls, 0. Manu-
t'acture{'s of Hollow Staybolts for Locomotive Boilers. Employs
15 hands. ‘

71. Omts W. Frrrs, Peninsula, Ohio, Manufacturer of Sawed
Lumber and Feed. Established in 1880.

79. R, L. Fmiivs & Co., Hudson, Ohio. Crystal Flour, Feed,
Organized, 1890. Capital, $19,000. Males, 8. 75 barrels daily.
73, (+ARAHAN, STEIN & Co., rear Allen & Co. Mills, Mill st.
Extension, Akron. Flour and Fruits barrels. Organized, 1879.
Capital invested, 81,500.. Males, 10. Pay roll, $1,000 per week.
(apacity, 85,000 barrels per year. .. .

74, GOERNER & PraxTz, Akron File Works, east of Buckeye.
Manufacturers of Files. .

75. GueEsT BENT Woop Works. J. Barker, proprietor, Ghent,
Bath Township. Bent Wood Combination Fence, Hardwood
Lumber, ete. Organized, 1867. Capital, $6,000. 8 t0 14 Males.
Pay roll, $150 to $300 per month. ‘

76. NoRBERT GENIRUOS, Macedonia. Cooper Shop.

77. Fraxx D. Howarp. Plow Points, Stove Castings.
Mill and High sts. Akron.

78. Hri1n Sewer Pipe.Co. Manufacturers of Sewer Pipe.
Organized in 1873, Capital, $150,000. ..

79. Joux Hepperr, Carriage and Wagon Manufacturer, 701
E. Market st., Akron.

80. HarpmAM & Lutz, Wagon Makers, 6th Ward, Akron, 0.
Sewer Pipe Trucks and Rockers, 10 hands. $300.

Ohio. Siding,

ete.

Cor.

81. Howe & Co., Cuyahoga Falls, proprietors of Pearl Mills;

Manufacturers of Flour.
daily. Males, 8; female, 1.

42. W. F. Hornoway, Reading Stands, Cuyahoga Falls.

83. . H. Hrrr, Manufacturer of Stoneware, Mogadore, 0.

g4, Snroxy Hepperr. Flour Mill, Johnson's Corners.

85. B. F. HerLeR, Ghent, Flour Mill.

86. PrprER HUNSICKER, Saw-mill, Johnson’s Corners.

87. HawTER Bros., Western Star Creamery.

a8, J.J. HiLpesraxD, Clinton, Harness-Malker.

30, Jamms Haver, Cuyahoga Falls, Harness-Maker.

90. Hexry JoNEs, Wagons, Macedonia.. e ]

01, Jamawr & WEBER, 166 South Howard st., Akron, O. “The
Jahant Hot Blast Furnace, Tin and Sheet Iron Ware.

92. - GroreE C. JacksoN & Co., Schumacher Office Building,
Akron, Ohio, General Job Printers. '

93) A, Jacxsox & Livdax, 116 West Exchange st.,- Akron, 0.
Sash, Doors, Blinds and Manufactured Lumber. ‘

94, Josper Kneent, Cigar Manufacturer,
Akron, O. e

95. Kuvsrer & Beck, Baking Japans and Dryers. Capacity,
$100,000. Hands employed, 8.

06. C.KrrroepeErceR, Tannery, Cuyahoga Falls,

97. E. L. Kxox, Cuyahoga Falls, Job Printer.

98, Jacos LApp, East Akron, O. Slack Barrels. Organized,
1878. Males, 20. Pay toll, $175 per week. Capacity, 300 barrels
daily. - o
?)9. §. B. Larrerry, Manufacturing Confectioner, E, Market
st., Akron. )

100. L. W. Loowmts, Cuyahoga Falls, O. Special attention
given to the manufacture of agylum tinware.

101. A.J. Lour, Norton Center, Saw, Feed and Cider Mill.

102. A. A. Ligens, Macedonia, Sawmill. .

103. Mrxavo Orn Co., Manufacturers of Olive Oil. 8hoe Dress-
ing, 138 N. Howard st., Akron, 0 )

104. Hexry MisurLer & Sox, Mogadore, O. Stoneware Special-
ties. Mishler's Patent Stew Pansand Large Ware. New patent way
of making large ware. .

105. Myers & Harn, Manufacturers of.Stoneware, M ogadore,
Springfield Township. Established, 1868. Capital, $15,000. Males,
90, Pay roll, per year, $7,000. Capacity, 850,000 gallons per year.

106, May & FresecER, Akron Furnace and Cornice Works,
114 N. Howard st., Akron.- Furnaces and ‘Galvanized Iron
Cornices. Organized, 1880. Capital invested, $16,000. Males, 23.
Pay roll, %ﬁl,UOO per year. .

107. Joux G. MEap, Hudson, IHarness.. .

108. Moopy & THomas, Flour Mill, Peninsula, 0.

109. Wirzrax O.Morr, Wagon Manufacturer, Peninsula, O.

110. MarrLr & Isumax, Springtield, Stoneware. 20 hands.
Wages paid, $10,000 yearly. Capital invested, $35,000.

111, 8. J. Monrox, Manufacturer of Stoneware, Mogadore, 0.

112. 8. C. MeNgE1n, Akron, proprietor, Bell Dale, Iron Bridge,
Hawkins, Chagrin Falls, and Troy. Corners, Cheese Factories.
Capital invested, $10,000. . Males, 10. TPay roll, $3,500 per year.
Capacity, 100 Cheese, 400 lbs. Creamery Butter per day. B

113, BEnsamIN McNavemrox, Cigar Manufacturer, 920 East
Market st., Akron, O. o :

114. Omro PORTRAIT ENLARGING_GO.,BnchteI ave. and Sumner
st., Akron. Organized, 1890 Capital stock, $1,000. Males, 5;
Females, 6. Payroll, §475 per month.

115. D. R. Pater & Co., 107 to 121 N. Canal st., Akron, Ohio.
Varnishes, Japans, Oil Finish, Asphaltum, Damar, Shellac.
Organized, 1889. Capital stock, $75,000. Males, 7. Pay roll, $380
per month, Capacity, 8,500 barrels Varnish; 400 barrels Japan,
200,000 per annum.

116. © C. H. PayxE, Boat Builder, Akron, O.

117.
Howard st., Akron, O.

118. H. E. Parxs, Towel Racks, Cuyahoga Falls.

Organized, 1886. Capacity,150 barrels

418 E. Center st.,

119, C. A. PEnron, 1137 E, Market st., 6th Ward, Akron, O:
Harness, etc. ] '
120. Smmroon E. Pueres, West Richfield, Tinner.

121. HMewny PAmDEE, Gthent, Woolen Mill, :

129. @.J. RENwER, Beer Brewer, 313 N. Forge st., Akron.

j2s. T.J. Remiey, Cigar Manufacturer, 164 8. Howard st.,
Akron. :

194, Crrist Reivmorp, Harness-Maker and Horse Furnisher,
409 8, Main st.,” Akron, O.

~Males, 150. Pay roll, $7,000 per month.

_Pay roll, $15,000 per montlh,

J.W. W. Powrrr, Harness and Horse Furnisher, 122 N.

125, Curist RokcER, Brittain, Wagons.

126. D. RiceLe, Irene, 0., Flour.

197. RurrexNeR Broraers, Cheese, Krumroy.

198. (ro. P. Sperny, Manufacturer of Sewer Pipe, Tallmadge,
Ohio, )

129. L. E. SemsrrriNG, Harmess-Maker and Horse Furnisher,

3583 8. Main st., Akron, O.

130. Swmrg Bros., Main st., Akrvon, Ohio, Manufacturing
Chemists. Flavoring Extracts, Medicines, Perfumes, Baking
Powder, Paper Boxes, etc. Organized, 1885. Capital invested,
$15,000. Males, 9; Females, 25.

131. Suanrrr Crry Boiner Works, L. M. Briggs, proprietor, 6th
Ward, Akron. Steam Boilers of all deseriptions, Rotary Bleach-
ers, Oil Tanks, Storage Tanks, Stacks, and Sheet Iron Works.
Organized, 1885, Capital invested, $35,000. Hands employed in
Akron, 80 men; Lima, Ohio, 148 men; LaFayette, Ind., 200 men;
1 female. Pay roll, $16,000 per month. '

132. Ermer B. Smierps, Hudson, Ohio. Hudson Box-Work
and Lumber Mills, Sawing, Planing, Matching. Organized, 1890.
Males, 14. Capacity, sawing 10,000 feet per day;400 hoxes per day.

133. E.W.S8axe, Stoveware, Cuyahoga Falls, O.

184. C. L. Suaxny, Harness, Copley.

185, CHARLES SHARP, Carriages and Wagons, Tallmadge, O.
186. SmeBRMAN & Brarry, Flour Mill, Comet.

137 Sarra & Havniy, 174 8. Howard st., Akron, Ohio. Tin

and Sheet iron Workers.

138, P. B. Spacoy, Macedonia, Tinner.
139, F. H. Sarra, 125 N. Main st., Akron, Ohio. Patterns.
189a.-CHARLES SCHULER, 246 West Market st. Manufacturer

and Dealer in all leading Marbles and Granites.

140, Tue AxroN Twixe axD Comrpace Co., Hill st., Akron, O.
Sisal and Manila Binder Twine, and Cordage and Rope. Organized,
1885. Capital stock, $100,000. ~ Capital invested, $150,000. Males,
50; Females, 40. Pay roli, $50,000 per year. Capacity, 2,000 tons.

141, TuE ARRON Bumpixe & Casixgr Co., 213 to 223 Cherry
st., Akron, O. Bank and Office Furniture. Fine Interior Finish,
Counters, Wood Mantles and dealer in Slate Mantles, Gratesand
artistic Liling, Willow $liding Blinds, ete. Organized, 1889, Capital
Stock, $100,000. Capital invested, $55,000. Hands employed;
Males, 60. Pay roll, per month, $2,500.

343, D, Tomonskey, Manufacturer of Cigars, 180 Cuyahoga
st., Akron. i .

144, Tue Wirrymax & Barses Maxtr'e Co.  Organized, 1864.
Capital, $2,000,000. Mower Knives, Reaper Sickles, Drop Forgings,
Thresher Teeth, Spring Keys and Cotters. 300 men in Akron.
Also Canton, 0., Syracuse, N. Y., St. Catherine,Ont., 800 men inall.

" 145. Tur WERNER PRiNTiNG & Lrrmo. Co. 200 to 206 North
Union st. Incorporated, 1886. Capital, $500,000.

7146, Tur WHITMOKRE, RoBINsoNs & Co., 1200 E. Market, Gth
Ward, Akron. Incorporated, 1887, Capital, $150,000. Stoneware,
Fine Glazed Ware, Rockingham and  Yellow Ware. 50 males.
Pay roll, $23,000 per year. Capacity, 6,000 tons per year.
Consume 400 tons coal per month. Incorporated, 1887.

147. Tag WesterNx Lizormvs Co., located in Sweitzer &
Steiner’s addition south of Akron. Incorporated, 1890. Capital
stock, $200,000. Hands employed, 72. Manufacturers of Table,
Stair and Shelf Oil-Cloths, Carriage and Upholstery Enameled
Goods, Imitation Leathers and Fancy Mosaics, ete.

148. Tur Unirep STarss StoxeEware Co. Incorporated, 1885.
Capital stock, $25,000,, Capacity, 1,000,000 gallons yearly. 40
hands. Monthly pay roll, $1,600. )

149. Tup 'THomas Purrnies Co.  Capital stock, $150,000. In-
corporated, 1887. Output, 5,000 pounds paper flour-sacks and
paper daily. 50 hands.

150. 'Tme THomMas Lumser & Buinpine Co. Incorporated,

71888, Capital stock, $100,000. Lumber, wholesale and retail,

8ash, Doors, Blinds. General Building Contractors.

151. 'TapniN, Rice & Co., cor. Broadway and Church sta.,
Alkron, O, Stoves, Machinery and Castings of all kinds. (Clay
Machinery a specialty). Organized, 1866. Capital stock, §150,000.

152. 'Tin Star Drrvrive Macuins Co., Akron., Well Drilling
Machinery, Drilling and Fishing Tools, Upright Engines. In-
corporated, 1889, Capital stock, 550,000, Capital invested, §50,000.
Males, 88; Females, 1. Pay roll, §1,300 per month. Capacity, 60 .
complete machines per year.

153. Tue Scmumacuen M'¥'e¢ Co., State st., near Merrill’s
Pottery. Akron. Gymnasium Supplies, Foundry, Machine Shops,
Tents, Awnings, Horse and Wagon Covers, Rope Work, Brass
Castings, Straw Stack Covers, Canvas Carpet Covers. Organized,
1889. {ncorporated, 1800. Capital stock, $45,000. Males, 30;
Temale, 1. Pay roll, $350 per week. o )

154, TEE SEisErLING MinrLoye Co. Incorporated, 1883, Capital
stock, $200,000. Flour. Output, 250,000 barrels yearly. Value,
$1,200,000. 30 men. $500 per week.

155. TurJ. F. SErmeruiNe & Co., Empire Mower and Reaper
Works. Mowers, Reapers and Binders. Incorporated, 1884.
Capital stock, $1,000,000. Capital invested, $1,000,000. Males, 300.
Capacity, 10,000 machines annually.

156+ - TuE SELLE Guar Co., Chestnut sf., between High and 8.
Broadway, Akron, Organized, 1885. Capital stock,$25,000. Males,
50. Pay roli, $25,000 per year. Platform, Truck, Omnibus, and
other Spring Wagon Gears. :

157. Tur Susumrr Sewer. Pres Co. of Akron.
corporated, July, 1889. Capital, $100,000. )

158. e RoBinsox Bros. & Co., N. Forge st., Akron. Sewer
Pipe. Organized, 1879.. Incorporated, 1887.. Capital stock, $300,-
00y. Males, 80. Pay roll, $2,600 permonth. Capacity, 9,000 tons
of pipe per month. Consume 500 tons of coal per month.

159. Tur Omro Sro¥xewarr Co. Organized, 1881. Capital,
$12,000. 650,000 gallons yearly.

160. Tur E. H. Merrrin Co., 400 8. Main st., Akron. Stone-
ware and Specialties. Organized, 1847. Incorporated, 1887.
Capital stock, $50,000. Males, 40. Tay roll, §20,000 per year.

161. Tue D. F. Moreaxw Borner Co., Main street Crossing,
C. A.&C., and N. Y., P. & O. R. Bs., Akron. Steam and Hot
Water Heating Apparatus. Capital stock, $100,000 Authorized.
Capita) invested, $46,000. Males, 20. Pay roll, $200 per week.
Capacity, 1,000 boilers per annum.

162, Tur ExterprisE Mawvracroring Co. Capital stock,
$100,000. Established 1881, Incorporated, 1886. Largest exclusive
Manufacturers of Artificial Fish Baits and Harness Ornaments in
the U. 8. Employ 70 hands.

163. Tur AxroN Vrtrrrrep Pressed Brick Co., Office, 122 8.

Howard st., Akron.; Works at Independence, Ohio. Incorporated,
1890. Capital, $100,000.

South In-

164, Tus Axrox Noverry Mra. Co. Incorporated, 1890.
Capital, $25,000. Hands, 20.
166. Tur ABsoLurs CuemrcAL Co., 1080 B. Market st., Akron,

Incorporated, Dec. 1890, Capital stock, $50,000. Parasite Exter-
minators; Patent Medicines for pains, aches, broises, liver and
kidney troubles.

167. Tar AxroN Harpwarr Co., gsouth of Akron. Crystal,
Plated and Metal Hub Bands, Steel and Malleable Bridle Bits in
all varieties. Gold, Silver, Copper, Brass, and Oreide Plating,
Bronzing and Silvering. Organized, 1889, Capital stock, $50,000.
Capital Invested, $40,000. Males, 42; Females, 8. Pay roll, $10,000
per month. ; '
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168. Ture Akrox ExaraviNg Co., Market and Main sts,, Akron,
0. 12 hands. Al kinds of engravings used for illustrative pur-
poses.

169, TaE Axroy Lie¢uTr, Hiar & Power Co., Akron, O. In-
corporated, July 14, 1888. Capital, $200,000. To supply gas for
fuel, and illuminating purposes, and power for gas-engines. 6
miles of pipe. Large extensions contemplated. Price, 50 cents
per 1,000 cubit feet, with discounts for large quantities.

170, Tur Axrox CmEMrcan Co., Manufacturers of Printing
Inks, Dipping and Brush Paints W. W. Varnish, Iron and Wood
Iillers, and dealers in Carbon and Lubricating Oils, W. State st.,
Akron, 0. Organized, 1889. Capital stock, $25,000. Males, 7.
(Ija]pacity, 7,500 barrels; Paints, etc., and 150,000 pounds Printing
nks.

171. Tar AMericaNy SEwrr Prer Co. Tapital stock, $30,000.
Owning and controlling the entire product of Akron Sewer Pipe
Co. Capital, $200,000. = Established, 1848. Oldest in America.
Employ 100 hands. Buckeye Sewer Pipe Co., Capital, $91,000. 70
hands. Hill Sewer Pipe Co., $30,000; 70 hands, Robinson Bros. &
Co., $200,000; 95 hands. Geo. P.Sperry, capital, $79,000; 70 hands.
Total, Capital stock, $700,000. 400 hands employed. Output, 4,000
car loads. Pay roll, $153,000 per month.

172. Tur AxroN Toor Co., N. Union st., Akron. The “Kraus"
Cultivator and Line of Agricultural Implements. Capital stock,
$100,000. Capital invested, $75,000. Males, 50. Capacity, 60
machines daily.

173. Tur Axrox SroNewArk Co. See Akron- Canton Stone-
ware Agency. Akron Stoneware, 1,250,000 gallons yearly. Fine
(;‘litlzed Ware, consisting of Milk Pans, French Pots, etc., 300,000
gallons.

174, Tae Axrox HEArING & VEnTILATING Co., 401 8. Broad-
way st., Akron, O. Incorporated, Jan. 1890. Capital, §75,000,
Heating and Ventilating Apparatus, etc.

175, Tur Axrox Pavine Brick Co. Incorporated, Jan, 1891,
Capital, $40,000.

176. Tur Arrox QUuEENswARE Co., 6th Ward, Akron, Ohio.
Incorporated, July, 1890. Capital, $50,000. Hands employed 60;
average wages paid, $2.00; Output, $1,500 per week.

177. TouE ARROW SILveER PraTe Co., 141 and 147 Blaff st.,
Akron, O. Incorporated, 1890. Capital, $100,000,

178, Tue Axrox Smoxixe¢ Prre Co., Mogadore, Springtield
Township. Incorporated, 1890, Capital, $70,000. Hands
employed, Males, 30; Females, 5. Capacity, 12,000,000 yearly.
General Office, Akron. Smoking Pipes.

179, Tuae AxroNy WHITE SAND & SToNE Co., 110 8. Howard st.
Incorporated, 1891. Capital stock, $100,000.

180, TurR Axrox Prizrizg AND Punrisuing Co., Capital stock,
$150,000. Established, 1839, Incorporated, 1890. Publishers of
the Beacon and Republican, 4,500 circulation ; Swmmit County Beacon,
2,000 circulation; American Farm News, 80,000 circulation. 110

Rods, Side Arms for Printing Presses; all kinds of Forging in Iron,
Steel and Copper.

185. Tue Grose Siex Co., south of Akron, O. Advertising
Signs and Novelties. Capital stock, $50,000. Incorporated, 1890.
Males, 6. Capacity, 12,000 Board Signs and 20,000 yards Fahric
Signg daily. Sole Operators of Bender's Patent Sign Painting
Machinery, and Manufacturers of Cotton Cloth Signs, Streamers,
Hangers, Banners, and Board and Fabric Signs of extraordinary
sizes, 1 foot to 100 feet in length. Operators of the most gigantic
Sign Machines on earth. i

186, Tur Haxxey Luvsmrer Co. Incorporated, 1889, Capital,
$100,000.

187. Tur Humparsy Tursine Co., 4038, Broad wayst., Akron.
Incorporated, 1889. Capital, $50,000. Manufacturers of the
Humphrey Turbine Water Wheel.

188. Frx J.C. MceNgs1r Co., (Akron Boiler Works), Akron, O.
Established, 1883. Capital stock, $100,000. Capital invested, $100,-
000. Males, 80. Payroll, $5,000 per month. Manufacturers of
Steam Boilers of every description. Works'in Sheet Iron of all
kkinds, Transportation Oil Tanks, and Cars, Storage Tanks, Globe
and Cylinder Bleaching Boilersfor Straw Board and Paper Milly,
Digesters for Wood Pulp.

189. Tar Agron Cicar Co., 437 E. Center st., Akron, Ohio.
Incorporated, 1890, Capital, $25;000.

190, Tue NarioNat SEwrr Pies Co., Barberton, Ohio. Akron
Sewer Pipe. Organized, 1890. Capital stock, $250,000. Capital
invested, $250,000. Males, 100. Capacity, 5,000 car loads a year.

191, Tam G. H. Grixm M’F¢ Co., Hudson, 0., Evaporators
for Maple, Sorghum, and Cider and Fruit Jellies. Organized, 1888.
Capital stock, $50,000. Capital invested, $29,000. Males, 11;
Female, 1. Pay roll, 8125 per week. Branch Shop, Rutland,
Vermont.

192, Tarrarapck Draix Trne Co., Tallmadge Center, Ohio,
Manufacturers of Drain Tile, Hollow Brick, ete.” Organized, 1885.
Capital, 58,000, Males, 7. Pay roll, 8400 per month.

198, Z. W. Towxsexp, West Richfield, O., Oak Stave Baskets

‘and Wagon Huba. Baler and Shipper of Hay and Straw.

194, TuE ARRON REED & RaTrax Co., Manufacturers of the
Akron Adjustable Baby Carriage and Reed and Rattan Furniture.
Works, 112 N, Union st., Akron. Incorporated, 188). Capital,
50,000,

195, Turr AxroxSoar Co., 186 Case ave., Akron. Organized,
1884, Capacity, 600 tons per year. Incorporated, 1801. Capital
stock, $10,000.

196. Tune Axrox Berrixe Co., 138 N. Main st., Akron. Oak
Tanned Leather Belting, especially adapted for TDrive Belts,
Dynamo Belts, Electric Plants, Planers and Mill Roll Belts.
Organized, 18385, Capital stock, $85,000. Capital. used §60,000.
Males, 24; Female, 1. Pay roll, $250 per week. Capaecity, $200,-

Cakes. Organized, 1885. Capital stock, $a0,000. Males, 18;
Females, 6. Pay roll, $875 per month. Capacity, 275 barrels daily.

205,  Tur B.F.Goopricw Co., Soft Rubber Goods. Established,
1869. Capital, $200,000. HHands employed, 250.

206. Tur Goonrica Harp Russrr Co., Akron. Incorporated,
1888. Capital stock, $300,000. Males, 180; Females, 51. )

207. Tur WesteEry Wrincer Co. Incorporated, 1887. Capital,
95,000,

208, Tur Axrox Sprrrr Liver Co. Incorporated, 1890.
Capital, $25,000.

209. THE Kirknay Art Tine & Porrery Co., Barberton, O.
Capital stock, $500,000. Hands employed, 700. .

210. Tue AmErrcay ATumiva Co., Barberton, O. Capital
stock, $500,000. Manufacturersof Alumina, (Paper Maker’s Alum)
Aluminous Cake and Sulphuric Acid. .

211, THE AXrRON ELBCTRICAL MANuracrurixg Co., Akron, O.
Incorporated, Jan. 1s891. Capital, $100,000. Dynamos, Motors,
Fire Alarm and Electrical Appliances.

212, Tur AMerrzay MArsLE & Toy M’ Co., Akron, Ohio.
Organized, 1891. Capital, $100,000. Hands employed, Males, 20;
Females, 110. Pay roll, $2,250 per month. Capacity, 700,000
marblesdaily. '

213. Tue Creepyoor CartrIDGE Co., Barberton, Ohio. In-
corporated, Sept. 1880. Capital stock, $500,000. Metallic Cart-
ridges, Brass and Paper Shot Shells and Primers.

214. TuE AxroN Powrer Arrniance Co., 131 North Main st.,
Akron, O. Sewing Machine Appliances.

215. TuHE AXRON-CANTON STONEWARE AcExcy. Office, 1200 E.
Market st., Akron, O. Representing The Whitmore, Robinsons &
Co., Ohio Stoneware Co., Cook, Fairbanks& Co., F. H. Weeks, The
E. H. Merrill Co., The Canton Stoneware Co., Markle & Inman,
Akron Stoneware Co., A. J. Weeks, J. S. Monroe & Sons, The U. S,
Stoneware Co., Myers & Hall, The Champion Stoneware Co.

216. Z. W, TowxsExDp, West Richfield, Manufacturer of Oak
Staves, Baskets, Wagon Hubs, ete.

217. 'Tms StirLING Borrer Co., Barberton, O. Capital stock,
$3,000. Incorporated, 1890. Hands employed, 70.

218, H. Vebprrz, Manufacturer of Brushes, Akron, O.

219. Viann & Marxne. See Akron—Canton Stoneware Agency.
Akron Stoneware 650,000 gallons yearly.

220. J. H. C. VeAvVER, Greensburgh, Wagons.

221, 8. N. Wrirsoxn, 838 8. Main st., Lumber Dealer and
Builder, Organized, 1867. Capital invested, $20,000. Males, 20.
Pay roll, 3200 per week. 1,500,000 feet lumber handled; 100
Houses and Barns erected & year.

222, Artayr J. Wepks, Manufacturer of Stoneware and
Stoneware Specialties, 1100 E. Market st., Akron, O. Organized,
1860. Capital invested, $25,000. Males, 25. Pay roil. $1,000 per
month. Capacity, 750,000 gallons.

223. J. K. WiLniams, Akron, Ohio, Canal and Mill streets.

hands employed. Pay roll, 45,000 per year. Work sent to every 000 per year.

State and Territory.

181. Tue Americdx Crreaxn Co., Office, cor. Mill and Broad-
way, Akron. Owners and Operators of Empire, Cereal, Stone and

Cascade Mills, Summit street and IHoward street. Incorporated,
1891, Capital, $3,400,000. Employ 300 males; 75 females, Pay

roll, $12,000 per month.

Manufacturers of Flour, Pearl Barley,
Oat-Meal, Avena, Cracked and Rolled Wheat, Farinose, Farina,
Rye Flour, Hominy, Corn Meal, Feed,

197, Tee Warsn Paper Co., Cuayahoga TFalls, O.
facturers of Color, Book. Manilla, and Wrapping Paper. 50 hands.
Pay roll, $1,100 per month.
198, Jacon Turxer, Greensburgh, O., Wagons,

and adjoining Barberton, organized for the
facturing Brick and Tile.

stock, §15,000.

182, Tue Axrox WooreN & Ferr Co., G6th Ward, Akron, O.

Paper Maker’s Felts and Jackets.
invested, $100,000. Males, 80; Females, 20.

month.

183, Tur Bri¢eEr Berrine Co.
825,000, Hands, 15. Manufacturers of Patent Wove Oak Leather
Beltsand all sizes of Oak Tanned Belts.

184, Tur Dror Hiamymer Forainae Co.
1890, Capital, $15,000. Hands, 10. Cold Chisels, Punches, Pitman

Axles, Cav, ete., 2.
Aveni, Rolled, 181,
Angler’s Specialties, 162.
Awnings, 46, 153,
Ammunition Wads, 47,
Alumina, 210.
Aluminous Cake, 210,
Acid, Sulphurie, 210,

Biscuits, 203.
Boilers, 217,

do Steam Jleating, 131, 161,

do Steam Power, 131, 188
do  Hot Water, 161,
do (:lobe, 188,

do Cylinder Bieaching, 188.

Bleuachers, Rotary, 181
Bridle Bits, 167.
Barley, Pearl, 181,
do  Crushed, 181,
Book Binding,. 145, 180.
Brick, Fire, 4, 19.
do Paving, 12,
do Building, 12, 199,
do Loeomotive Arch, 19,
do Hollow, 43, 192.
Brick, 18, 83, 61, 163. 175.
do Muachines, 49.

Blinds, 3, 21, 58, 93, 141, 150, 186, 221, 224

Bar Heads, Eye, 2

Buggies, 8, 79,

Barrels, 76, 98, 73.

Bowls, Butter, 17, 148.

Butter Bowls, 17, 148,

Butter, 87, 112,

Bottles, Beer and Ink, 17, 160,

Beer, 24, 122.

Beer and Ink Bottles, 17, 160,

Belting, Leather, 183, 196,
do Rubber, 205. .

Binders, 7, 165.

Binder Twine, 140.

Boxes, Wooden, 82, 124.
do Paper, 180,

Bronzing, 162, 167.

Brushes, 218, 280,

Baskets, 198, 216,

Boats, 67, 116,

Brooms, 39, 62,

Blank Books, 180.

Brandy, 229,

Baking Powder, 180,

Blowsrs, 174,

Banners, 185,

Ceramics, 209,
Carriages, 8, 48, 79, 185,
do Specialties, 167.
do  Baby, 194,
Cultivator, 172,
('ouches, 59.
Corn Meal, 181,
Chimuney Tops, 49,
Castings, 161 183, 71.
Cabinet Work, 141,
Counters, 141,
Church Furniture, 141,
(Combs, Rubber, 206.
Cider, 101,
Clay Specialties, 17, 148,
do Products, 49.
do Mills, 20.
Cups, Jelly, 160,
Crackers, 208,
Cakes, 208,
Cookies, 203,
Cordage, 140,
Coping, Wall, 49,
Corters, 144,
Cartridges, 418,
Cornice, 108,
Chisels, Cold, 184,
Cheese, 82, 52, 58, 87, 112, 127.

Incorporated, 1888. Capital | RN
Pay voll, $2,000 per Organized, Jan. 1880,

200. Tarrmapce FLower Por Co., Tallmadge, O.
201. Tur TurNeRr, VAucHN & Tavrnor Co., Cuyahoga Falis, Q. ete.
Capital stock, $4,000,

$2,5600 per month.

Incorporated, 1891, Capital,

202, Tur TFarns River & Macaixe Co.
Capital stock, $100,000,

pay roll, $80,000. ] )
203. Tur Axrox Crickrr Co., United States Baking Co., Mogadore.

Incorporated, March,

Akron Cracker Works, (Branch), Akron. Crackers, Biscuits and

Males, 50.. Tay roll,

Machine Shop. Organized, 1885, Capital invested, $3,000. Males,

Manu- 7. Pay roll, §34 per week.
224, WEARY, SNYDER, WrIicox M'F'e¢ Co., N. Main st., Akron.

Sash, Doors, Blinds, and General Lumber Dealers., Organized,
urg 1867. Capital stock, $150,000. Males, 25. Pay roll, $1,300 per
199, Tue Barserrox Brick & Tinw Co., located south-west of  month.

P A o Pirpgsﬁfl of Manu- 225. WEBSTER, Caxr & Lave Macume Co., N. Main street,
rapacily, 20,000 bricks daily.

Capital  Akromn, O. Founded, 1848. Capital stock, $100,000. Capital in.
vested, $45,000, Organized, 1869. ITands employed, Males, 210.
Hoisting and General Machinery, Stationary Engines, Castings,

650,000 gallons yearly.

226, WEEeKks BroTurrs. See Akron-CantonStoneware Agency.

Organized, 1880. 227. WiIEMER BrorHERS.,Cuyahogs Falls, Monuments.
ITands employed, 200 males.

Average 228. Wisox & Huanes Sroxg Co., Peninsula, Ohio.
228. 8. Wacnxner, Distiller of Rye Whiskeyand Apple Brandy,

Candy, 46, 93,

Cigars, 68, 95, 118, 128, 143, 189,

Cases, Cabinet, 58.

Cots, 46.

Crestings, 64.

Carpets, 26, 27,

Caps, Hay, 46.

Covers, Stack and Wagon, 46, 153,
do Horse, 46, 158.

Curry Combs, 81.

Car Axles, 2. :

Canvas Goods, 46, 158,

Doors, 3, 21, 58, 93, 150, 186, 221, 224.

Dryers, 94, 115,

Drop ¥orgings, 144,

Drain Tile, 12, 49.

Dish Washing Machine, 16.

Dies, Sewer Pipe, 20 .

Dry and Wet Pan Mills, 20.

Drays, Spring, Y, 51,

Drays, 25,

Drills, 144,

Digesters, Wood Pulp, 188, |

Druggist’s Sundries, 206,

Dynamos, 211

Exterminator, Paméite, 166.
Engines, Stationary, 162, 225,
do Shafts

Hoisting Machinery, 235

Horse Furnishings, 28, 6‘:), 117, 124, 129,

Hip Rolls, 64.
Hay Caps, 46.
Handles, Feather Duster, 80.
Heads, Feather Duster, 30.
Hydraulic Machinery, 38,
Hardware, saddlery, 167,
do  Carriage, “167.
Heuters, 174.
Hangers, 185.
Hubs, Wagon, 193, 216.
Iron, Refined Bar, 11,
do Hammered, 2,
do Work, Boiler, 131,
do do Sheet, 131,
do Agricultural, 11.
Ink, Printer’s, 170
do Stands, 206.
Implements, s gricultural, 172,
Iron, Common Bar, 11.
Japans, Baking, 94, 115,
Jollies, 20.
Jackets, Paper Makers, 182.
- Jars, Fruit, 17, 148, 160.
Jugs, 17, 148, 160.
Jugs Miniature, 212,
Job Printing, 57, 68, 92, 97, 144.

Engraving, Wo’od'. Metal, and Photo., 145, 168, Knobs, Enameled, 30,
180,

E]ectrdtyping, 145, 180.

- Embossing, 145

Extracts, Flavoring, 180,
Eye, Bar Heads, 2.
Enameled Cloth, 147,
Elsvators, Cotton, 174,
Easels, 164.

Evaporators, 191,
Elsctrical Supplies, 206, 211.

Forging, Iron, Steel, Copper, 184.

Lumber Wagons, 9,
do Hard Wood, 71, 182,
do > traw,

do Manufactured, 3, 21, 58,75, 86, 93, 101,

102, 160, 186, 221, 224,
Leather Belting, 183, 196.
do . Haters, 196,
do  Oak Tanned, 96.
do 1mitation, 147.
Lignistra. 1.
Line shafts, 2.

TFarina, 164, 181, Lit;hogrzu)hlpg,‘ 145,
¥lour, b, 34, 72, 81, 84, 85, 108, 126, 136, 154, 181, Levels, ~pirit, 208,
do Graham, 154

do Rye, 181,
Flower Pots, 160, 200.
TFillers, Iron and Wood, 170
Frames, Picture, 23, 66.
Furniture, Church and Office, 141.
TFelts, Paper Maker’s, 182
Fans, Exhaust, 174,
Fruit Jars, 17, 148, 160,
TFountains, Poultry, 17,
Tire Alarms, 211, .
Filters, 17

Fire Clay Specialties, 212
Fire Brick, 4, 19
Farinose, Parche

Linings, stove, Furnace, Range, 19.
flue, 20.

do

Moters, 211,

Mosaics, Fancy, 147,

Matcehes, 60,

Moulding, 21, 66.

Machinery, Potter's, 151.
do Wire Drawing, 201,
do Hoisting, 161, 225.
do Chain Making, 201.

. go Eililtlfr Grogrﬁl{%alugilgg,z 6151, 225,
. 0 ning an \ 161, .
Feather Duster Handles and Heads, 80. do Sewerg}?ipe and Pottery, 161, 225.

do Grain Cleaning, 201.
do Sewer Pipe, 201,
do Miniature jug,- 201,

d, 181,
Teed, 84, 71, 72, 81, 84,101, 108, 186, 164, 18L. ‘@0 Clay Pipe, 20T

Fish Bait, Artificial, 162.
Furnaces, 91, 106.
Finials, Terra Cotta, 64.

, 74,
Fence, Pickets, 75.
Flavoring, 130,

Gymnasinm Apparatus, 1653,

do Well Drilling, 152

do Band Frietion Holsting, 152,

do Transmitting, 202
Machines, Dish Washing, 16.
Mills, Dry and Wet Pan, 20,

do (Clay, 20.
do Supplies, 196,
Mitering Machines, 28.

Gears, Spring Wagon, Omnibus and Truck, Muntels, 41, 66, 141,

" Qrates, 41, 141,

Granite, 41, 189%a,

Galvanized Iron Cornice, 106,
Grindstones, H4.

Gas, 169,

Granite Ware, 174,

Hub Bandas, 167,

Meat Tubs, 17, 160,
Mowers, 7, 155,

Mowers Knives, 144,
Marble, 41. .

Marbles, Toy, 212,
Monuments, 41, 227, 189a.
Medicines, 130, 166,
Mattresses, 59, .

Harness, 16, 28, 35, 42, 69, 88, 89, 107, 117, 119, Oats, Flaked, 181,
124, 129, 184

Harness, speclalties, 167.
Hominy, 181, :

Qats, Rolled, 181,
Out Meal, 181,
Office Furniture, 141,

0Oil Tanks, Stationary, 131.

Qil Tanks, Transportation, 181, 188,
0il Tanks, storage, 181, 188,

0il Cloth, 147.

Oak Staves, 216.

Plating, Nickel, 13, 162, 16%.
do  Silver, 162, 177,
do  Gold, 162, 167.
do  Brass, 162, 167.
do  Copper, 167.
do  Oreide, 167.
Pumps, Wooden and Chain, 44,
Paper, 50, 149, 197,
do  Flour, Sacks, 149,
do  Wrapping, 149. .
do  Maker’s Felts and Jackets, 181,
Pauiplb Car, Roofing, Fence, Dipping, Bridge,

Puity, Stove, 170,

Potter’s Machinery, 20, -

Plants, Boiler and Pumping, 225,

Plow Points, 77, -

Pans, stew, 17, 148, 160,

Pots, Lead Corroding, 160,

Pots, Flower, 160, 200,

Pots, French, 146.

Pip(i,9 ﬁ}ewer, 6, 49, 78, 80, 128, lﬁg, 158, 171, 29,

Pipe, Smoking, 30, 60, 160, 177.
Perfumes, 130, :
Printing Press Side Arms, 184,
Presses, Steam, 20,

Portraits, 114

Patterns, 139.

Printing, 145, 168,

Pans, Mi’ll, 1486,

Punches, 184,

Pen'Bolders, 206.

Primers, 218.

Queensware, 146.

Rosettes, 162, 167,
Repairing Machinery, 223,
Rockers, Sewer Pipe, 80.
Rubber Goods, Hard, 206.
Rubber Goods, Soft, 2056,
Reapers, 1, 186,

Reaper, Sickles, 144.

Reed and Rattan_Goods, 154,
Rubber Stamps, 14

Rooiing Tile, 64,
Rockingham Ware, 17, 146,
Refined Bur Iron, 11. B
Rims, Wagon, %,

Rims, Harvester, 75,

Ropes, 140, 153,

Rods, Pitman, 184.

Rods, 200,

Rivets, 202.

Stereotyping, 145, 168.
Spﬂfﬁ% ‘Wagons and spring Wagon Gears, 40,

Spring Drays, 9.

Spring Keys, 144,

Sash, 8, 21, 58, 98, 150, 186, 221, 224,
Sewiegol?ipe, 6, 29, 49, 78, 80, 128, 157, 168, 171,

Sewer Pipe Machinery, 20, 201.
Sewer Pipe Dies, 20.
Shafting, 2.
Stoves, 151.
Stove Linings, 19, 151.
Stalrs, 141,
Stoneware, 17, 48, 83, 104, 105, 110, 111, 188, 146,
148, 169, 160, 173, 219, 222, 215, 226.
Stoneware, Toy, 17.
do Novelties, 212,
do . Specialties, 148, 222,
Specialties, Turned Wood, 30,
do Stoneware, 148,
Sweut Collar Pads, 162,

230. Casper ZINTLE, 185 Merriman st,, Akron, O., Brushes.

Strawboard, 1.
umber, 1. .

Shafting Pat’d Calendered, 11,
Shafting Iron and Steel, 11.
Stationery, 180,
Rtationary Engines, 225,
School Supplies, 180,

do  Printing, 180.
Shells, Bruss Shot, 218.
Shells, Paper Shot, 2138,
Stew Pans, 17, 104,148, 160.
Sewing Machine AppHances, 214.
Slippers, Toy, 212. ™
Sheet Iron Work, 137, 188,
Screen Doors and Windows, 141, 164,
Stencils, 14.
Stools, Camp, 46,
Siding, 66,
Stay Bolts, Hollow, 70.
Stands, leading, 82,
Shoe, Dressing, 108.
Stacks, 181,
Stands, 164,
Silvering, 167,
Stone, 179, 228,
Signs, lsoard, 185,
Signs, Fabric, 185.
wign Machines, 185.
Streamers, 185,
Sugar Camp Supplies, 191,
Soap, Toilet, 195 '
Soap, Laundry, 195, ’
Syringes, 206,
sanitary Goods, 209,
Staves, Oak, 216,
Turned Wood Specialties, 80,
Trueks, 25,51, 80,
Tincks, Sewer Pipe, 20, 201,
Tubs, Meat, 17, 160,
Tanks, Stationary 01}, 131, 188,
Tanks, Transportation Oil, 188.
Tanks, Storage 0il, 131, 188, :
Twine Binder, 140.
Thresher Teeth, 144,
Tile, Roofing, 64,
Tile, Drain, 12, 44, 192, 199, .
‘Terra Cotta, 64,
Tents, 46, 1568.
Toy Stoneware, 17.
Tile, 18, 88, 61, 141.
Tarpaulins, 46,
Tinware, 55, 91, 100, 120, 187, 188,
Towel Racks, 118.
Twine, 140.
Tools, Driiling, 162,
Tables, Center, 164,
Tubing, 2086,
Tile, art, 209,
Varnish, 94, 115, 170.
Vases, Ctarden. 17.
Ventifating Adpparatus, 174,
Wheoat, Rolled, 154, 181,
Wheat, Cracked, 164, 181,
W Ronar 10 35, 36, 97, 48

'agons, 8, 10, 25, 86, 81, 48, 51, 56, 79, 80, 90,

109, 125, 135, 165,198, 220, e

Wagons, Platform Spring, 9.
‘Wagons, »pring, 156.
‘Wagons, Tumber, 9,
Washboards, 17.
Ware, Rockingham, 17, 146.
Ware, Yellow, 17, 146,
Ware, Fine Giazed, 17, 146,
Ware, White, 178,
W are, Granite, 176,
Ware, Decorated, 176, 209.
Window Soreens, 141,
Woolens, 121.
‘Wheel, Turbine water, 187.
‘Wringers, 207,
Whiskey, 229,
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OUTLINE HISTORY

— OF -

SuMmMIT CouNTy, OHIO.

COMPILED FROM VARIOUS BOURCIES,
— HY —

JUDGE CHARLES R, GRANT

H ISTORY, at best, is but a partial narration of particulars and, in this outline, we have

endeavored to give the salient points of prominent events worthy of preservation as
viewed from the impartial eye of the historian. Probably many things, perchance some
essential ones, have been omitted, if such come to the mind of the reader we trust that he will
throw over it the mantle of charity as it is an error of the judgment and not of the heart.
Limited space will not permit us to give in detail the events of the County, the nature of
the work being more of an encyclopedia of its history and stastistical tables for convenient
reference than a complete narrative. For detailed information on the subjects touched
upon we refer our patrons to local works written at various times by Gen. L. V. Bierce,
Baskin and Battey, 5. A. Lane, and others, replete with all the tales and traditions from
early days to time of publication.

To the early colonist, Ohio was the land of promise, reports of the early explorers
were such as to stimulate the rapacity of greedy adventurers to the highest pitch, and Ohio
became at once the center of attraction, not only to that class, but also to the pioneer settle-
ments of the east. The spirit of land speculation was fostered Dby the system of roval
charters and favoritism, and colonial offi-
cials were rapidly acquiring titles to large
tracts of fertile lands in the north-west.
Might was the measure of white man's
right. The Warof the Revolution, however,
put a summary end to this class of specu-
lation, and all persons were forbidden to
locate on any territory until its ownership
and jurisdiction should be determined.
Each state holding charters claimed the
right of soil, the jurisdiction over the dis-
trict of the counties embraced by the pro-
visions of its charter, and the privilege of
disposing of the land to subserve its own
interests.

The states, on the contrary, whichhadno
such charter, insisted that these lands
should be appropriated for the benefit of
all the states as the title has been secured
by a joint espenditure of blood and
money. By the second article of this
definite treaty of peace with England in
1783, the boundaries of the United States
were fixed and Connecticut owned the
upper part of Ohio, Indiana, and the
lower part of Michigan.

Congress became urgent in pressing the
demand of the non-charter holding states
and forbade settlers from occupying the western lands untit a definite cession had
been made, and the title to the lands made good, as the general government was powerless
to keep its pledges to the troops and grant land to each soldier of the war. The general
dissatisfaction caused by this formed a powerful influence which finally brought about a
general cession of unappropriated lands held by the different states. In 1786 Connecticut
ceded her territory, with the exception of the «*Western or Connecticut Reserves” or New
Connecticut. In 1803, when Ohio was admitted into the Federal Union as an independent
state, the fee simple to all the lands within its limits, excepting those previously sold, were
vested in the United States. A large portion of the State, however, had been granted or
sold to various individuals or companies and may properly be divided into twenty grants
and these again into three general classes ;—r1st. Congress Lands; 2nd. The Virginia Re-
serve; 3rd. the Western Reserve; the former including all state lands not known as the
Virginia Military and the Western Reserve. Under the act of peace in 1783, no provision;
had been made by the British for their allies, especially the Six Nations, The treaties
made were regarded only as an alliance and when the English left the country the Indians
begih to assume rather a hostile bearing, and, though speculation was stronger than law, and
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,,»”?vi(tlwutwaiting for the slow process of the courts, adventurous settlers were pouring into

the country at a rapid rate, retarded only by the rifle and sculping knife of the savage; the
conservative policy in Congress prevailed and the Indian title was acquired by purchase, a
treaty being made with the Iroquois and their indefinite claim to the West was settled.
There were numerous tribes who did not recognize the right of the dominant nation to cede
this territory and would not yield without purchase, and in Janunary, 1785, the land was
again bought from the Wyandots, Delawares, Chippewas and Ottawas, and the question
of the ownership of the vast realms north of the Ohio settled, and legislation commenced to
determine the mode of its disposal and the plan of its settlement. The history of the
Western Reserve, especially to a resident thereof, is far more important than other of the
early arbitrary divisions of the State. It was peopled by a dominant class, bringing to the
«« New Connecticut” social forms and habits of thought that had been fostered in the Puritan
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persecutions of England, awd matured by nearly half a century of pioneer life in Connecticut,
into a civilization that has not vet lost its distinctive characteristics.  Though shorn of the
visible rule of the parent state, its transplanted children cawe in such numbers as to be a
potent factor in shaping the customs and institutions not only of the Reserve hut the sur-
rounding country as well ; its traditions were those of the Mayflower and the Charter Oak,
and the true descendant of the Pilgrim Fathers points with pride to their permanency, their
progressive character, and marks their influence in the commanding power of the school-
house and the church. The history of the Reserve dates back to the charter for the
“London Company, ” granted by King James [ in 1609, but does not become distinctive
until 1662, when Charles IT. granted a charter to nineteen patentees, with such associates

as they should elect, and known as the governor and company of the English Colony of -

Connecticut ; the grant embraced a strip of land six miles in width from the southern
boundary of Massachusetts and lying from the Atlantic to the Pacific. By the cession of
1786 Connecticut relinguished to the (reneral Government all lands in which she had anv
interest and lying west of aline running north from the 41° north latitude to 42° 27, and bein'g
120 miles west of the western line of Pennsylvania. From this it was called the * Western Re-
serve " of Connecticut and embraces the counties of Ashtabula, Trumbull, Portage, Geauga,
Lake, Cuyahoga, Medina, Lorain, Huron, Erie, all of Summit, except the townships of Green
and Franklin, the two noithern townships of Mahoning, the townships of Sullivan, Troy and
Ruggles of Ashland, and the Islands lying north of Sandusky and Kelleys and Tut in-Bay.
During the Revolutionary War over two thousand persons and families sustained severe
losses from the incursions of the British, and in 1792 the Legislature setaside and donated
to the suffering inhabitants of Norwalk and several other towns, 500,000 acres of the west
part of the lands of the Reserve now embraced in counties of Huron and the township of
Ruggles in Ashland county; this grant was called ‘¢ Sufferers’ Lands,” and the owners in
1803, were relieved of all embarrassment by having corporate powers conferred upon them
by the infant state of Ohio, and located in the county of Trumbull. These lands were
subsequently known as the “‘Fire Lands” as most of the losses onaccount of which they
were granted resulted from fires.  The mode of dividing the lands, (which were held in trus—t
by John Morgan, John Caldwell and Jona-
than Bruce and upon whose quit-claim
titles of the lands all deeds in the Reserve
are based), was a little peculiar though
evidently just; for purpose of survey, a
point where the 4rst degree of north lati-
tude intersects the western line of Pennsyl-
vania was found, and from there as a base
line, meridian lines, five miles apart, were
run north to the lake. Lines of latitude
five miles apart were then run, thus dividing
the territory into townships five miles
square. A committee accompanied the
surveyors to make a just estimate of the
value of each township. The cost of pur-
chase was divided into 4oo shares of
53,000.00 each, and each colonist was
entitled to such proportion of the entire
land as the amount he paid bore to the
purchase price of the whole $1,200,000.00.
Each range and township had a number ;
a draft of 4co numbers was had, and
each draft sold for $3,000.00, and were
drawn by lot so that no one knew where
he was going to locate until after the
drawing was had. To make all drafis of
equal value, certain townships, called
equalizing townships, were cut into
parcels which were added to the- poorer townships thus making all townships of equal
value with the standard which was the fifth most valuable township in the reserve, not
counting those set aside for equalization. In the first draft it required an ownership of
$12,903.23, and in the second of $26,087.00 of the original purchase money, to entitle the
owner to a township. The names of the subscribers were arranged alphabetically, and as
the numbers of the townships were drawn the first belonged to the one first on the list.
Where 2 number joined together in the purchase of a township one person was selected to
represent them in the drawing. It was in this sub-division of property by the owners of
drafts, as well as in the originial sub-division of equalizing townships, which plays so much
havoc in the geographical description of many townships and makes a survey nearly as
intricate as the military surveys in the southern part of the state.  Were it not for limited
space it might be interesting to show how, by various legislative acts, the original county of
Trumbull, established July 1oth, 1800, and comprising the entire Reserve was gradually
sub-divided into smaller counties for greater convenience. For these details our patrons
are referred to other and more extended histories. In 1789 Mary Campbell and Mrs.
Stuart, living in Cumberland county, Pennsylvania, were captured by the Delawares on one
of their raids and held in captivity in their village at the Big Falls of the Cuyahoga until
released by Col. Boquetin 1764, and were the first white persons known to have lived in
what is now Summit county. The first settlement on the Reserve was made at the mouth of
Conneaut Creek July 4th, 1796, by a surveying party of fifty-two persons. So far as known
the present limits of Summit county were settled by whites in the following order:—18oo,
Hudson (P); 180z, Northampton (P); 1804, Stow (P); 1806, Boston (P), Coventry Py,
Springfield (P); 1807, Northfield (P), Tallmadge (P); 1809, Green (S); 1810, Bath (M),
Norton (M), Richfield (M); 1811, Portage (P); 1814, Copley (M), Franklin (S); 1817,
Twinsburg (P). Ten of these (P) originally belonged to Portage county, four (M) to
Medina county and two (8) to Stark county, and was the first case where the south line of
the Reserve was cut in the erection of new counties.  Cuyahoga TFalls township was organ-
ized in 1851 and Akron in 1888,




About 1830, with the opening of the Obio Canal and rapid development of townsLips
contiguous thereto, the agitation of a new county commenced but the project did not
materialize until ten years later when December 17th, 1839, ‘“abill to erect the county of
Summit” was reported to the Legislature and read for the first time and passed the House
on its third reading, February 6th, 1840, by a majority of three.
Summitis situated in the southern central part ‘of the Reserve and was carved out of Portage,
Medina and Stark, with the following boundaries: on the north by Cuyahoga, on the east
by Purtage, on the south by Stark and Wayne and on the west by Wayne Medina and
Cuyahoga counties, and comprised Towns 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. in Ranges X. and XI. and towns
1, 2, 3 and 4, in Range XIL., and the townships of Franklin and Green in Stark county, and
have never been changed.

The bill passed the Senate February 28th, 1840; the news reached Akron, March 2nd,
and two days later a general jollification meeting was held and the birth of the new county
was celebrated with due pomp and ceremony amid bonfires and every demonstration of joy.
On April 6th, the first county officers were voted for and the entire whig ticket elected.
(See sp _cial table of county officers for list of county officials.)

In point of size Summit county ranks seventh lowest in the state, and it is a remarkable

The new county of

coincidence that it isalso the seventh highest in the average valuation per acre, having 128,249
acres of arable land, 63,523 acres of pasture land, and 48,181 acres of uncultivated or
wood land, making a total of 239,933 acres in the county, the valuation of which, according

to the decennial appraisement of 1890, was $7,499,739.27, or an average valuation of 839 359

per acre.
According to the Eleventh Census
(1890) Summit was the tenth count-

Presbyterians and Congreguﬁonalists built a log ‘‘meeting-house” at the Center in 1818
\\'hich- remained in constant use till 1834 and became famous for its revivals. In 1834 it
was replaced by a frame building which was used till 1870 when it was remodeled into a
town hall. v

In 1853 the Clinton Line Extension Railroad from Hudson to Tiffin was organized to
extend south-westerly from Hudson through Northampton and Bath. About $70,000 was
expended in grading as faras Ghent, butin 1856 the bottom fell out and the project collapsed,
else Ghent, might have been a railroad center.

BOSTON.

Boston, from the fact it was crossed by the Cuyahoga river, then a marshy stream
overflowing its banks much too often for the health and comfort of the settlers, and by
ranges of steep bluffs, that could never be cultivated, was selected by the C(?mmittee as an
¢ gqualizing township,” cut up into tracts and distributed to other townships. The set-
tlers were surrounded with such discouragements, dangers, disappointments and privations,
that, had they not possessed unbending resolution, dauntless courage, and incredible hardi-
Lood the pleasant homes of today had not been founded by them. It is known in the
survey as Town 4, in Range XI. ofthe Western Reserve. The Cuyahoga windsazigzag course
from about a mile east of the south-west corner of the township to within about half a mile
of the center, thence west of north to a little over a mile of the north-west corner, andvaries
High bluffs extend back for over half a mile and much
of this land can only be used for grazing.
The first crop of wheat was raised in

in width from a few rods to a mile,

in Ohio as regards pbpulation, and
Akron the eighth largest city in the
State, 27,702 residents being reported
by the enumerators.

The population since the county was
erected has been

Sixth Census (1840) 22,560
Seventh  ¢f (1850) 27,4385
Eighth ¢ (1860) 27,344
Ninth o (1870) 34,674
Tenth < (1880) 43.788
Eleventh *¢ (1890) 54,089

BATH.

The greater portion of Bath township
is very irreguiar and broken, and on
account of its extreme roughness the
land was not desirable, and as a con-
sequence settled very slowly at first.
The eastern portion overhangs the
valley of the Cuyahoga, and is largely
composed of high hills and correspond-
ing gullies, with a few farms on the
broad plateaus and valleys. The cen-
tral and western portion is specially
adapted to stock raising, and some of
the finest stock in the county is
The only stream of any

raised here.
note is Yellow ereek flowing across lots
80, 79, 76, 77, 99, 83, 04, b5, 66, 67,
68, 69, 70, during which passage of
some five miles it has a fall of about 400
feet, emptying into the Cnyahoga at
Botzum and in its rapid descent once
furnishing motive power for a large
number of mills, One of the finest
natural views in the county is in this
valley in the eastern part of the town-
ship on lot 69. A small stream in the north-east part drains that portion of the township
and on lot 37 is a large pond drained by a creek rising in lot 2, and also another stream,
which unite on lot 56 and empty into the main stream at Ghent.
clay and so mingled with pebbles as to render tillage difficult.

The surface soil is largely
In the basins, the soil is
made up largely of decayedvegetation and is valuable for agriculture.  Excellent sandstone
abounds, and the eastern part is rich in mineral and fossiliferous remains. The most of the
water is strongly ferriferous and the land is undoubtedly underlaid with large deposits of
iron ore. The township became Government property by the Fort Industry treaty of 1803
and was surveyed by McArthur and Warden in 1808 as Wheatfield, Town 3inRange XII. and
afterwards Hammondsburg named from Jason Hammond who settled there in 1810, It was
formerly attached to Richfield and organized into a separate township in 1818, when in a fit
of desperation it was called Bath. Three villages have aiisen in Bath, viz;—Hammond’s
Corners, Ghent and Ellis” Corners, the ¢ Center” never having reached that dignity,

In the military record of Bath we find she has done her proportion in the War of
1812, the Mexican War and the Civil War. Iun the two drafts made from ’61 to 65 only
nine fell to the share of Bath. Dr. Hutson was the first practicing physician locating about
1819. Mr. Boughton opened a store at Ghent in 1818.  The oldest woolen factory in the
State is located there and was started in 1832 by Allen and Bloom. The first school in
Bath was taught in the north eastern corner by Maria Lusk in a log house that had been
built in 1810 by Aaron Miller, and since the first term in 1811 schools were held quite reg-
ularly migrating from house to house. ~ The first school house was built about 1830, The

CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH, RICHFIELD CENTER.

1807 by Henry Post.

The township was organized in 1811,
the first election being held in the
house of Timothy Bishop. Mr. James
Stanford proposed the name Boston
which was adopted. The first settle-
ment was made in March, 1806, by
Alfred Wolcott, John Teal and Samuel
Ewart who built a log shanty on the
present site of Boston Village cemetery.
The first male child born in the town-
ship was Andrew ]. Stanford, March
27, 1806 ; the first girl, Melinda Wolcott,
April 14, 1807. Death claimed its first
victim June g, 1808, in the person of
Mary Ann Post, and Wiiliam Carter
and Elizabeth Mays celebrated the
pioneer wedding, July z9, 1812,

The oldest orchard in the county is
in Boston township. It was planted
by the French or Indians probably
from seeds obtained from some of the
frontier settlements; the trees were
quite large and bearing when the white
settlers first came into the township.

Cheese factories have been in opera-
tion since comparatively early times.
As early as 1835 Swan & Smith started
a general store at Everett, or ¢ Johnny
Cake Lock” as it has been known since
1828. The first building in Peninsula
was a log structure built in 1818 by
Alonzo Dee.

Peninsula dates its real beginning
with the advent of Herman Bronson
in 1824 and was platted by him in
1837 and named from the shape of the
land on which it is located. Here are
inexhaustible beds of fine sandstone
of the same stratum as the Berea grit,
but mare durable, of which some three hundred boat loads are annually quarried. The first
building in Boston was a frame house built in 1820 by Watrous Mather, fol owed in 1821 by
Herman Bronson with a grist mill. The first physician was Dr. Eleazer Mather who put
out his shinglein 1822.

Accepted tradition says the first school in Boston township was in an old log house

erected by James Stanford and taught by Miss Lois Ann Gear during the summer of 1811 at

the munificient salary of seventy-five cents per week and ¢‘boarded 'round.” No account

of ‘further schools is had until 1816 when the first regular school house in the township was
built near Mr. Stanford’s house which was used until 1820,

| when another was built in Bosti
village and the first one deserted

. . ; this not being centrally located caused an’ exodus to the
Brandywine school in 1826, leaving it so nearly’deserted that no school was held there until
abm}t 18365 when a frame house took the place of the original log structure and remained in
service until the_later fifties when it was superseded by the present brick building.

,The second school of 1816 was taught by Alfred Wolcott the first settler in and surveyor
of Boston township. He is also said to have taught in the Wolcott neighborhood in the
north-eastern part of the township three or four years previously.

south-eastern part of the township about 1820 and at Everett as ear
a small log y

School was taught in the

buildix M ) ly as 1825. About 1830
l ) 3 . .
g near Mr. Swan’s house was used as a school house until an acre of land

was deeded by him to the district for school purposes.  On this site a small frame building
was erected about 1838 and used until replaced in the seventies by the present one.. An-
other log school house was bu 1; by the neighborhood in 1818 and Tocated about halt @ mile
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down the opposite side of the stream.  Squire Greenman was the first teacher and received
his pay by subscription. This was used for about seven vears when the children were sent
either to Everett or to the ““Holcomb school” in the northwest part Northampton township.
In 1829 there was a school at Peninsula in a deserted log house, some dozen backwoods
children attending, their parents paying Miss Rhoda Pavne a weekly compensation of one
dollar. For many years there was acommon school. but it was deemed advisable to divide
the district by the river. The first teacher on the West side was a young man by the name
of Homer Warner who received a salary of $13.00 per month and ¢<boarded round.” In
1857 a two-story stone school house was built on the East side, the upper story being used
as a town hall.  The West side school house is a frame structure. . There being six or seven
school districtsinthe township and from one-fourth to one-half of the school fund beingraised in
the Peninsula district the villagers became discontented with the character of their schools, as
compared with the amount paid into the school fund, and in the latter fifties concluded to
incorporate the entire school district in the village of Peninsula. Originally, in 1826, the
township was divided into six school districts but material alterations have since been made.

But little is known of the early churches, if any there were other than occasional ser-
vices by itinerant preachers, held in the old log school house on the Butler farm, as early as
1818. When Alanson Swan, a licensed preacher of the M. E. Church came to Boston in
1834 he at once organized a church and held servives quite regularly for many years, attain-
ing a membership of some fifty, when Mr. Swan and about half of his congregation
separated from the remainder and organized at Everett under the name of the Protestant
Methodists. In the early seventies the United Brethern came in and with the fragments of
this and new material organized a society,
which is today the ruling society. About
1824 Herman Bronson held Episcopal
services in his cabin, organizing a church
in 1837 Abraham Bronson was the first
rector in charge. In 1841 a church was
built and a lot deeded the society for
church, school and cemetery purposes.
At his death Mr. Bronson established an
annual fund of $325.00 toward defraying
the expenses of a minister.

A Congregational society was organized
about the same time, their services being
held in various places.

The Methodist church gained a foot-
hold at an early day, increasing slowly
until, in the latter sixties, they built a
- frame church on the East side.

A Methodist society was organized on
the State road as early as 1825. Re-
ligious services have been held in the
school houses in and near Doston village
at various times but no churches have
been erected, or permanent societies
organized in that part of the township.

A postoffice was located at Boston
Village as early as 1830, and at ‘*Johnny
Cake Lock” a few vears later.  One was

secured at Peninsula in 1837, the first
postmaster being H. V. Bronson.

In military matters Boston was fully up
to the standard.  Several of her pioneers
were in the Revolutionary War, one,
Henry Brown, serving through the entire

ively. In various parts of the swampy portion of the township are small bodies of land
vising from fifteen to twenty feet above the level.  On one of these, called Fort Island, is the
site of what seems to be the remains of an ancient earth fortification. An abundance of
excellent sandstone is found in some portions. The township is crossed by several prom-
inent ridges evidently belonging to the glacial period of formation

Druring the vear 1828 a meeting was held in the old log school house on the north-west
corner of Copley, and prayers were offered for the speedy termination of the evils resulting
from intemperance, during which the pointed question was asked, <Is it consistent for
christians to pray for the abrogation of any particular sin, or evil, when their actions and
influence favor its continuance?” The result was a meeting January 29, 1829, at which
“The First Temperance Society of Medina County” was formed. The constitution is said to
have been written by John Codding and is believed to beé the first declaration of temperance
independence in Ohin. The organization was largely brought about by the evil effects of
several large distilleries in the township, the first one having been started in 1820 by Chancey
and Wm. Davis about half a mile north of the Center, and, in spite of opposition, was
continued upwards of thirty years. It is also said that they built near the same place the
first saw and grist-mill in the township.  The first building at the Center was a log school
house built in 1819.  The first settler is said to have been Jonah Turner who came in 1814
and built a small log cabin on the stony ridge east of Miller’s Tavern  The town hall build-
ing was erected by Joseph and Henry White in 1837. Opinion is divided as to whether

 Jonathan Starr or Jokn Codding was the teacher of the first school or whether the first

school house was at the center or in the north-west corner of the township and known as the
Hawkins School. The one at the Center
was used about twelve years when a frame
building, now used as a shop, took its
place until superseded by a brick edifice;
in 1872 the present building, located in
the southern part of the village took the
place of the brick. Shortly before the
War, on account of the small results from
large school tax, the Center School
District was incorporated. In 1838 the
building now used as a town hall was pur-
chased for 3rooo, by ten men, and fitted
up as a school house, employing Rev.
John Ensell as teacher. It lasted some
five years and was then discontinued.
Schools in the Union district in the north-
west corner have always been good ones.
Several new houses have taken the place
of the old log structure. In other parts
than these, schools were not taught until
1828 when the township was organized
in school districts,

The Methodists and Congregationalists
started about the same time, 1830, and in
1844 united means and built a church at
the Center which they used alternately.

A Methodist Church was built at an

early day near Ellis’ Corners and is now
used as a dwelling.

Copley’s military record is one to be
proud of.  She furnished her quota of
heroes for the War of 181z and the
Mexican War while her roster of the Civil

seven vears’ struggle, and dying in Boston
Oct. 17, 1837, at the age of 104. A it :
number of her citizens took part in the “ ﬂm m\m Hm
war of 181z, But little if any recruiting -
was done for the Mexican War, but in the
Civil War she did her full share in re-

sponding to the several calls for KENT SCHOOL,

troops.
One of the principal industries is the storing of ice, and the manufacture of cheese and
butter.

COPLEY.

Is officially designated in the original survey as Town 2, Range XIIL of the Western
Reserve, is bounded on the north by Bath, on the east by Portage, on the south by Norton
and on the west by Sharon in Medina county, and was originally a part of Wolf Creek town-
ship consisting of what is now Copley, Norton, Wadsworth, Sharon, Guilford and Montville;
Medina county was erected from Portage in 1818, and a year later Copley was organized as
a separate township. Its settlement was rapid until about 1835 since which there has been
but little gain. It was originally called Greensfield, but afterwards changed to Copley in
honor of Mrs. Green, said to have been a lineal descendant of Lord Copley, of England,
The long slopes render it one of the most beautiful tracts of land in the county, with exten-
sive valleys from which there is a gradual ascent for several miles, the highest altitude not
reaching one hundred feet. In the eastern and southern part there is a little rough land.
The general aspect of the land in early days was that of a swamp and immense amounts of
money have been spent in the constructiun of roads and ditching and draining in order to
ntilize the swampy lands for grazing and other purposes, and add to the arable acreage in
the township. Wolf Creek enters from the west, Pigeon Creek rises in the north-west corner,
and Shocolog Creek in the northern part of the township. An enlargementof the latter
" forms Shocolog Pond and White, Black and Yellow Ponds are on lots 35, 36 and 46 respect-

War shows one hundred and six of her
$0ns$ as vo.unteers.

It is an agricultural to';vnship, producing
an abundance of nearly every species of
grain, vegetables and fruit known to this
climate as well as some of the best stock
AKRON, 0. raised in Northern Ohio. Its farms are

as well tilled and cared for, and its farm
buildings as commodious and carefully kept as those of any other community in Ohio.

COVENTRY.

Described as Town 1, Range XI. of the Western Reserve, was one of the equalizing town-
ships of the first draft.  Its boundaries are: on the north, Portage and Akron; on the east,
Springfield; on the south, Green and Franklin; and on the west, Norton Township. Previous
to the advent of the paleface this section had evidently been the favorite camping grounds
of the red men for, besides the Tuscarawas river and several lakes affording a variety of
fish, and the forests abundantly stocked with all kinds of game, the rich soil on the slopes
and bottoms supplied them with maize and other products, such as their limited knowledge
and rude implements of husbandry could secure. Modern discoveries also go to show that
there were here large factories for making canoes and flint and stone implements of Indian
warfare and peace such as were then used,

Hopocan, or Captain Pipe, a Delaware Chief, had his village near New Portage. The history
of Coventry beginsin 1795, Hopocan signingthe treaty at Ft. McIntoshas King of New Portage,
and moving west of the river until the Ft. Industry treaty of 1803, after which he migrated
with his tribe the remnants of which finallysettled on the reservationsin the Indian Terri-
tory. In 1806 Daniel Haines, or “Uncle Dan” as he was generally called, settled near the
north-east corner of the township on what is known as the Sumner farm, a small red house
now occupying almost the exact spot where he built the first log cabinin the wilderness. In
1815 he planted the first orchard in the township and in after years started the first cider mill.
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Adam and Eve Falor settled in the northern center, he built and ran the first and only dis-
tillery in the township. About 1818 Ambrose Palmer and Dr. Clark settled in New Portage,
and shortly after started a glass factory, but the enterprise eventually proved a failure, and
Mr. Palmer sold out, and joining the Mormons, went west and died in Utah. Joe Keeler, a
celebrated Mormon preacher and notorious passer of counterfeit money, was amongsome of the
early settlers. Among the pioneer preachers were John Haines and Elder Derthick. One of the
oldest cemeteries is located near the Falor school house; perhaps the oldest church is
Wesley chapel at Pleasant Valley or ¢¢Sodom,”—another at Thomastown belongs to the
Welsh, also one west of the center and one west of the reservoir on the Bowers’ place. The
tombstones in the cemeteries back of each might tell many stories of pionee- life could
they but speak.

Many of the Dixons in Coventry are descendants of Libertine Dixon, a celebrated In-
dian hunter and fighter who, with ¢*Starling ” played a conspicious part in the early settlement.
The first frame house is said to have been built by one of the Allens on the road to Middle-
bury. Of the early schools but little can be said, they were rude log structures and the
pupils gathered from all directions, coming through the woods by paths known only to
themselves. One of these pioneer school houses was known as the Tamarack school house
and was not far from the center of the township. In it town meetings and elections were
frequently held; another was on the road just west of the Gregg place on what is known as
the Sol. Renninger place. These were built prior to 1825. The Falor and Allen school
houses were also built at an early day. :

Coventry was organized in 1808 as part of Trumbull county.

In 1838, Sylvester Heathman, in a drunken fit, killed his brother John, and was sent to
the penitentiary for one year, dying of grief five months before the expii—ation of his sentence.

The present well-known mill of Brewster Bros. was
built by John Wylie in 1835.

Though somewhat hilly in the south, Coventry has
many fine farms which will compare favorably with

~ those of any other township in the county.

There appears to be almost inexhaustible beds of
peat in many portions of the township, but by reason
of the abundance and cheapness of coal, of which vast
quantities have been mined during the past half century,
they are not worked.

One of the most delightful drives in the county is

~ westward from the old Steese coal bank, around the head
of the reservoir, pastthe Old State Mill o Lockwood’s
Corners.

The lLey-Swartz-Thomas tragedy, occurred near the

. Steese coal mines, in the middle southern part of Coven-

_try where ¢ Pete ” Shaffer kept a saloon, and, February g,
1878, gave a dance, and Thomas Thomas was struck in
the head with a slung-shot, from the effects of which he
died on the 14th. Ley and Swartz were arrested and
the former sentenced to two years for manslaughter,
the latter to thirty days for assault and battery. Ley was
pardoned three months and one week after sentence.

Coventry sent about 300 men to the Civil War.
Thomas- Granger ex-revolutionary and Peter Buchtel
1812,

CUYAHOGA FALLS.

Much of the early history of Cuyahoga Falls is given
in that portion relating to Stow, Tallmadge, North-
ampton and Portage, its territory being embrace.|
in the original limits of those townships. The <old
village "’ was at first called Manchester (probably in view
of the manufactuiing possibilities of the locality).
Tn 1826, there being several Manchesters in the State, , ..

~ and postal accommodations being desired, the name was appropriately changed to Cuyahoga
Falls, Henry Newberry being appointed the first postmaster. The villageaproper was first
laid out in 1826 by Judge Richardson. ¢ Clifford Inn” was built in 1826 and for many
years called the American and again the Perry House until it passed into possession of its
present owner. In the early spring of 1825 Stow and Wetmores commenced operations
building a dam north of Portage Street, thus destroying the power at the ¢¢old village.” In
1830 they built the pioneer paper mill on the East side, the remains of which can yet be
seen, and which was the first large building raised without the help of fire water. As a
manufacturing center Cuyahoga Falls ante-dates the birth of, and but for several q.uestion-
able schemes, might have been as large as Akron. First, the Ohio Canal in 1825—18?7
Second, the Cascade Mill Race in 1832, and the third and most disastrous blow was th;e
<« Chuckery ” of 1835; for full details of which we refer our patrons to W. M., Da;f’s article
in the magazine of Western History for February 1887, entitled ¢ A Mythical Ohio Metro-
polis;” and fourth, the Pennsylvania and Ohio Canal Scheme of 1836-1840.. In 1826 there
were some forty stores and manufacturing establishments in the village. The sale oof oods
for that year reaching $407,000.00, and of real estate $200,000. 0o, and it was morge of a
business place than the present great city of Chicago then was.
panic of 1837-1844 put a dampener on all enterprise £6r a time.
The town of Cuyahoga Falls was incorporated March 5, 1836, and took in 240 squar
rods of Stow and Tallmadge with power to add to the limits at any time, without ft?rtl ee
legislation. April 4, 1837, the first election was held and in March, 1851 , the townshi } ;
Cuyahoga Falls was created out of the village limits in Stow, Tallmadge, ﬁlortham ton py?l
Portage, holding the first township election April 5, 1851, The village and townsl;jhi 5 ? d
ering the same territory, April 3o, 1853, the village council voted to adjourn sine a’z'le L:Vc;
the village remained under township jurisdiction until June 3, 1868, when it again res;mr;d
municipal functions. '

The financial crisis and

GERMAN LUTHERAN CHURCH, AKRON, OHIO.

One of the early institutions was the ¢ Portage Mutual Fire Insurance Company,” for
which a charter was granted in 1831, and business was carried on until 1851, when they
suspended operations and went into liquidation.

For a year (1841) Cuyahoga Falls was the county seat, but Akron finally got it by a.

majority of 1,469, over all, on a total vote of 4,487.

Another old institution was the Cuyahoga Falls Band, which was organized in 1834,
and was the first of the kind in Northern Ohio. .

Cuyahoga Falls claims to have had the pioneer temperance society in December,
1827, with 65 members. Judge Stow promising to deed a lot to the township when a major-
ity of the peaple would join, the lot is known as ‘‘temperance lot, ” but the deed never was
made. Stow and Wetmore’s men struck at this time (1828), because their grog was
stopped.

The topography of Cuyahoga Falls, except in the immediate Vicinity of the river,
presents but few interesting features; back from the stream, the surface is gently undulat-
ing. The falls are the most striking natural objects in the village. The river has a descent
of 110 feet to the mile, so rapid as to form a continuous water-power, and has made for
itself a deep channel, the bluffy banks of which are clothed with foliage and the
picturesque surroundings make favorite resorts for pleasure parties. A sub-strata of sand-
rock, in which there is an abundance of pure water, and the natural drainage makes the
locality specially healthy. Coal of the best quality is fo ind near here and has been profit-
ably mined since r828. . .

The Summit county branch of the State Bank of Obio was organized at Cuyahoga Falls
in 1845 and was the first bank in the county. Its charter expired in 1866 when the First
National was organized, and in 1869 sold to First National of Akron, and the Internationa]
Bank of Cuyahoga Falls organized and were practically
successors of each other for forty-six years.

Several fires have devastated the village; in 1833
Stow & Wetmore Paper Mill and Warehouse; 1851 their
Flouring Mill; 1866 the Bank building; 1872 Empire
Paper Mill; 1881 Falls Wire Manufacturing Co.

Up to its organization as a separate township, the
village schools were no different than the ordinary dis-
trict school—the school houses having all been sold.
In 1872 the new High School building was ready for
use and the old one north of St. John’s Church, formerly
built by the Wesleyans for a church, had been used for
schools of a lower grade. The Cuyahoga Falls School
District was formed April 24th, 1854, and ]une'zﬁth 1.
1.. Holden was appointed acting manager. May 15th
1855 Mr. H. K. Taylor was appointed Principal of the
Central School and Mrs. Taylor his assistant, at a joint
salary of $700 for the school year of 4o weeks. The
enrollment of pupils for the school year ending
August 31st, 1857, was 482 with one male and six
female teachers.

St. John’s Church (Episcopal) was organized as a
parish about 1830, and lay services held for several
years, the first sermon being preached by the Rev.
Wm. N. Lyster. The church was dedicated July- 1oth,
1836, under the rectorship of Rev. Wm. H. Newman.
The first Sunday school was organized at the same time.

The Twinsburg circuit was organized in 1832, and
the Methodist Church dedicated December gist, 1840.

The Congregational Church was organized in 1834 by
Rev. B. C. Baldwin in connection with Portage Presby-
tery, and a church dedicated in 1847. The Church of
Christ was organized March 27th, 1881. There are a
number of Social and Benevolent organizations which
are treated upon under a special section.

FRANKLIN.

Is Town 2, Range X. of the Ohio Land Company’s Purchase. It is bounded on the

north, by Norton and Coventry ; on the east, by Green; on the south, by Lawrence, and on -

the west, by Chippewa townships, and is one of the townships of ¢Dutchdom?” used in
creating Summit county. In early years the township was looked upon as ¢egood land,”

 the soil, though flat and wet in location, was rich with decaying vegetation and well drained

by its numerous small streams broken in portions by hills, creeks and marshes and is one of
the best farming townships in the county. Numerous basins contain peat deposits, and the
surface is underlaid with a fine grade of coal. There are some fifteen or twenty mines and
the annual exports exceed roo,o00 tons, the deposits being practically inexhaustible. In
early years the marshy low lands furnished thousands of bushels of cranberries. Although
surveyed in 1800 no permanent settlement was effected till the spring of .1814 when Chris-
topher Johnson (¢ Yankee ') settled on the south west corner of section z4 in the eastern
central. part of the township, and Thomas Johnson and Wm.. Hallowell on sections 24 and
28.respective1y. Up to 1820 the township filled up rapidly, the majority of the settlers
being Pennsylvania Dutch, belonging to that sober and industrious class of people of whom
Wm. Penn was the typical founder.
land and fields of grain could be seen in all directions.

In 1817 the township was fofmally organized by the Stark County Commissioners.

In 1814 John Johnson was born and the following year John Hick and Catharine Flick- .

njger were married and Mrs, ]acob_vBalmér died from the effects of a rattlesnake bite.
These being the first events in the settlement.

In 1816-17 Geo. Rex built a grist mill at the outlet of Turkey Foot Lake. Almost
every early settler planted his peach orchard. : - '

Prior to 1860 a well-traveled line of the ¢« Underground Railroad” crossed the township,

Schools, churches and farmers’ houses dotted the -
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confined to what is known as the Chestnut Ridge, and its officials, many of them prominent
citizens, lost no opportunity of assisting runaway slaves to Canada ““Massa Wales, ” of
Massillon, was ‘‘train dispatcher” for a long time.

Franklin has been the site of several villages. The first one, by Richard Carter, at the
junction of the Tuscarawas and Chippewa in the south-west corner of the township and called
Cartersville. 1t reached no further than the survey made in 1806. David Harvey, in 1816,
laid out Savannah, on the banks of the Chippewa, a short distance north-west of Carters-
ville, and for a few years it had quite a thriving population. Clinton was laid out at the
same time by his son William, and from 1825 to 1840 did more business, compared with its
population, than any other village in Summit county. In 1827 they were merged into one.
Oradeen and Pumroy were platted in 1835 and 1837, but for many years have practically
been portions of Clinton. Manchester, about three miles north-east of Clinton, was laid out
in 1815 by the Stewarts and later called Nimisilla, P. O. and has proved an indispensable
adjunct to the staid and thrifty farming community surrounding it.

The first store in the township was opened at Manchester by a Mr. Palmer and John
Snider opened the first tavern.

The edrly church history is lost in tradition; many of the early settlers met at desig-
nated dwellings to worship God. Itinerant ministers appeared as early as 1816. Sofar as
known the first church was an old log building located at Manchester, and used both as church
andschool-house. Anearly minister was Rev. J. W. Hamm,an old-school German Presbyterian.
About 1830 the Presbyterians built a church at Manchester, and about ten years later an
Evangelical church was erected there. About the same time the Methodists built a church
at Clinton. In the early sixties the United Brethren also built at Clinton and in the later
seventies the English Lutherans constructed one there.
small churcly in the northern part of the township.

Franklin did her share in the military history of
the county. Some ex-soldiers of the Revolutionary War
and the War of 1812 were among the early settlers
and a number of her citizens went to the Mexican War,

The German Lutherans have a

while at least a hundred are on the roll of honor as
soldiers of the Civil War. '

In her criminal record we find two homicides, June
16th, 1856, Plausens Santer shot Oswald Sheetes and a
month later went to the Penitentiary, from which he
was pardoned after serving 3 years, 2 months and 21
days. April 29th, 1864, Martin Kernan was killed by
Charles Oster who was sentenced to two years, from
June 15th, 1864, which term was shortened 3 months
and 8 days for good behavior.

GREEN.

Was known as Town 12, Range IX. of what is
designated as ¢ Congress Lands” and is bounded on
the north, by Coventry and Springfield; on the east, by
Lake; on the south, by Jackson; and on the west, by
Franklin, and contains about thirty-three square miles
of territory. The general character of the land is roll-
ing and in the south-western part somewhat hilly. It
has a natural drainage in streams and creeks much im-
proved by numerous ditches. The soil is very fertile
and ranks among the richest agriciltural townships in
Ohio, especially in wheat as is clearly indicated by its
well-kept farms, mammoth barns, fine hors_s and cattle.
The burn-
ing of lime and manufacture of drain tile are also quite
extensive industries.

John Cruzen is said to have come into the township
as early as 1807, but the first purchaser of government
land and permanent white settler was John Kepler who
located on section 17 in 180g.

The township was originally organized with Lake,
Jackson and that portion of Franklin east of the Tuscarawas in July 1811, and a distinet
organization was made in 1815.

The surface is largely underlaid with coal.

About a mile and a half southeast of the center is the village of Greensburgh, laid out
in 1828. The pioneer missionaries of the Methodist Church were first in the field holding
services in private cabins and log school houses. They were closely followed by those of
the Reformed and Lutheran churches and in 1829 the first regular circuit was organized by
the Evangelical association and the first permanent organization in Summit county estab
lished at Greensburgh by Revs. Klinefelter and Staver and a church dedicated about 1838.
The Church at East Liberty was built in 1860,

The first camp meeting in the township was held in 1828 on land belonging to Philip
Dundore. The Disciples came about 1840 and in the later seventies built their present
meeting house.

The Win:brennerians organized about 1850 and about ten years later purchased their
present house of worship from the Reformed Church. They also have another congregation
at Tritt’s Bethel in the south-western part of the county.

In addition to Greensburgh are two other villages, East Liber ty, four miles north-west

of Greensburgh, laid out in 1839, and Myersville, three miles east, on the line of the Valley
railroad. ,

But little record has been kept of early educational affairs. Probably the first school
in the township was in 1816 at an old shanty on section 16, and taught by Wm. Triplet,
each pupil paying 5o cents a month for tuition. A school house was built at an early day
on what is now the King district. About 1823 a German school was taught by a Mr. Crum
in the district east of East Liberty. The first attempt made in south-western Green, was

FIRST UNIVERSALIST CHURCH, AKRON, OHIO.

_at the “Center” by Mr. George Pease from Enfield, Conn. Othe:

" buted 160 acres of land, and April 26th, 1826, the corner stone of

by Henry Beard in 1827. Abram Hunsberger taught twenty-one : Union army,
various parts of the township. ie of the war,
Politically Green is Democratic, having only given Republicar O th(len heroes and
then only by one vote—yet during the Civil War the township furnis}€ SOuth-
the preservation of the Union. > Middle
In 1854 a seminary was established in the village of Greensburg?ing tow
the auspices of the Evangelical Association, having at one time ¢ Shaler”
passing into the control of the Disciples in 1869 by whom it was mar'€¢ Revoke, Springfield,
and at last turned into a private seminary by Prof. Davis. 1 time Cp a5 the Sixth
" Justice of the
‘rich s2q March 1888,
HUDSON. le strea‘therein and the
Bounded on the north by Tiwinsburgh, on the east by Streetsbor¢ es only, as the
and on the west by Boston, is known as Town 4, Range X. of the® farmsers,
contained 16,000 acres, the purchase pnce of which was 52 cents an
down as swamp land, 10,000 acres of the equalizing townships w

actual price but 32 cents per acre, or $8.320.00 for the entire Lract f stong
David Hudson, of Goshen, Conn. ms one: limits all of the

The land in the western part is low and the soil.largely a rich t dand Cove.ntry.
1808. iage township, at
eastern part rolling and the soil varying from a stiff clay to a clay lc

arried i town upon and
inating. Water is everywhere easily accessible and a fair quality 01 PO
and, it being on
abundance. : i

of the kron.
The early formation of the township also embraced five othe

¥as OP4orth and south
which were organized in 1802 under Hudson.

in the
The first settlement was made - Vlrgmfs‘sthe ngopggs;

for whom the township was 'd  AUSitution in 182
Chippewas and Ottawas had larg, Sheerade and becasmé
but in the main were on friendly, oy o city of the

Was Ceachanr refused further

hool hdng' as it does
The first birth in the new settlm wasnship of Middle-

Hudson, Oct. 28th, r8oco. th Rolory of the latter.

Gov. St. Clair appointed Metlin, in Joseph Hunt,
justice, and, as such he solemn the of land in 1807,
Greorge Darrow and Olive Gayldlet in: of a mill. The

The first death was W. A. No. Mcl artificial advan-

Immediately on his arrival Mr@den til the location of
with Deacon Stephen Thomps?US€s. , gave it a rival in
Oviatt, took measures to orgariO0ls _water power, and
in success Sept. 4th, 1802, wit'hool ilation was trans-
Congregational Church was sthich ssperous rival. A
Hudson being the leader. THth fora time, itwas a
was Rev. Wm. Hanford who :hool }c11lation and fash-
1815.  Early religious services hich 1dustry and enter-
other convenient houses until 14ick b: T.he Middlebury
was built and the following yeeulShEd s incorporated and
built for themselves on the sind haster power created.

mith sta

The first regular ¢ Inn”
in 1813.

1865, when it was sold to prival(’n'c11 f opened by Peleg
public hall till 1878. The ¢ 1 years later there
several years’ services was also. e tores in the village.
In 1828 a Methodist (,hurche1 Cclves and nails, card-
¢« Union Church” till the com N of cloth were some
own in 1846. July z1rth, 184‘ . a‘
Iipiscopal Church and service
places till 1846 when they
Aurora street. ] ' Vashi
The Roman Catholics also gz
St. Mary’s Church in 1858. eas
Rev. Joseph Badger, a rep -
necticut Missionary Society, .
regularly ordained minister holding services in Hudson.

Obhio, in the early and middle thirties, was pro-slavery in sent
cases, of which Hudson was one, being a rabid abolition town. :
aguide board, on the road from Aurora to Hudson, which has be
the bust of a young negro on a white back-ground, the extend
in the proper direction, and f1om his protuding hps the legenu
Hudson.”

The first school in Hudson was taught in 1801 in a small log sl

Sprit

»e was in 1811 and

len the ¢¢old brick”

§3, when it was pur-
counc1l and turned
41838 the village of
porated and in 1857

u‘als it remained until
arch 215t, 1888, the
he city,

ain;

Gfunder the ordinance
17brou'gllt into a free
reated as a final set-
7 of California, the
ns\ting a slave in his
s of the Northerners,
* the border states,
ugltlve on his way to
mcl the certainty and
1own as the ¢ Under
5 ‘‘stations? rapidly
. on the alert, and
tation” and many of
1& pains and penalties

time to time and in 1825 the township was divided into the centr/
north-west and south-west districts. In 1838 the central was agai'
districts created. In 1835 the two central districts were consoli
school system, a high school being added and a high school buildiy
As early as 1801 the territorial legislature was petitioned for
1803, at the first session of the Ohio Legislature, the ¢ Erie Liters
porated and located at Burton, where a suitable building was ereq;
in 1810 and after the war 1812 was again resumed in a new house~ .
the management of Prof. David L. Coe continued till 1834, when 1; -
meantimethe Presbyterian and Congregational churches, of the Resel
a society for the education of indigent young men for the minist

‘trade of tanner, gen-
Theological Institute started. Mr. Hudson secured donations of'7

sheep, and is said to
2% bis life is too well
liberally to assist him

lege was laid, the charter having been granted the 27th Februsuy1
Tne first regular tutor wacme this section such a

college charter granted by the State.

Hall. This was used till the bp to tlimes relied upon. .

, while not. a native, '
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Adam and Eve Falor settDissensions arose and for a time the college was without a head and al-
tillery in the township. # In March, 1834, Rev. George E. Pierce, of Harwinton, CoTln.,. was
and shortly after started a the troubles were smoothed over and a new era of prosperity Inau-
Mr. Palmer sold out, and edical department was established at Cleveland. In 1852-53 the
celebrated Mormon preachd in 1855 Mr. Pierce resigned, his place being filled by Rev. Henry
early settlers. Among the pe successful management up to his death in 1873 much of the present
oldest cemeteries is locattution is traceable. In 1882 the ¢ Adelbert College of Western
Wesley chapel at Pleasaransferred the college proper to Cleveland leaving the building at Hud-
Welsh, also one west of th*hool under the name of ¢ Western Reserve Academy’” and both
tombstones in the cemeteequal rights and privileges in the course.
they but speak. rvested in the township was on lot 11 in 1799, on g acres planted by
Many of the Dixons iir. Hudson. The first grist mill was built in the north-east corner of
dian hunter and fighter wha’s Creek by Wyatt and Norton in 1801, Several saw mills were also
The first frame house is saf tanneries established, the first being that of Owen, father of John
bury. Of the early schory fame, and in which the old hero himself worked for several years.
pupils gathered from all %ept by Capt. Herman Oviatt in his log cabin a mile south of the center.
themselves. One of thesetriotism go hand in hand as Hudson's military record bears witness.
and was not far from the company was recruited under Capt. Amos Lusk and served in Major
frequently held ; another wer General Wadsworth.  During the Civil War fully one hundred of
the Sol. Renninger place.llege enlisted, nearly half going directly from the college; outside the
houses were also built at arudson’s citizens enlisted at different times, nearly a fourth of them
Cc;ventry was organize their country.
In 1838, Sylvester He:
ther: penitentiary for one yea'.L\,I PTON ]
The present well-known
built by John Wylie in 183¢h by Boston, on the
Though somewhat hillytyahoga Falls, on the
many fine farms which wS and Portage and on
~ those of any other townshiplown 3, Range XL
There appears to be al and from the nature
peat in many portions of t the equalizing town-
of the abundance and cheayaft. The Cuyahoga
quantities have been minedn to north, and, with
they are not worked. large areas of bottom
One of the most delight extremely rugged,
~ westward from the old Steescrently a thin soil and
of the reservoir, pastthe Ol eastern portion is
Corners. d adapted to general
The Ley-Swartz-Thomas ampton hills”  were
. Steese coal mines, in the mi@dber and barrenness.

_ try where ¢ Pete” Shaffer keyl anumber of fineand
) and Tt hardy set of farmers

1878, gave a dance, A )
best dairy townships

the head with a slung-shot, fr
died on the r4th. Ley anc .
the former sentenced to tw > then in- Jefterson
the latter to thirty days for afI:l'un]b'llI! in 1800, to
pardoned three months and <1?ummlt in 1840. It
Coventry sent about 100""8 grounds of the

Thomas  Granger ex-revolutth tl}eir village in the
1812 nship. In the forest

-e canal over Yellow

CUYAHOG pre-historic Indian

rst white settler was

Much of the early history » phis wife and ten

in that portion relating to 25 in August, r8oz.
ampton and Portage, its 3id Portage” on the
in the original limits of thC)Ship and the north-
village " was at first called Mzcarry” between the
of the manufactuiing pOssas and a recognized
In 1826, there being severalern boundary line of
- and postal accommodations bytogh treaty of 1798.
Falls, Henry Newberry being cupine” and ¢ Port-

township first

laid out in 1826 by ]}1dge RT"TY’S fleet on Lake Erie were built here. In 1805 Aaron Norton built
years called the American an,y, The first white man buried in the township was Seth Webster.
present owner. In the earljhampton’s organization and officers up to 1820 were destroyed by
building « dam north .Of Porty Capt. Aaron French, but from names on an old tally sheet, it must
1830 they built the pioneer Ly the War of 1812 if not as early as 1807.

seen, and which was the firs;s taught by Justus Remington in 1809 néar McArthur's Corners,
manufacturing center Cuyahog ‘radius of half a mile six different school houses have been built.
;ble schemes, nugl:lt h\/?‘lfli Ilze: Methodists had gained a foothold and in 1855 erected a church at
8 Cascade Mi Qe , . . : . . . )
Second, the Casca ts have also been at times quite strong, as also the Congregational-

¢« Chuckery ” of 1835; for fuljeir membership joined w
in the magazine of Western b

polis;” and fourth, the Pennsyydoubtedly other pioneers, bore an honorable part in the Revolu-

were some forty stlc).l-es aﬂnd Wihe War of 1812 Capt. Rial McArthur raised a company and served
for that year reaching $407,9},  Gixty-three of her sons went to the front during the Civil War,

business place than the prese yones on southern battle felds or in rebel prison pens,
panic of 1837-1844 put a dam

The town of Cuyahoga F ~ .
rods of Stow and Tallmadge ¥ NORTHFIELD.

legislation. April 4, 1837, thlizing townships, was originally called Town 5, Range XI. of the
Cuyahoga Falls was created ots one of the four townships above the standard am?i divided into
Portage, holding the first towr The valley of the Cuyahoga, on the east, is sloping and well
ering the same territory, Apriziently sloping to afford good pasture land, while back of this was
the village remained under towusual strength and fertility, containing less clay and more organic
municipal functions. retable matter, and less waste land than almost any other township

HOWE SCHOOL, AKRON, OHIO. James Robinson and Lois Bates in ‘the fall

ith the Methodists in building the church A

on the Reserve, which fact probably accounted for its slowness in getting ¢‘on the market.”

The first settler was Isaac Bacon who camein April 1807, having purchased 160 acres
on lot 63, the previous year. His brother-in-law Jeremiah Cramer, was next, in 1810 onlot 72.

The township filled up very slowly there being but thirty-nine house-holders in 1826.
The township was organized as part of Portage county in 1819, the first election being
held in the cabin of Wm. Cranney. In 1814 (GGeorge Wallace built a saw mill on Brandywine
creek and the following year a grist mill and distillery—the latter was abandoned in 1830,
his books, still in existence, showing that whisky was used by everyone in the township
either as a beverage or for barter, The saw mill was in operation as late as 1851. In 1821
he built a woolen factory, near the same place, and for many years carding, spinning, weaving
and dressing was an important industry. In 1843 it was swept away by floods and never
rebuilt. A postoffice was established here in 1822. In addition to Brandywine there are
several small hamlets in the township, Northfield Center, Little York, Macedonia, Lemons’
Corner and Red l.ock.

The first school in the township was taught in the Bacon neighborhood about 1815 in a
vacant log house known as the Rowley House, a2 man by the name of King being the first
teacher.

There are four churches in the township. The Methodists organized in 1831 and in
1835 a church was built by them. :

The Presbyterians built a church in 1834 which was used till about 1850 when the
present one was erected.

The Congregationalists. built asmall church in 1844, but, uniting with the Presbyterians
it was used for a select school and at last
converted into a dwelling house.

The United Presbyterians were organ-
ized in 1833 and in 1837 built a church
near the center which was used till 1871
when another was built which was destroyed
by fire in March, 188g.

NORTON.

Or Town 1, Range XII., is bordered on
the mnorth by Copley, east by Coventry,
south by Franklin and Chippewa and west
by Wadsworth, In 1816 was organized as
part of Wolf Creek Township, and, in 1818,
under its present name and bounds was or-
ganized as an independent township.

In 1810 James Robinson located on lot 19
and John Cahow on lot 2o, and, though set-
tlers came in very slowly until after the War
of 1812, yet in point of location it was so
desirable that it soon caught up with most of
its sister townships. The soil varies from a
gravelly clay to a loamy muck the most of it
being of easy tillage, and, with care, giving
large crops of wheat, corn and oats while the

“hilly ranges affording excellent grazing,
makes Norton famous for its fine stock farms,
being especially celebrated for its fine draft
horses and thoroughbred cattle. While
agriculture is the leading industry yet a large
supply of sandstone is quarried and coal
mined in the township, and, with more
villages than any other township in the
county, has a variety of mechanical and
manufacturing industries.

T aT e The first marriage in the township was

of 1814.

The frst tavern was probably that of James Cahow on lot 20 in 18r12.
The first saw mill was built by Thomas Jolinson in 1823, who also built the first grist

mill about 1830.

One of the finest springs of fresh water in the county is at New Portage.

The villages are Loyal Qak P. O. or Bates Corners, settled about 1817; Western Star,
originally called Griswold’s Corner, 1819, incorporated as a village in 1842 and in later
years having graded schools with the seminary buildings used for the higher grades. New
Portage, two and a half miles east of the Center, Dennison a small mining hamlet in the
western part of the township, the postoffice being called Sherman when located in 1864.
Hametown, though not a postoffice, is quite a business point.  Johnsons Corners about the
size of Loyal Qak. The ¢« Center” has hardly arrived to the dignity of a village. Barber-
ton the youngest and thriftest of all.

The school house at the Center was originally a log structure which was superseded by
a frame and then by a brick house, the latter giving way to a substantial frame, the finestin
the township. ’

A postoffice was established at an early day and in 1874 discontinued, but was
re-established in 1878. ‘

The first organized church in Norton was a Methodist class formed about 1816 and in
the following year erected a church near New Portage.

The Baptists gained a foothold shortly after and were followed by the Disciples and
Congregationalists, and in 1849 a Union or Lutheran Church was started. In 1851 the
Evangelical .utheran and German Reformed united in- erecting a church. At Western
Star, a Methodist Church was organized about 1835.

_




In 1878 the United Brethren formed a society at Western Star, and the following vear
erected a church edifice, In 1838 a Union church was organized in the south-western part
of the township. At Johnson’s Corner the Methodists organized in 1836 and erected a
church which was used for thirty years, when a new and more modern building took its
place. In 1852 a Reformed church was organized at Johnson's Corners—using the Meth-
odist church until 1868 when they erected a house of their own. The schools in general
are well sustained and rank with the best in the county. Several of the pioneers of Norton
were Revolutionary soldiers, among whom was Mr. Henry Van Hyning, who died in Norton
December z235th, 1830, at the age of 1oz2.  In the CivilWar we find she came to the front and
played well her part, furnishing her full quota under the several calls and many of her sons
giving up their lives in defense of the Flag of the Union.

PORTAGE.

Town 2, Range XI. derives its name from the celebrated ““Portage Path” which till
1805 was the western boundary of the United States, and extends from north to south through
the center of township. Its northern boundary is Northampton ; Tallmadge on the east,
Coventry on the south and Copley on the west, and touched on the south-east and north-east
by Akron and Cuyahoga Falls.

The first white settler who “stuck ” was Maj. Miner Spicer in 1810, who located near
what is now the corner of Spicer and Carroll streets, in ¢ Spicertown.”

The township was organized in 1838, at a meeting held in the house of Warren H.
Clark. The following being its first officers: Trustees, Wm. B. Mitchell, Simon Perkins, Jr.,
George Babcock; Clerk, Horace K. Smith ; Treasurer, Samuel A. Wheeler. The local
history of Portage township is so closely identified with that of Akron and Cuyahoga Falls
as to render it difficult to draw the dividing line.

RICHFIELD.

SI)I{IN(;I:IEI,L) : Union army,

Or Town 1, Range X, of the Western Reserve has touching it, on th‘;:no}fe;};z;‘;ﬁz}
madge; east, Suffield; south, Lake and Green ; west, Coventry; and the south-
the Sixth Ward encroaching on its north-west corner—bheing attached to Middle
1857.  Under the original survey Springfield formed one of the equalizing tow
The first permanent white settlement was made on lot 12 of the « Shaler*
by Ariel Bradley, who served under Gen. Washington as a spy during the Revolge’ Springfield,
The original organization of the township was in 1808, at which time Cp as the Sixth
madge, Suffield and Randolph were included in its boundaries. Justice of the
The surface, with few exceptions, is rolling.  The soil is of a rich sg, March 1888,
adapted to cereal products, the natural drainage of several considerable strea‘therein and the
crops and easy tillage. es only, as the
One of the first coal mines in the county “cropped out” on the farmyarg
Haven, in 1808.
In 1828 a fine quality of clay was discovered, and Fisk and Smith sta
and now an almost endless number turn out over a million gallons of stone
As the clay is seemingly inexhaustible this, with kindred articles, forms one limits all of the
industries of Springfield, d and Coventry,
By some singular coincidence the first death was Robert Hall in 1808. :age township, at
his daughter Jane, born in r8og and the first wedding, his son John married i town upon and
garet Blair. and, it being on
The first postoffice was established in 1818, in the southeast part of the kron.
Ina little log cabin near Cass’ camping ground the first school was OPYorth and south
Upson, on the subscription and board around plan. The next was in thigz6. The first
school house by Mr. Briggs. He was followed by Jesse Hall in the Virging ¢, adoption

and  Ausjpytion in 1852,
the Sheerade and became

Is bounded on the
north by Brecksville, on
the east by Boston, on
the south by Bath, and
on the west by Hinckley.
In the original survey it
was designated as Town
4, Range XII. of the
Western Reserve, and
was first settled in 1809
by Launcelot Mays. In
1816 it was organized as
a separate township, de-
riving its name from the
large quantities of < Ox-
balm™” or a- “rich feed”
which abounded and was
much relished by the
stock. The eastern por-
tion is hilly and broken,
while the western and
central is more level and
presents a rolling surface
with fertile and well cul-
tivated farms. The soil
mainly consists of gravelly
loam with clay subsoil

and is very rich and
fertile, producing good
crops of both grain and
grass and many orchards of choice fruits. The ¢ East' and «West” center constitute the
villages, but from lack of railroad facilities have never reached marked importance.

The first sawmill was built near Lake John in 1818 by John Farnam.

The first and most primitive grist mill in the county was ¢ built” at an early day by
Enoch D. Buck, hollowing out the top of a white oak stump, and using a pestle worked by
a spring pole to crack the grain.

The first frame hotel was built in 1830 by James W, Weld.

The ¢ Church of Christ” was organized in 1818 ard Rev. Israel Shaler installed its
first pastor in 1821.  In 1833 they were incorporated and organized as the First Congrega-
tional Church of Richfield. The church building was erected in 1832 and is still in a fair
condition. The Methodists inclosed a building in 1822, which was burned in 1852, after
which they erected their present building. The Baptists built in 1838, and in 1876 the
United Brethren built the *Centennial Church ” in the south-east part of the township.

A relic of pioneer days was the old Richfield Academy, built in 1836, and after a very
successful career gave way to the free school system and passed away in the early seventies.
Under the charge of Rev. Harvey Lyon it rose to the front rank with similar institutions in
the West. One of the first township libraries in Ohio was started in Richfield in 1825 by
Dr. Rawson.

One of the most exciting events in the history of the county occurred in 1871 when
John Hunter, a rejected lover of their daughter Chloe, murdered Mr. and Mrs. Robert
Gargett.

While represented in former wars to a certain extent, Richfield came nobly to the
front during the Civil War. From the time ¢ String Beans” was organized by Captain
Humphrey, till the close of hostilities 137 men were sent from the township, of whom 13
““had a picnic” in southern prison pens, and 47 gave up their lives that the old flag might
still wave over an undivided country.

WALNUT GROVE FARM, EVERETT, BOSTON TOWNSHIP, SUMMIT CO., QHILO. of the

Owned by Frank Reifsnider, Akron, Ohio, (466 acres.) Plain

Then ¢y 4 city of the
Meachan; refused further
school hdng' as it does
him wasnship of Middle-
with Rolory of the latter.
Metlin, in Joseph Hunt,
in the of land in 1807,
Ellet in "of a mill. The
C.  Mcl artificial advan-
Roden til the location of
houses. , gave it a rival in
schools . water power, and
school 1lation was trans-
which ssperous rival. A
with for a time, it was a
school sculation and fash-
which 1dustry and enter-
brick b The Middlebury
nished sincorporated and
and haiter power created.
up to tlimes relied upon.
tional f opened by Peleg

.1 years later there

PP res in the village.

to the ives and nails, card-

her cc of cloth were some
Mr. B

vices a

¢ was in 1811 and
1en the ‘‘old brick”
i3, when it was pur-
council and turned
1838 the village of
porated and in 1857

us it remained until

Washi
splendid victory, a number of otkers appear on the roll. In the War
Mexican War her sons were found in line and in the Civil War at least
best young men volunteered under the old flag. Many going out to retu
the loved ones " left behind whe ey ““donned the suit of blue,

e oved ones they left behind h'cn thL.} lonned the blue arch z1st, 1888, the
Ihe nearest approach to a village is Mogadore, though several hay city
distinction, among which are the “Burgh” or North Springfield—Lc )
Pleasant Valley—Krumroy—Thomastown and Brittain or the ¢ White G} ‘ .
o . ) o ander the ordinance
In religion the Presbyterians were on the ground almost as soon as .
v , - _ . . ) , e . brought into a free
tlement, Rev. Thomas Beer being the first preacher. They built a ch
o C oy . ) . \ o ] reated as a final set-
Center in 1812 which was burnt, and in 1828 they erected the present o £ Californi '
) : . . 0 alifornia
In 1831 the Methodists put up a house but after some years it we , the

. sting a slave i i
converted into a glue factory. > f% Na teh n his
5 of the Northerners,

. . "the border states,
STOW., ‘ugitive on his way to

Derives its name from the original purchaser, Joshua Stow, who wnd the certainty and
first exploring party of 45 men sent out by the Connecticut Land Co, *°%V® 38 the”“ Un'der
at Conneaut Creek July 4th of that year. At the distribution of the > = Stations” rapidly
X. fell to his share and, while he never actually settled in, yet he mad c:n t’l,xe alert, and
to and from his home in Connecticut. The first actual settler was his a atlo.n and many.of
whose cabin was located in 1804, at the corner of the Darrow and Gral® P30S and penalties
a mile north of ¢“Stow Corners,” Prior to this a squatter, Win. Walker

in the north-eastern part of the township.

o . “trade of tanner, gen-
The township was organized in 1808, being cut out of Hudson : en &
sheep, and is said to

north by Hudson, on the east by Franklin, on the south by Tallmac; his life is too well
Northampton, a portion of Cuyahoga Falls lying in its original Soum'wliberally to assist him

In point of natural advantages Stow is surpassed by but few sectiCe this section such a

, while not. a native,
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~ those of any other to

~ westward from the ol

. Steese coal mines, it
. try where ¢ Pete” Shas

. .1 from hilly surface, amply drained by its numerous streams and diversified by
Adam and Eve F{ y » &1ph) y 1by

. . i, furnishes abundance of water for all purposes, with comparatively little of
tillery in the town . . .

) here being about fifteen thousand acres of arable land in the township.
and shortly after ¢,

. is a clayey loam, touched with sand, adapted to nearly every kind of farm and
Mr. Palmer sold ¢ : .
:ts, especially fruits.

celebrated Mormo: , : . .
as 1806 the Presbyterians were organized for lay worship by Deacon Butler

early settlers. Am¢ . . . ) o
y R held in the school house at Stow Corners, until a church was built in the
oldest cemeteries .
't of the township.

Wesley chapel at . a . . . .
Welsh. alsd one w,copahans, as early as 18c§, also obtained quite a footing among the pio-
. bs’totn;as n thn’s church having been organized here and meetings held for lay service until
ombs s ¢ . .
t Cuyahoga Falls in 1835.

they but speak. e T - .

Many of the “ly twenties the Universalists had an organization under Rev. Bigelow.

T ‘Little Treland ™ has a congregation of the United Presbyterian Church.
The first frame hmw offers no mammoth temple of learning, her common schools are as highly

e first frame hc . .

Of 1 well conducted as those many of her more pretentious neighbors—the natural

he ear .. . . . L
‘ntelligent and law abiding class of citizens. Theearlyhistory of educationin Stow

ils hered fr . .. . . . .
E"plls lgat here scurity; tradition gives it that the first school was opened in the cabin of Wm.
hemselves.

ne ¢ . . o
0 north-east corner of the township about 1806 and taught by Dennis Ryan,
and was not far fro d .
frequently held; an

and receiving fifty cents a month for some 15 pupils.
the Sol. Renninger

dian hunter and fig

bury.

An abandoned log
A Mr.
About 1810 the Burnett house was abandoned and

In 1816 a frame structure took its place and was

aett’s in the northern part was used as a school house, as early 1808.
v here at an early day.
houses were also bu'hool built at the Corners.
Coventry ‘was (ly forties when the’ present one was erected.
IH.ISSS" Sylve:.ol in Mr. Rice’s cabin near the center.

the ‘pemtenuary for “d in 1816 and has been
"I he present jvce'll- In 825 there
bu}lt by ]th Wylie n schoolhousesinthe town-
Though’ somewha number built of logs and

many fine farms w . .
any nconveunient, unattractive

As early as 1810 Emma Can-
The first school house at Monroe

50 others,

vith” dismal and gloomy
ritable workshops, they
z2d and laid the foundation

There appears to
peat in many portio

a a I c
of the abundance a system of to-day with its

ities have been
quantities have be common

they are not worked.
One of the most

-

y  appointed
us Southmay, one of the
came widely known as a
. ctor.
O‘f t_he reservoln past Wyatt had a saw mill
Corners. i - .
. . .Jsin 1808 it was a failure
Lhe ],,ey—&s\valtz—Il_“ﬂed and totally de-
-nado of October 1837.
iful saw mill was built
bout 1817 by Griswell
the same time Francis

st mill on the opposite
the former sentenced:

the latter to thirty day:
pardoned three month: Y
Coventry sent aboi™es Griffiths erected a

Thomas' Granger ex-r ;
5 began manufacturing

1878, gave a dance, ¢
the head with a slung-¢
died on the 14th. I

1d by combining means
m across the stream.

this point, and Con-

1812,

CUYAT in Stow Corners was
! P
306 by Ezra Wyatt, and

Much of the early hiyin on 1ot 36.

in that portion relati: .
ze was that of Johm C.

Jarriet Powers in 1800.
lissa Rice, bornin 1803,
child born in the pres-

township. The first
egory Powers, in 1807.

ampton and Portage,
in the original limits
village " was at first ca
of the manufactming
In 18206, there being st
and postal accommodat
Falls, Henry Newberry ive hundred Indians were in the township, generally living on friendly
laid out in 1826 by Ju® settlers. When the War of 1812 broke out they took sides with the
years called the Americ to massacre the whites, preferring to give them a chance to fight for
In thel the War closed the Indians returned to claim the lands as proposed by

present owner.
Besides service in other wars Stow township furnished 101 men as

building a dam north of®5-
1830 they built the pior® Civil War, the aggregate term of service being 181 years,and is one of
seen, and which was thaving complete military records 1861-5.
manufacturing center cirnished such a full quota of patriotic citizens a limited number let
able schemes, might haadow patriotism.  Among them was Wm. Graham, who refused to pay
Second, the Cascade Mt ($60.00) on the last draft of 1865 and was waited upon by a committee
¢« Chuckery ” of 1835; fi Mr. Graham fired upon the committee and killed Hugh Kilpatrick and
in the magazine of Wegihich he was immediately indicted, tried and sentenced to the Peniten-
polis;” and fourth, the ph, 1865, and payment of costs, $747.86. After serving till Feb. rrth,
were some forty stores ajblici now that the excitement of war was over recognized the fact that
for that year r-eaching n on both sides, and he was pardoned by Governor Allen on petition
business place than the 1S of Summit county and died Aug. 3rst, 1883. The families of the
panic of 18371844 put ¢°00. 00 each in damages.

The town of Cuyah p
rods of Stow and Tallma TALLMADGE.
legislation. April 4, 183 “‘standard "’ townships is bouwnded on the north by Stow, the east by
Cuyahoga Falls was creat by Springfield and the west by Portage, with Akron and Cuyahoga
Portage, holding the firstuth-west and north-west corners, and was designated in the survey as
ering the same territory, 0f the Western Reserve, containing 15,225 acres and was drawn by
the village remained unddthers on the 24th draft, April, 1799.
municipal functions, ent was made by George Boosinger in the Spring of 1807, on lot 6,

SPICER SCHOOL, CARROLL STREET, AKRON, OHIO,

tract 4, where he lived till 1836, when he sold out and went to Tllinois.

The township was organized in Nov. 1812, having previously been a dependency of
Hudson and attached to Randolph.

The face of the country is generally rolling, though in some portions of the western
part overlooking the valley of the Little Cuyahoga it is quite bluffy.

The general nature of the soilis a light loam, extremely fertile and productive, well
adapted to grain and grass, and amply drained by the many small creeks and rivulets
traversing different parts of the township, with the west half underlaid with vast beds of
bituminous coal.

The second survey placed a public square of about eight acres in the center of the
township from which eight roads diverge; north,'north-east, east, south-east, south, south-
west, west and north-west. The intention of the Connecticut Missionary Society being to
found a religious colony, and the Rev. David Bacon, as the agent for the land, desiring to
have the church at the center, easy of access from all points of the compass, and while he
failed to realize the fruition of his scheme, yet the present religious and moral tone of Tall-
madge is largely the result of sentiments sown by him during the early days of the township.
The first sermon was preached by Mr. Bacon in his cabin, and the first church organized
January z2d. 180g, as the First Congregational Church of Tallmadge, Rev. Jonathan Leslie
acting as moderator, and was the eleventh church organized on the Reserve. The first regular
pastor was Rev. Simeon Woodruff, who was installed in May, 1813. They inclosed a
church edifice on the north side of the square in 1822, but it was not completed and dedi-
cated until 1825 and was the fifth church (steepled) built on the Reserve. Itwas remodeled
in 1849 and rededicated in 1851. A Sunday school was orgénized in 1822 and has met
1835. As a marked contrast between then
and now. “After the timber, contributed
by settlers, had been selected and the day
appointed, as an incentive to prompt
action a gallon of whisky was offered by
the trustees as a prize to the man who
should be first on the ground with his .
stick of timber.

regularly  every Sunday since

Aside from this the Methodist Episcopal
Church is the only one which has ever
established itself in Tallmadge. They
were organized in 1825 by Rev. B. O.
Plimpton and dedicated a church in 1833
which they occupied until 1875 when the

present church was dedicated. Their
Sunday School has been ‘held since
1830.

s The church first, the school next, was the
plan of the Puritan Pioneers. The first
attempt at the latter was in 1810, a small
log building for school purposes being
erected at the south four corners, with
Miss Lucy TFoster (Mrs. Alpha Wright)
o S as the first teacher. About the same time
; one was built at the south-west four
corners and another in the east and from .
time to time in other localities as the
convenie~ce or necessities ‘of the people
required, the orginal log structures giving
way to the present commodious. frame and
brick buildings.
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The first frame school house was built
on the public square in 1815 the lower
story being used by the district school,
the upper one as an Academy and for
various meetings. )

The Tallmadge Academy was incorpor-
ated in Feb, 1816, and opened by Rev. Simeon Woodruff. The building was burnt in
January 1820 and at once rebuilt a separate building being erected for the district school.
The second building was some 1% years afterward purchased by Ephraim T. Sturtevant
and when removed to its present location a select classical school was erected in it. In the

later thirties a third building was ‘built on the corner of the-square and the north center ’
road and destroyed by fire after a few years of service. '

When the town hall was built a second story was added which was used for academical
purposes, until superseded by the present graded school system under which every mile and

a quarter gives a district, and a four-roomed union school and High School department at
the center.

In 1813 a Public Library on the joint stock plan was established and now has several
hundred volumes of the very best class of books.

The first deaf mute school in the west was opened at Tallmadge, May 1st, 1827, by
Col. Smith, a graduate of the Hartford (Conn.) Asylum, but was discontinued in 1829,
when the State Asylum at Columbus was opened, the pupils being transferred to that insti-
tution.  The first strike on record is said to have been at Tallmadge during the erection of
the first church, the men ““struck for wool” and the trustees gave them the ¢“wopl.”

Coal was found as early 1809 in the south-east corner of the township and shortly after
on the east side of ‘“Coal Hill,” but timber was so abundant that it was not mined to any-
extent until the thirties, though largely used by Laird and Norton at the ¢ Old Forge” as
early as 1817, For the first few years the average annual output of the mines was only
about 250 tons. In the early forties about 3,000 tghs, and for the last half century over 12,-
ooo tons. The Cambria Furnace was started in the middle forties but not proving success-

ful’ was abandoned, leaving the ¢ Qld Forgé”' as a land mark for future generations. In
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1869 the first tannery was started on Camp Brook. What, for a time, was one of the most
extensive carriage factories in the west was started at the Center in 1827 by Amos Avery,
who was joined in 1836 by Wm. C. Oviatt, they made the first elliptic buggy spring ever
made in Ohio. The manufacture of stoneware and sewer pipe is also carried on quite
extensively in various parts of the township.

The military record of Tallmadge is second to none on the Reserve. Many of her pio-
neers did good service in the continental army during the Revolution. A score or more
served through the War of 1812 and when Fort Sumter was fired upon in 1861, she came to
the front and during the Civil War furnished 113 men besides 13 ““Squirrel Hunters” and
64 men fdr the 1oo day service.

TWINSBURG.

The north-east township of the county has for its neighbors on the north, Solon; onthe
east, Aurora; on the south, Hudson ; and on the west, Northfield; and in the original
survey was designated as Town 5 Range X. of the Western Reserve, and in its early day
was called Millsville, but when organized as a separate township in 1'819, was named Twins-
burg in honor of the twin brothers, Moses and Aaron Wilcox, who owned the north and
morth-easterly portion of the township, they giving six acres of land for a public square and
$20. 00 towards building the first school house on condition of the name being changed.

With the exception of certain portions of the bottom lands on Tinker’s Creek and
stony ridges and high lands on either side, the general soil is of a clay loam well adapted to
agricultureand valuable for dairy farmsand grazing. Itiswell watered and drained by numerous
small streams flowing into Tinker’s Creek which runs through the township from the south-
east to the north-west and empties into the Cuyahoga in Bedford township.

The first settlement was made early in 1817 by Ethan Alling.

The first marriage, Emery W. Alger to
Eliza Dodge, March 1gth, 1821.

Thefirst birth, Maria Stanley, Nov. 23d,
1819.

The first death was an infant child of
Mr. and Mrs. Reuben Chamberlain in the
spring of 1819. ’

In 1824 Mr. Alling was married to Eliza
Blackman and in 1825 started a dairy
farm on which he made the first
cheese manufactured in  Twinsburg.
He was followed by others in the same
business until Twinsburg has become
famous for her dairy interests. :

The first hotel was built by Mr. Alling
and formally opened Dec. z5th, 1826.

A postoffice was established at the
Center in 1825 with Moses Wilcox post-
master.

In 1817 Elisha L.oomis erected a saw
mill and in 1818 E. W. Mather built a
frame grist mill on Tinker's Creek.

Religious meetings were held in private
houses from the first settlement of the
township until the schooi house was built
at the Center in 1822, after which they
were usually held there. In 1821 a
Methodist class was formed by a pioneer  phnummHMIWHGE
circuit rider and in 1822 a Congregational H”mmlm m” l ”ﬂmﬂ I "”
society was organized by Revs. Seward and PR
Hanford. About 1835a <“split” occurred
and a second Congregational Church was
started but in 1843 again united with the
parent church.

In 1823 the Congregationalists built a
-combined church and school house, under protest, on the public square, which was twice
removed and finally demolished. In 1832 another building was erected north of the hotel,
and the present edifice in 1848.

The Methodist class, started in 1821, built near the north-east corner of the square in
1832 and their present church in 1848.

A Baptist Church was orgahized in 1832 and a house of worship erected in 1841.

The Free Will Baptists organized in 1843 building in 1847. Their first church was
burned and in 1851 was rebuilt; in 1859 it was sold to and used by the Baptists.

In 1822 the first public building of any kind in Twinsburg, a log school house, was
built on the public square, and. used as town hall, church and school house the first school
being on the subscription plan and taught by Miss Lovina M. Miream. Other districts
were not formed till 1828, and some as late as 1833. Although fair in their way, the district
schools of Twinsburg have been mainly primary in their nature, as in 1828, Rev. Samuel
Bissell opened the ¢ Twinsburgh Institute,” for the first three years, in the old log school
house, then in the church, of which he was pastor. In 1837 he built a small school build-
ing south of the square. In 1847 purchased the Hotel property, and, from time to time,
adding to the accommodations until over 3oo pupils were in attendance and the group of
buildings composing the ‘¢ Institute,” stands as a lasting monument of the persevering
energy and liberal-heartedness of its self-sacrificing founder; more than 6ooo students
have been in attendance since its organization (many of them being educated free of
expense), of whom 200 have been Indians, of the different tribes. The Institute was an
individual enterprise, without charter or endowment, costing its founder over $80,000, to off-
set which he has received not more than $12,000 and, through i‘ts influence, Twinsburg has
become noted for its thrift, energy, and general excellency in education and morals.

ALLEN SCHOOL, AKRON, OHIO.

During the Civil War Twinsburg furnished a total of 117 soldiers for the Union army,
looking after their dependent families during the struggle, and, at the close of the war,
erected on the public square a splendid monument to the memory of her fallen heroes and
in honor of her surviving sons, which was dedicated July 4th, 1867.

MIDDLEBURY

Was erected as a township in March, 1857, outof portions of Tallmadge, Springfield,
Portage and Coventry, and, though subsequently annexed to the city of Akron as the Sixth
Ward, retained its distinctive township feature to the extent of having one Justice of the
Peace and one Constable until the erection of the new township of Akron in March 1888,
when, the latter being co-extensive with the city, the former became merged therein and the
new township was entitled to three Justices of the Peace and three Constables only, as the
duties of the other township authorities were performed by the municipal officers.

AKRON.

Synonomous with City, Township and Village, includes in its corporate limits all of the
old township of Middlebury and a portion of Portage, Tallmadge, Springfield and Coventry.
Under the State Constitution of 1802 up to 1825 it was only known as Portage township, at
which time Gen. Simon Perkins and Paul Williams platted and laid out a town upon and
surrounding the intersection of Main and Exchange Streets in Uppertown, and, it being on
the top of the summit, at an average of 400 feet above the Lake, called it Akron,

Though platted in 1825, it was ten years later when the rival north and south
villages buried the hatchet and were incorporated as a town in 1836. The first
election being held at the house of Asa Larned, June r4th, 1836. At the adoption
of the new State Constitution in 1852,
Akron was advanced in grade and became
a village, and in 1865 to a city of the
second class and in 1891 refused further
advancement. Comprising as it does
the old village and township of Middle-
bury we touch the history of the latter.
Its founder was Captain Joseph Hunt,
who purchased 54 acresof land in 1807,
and began the erection of a mill. The
village, from natural and artificial advan-
tages, thrived apace, until the location of
the Ohio Canal, in 1825, gave it a rival in
Akron, with its immense water power, and
in a short time its population was trans-
ferred to its more prosperous rival. A
revulsion came, and, for a time, it was a
struggle between the speculation and fash-
ion of Akron and the industry and enter-
prise of Middlebury. The Middlebury
Hydraulic Company was incorporated and
by artificial means a water power created,
that-could be at all times relied upon.
The first tavern was opened by Peleg
Mason in 1815 and ten years later there
were fifteen or twenty stores in the village.
The manufacture of stoves and nails, card-
ing of wool and fulling of cloth were some
of the earlier industries.

The first school house was in 1811 and
was used until 1828 when the *old brick”
took its place until 1853, when it was pur-
chased by the village council and turned
into a town hall, In 1838 the village of
: Middlebury was incorporated and in 1857
the corporate limits were erected into a township of the same name. Thus it remained until
the spring of 1872 when it was annexed to Akron as the Sixth Ward. March 21st, 1888, the
township of Akron was created the bounds of which were coequal with the city,

THE UNDER GROUND RAIL ROAD.

For many years after slavery was abolished in the Northern States, under the ordinance
of 1787, there was a tacit understanding that slaves escaping or being brought into a free
state became free men, and the ¢“ Missouri Compromise” of 1820 was treated as a final set-
tlement of the slave question. When, in 1850, on the admission of California, the
““Fugitive Slave Law ” was enacted attaching heavy penalties for assisting a slave in his
efforts to escape, and, by its provisions practically making slave catchers of the Northerners,
a system was inaugurated by humane and philanthropic persons in the border states,
who not only felt it a privilege, but considered it a duty, to assist the fugitive on his way to
the free soil of Canada. They speedily became known to each other, and the certainty and
secrecy with which their operations were conducted, caused it to be known as the * Under
Ground Railroad.” The ¢“lines” increased by the friends of freedom, ‘‘stations” rapidly
multiplied, and ‘‘agents,” ¢‘conductors,” and ‘“‘engineers,” were ever on the alert, and
aggressive in their operations, Summit county was a prominent ‘‘station” and many of
our leading citizens were “‘officials,” of the U. G. R. R in spite of the pains and penalties
imposed by Sec. 7 of the law.

“0Old Ossawattomie,” as John Brown was familiarly known, was, while not. a native,
an old timer in Summit county, where for many years he followed the trade of tanner, gen-
eral farming and surveying. He was also a great lover of cattle and sheep, and is said to
have been one of the best judges of wool in the world. The story of his life is too well
known to need repetition here. Akron and Summit county contributed liberally to assist him
in his Kansas struggle, and, perhaps it was his suggestions that made this section such a
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- resumed in 1858 and after many delays the

prominent station of the Underground R. R. So that, while many of our citizens depre-
cated what they considered his insane scheme, yet when the news of the execution of the
convict-martyr reached Akron, flags were at half-mast, stores and offices close ', the courts
adjourned, bells tolled, and in the evening appropriate memorial serviceswhereheld.  Similar
earnest, impressive and solemn services were held in most of the villages in Summit county.

The first we are touched by railroad schemes was in 1832. When the «¢Great Western
R’y " project was broached to builda railroad from the Hudson river to the Portage Summit
on the Ohio canal at Akron. Nothing was done further than to appoint a committz to
raise funds for the survey.

) In 1836 stock books for the Akron and Perrysburgh road were opened but the road
never materialized. The Akron and Richmond R. R., the same year, was projected—on
paper. The first road from which we received any benefit was the Cleveland and Pitts-
burgh which was opened from Cleveland to Hudson in 1851. The Akron and Canton Rail-
road was talked of and a charter obtained in 1845; although some preliminary work was
done, yet for lack of funds, the road was never built. Tne Akron Branch Railroad was
organized in April 1851, and at a special election in June of that year, by a vote of 2432 for
and 1665 against the measure the County Commissioners were authorized to subscribe $100,-
oo to the enterprise. Issuing 135 year bonds for the sime, and July 4th, 1852, the road was
completed to Akron and after several changes in name became known as the Cleveland,
Akron and Columbus R. R.  In 1850 a Mr. Kent of Franklin Mills obtained a charter for
the ¢¢Coal Hill” or  Franklin and Warren” R. R., which in 1834 was changed to the
Atlantic and Great Western R. R. Co. Charters were obtained in New York and Pennsyl-
vania under the same name at about the same time with anidea of a road from Salamanca,
N. Y., to Cincinnati, and the three charters
enacted under the general title of the Atlantic
and Great Western R’y Co.  Thrugh finan-
cial complication work was practically sus-
pended on this line in 1855, but again

first train came into Akron in April, 1864.
Ten years later, after minor changes it was
réorganized as the New York, Pennsylvania
and Ohio B. R. Co., and in 1883 leased to
the Erie Railway. In 1870 the Baltimore
and Ohio made.a proposition to build a
branch through Akron, and though the
required amount was subscribed it mnever
turned a wheel here.  The ‘‘Baltimore
extension” scheme not materializing, the
«Vall y R'y Co.” was incorporated in 18771,
the Akron and Canton merging with it, and
the surveys were completed and grading well
under way, when work was suspended early
in 1874 and the road was not in operation
until 1880, the first train going through Akron
one yvear, three months and two days after
President King laid the first rail near the
¢« Old Forge.”

Early in 1881 the Pittsburgh, Youngstown
add Chicago R. R. was organized and now as
the Pittsburgh and Western R, R., enters

— ]

As early as 1830 a small M. E. class was organized in South Akrf’“’ and a church
organization effected a few years later and in 1826 erected a chur.ch.whlch was burned in
1841, It was soon afterwards rebuilt and in 1867 the present bT\uldmg cm;nmenced and
dedicated in 1872, the old building being sold and in process of time becoming part of the
Windsor Hotel.

The Akron and Middlebury Baptist Church was organized in 1834, and - was among the
first to become incorporated under the law of 1836, dedicating their new church in 183,
The original building was sold to the German Reformed Society in 1858. The Baptists
having purchased the old stone church of the Universalists in 1853 and in 1889 Ehey dedi-
cated their new brick church on South Broadway. After a lapse of over twenty years the
Universalists organized in 1872, at first holding their meetings in the chapel of Buchtel Col-
lege until the erection of their church at the corner of Broadway and Mill in 1879. They
were originally organized about 1837, building a handsome stone church and in the gilded
ball on the top of the spire nearly one hundred feet from the ground are- the articles
usually placed in the corner stone. ~About 1878 trouble entered their counsels and they dis-
banded.

Though occasional Episcopal services were held it was not until 1838 that St. Paul's
Episcopal Church was organized. Their first church was dedicated in 1844 and in 1885
sold to the Hebrews; a new church being dedicated in January of that year.

The <“Campbellites” or Disciples of Christbegan teaching their doctrine in Akron as early
as 1830 and in 1839 organized a church and in 1845 purchased the Congregational Church
which was sold to the German Lntherans in 1857 and their present brick structure erected.

The original of Grace Methodist Church was one of the earliest in this section—the
old Middlebury Methodist Church. It was -
made a separate charge in 1870 as the
Second M. E. Church. In 1878 the old
church was remodeled and in 1891 the title
changed from the Second to Grace M. E.
Church.

In 1842 the Grerman Kvangelical Protestant
congregation was organized and built a
church on High street.  In 852 the Lutheran
clement organized a separate congregation;
and in 1855 the Reformed consolidated and
formed the First German Reformed church.
In the tower of this church is the ¢old town
bell” mentioned elsewhere as being purchased
by the citizens of Akron in 1837.

In 1853 the Grace Reformed Church was
organized; in 1854, a year later, they pur-
chased the Disciples church, which was used
until 1877, when their present church was

The Sixth Ward Church of Christis the
result of a mission, established by some
eighty members of the High street church in
1875. Four years later they erected their
church and in 1887 were incorporated as the

" Second Church of Christ.

Akron at the <«Old Forge.” Following these
in 1891 we have the Baltimore and Ohio,
Akron and Chicago Junction and the Pitts-
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The English Lutheran Church of the Holy
Trinity was organized in 1870 Their
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church edifice on Prospect street “was ded- %

burgh, Akron and Western, thus giving direct
outlet by rail to every portion of the country.
With nearly half a hundred passenger trains
each day.

As early as 1835 petitions for a Bank

charter in Akron was presented to the Legis- HENRY SCHOOL, AKRON, 0.

lature. In 1835 the Bank of Akron was
organized as a branch of the Ohio Safety Fund system, but becoming involved went into
liquidation in 1857. In 1854 George D. Bates & Co., opened a private bank which in 1863
was reorganized as the Second National Bank. In 1859 the Exchange Bank was started
continuing until 1866. In 1863 the First National Bank of Akron received its charter, and
in 1868 became possessed of the franchise of the First Natianal Bank of Cuyahoga Falls. In
1867 the City Bank began whichin 1883 was changed to the City National Bank. In 1872
the Citizen’s Saving and Loan Association commenced operation. ‘The Bank of Akron,
organized in 1870, was consoliated with and merged in the Second National Bank, andin
1888 the Akron Savings Bank was organized. The presents banks in Akron represent a cap-
ital of §875,000.00 with a surplus of $140,000.00; all in the hands of enterprising and con-
servative men, rank among the most reliable institutions in Ohio.

The First Presbyterian Church, in the Sixth Ward, is probably the oldest church in
Akron. Itwas organized in 1831,

In 1845 some of its members seceded and organized the Congregational Church of
Middlebury which in 1874 returned to the parent church. After over a half century of ser-
vice the old brick church was razed and the present church on Kent street erected.

The First Congregational Church of Akron was organized in 1834, and in 1835 built a
church on the present Court House grounds, which in 1840 was moved and is now used by
the German Lutherans as a parochial school. In 1840 their pastor embraced the Second
Advent doctrine and the congregation went to pieces and the church was sold to the Dis-
ciples. In 1843 nineteen members of the First formed the Second Congregational Church,
and in 1835 erected a house of worship. On the dissolution of the original First, this
became the First Congregational,

3 » s :
icated in 1872. |

In 1886 a small house of worship was
erected on Bast Exchange and Pearl streets,
and the following year the German Meth-
odist church was organized. l

In 1882 the United Brethern organized
The Calvary Evangelic hreh orear aTld.in 1884 built a house of worship. .
5 f ¥ angelical Church organized in 1866. They were made a mission It
1867 at which time the basement of their church was dedicated and the followin year the
church finished, and was replaced by a new building in 188¢. '

Mas C : : '
Mass and other Roman Catholic services were occasionally held in Akron as early 85 -

1835, and their parish of St. Vinc
‘ . ent de Paul started. I : and
their church completed about 1847, s ok s

laid. In 1865 the corner stone of a new stone church was

l 1 |88 7 St. IVIaIy S dlvlblou m the SOULh End » was g i o
or o >
5 aIllzed Tnd a Cha)e

3 i The - s of
this church in 1861 separate he city., The German members
d and formed the parish > d
i of St. Bernard complete
their church on South Broadway and Center streets . nard, and in 1863 P

A Hebrew congr i
4 e . "
gregation was formed as early as 1845 and met in various places until in

th ) .
o i};;)urchas;,d St. Paul. s Episcopal church and fitted it over for a Jewish Temple.
5 members of the First Congregational Church living on the West Side began 0

agitate formi ; c
g rming a church in that vicinity and one was finished in December, 1887, and in

April, 1888, the West Congrepati ;
t Al . . . . ; 1
(he paent wociety. gregational Church was organized taking sixty-five members from

1883

For man |
In 188 the ())’lg’ef-’?:r::;golored people have maintained the African M. E. Zion Church.
use of the Perkins school which had been used for some years, Was

moved to South High street and
e among the colerms pe fitted up for a church. Also the Shiloh Baptist was 0rgan®

Broadway. In 1891 there w about 1878, and in 1890 erected a small church on North
gospel of peace in their Peiiel.twenty-four church societies in Akron, each spreading the

iar ; :
another article, N manner, as referred to under creeds and churches, 8

-—’:’:—'Z//
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The Akron Ministerial Association was organized in 1884 to cultivate mutual
acquaintance and the social element; to discuss local and social problems, and to secure,

so far as possible, harmony and united action on questions of public expediency. At first

membership was limited to Akron ministers, but in 1885 the privileges of the Association
were extended to all clergymen resident in Summit county.

As early as 1837 the question of forming a Mechanics’ Association was ag'tated in
Akron and at the spring election of that year a ¢ People’s” ticket made up of both Whigs
and Democrats. The carpenters and joiners formed an organization during the same year,
and various other trades, no doubt, joined in the crusade against the twelve hours a day
system. In 1845 the movement became general throughout the State, not only for reduced
hours, but for increased pay—$20 a month being then considered first-class pay for a skilled
mechanic. In 1846 the ¢‘ten hour movement” had become general all over the United
States and a strong Akron Mechanics’ Association was formed in June and a Mechanics’
Library started soon after, and in the Spring of 1848 Portage elected a full Labor, and
Akron a mixed People’s ticket.

The first legal ten-hour-day noticed by the Akron press was in September, 1848, giving
an account of the action of the Legislatﬁre of Maine. From change to change evolves pro-
gress, and the present Public Library is the outgrowth of the start made by the Mechanics
of Akron in 1846, and while there still exists a vast amount of interest among the laboring
classes of the country, those of Akron and Summit county recognize the axiom that capital
and labor have joint interests and that what benefits one assists the other and what cripples
one injures the other,

February z1st, 1834, the Akron Lyceum and Library Association Company was incor-
porated by the Legislature. During the long winter evenings literary exercises and debates
were held and a fine library collected and after about ten years, other attractions taking its
place, it was disbanded and the books
distributed pro rata to the stock-holders.
Since the ¢“Philo Lexion” society, a
Literary Debating club was organized
among the young business men of Ak-
ron during the winter of 1836-37,
there: has been, during the Winter
months at least, debating and literary
societies maintained by Akron talent
up to the outbreak of the Rebellion,
since which the debating clubs have
been generally superseded by more
modern means of social pastime and
recreation.

The Mechanics’ Library was success-
fully maintained from its inception in
1853 until they donated their books to
the Board of Education, as the State
had adopted a public school library
system.  As the future city outgrew
this system the Akron Lecture As-
sociation was organized, in the fall of
1865, for the purpose of establishing a
reading room. They gave a course
of lectures during the winter of
186506, which were so successful
that in the Spring of 1866 the
Akron  Library  Association was
formed and incorporated under
that title.  They continued until
January, 1874, when the present fine
city Public Library was started by the
donation of the books on hand and is now conceded to be one of the best managed institutions
of its kind in the State. In addition to this, the Y. M. C. A. has for over twenty years, main-
tained a well supplied reading room and the citizens of Akron liberally sustain popular lect-
ures given under their auspices and are justly proud of the present condition of her educa-
tional and literary institutions; having (1891) 10,666 books on the shelves and an average
daily drawing of 137 volumes.

The first public burial place in the present limits of Akron is now known as the ¢old
cemetery” in the Eastern part of the Sixth Ward, a half acre of land being donated for that
purpose by Deacon Titus Chapman in 180g. The Middlebury Cemetery Asssociation was
incorporated in 18353, locating about three acres on East Market street.

The Spicer cemetery was opened in 1813 and owned by the Spicer Hill Burial Place
Association, until sold to the Buchtel College in 1871, when the bodies were transferred to
the Akron Rural Cemetery which was organized and incorporated in March, 1839, and now
occupies nearly sixty acres in the Third Ward.

From 1832 to 1838 a portion of the bluff north of Furnace and west of North High
streets was appropriated by the “ Dublinites " of North Akron and used for burial purposes.
Shortly after the close of the war the ladies of Akron formed a Ladies’ Cemetery Associa-
tion and from the proceeds of various entertainments, realized a sufficient fund to complete
what has since become known as the Cemetery Lodge, near the entrance to the grounds of
the Akron Rural Cemetery. About the same time Mrs. Mary I. T. Evans originated the
above plan, the question of erecting a soldiers’ monument was being agitated but no active
steps were taken until 1874, when the G. A. R. and citizens decided to build a memorial
chapel and receiving vault, instead of a monument. Ground for the chapel was broken on
Memorial Day, 1873, and the cornerstone laid July r1th, 1875, and the chapel dedicated on
Memorial Day, 1876, being presented to Buckley Post, G. A. R. and by them transferred
to the trustees of the Akron Rural Cemetery.

CROSEY SCHOOL,

The Middlebury postoffice is supposed to have existed prior to 1810 and the earliest
postmaster to have been 'Squire Nathan Gillett;up to November, 1889, there had been ten
changes in office.

South Akron office was opened in 1826, and Wolsey Wells appointed postmaster, since
which there have been twelve postmasters.

The free delivery system was started in 1879, with George W, Schick superintendent of
carriers. The percentage of mail matter delivered (93%) by carriers being above the
average.

Up to1849theindigents of each township were provided for by the tructees or poor mas-
ters. The foundation of the present county infirmary was made in 1849 by the purchase of
the McCune farm at a cost of $26.50 per acre. In 1866 the new building, authorized in
1864, was formally dedicated and has since been added to until Summit county paupers
have as good a home as any indigent person in Ohio.

A home for the children of indigent parents was inaugurated in 1885 and opened in
November of that year at the Buckeye House, which was converted into a temporary home,

The Boniface DeRoohospital fund was accepted by the council February 1,1886,$8,012. 16.

In January, 1885, the Akron Board of Charities was organized, the objectbeing to see
that charity was given freely where needed and prevent pauperism by work wherever
possible.

The first newspaper venture in what is now Summit county was made in 1825 in the
village of Middlebury by Laurin Dewey. $z204.00 having been subscribed to assist him in
publishing the Ohio Canal Advocate. Prior to the issuing of the first number Ozias Bowen
became associated with him, and the canal question having been settled, the initizl number
of the Portage Journal wasissued September 235th, 1825. The name was changed the fol-
lowing year to the Portage Journal and Weekly Advertiser, and discontinued in February,
1829. Detailed histories of the various papers published can be found in Mr. Lane’s His-
tory of Summit County and need not
be repeated here.

When Akron was incorporated in
1836, M. H. White began the publica-
tion of the Akron Post, which lived
about eight months, being followed by
the Akron Journal, which lasted about
six months. The American Balance,
after an existence of a year, suspended
in August, 1838. - The first number of
the Akron Buzzard appeared in Sep-
tember, 1838, and made weekly visits
till February, 1839, when it also died.
Six numbers of the Pestalozzian
(monthly) came out in 1838. For a
short time in 1838, the Ohioan and
New Era was published semi-monthly.
From 1838 to 1840 the Glad Tidings
and Ladies’ Universalist Magazine was
published (semi-monthly) and then
transferred to Cincinnati, where for
over forty years it appeared ag. the
Star in the West. As the legitimate
successor of the American Balance
the first number of the Summit
County Beacon was published April
rrth, 1839, and though totally destroyed
by fire three different times, has risen
like a phoenix from its ashes and never
missed a week since its initial number.

AKRON, O, December 6th, 1869, it commenced the
issue of the first daily paper in Akron,
still continued, and in 1871 the Beacon Publishing Company was organized.

Beginning with August, 184z, the American Democrat was published for a little over
six years. When for six months it was followed by the Akron Eagle.

From July, 1849, the Akron Free Democrat, as the Free Democratic Standard, the
Standard, Summit Democrat and Summit Union continued until the Fall of 1863, when it
was discontinued.

In 1844 the Buzzard was revived as a temperance paper, the Cascade Roarer, and two
years later sold to the Teetotal: Mechanic and removed to Cleveland, where it was for a short
time published as the Ohio Temperance Artizan. '

The Ohio Educational Monthly, devoted to Schools and Education, started at
Columbus in 1852 by the Ohio Teachers’ Association under the name of the Ohio Journaj
of Education. It was purchased by E. E. White about 1860, and name changed to Ohio
Educational Monthly. In 1875, it was sold to W. D. Hinkle, who removed it to Salem,
Ohio, and continued its publication untit the time of his death in 1881. Early in 1882, it
was purchased by its present owner, Samuel Findley, who removed it to Akron, where it
has since been issued regularly up to the present time.

In 1865, Paine & Long, started the Summit County Journal, which in 1367 was merged
with the Beacon.

In 1888 the Akron City Times, started in 1867 by J. C. Loveland, and the Sunday Gazette,
whichbegan publicationin 1879, were purchased by the projectorsof a daily rival of the Beacon.
The Gazette was issued as the Sunday Telegram, and on October 1st, 1888, the initial number
of the Akron Daily Telegram was issued by the Akron Publishing Company. Just one year
later the Akron Republican, a daily successor to the Telegram, was issued by the Repub-
lican Publishing Company. Fifteen months afterward, on January 1st, 1891, the Beacon and
the Republican were consolidated as the Beacon and Republican, published by the Akron
Printing and Publishing Co. This company also owns and publishes the American Farm N ews,
a monthly agricultural journal of 73,000 circulation, started in 1388 by Aultman, Miller & Co.




The Akron Germania was founded in 1868 by H. Gentz, and now published weekly
_ and tri-weekly by the Akron Germania Publishing Company.

The Freie Presse made its first appearance in 1886, and the Akron Daily Argus in 1374,
the latter being discontinued in 1879

From the Spring of 1874 for some ten years the Akron Commercial was issued by
Capt. J. J. Wright.

The Reformed Herald, is the title of a four-page parish paper edited by ]. C
Frank, and published monthly in the interest of Grace Reformed Church and Sab-
bath School, of Akron, Ohio. The Reformed Herald has attained to the fourth year of
its publication, 700 copies of it are issued monthly; many of Akron’s best business men
advertise in its columns.

The Reporter and Western Reserve Farmer, an eight-page weekly, was started as the
Cuyahoga Falls Reporter in December, 1870, the entire plant was destroyed by fire in
September, 1882, but did not lose an issue. Tt is published since the death of E. O. Knox,
May 7th, 1891, by his widow, Ellen L. Knox. Politics, Republican.

The People’s Monthly started in 1883 and in 1885 was sold to Capt. Wright. The
Akron Daily News in 1881 was continued for about two years; The South End News in
1884 till 1886; in 1884 the Prade and Labor Journal; The Issuein 1885 for a little over a
year as the organ of the Prohibition party; Daily Star, Daily Tlluminator, Advance and
many other newspaper experiments have been tried in Akron with greater or less success,
rounding up, in 1891, with one daily, four weeklies, two tri-weeklies, one Sunday paper and
four monthlies and one semi-monthly paper.

A meeting was held at the Court House, November 11th, 1849, in pursuance to a call
previously issued by N. W. Goodhue, and after appointing a committee on constitution,
adjourned for one week, at which meeting, November 18th, 1849, the Summit County Agri-
cultural Society was organized. The first annual exhibit and fair was October 2nd and 3rd,
1850, the Court House and grounds being donated by the County Commissioners for the
occasion. The Fairs of 1851 and 1852 were also held on the Court House grounds in tem-
porary buildings, erected for the purpose. In 1853 the Fair was held on six acres of land
on South Main street, the use of which was donated by Col. Simon Perkins. In 1858, these
grounds being too small to accom-
modate the patrons, thirty acres on
the West side were leased of David
L. King for a term of five years.
In 1864 they removed from Sum-
mit Grove to thirty acres on the
corner of Balch and South Maple
streets, which was leased of P. D.
Hall, for ten years. The McAllister
tract of thirty acres was purchased
in 1872 but, being remote from bus-
iness centers and difficult of access,
‘dissatisfaction ensued, and, in 1875,
it was exchanged and the «Powder
tract ” of forty-five acres purchased
in time to hold the Fair of 1875, and
was the first one held on their own
grounds. During these transactions
sectional feeling ran so high that the
Summit County Fair Association
was organized, which lasted a few
years and disbanded and the antag-
onism vanished and farmers and cit-
izens combined to make the Fairs
of the Society the best in the coun-
try. The present average annual
membership being about one thou-

sand.

In 1851 the Richfield Agricultural
Club was organized and was so suc-
cessful that in 1838 they were joined by Bath and Boston, Brecksvilie and Royalton.
(s1anger and Hinckley and the Union Agricultural and Mechanics® Art Society, and in 1868
were organized as a stock company, purchased the grounds midway between the East and
West Centers and gave annual exhibits until 1875, when they disbanded, and closed up their
affairs in 1876.

In 1856 a Union Fair Association of Twinsburg, Hudson and Northfield, Solon, Bed-
ford and Aurora was organized, holding annual meetings until 1871 when they disbanded.
A Union Fair Association was also organized in 1859, at Cuyahoga Falls, but after three
very successful Fairs the project was abandoned. ,

Akron with Portage and Middlebury townships, have too much of amilitary record to
attempt anything like a historyof it in the limited space at our command. Many of the
More served during the War of 1812
and but comparatively few in the Mexican War, while not a few represent us in the regular

Continental army were among the pioneer settlers.

service.

Under the early militia laws of the State all the able-bodied males were enrolled into
companies, etc., and under this law many independent companies had a being. Among
these were the Summit Guards, who had the honor of escorting General Harrison to and
from the Fort at the great Fort Meigs celebration during the Harrison—Van Buren cam-
paign of 1840,also the Akron Rifies, 0. V. M., and Marriner Rifilemen. On the breaking out
out of the Civil War, the citizens of Akron and Summit county showed their patriotism by
promptly abolishing all political party lines, and, when the news came that armed traitors
had fired on the old flag, were among the first to respond to the call for troops. Gen. Geo.
McNeil having a battalion of three companies ready to start inside of the week, and these
served through the entire war. The Nineteenth Q. V. 1., to wliich they were assigned, being
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mustered out October 21st, 1865. It would be impossible for us, in our limit of space, to
give a full account of what Akror and Summit county did for their country in her hour of
need, butamong the most prominent commands represented by Akron and Summit county
were the following regiments of Ohio Volunteer Infantry: Nineteenth, Twenty-ninth, Thirty.
seventh, Forty-second, Fifty-eighth, Sixty-fourth, Sigty-seventh, Eighty-fourth, ' One Hun. |
dred and fourth, On= hundred and fifth, One hundred and seventh, One hundred and “:
fifteenth, One hundred and twenty-fifth, One hundred and t_wenty-ninth, One hundred and
seventy-seventh, One hundred and eighty-eighth, One hundred and ninety-seventh, <‘Squir-
rel Hunters,” or minute men, Akron Home Guards, Fifty-fourth Battalion, One hundred
and sixty-fourth Regiment, 0. N. G.; Fifth U. 8. Colored Infantry, Second and Sixth
Cavalry, First Regiment Light Artillery, Sixth, Ninth, and Twenty-fifth Ohio Indepen-
dent Batteries, besides those in the regular Army and Navy. Under the law of 1870 we.
find the Porter Zouaves, Bierce Cadets, Akron City Guards, Ninth and Eighth Regiments,
Ohio National Guard, State Militia ; Sixth Battery F, First Regiment, Ohio Light Artillery;
also the German Guards, Company Buchtel, Company A and B, Buchtel College Battalion,

Prior to 1837 the ‘< bucket brigade” was the only fire department known to Akron,
March 21st, 1837, the first fire ordinance was passed, providing, among other items, that
buckets with the owner’s name on should be kept in certain places and be used only at fires,
Five fire wardens for inspection of buildings and taking control at fires, to refuse to obey
whose orders, subjected the delinquent to a $5o0 fine and the costs. The first means of giv-
ing the alarm was yelling ¢ fire” and ringing of the church bells and on the completion of
the Baptist (now German Reformed) church, on the corner of South Broadway and Center
streets in 1837, a bell was purchased by subscription and placed in the church tower, and
the trustees deeded to the town council, their agents and successors the right to enter the
church and ring the bell from then on forever. The bell was tolled at 6and g a. m,, rzm, |
6 and ¢ p. m. (Sundays excepted) and in case of fire—and was the official means of telling
when to ¢ rise, eat and retire, turn out and fight fire”  For many years the original purpose
of the bell has been overlooked,-and, except for routine exercises of the church, the old
c¢ Akron Town Bell” has ceased to vibrate. In April, 1839, four ladders were purchased
and the council petitioned to procure a fire engine. Nothing being done by that body, a

‘ stock company was organized anda
small, single crank rotary hand en-
gine with fifty feet of hose pro-
cured and in December, 1839, the
council authorized the formation of
the ¢“North Akron Fire Company,” |
and 1841 the first engine house, I
10x13, was Dbuilt over the race in \‘[
Mill street, facing Floward. In 1843 i

L
|
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the council purchased 4 double:

brake fire engine with zoo feet of

hose. ¢Niagara No, 2 was orgat
ized with forty-seven members, and
in 1846 the first «¢squirt gun’ was
sold to the town, and a year later
«Tormado Hook and Ladder Com- |
pany No. 37 was organized with
thirty-two members. In 1852 anew
Drake engine was purchased for .
¢“No. 1 ” and the old ¢ coffee mill”
given to ¢ Protection Company NO-
4,” composed of boys from fifteen
to eighteen years of age. At this

~ time the compensation was based on

" the average attendance at monthly
meetings ; $2 per year for 1, 2 and
4 and $1 for No. 3.  About this
time No. 1 and 4 disbanded, No.T
was reorganized in 1854, while the

cofary was F1 - t Hill
and . o rotary was transferred to Wes
reorganized as ‘“*¥est Hill Company No. 4. No. 1 appears to have again brokentup,

as;f;lly }’nszisr? stonlle thirty-six citizens organized «Protection Company No. 1.” In 1860
was r;agrganizec? \xf)itliizelile(1 for want of support, as in Jannary, 3801, ¢« Niegers i
service of No. 1. o andg: een rf;ames on the roll. In the spring of 1862 compensation for
cach fice and $1 ’for eac]‘l) :1‘;?151 xe.d at $3 per yea'rlfor monthly attendance, fifty cents for
service.  When Akron ad per member anc? suitable refreshments when called out for
to improve the fire de V.anced from 2 village to a city in 1865, steps Wwere taken
engine was purchased coulzam?lent and m the spring of 1866 a Silsby rotary stesl’
chief. At the same ti’me “I;;mlfs ¢ and : disbanded and James C. McNeil was elected
about ten years. The ch aie Tose '(-Jompany ? was organized, continuing in service 0"
close April 6th, 1876, when - erg.d existence of the Volunteer Fire Department came 0%
stantially as it now e;ists ?1‘1 ordinance was passed creating the paid fire department sub-
as follows: Four steamer.s ; the present fire service of Akron is, four fire stations equipped
hose carriage; and one ho’ok 1“‘;61 four-wheeled two-horse hose carriages; One two-horse
two stationary and thirty-fi ane adder truck ; to operate which there is a force of twenty”
most complete and effe)éti:e gffmute men. - At present this is one of the most, if not e
the council and office ¢ fire departments in the State and reflects great credit upo” " |

s in charge. While there are many things that might De said 0

detail bearing us out i i
doatl reporg;;s i oue 1r.1 this statenient, space will not permit. We refer our readers 0 the
ore thorough investigation and comparison




GEOLOGY OF SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO.

BY M. C. READ, A. M.

The lowest formation in the county is the ERIE SHALE, the upper part of the Devonian
and the equivalent of the Portage and Chemung of the New York geologist.

It is a nearly homogeneous mass of soft bluish grey shale, with occasional bands of
calcareous sandstone, generally fossiliferous. carrying also lenticular concretion of blue
iron stone.

It is exposed in the valley of the Cuyvahoga at and below Peninsula, and in the ravines
formed by the tributary streams.

Aboveitisthe CLEVELAND SHALE, a black, highly bituminous shale, resisting erosion, and
with the easily eroded Erie shale below, producing a cascade or water-fall in the stream pass-
ing over it.  Its geological age is in dispute. Prof. Orton makes it the upper member of
the Devonian: Prof. Newberry, Prof. Claypole and others, who have carefully studied its
various exposures in north-eastern Ohio, regard it as the lower member of the Waverly, or
sub-carboniferous, The ‘estimony of the few molluscous fossils found in it is in favor of the
latter classification. It has become noted from the remains of remarkable fishes discovered
in it in neighboring counties, mainly described by Prof. Newberry in the Ohio reports and
in Volume XVI. of the Monographs of the U. 8. Geological Survey. Tt is finely exposed in
the bluffs of the Cuyahoga and of the streams emptying into it below Peninsu'a.

In the remote future when the supply of natural gas and petroleum fail and we com-
menee economizing in the use of coal. this and other similar shales will be used for the
production of gas and petroleum by distillation. unless natural electricity and superfluous
sun-light are utilized for light and heat.

‘The next in the ascending series is the BEDroORD SHALE so nam .d from the fine exposure
at the gorge near Bedford, Cuyahoga County.

Tt is in this county more argillaceous than in Cuyahoga, but has thin bands of sand-
stone which can be used for flagging. It also is only exposed in the valley of the Cuyahoga
and in its northern tributaries. '

Next in the series is THE BEREA SaNpsroNe which comes to the surface in the Cuya-
bhoga Vallev near the south line of

burg parts of it are colored red by the oxide of iron, and from these places a large amount
of handsome stone has been taken.

It is a strong and durable rock and furnishes the largest part of the bridge and founda-
tion stone used in the county. False bedding in places detracts from its value, but there
are abundances of outcropping bluffs where it is evenly bedded and can be quarried with
little or no stripping, and sufficient to supply all the wants of the future.
about one hundred feet thick.

Its outcrop limits the northern possible existence of coal, and its character should be
carefully studied by the prospectors for coal. It was a shore deposit and frequently extends
but a little distance under the coal-bearing rocks, so that the Cuvahoga shale is often the
bottont rock in the northern part of the coal fields.

The southern part of the county, embracing the townships of Franklin and Green, the
most of Norton, Springfield and Tallmadge, the south half of Coventry and the south-west
corner of Copley, is covered by the coal measure rocks, with Sherbondy hill an outlier of
these rocks in the north-west of Coventry. They carry in the county four distinct seams of
coal, with an interval of from 150 to zoo feet between the upper and lower bed. The lower
coal, No. 1 of the Ohio reports, and the equivalent of the famous Briar Hill Coal of the
Mahoning Valley has been largely mined in the county, and has been an important factor
in the phenomenal development of the city of Akron.

Itis onan average

From one of the mines near Cnyahoga Falls was taken the first coal shipped to Cleve-
land, and the county has contributed largely to Cleveland's supply of fuel. The known
deposits of this coal are now nearly exhausted, yet, notwithstanding the persevering explora-
tions already made, it is by no means certain that all the workable coal has been discovered.
The coal was originally deposited in irregular shaped basins, substantially like the swamps
which cover many parts of the surface. A drill hole may pierce coal of a workable thick-
ness at a comparatively short distance from one that disclosed none, and it is highly proba-
ble that other valuable mines will be opened, as the fruit of further explorations. Its placeis
about twenty-five feet above the conglomerate or of the Cuyahoga Shale where the con-
glomerate is wanting.

Coar No. z is of no value in the county, and of but little value in any partof the State.

Coar No. 3 which has an out-

Boston township, rising gradually
to the north until in Northfield
township it outcrops on the high
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tand about one and a half miles
from the river. :
It is extensively quarried at
Peninsula, and there is also a
large quarry near the south-east
There
is a precipitous fall over this rock
at Brandywine, and it appears in

part of Boston Township.

precipitous bluffs in  the ravine
below the Falls. At places its
outcrop is covered by the soil,
but proper search will discover it
on Dboth sides of the river from
the point where it first rises above

the surface to the north line of
the county.

[t is not as homogeneous in
color as at Amherst but is harder,
can be quarried in very large
blocks, and at Wood’s quarry, Peninsula, can Le taken out in any quantity desired of a
uniform gray or white color constituting an admirable b ilding stone,

The lower part of this quarry from its extreme hardness and sharp grit furnishes a rock
especially adapted for mill-stones, in the manufacture of oat meal, and has been extensively
used for this purpose.

The amount of this rock easily quarried and with little stripping is practically inex-
haustible and will ultimately become a source of great wealth to the county. Itis capped
by a thin bed of black bituminous shale of no value except as a geological landmark easily
traced through the State to the Ohio River.

Next above is the Cuvanoca SHaLe finely exposed in the bluffs of the river below the
Cuyahoga Falls,,

[t is mainly composed of soft argillaceous shale, but near the middle is a bed of very
hard fine-grained sandstone which resists erosion and abrasion, and forms what is called
the ¢ Big Falls "*in the river.  This would furnish good waterial for block pavement of
streets or broken up in rock crashers for macadamized roads.  This bel rises gradually to
the top of the bluff and is found at Little York and in other places in the north part of the
county at some distance from the river.

Near the top of this shale below Cuyahoga Falls is a bed of impure limestone, making
a fair cement, and which was quarried for this use by the builders of the Ohio Canal. It
passes into a thin band of highly fossiliferous limestone from which many interesting fossils
have been gathered in Richfield and in other places in the State. In the gorge bhelow Cuya-
hoga Falls some fine specimens of the curious fossil plant the Spirgphyson, have been found
and an abundance of Cone-in-Cone, which was for a long time a puzzle to paleontologists,
but which is evidently a semi-crystallization of elay and not organic.

Tre Carsoxirerours CoNcLoMERATE lies above the Cuyahoga shale and is the most con-
spicuous rock formation in the county. It is the surface rock of Twinsburg, Hudson and
Stow, of the eastern part of Boston, the western part of Richfield, the larger part of Bath,
Northampton, Copley and Portage,and of parts of Tallinadge, Springfield, Coventry and Norton

It is a coarse, massive sandstone frequently containing large quantities of rounded
white quartz pebbles, and at the base angular fragments of a variety of rocks. It is gener-
ally of a veliowish color but at Wolf's quarry near Akron, at Cuyahoga Falls and at Twins-

AMERICAN STRAWBOARD WORKES, BARBERTON, OHIO.

crop near Mogadore is thin but
thickens up somewhat at the

south.  Its value consists in the
under clay, and in the limestone
above the coal. The under clays
of all the coals are valuable for
coarse pottery and sewer pipe but
that under No. 3 is most largely
developed. Boring.for coal No.
t should be carried not less than
rho feet below this coal, unless
“*Dbottom rock ™ is clearly recog-
nized  before that

reached,

depth s

CoarL No. 4 is from 235 to 4o
feet above No. 3 and is found
only in the south-east part of the
county. It is in two benches
separated by hard shale which
detracts from its value. It is
valuable only for local consump-
tion. The limestone above this
and coal No. 3 both carry iron ure, but not in sutficient quantity to be valuable. These lime-
stones are used for quicklime and would furnish excellent material for macadamized roads.

The surface of the county is greatly diversified and its present form is the result of
three distinet agencies. )

First. Preglacial surface erosion, while the land was more elevated than now, which was
continued until canyons were excavated to a depth equal at least to the distance from the top
of our highest hills to a point from 150 to 200 feet below the present bed of the Cuyahoga.

During the progress of this work the rocks were disintegrated, a soil formed and the
surface clothed with forests,

The Cuyahoga River below its junction with the Little Cuyahoga now occupies one of
those preglacial channels. At one time during its excavation the ancient river poured in a
magnificent cataract over the Cleveland shale into an abyss at least 150 feet deep, eroded in
the Erie shale. Farther up the system a cataract of 100 feet in depth marked the outcrop
of the Berea sandstone, while that which poured over the conglomerate still further up the
stream was 200 feet in depth. The excavating power of this un-named river shows that it
was a stream of no mean proportions and that the scenery which the geologist can repro-
duce, but which no human eye has seen, was of unrivalled magnificence, rebuking the weak
vanity of man which assumes that all the beauties of nature were created for his eye alone.

Second.  The invasion of the territory by the vast glacier of the north which came
loaded with the debris of all the rocks of the north, swept away the crags left by aerial
erosion, crushed and pulverized the surface rocks, swept away all the vegetation, filled the
bottom of the old canyons, widened out their upper parts into valleys, spreading out over the
surface a thick deposit composed of the debris of all the local rocks and of all found in the
path of the glacier.

The surface of the north part of the county is still covered with this typical unmodified
clay drift, somewhat difficult of tillage, but containing all the mineral ingredients needed
for permanent fertility. In the southern and central parts of the county the waters, escaping
from the retreating glacier,wash=d out the argillaceous parts,assorted the material and left a
billowy surface of a more sandy soil, more easily tilled, less rich in mineral ingredients.
Upun the retreat of the glacier, lakes and lakelets marked the irregular lines of the old
canyons.
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Third. Post Glacial Erosion. After the retreat of the glacier, new lines of surface
drainage were established, the streams sometimes following the lines of the old canyons, as
in the lower Cuyahoga, with its mud bottom, sometimes cutting new channels through the
rock as in the same river at Cuyahoga Falls, the extent of the excavation there giving us some
idea of the length of post glacial time.

The changes in the lakes left by the glacier have been remarkable, some of the shallower

ones were soon drained by the deepening of their outlets, all were slowly silted up by the
wash from the hills the renewed vegetation encroached upon their borders, through which
the wash sifted, depositing in the center finely washed clay, the peaty vegetation extended
antil from these two causes the lakes were converted into swamps in which the debris of the
vegetation still accumulated until the surface was fitted for the growth of forests. In some
of them were swamps of molluscous animals whose shells gradually accumulated filling the
bottom with fine shell marls. In a small swamp in Stow, near Darrow street, this mari,
composed almost entirely of the shells of a Planordis, is over ten feet in thickness. These
deposits of clay will soon be utilized in the manufacture of pottery and sewer pipe, as they
are thoroughly washed, very plastic and will need no grinding.

The peat covering the clay, as a fertilizer of the uplands, will pay for the cost of strip-
ping. The marl will be utilized for various purposes, and these deposits, now neglected,
will ultimately add largely to the wealth of the county. In some of the swamps the peat is
very thick and this will ultimately be used as a fuel. It could now be profitably used in
connection with the clay in sewer pipe manufactories, located on the margin of the s“"ampsf

SOIL OF SUMMIT COUNTY.

BY JOHN W. SEWARD, EX-COUNTY SURVEYOR.

The soil in Summit County is somewhat varied. In the northern part the soil derived
from the drift contains a great quantity of clay, everywhere undoubtedly underlaid by con-
glomerate, consequently  Northfield, '
Twinsburg, Hudson etc., are dairy
towns. The southern half of the county
has a loam soil, hence, until recently,
the attention of the farmer has been
given more to grain growing than to
stock raising.

The difference of soil was easily
discern.ed by the original vegetable

growth. In Hudson and Twinsburg
the forests consisted principally  of
beech, maple, basswood and elm; in
S+ow, Tallmadge and southward, the
oak predominates. There is a decid-
edly gravelly soil in Franklin and
Green; the original timber was oak.
These townships belong to the famous
wheat growing district of  Wayne,
Stark, ctc. Between Akron and Cuya-
hoga Lalls there are a few thousand’
which pre-

3

acres called ““The Plains,’
sented quite a contrast to the surface
of* the country about. It resembled
the prairies of the West, being almost
destitute of timber, and covered with
grass, flowers and scrub-oak. The
peculiar features may be traced - to the
nature of the substructure of the dis-
trict., This district lies between the
two branches of the Cuyahoga and the coal hills of Tallmadge, The soil is sandy, and
underlaid with beds of gravel. It-seems that this district was at one time a lake, the waters
of which deposited the sand which forms the soil, and in its deeper portions, a series of
lacustrine clays. Reference to crop, statistical, and other tables found herein will enable
the reader to more fully understand the soil of Summit County.

+tAKRON.

The township of Akron is largely taken up by the city. The balance of the improved
lands are in small parcels and cultivated as vegetable gardens. The soil is good, the sur-
face of the northern part is quite broken by the valley of the Little Cuyahoga and is a warm
sandy loam. the most of the township, however, is a clay loam.

BATH.

The greater part of Bath township is extremely rough and irregular.  The principal
stream is Yellow Creek.  The surface soil is largely clay, and so mingled with pebbles in
many places as to render cultivation unpleasant and difficult, and is better adapted to graz-
ing than grain. The portions most valued by the agriculturist, are in the basin-like portions
of the township where the soil contains decayed vegetation there being less waste land than
many of the other townships. This is one of the two townships that has no railroads
within its borders as yet.

The township contains 14,898 acres of land of which the average tax value is $23.90
and with buildings $28.63.

‘The leading products are wheat, oats, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk, cheese, butter
and maple sugar. '

BOSTON.

The Cuyahoga River passes in a zigzag course through the township from north to
south. Along the adjacent valley which varies in width from a few rods to a mile, are
frequent bogs and marshes and decayed vegetable matter. ‘The soil on the river bottom is

.

very productive. The upland affords excellent pasturage, the side hills being left to timber
and brush. The timber is mostly oak. Very valuable quarries of sandstone are in this
township.

The productions mainly consist of wheat, rye, oats, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk,
butter and cheese. Four thousand three hundred and eleven acres are arable lands out of
a total acreage of 14,094, the average tax value of which is $18.55 without and $23.03 with
buildings. ’

COPLEY.

Copley has extensive swamps in the eastern portion which efforts are being made to
reclaim. The upland generally is good for grass and grain. The timber is principally oak
with some whitewood and chestnut on the upland. There was formerly considerable pine
timber in the swamps but it is now mostly cut down and sawed into lumber.

The soil is partly gravel and partly clay loam with some heavy clay.

Never-failing springs are abundant. Very few farms that do not have a variety of
soil.  Coal is mined in the south-west part of the township, and there are some good stone
quarries in the western part.

The long slopes of land in Copley township render it one of the most beautiful town-
ships in the county. The valleys have a gradual ascent, seldom reaching an altitude of
over eighty feet. The eastern and southern portions are somewhat rough. The drainage
from Wolf, Pigeon and Shocalog creeks makes the land in many cases swampy and in early
days must have been gvreat bodies of muck and water.

The principal products consist of wheat, oats, barley, corn, hay, clover, potatoes,
buckwheat, milk, butter, cheese and maple sugar. ' .

Total number of acres in Copley township is 13,516, of which 6,376 are arable, with
an average tax value of $28.64 per acre without buildings and $34.07 with them.

\ COVENTRY.

The surface outline of Coventry township presents as great a variety as could
’ well be found on so small an area. 'The
Tuscarawas, with its many tributaries,
passes in a winding course through the
southern part of the township. A fair
system of drainageis formed by the lakes,

creeks and the Tuscarawas.

The soil is generally fertile and quite
free from waste lands, except some low
land in the natural depression in ‘which
the township is located. There is some
swamp land which will be difficult to be
reclaimed on account of the canal.

This is what is called a grsin township.
The soil, except in the swamps, is mostly

of a gravelly nature and better adapted to
raising of grain than pasturing, the south-
ern part being considered the best wheat
land in the Western Reserve. The
northern part of the township is better
adapted to husbandry and stock raising,
as the soil is more inclined to clay. By
examining the old channel of the Cuya-
hoga, one finds the surface to be of drift
origin underlaid by the carboniferous
formation in full. The coal measures are
overlaid with shale, while above this is
sand rock.

Peat bogs, from 3o to 4o feet in depth,
are found here. This article, when dried,
makes a valuable fuel, and is a most excellent fertilizer, of great value to the intelligent
farmer. Shell marl, one of the most valuable fertilizers in the market, is found here.
13,307 acres out of a total of 106,740 are arable, and produce wheat, oats, corn, hay,
clover, potatoes, milk and butter. The average tax valuation of land per acre is $52.90
without and $63.41 with buildings, :

CUYAHOGA FALLS.

Cuyahoga Falls is a small township formed of parts of original townships of Tall-
madge, Stow, Northampton and Portage.

The Cuyahoga River runs through the township from north-east to south-west, with a
fall of over a hundred feet within its borders, furnishing valuable water power which is
mostly improved. The lower portion of the river is through a narrow deep canyon in
which are many very romantic sights and places.

The soil is of a clayey nature and produces good crops with careful tillage. The
timber is mostly oak. The products consist of wheat, oats, corn, hay, potatoes and milk.

FRANKLIN.

Franklin is a grain township. The soil, though lying flat and to a certain extent very
wet, is rich with decaying vegetable remains, and is exceedingly fertile. The surface is
somewhat irregular though comparatively level. The Tuscarawas river runs through the
township from north to south with the Ohio Canal and the C., A. & C. R. R. along its
western bank., There are some swamps along the southern borders of the township, and
Turkey Foot Lake {s in the north-east section. Some portion of the depressed portions con-
tain peat, and a considerable portion of bog iron ore. There are extensive beds of bitu-

minous coal which are being extensively mined, the output of which is practically inex--

haustible.
I'he staple products are wheat, rye, buckwheat, oats, corn, hay; clover, potatoes,
tobacco and hutter,
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There are 10,995 acres of arable land out of a total of 16,525, with an average tax

valuation of $32.72 per acre without buildings or $38 with them.
GREEN,

Green township ranks, with Springfield and Franklin, among the richest agricultural
townships in the State.  The soil is a gravelly loam, very fertile, and well adapted to farm-
ing. 'The principal timber'is oak. There are some swamps along the eastern border which
have been reclaimed, and it is claimed they are superior to the celebrated Kalamazoo
swamps for raising celery.

"T'here are some mines of coal and quarries of limestone,

The principal products are wheat, oats, barley, corn, ha

The average tax value of landis $30.64 without and $
Out of 20,952 acres, 15,597 are arable lands.

HUDSON.

The soil in the lowlands and the western part is largely black muck, rich, but saturated
with moisture and liable to frosts. The surface in the eastern part is rolling and there is a
variety of clay varying from a stiff stubborn clay to a clay loam. The clay predominates
in the south and north-eastern part. This is a dairy township. The soil being more affected
by both wetand dry weather and while good crops of wheat and other grain are raised, it
requires more skill and labor than in some of the southern townships of the county, and
there are more frequent failures. In the south-western part are considerable swamps which,
wherever reclaimed, produce very abundant crops of corn and grass. Timber is largely
beech. and maple, and. there are numerous good sugar camps in the township.

There are 4,175 acres under cultivation, the products being wheat, rye, oats, corn, hay,
clover, potatoes, cheese and maple sugar; 15,122 acres are in the township, tax value
averaging $28.09 with and $22.26 without the buildings.

v, clover, potatoes and butter.
38.05 with buildings, per acre.

NORTHAMPTON.

The surface of Northampton township is gently rolling or level in the eastern part, but
in the western part it is very broken and hilly.  The Cuvahoga river flows through the
township from north to south. The soil
along the valley is exceedingly rich and fer-
tile, and produces very abundant crops, but
some of the uplands are sterile, the most of
it being considered better adapted to stock
raising than to grain.  The products consist
of wheat, rye, oats, corn, hay, clover, butter
and cheese.

The arable surface of this township is
6,462 acres out of a total of 14,462, with a
tax valuation of $rg per acre without and
$23.05 with buildings.

NORTHIFIELD.

Northfield township was classed by the
examining committee as one of the finest in
the Western Reserve. It has but little waste
land, contains less clay and more organic
remains than almost any other portion of the
county  The river on the west and its tribu-
taries afford the principal drainage.

The valley of the Cuvahoga on the east
side is sloping and well drained. The
blufis bordering on the valley afford fine
pasture lands.  Back of the hills lies as fine
land for the farmer as can be found anywhere.
The soil is practically alluvial, with an unu-
sual amount of decayed vegetable matter.

The products consist of wheat, oats, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk, butter, cheese
and maple sugar.  The average value of land is $30.94 with and $24.02 without buildings.
5,597 out of 15,368 acres being under cultivation.

NORTON.

Norton township is drained by Wolf Creek and its tributaries. This township presents
a variety of soil which is generally good, and the farmers are as prosperous as any in- the
county. An effort is being made to drain the swampy lands in the eastern part of the
township.

The extreme eastern portion is inclined toward a sandy loam. The land contiguons to
“Wolf Creek is of a loamy, mucky nature and decayed vegetable matter, of which it is
argely composed. West and south-west of Wolf Creek the soil contains more clay, but
Imingled with gravel and loam in such guantities as to make the best of soil for agricultural
purposes. With the exception of the southern half of the Wolf Creek bottoms and a por-
ticn of swamp lying partly in this township and partly in Copley, there is sufficient drainage
in all parts of Norton, Agriculture is the chief occupation of the people.

The products consist of wheat, rye, oats, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, tobacco, milk
and ‘butter.

The average tax value of lands in Norton is $51.41 with and $33.27 without buildings ;
11,032 acres out of 14,495 are arable lands.

PORTAGE.

From the original township of Portage has been taken a large share of Akron and part
of Cuyahoga Falls, leaving only about four-fifths of the original township. The soil of the
western part is of a clayey nature bearing good crops but requiring thorough culture. The
north-east part is more of a sandy nature and bears good crops.

The products ‘consist mainly of wheat, oats, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk and
butter.

BOWEN SCHOOL, BROADWAY, AKRON, OHI,

Total number of acres 11,723, of which 7,683 are under caltivation. The average tax
valuation being $50.0¢9 per acre without buildings or $66.20 with them.
Muchof the land is used for suburban homes, truck patches and small fruits.
RICHFIELD.
While in some parts of Richfield township the surface is broken and hilly, in general it
presents a rolling and undulating surface, and is one of the best firming townships in the

~county. Ithas a rich and fertile soil consisting of gravelly loam with a clay snbsoil, and i<

well adapted for grain or grass, its high elevation making it a first-class township. The
extreme altitude of this township is about 8co feet above Lake Erie, and 1,365 feet above
tide water at New York.

The products are wheat, vats, corn, hay, clover, butter and maple sugar. Out of
14,660 acres 8,673 are arable, with an average tax value of $25.59 with and $22.25 without
buildings. ‘

SPRINGFIELD.

The surface of Springfield township is rolling. It is drained in the ncrthern part by
the Lirtle Cuyahoga river, in the southern part by the Tuscarawas and its tributaries, ¢nd a
number of little lakelets. In the center of the township is a lake covering several hundred
acres which is used as a reservoir for the mills in Akron.  There is but little waste land in
this township.

In the eastern part are extensive beds of potter’s clay.

The soil is a rich sandy loam which makes Springfield one of the best wheat pro-
ducing townships.  Stock raising is not made a specialty of though it receives some attention.

The principal products consist of wheat, oats, barley, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk
and butter.  Of the 16,475 acres, 10,552 are under cultivation with an average tax value ot
$46.17 with ard $36. 11 without buildings.

ST OW,

Though the greater part of Stow is rolling, yet there is quite a large tract i'n the center
which is comparatively level,  While the soil is largely clay, it has enough alluvial to
produce abundant crops of all kinds.  About
the lakes and the depressed portions, the
earth is mixed with decayed vegetation, a
large part of which having been washed iu
by past inundations.  Stow is considered
dairy township, but there are fine crops of
wheat and other grains raised and some of
the most productive orchards in the county
are within its limits. About one square of
the original township is now within the limits
of Cuyahoga Falls.

Though some portions are too flat and
low to be cultivated, these portions need
only to be ditched and drained (which will
be done in the course of time), to make
them ready for cultivation.  There arc
immense quantities of sandstone in this
township. The products consist mainly of
wheat, oats, corn, hay, clover, milk, butter,
cheese and maple sugar.

Stow has 14,003 acres with 7,541 under
cultivation, and 'an average tax value of
$24.71 per acre without buildings and $31.67
with them.

TALLMADGLEL

The land in Tallmadge township is rolling
and somewhat elevated, the highest point
rising to a height of 636 feet above the level of Lake Erie.  The soil is a Iight loam and in
some places sandy. It is well adapted to grass and grain.  The drainage is all into the
Cuyahoga river.

This township has been shorn of about two square miles of its territory in making
Cuyahoga Falls township, and about one square mile by Akron.

The township is on the dividing line between the grain and dairy sections of the county
and is well adapted to both.

There is but very little waste land in the township.

The principal products are wheat, rve, oats, barley, corn, hay, clover, potatoes, milk,
butter and cheese.

Total number of acres in Tullmadge 11,020 acres with 6,756 acres of cultivated lands
and an average tax value of $29.8¢ per acre without and $37. 10 with buildings.

TWINSBURG.

‘This township is well watered and drained. It is drained almost entirely by Tinker's
Creek which enters near the south-east corner and flows north-west leaving the township one
mile east of the north-west corner. The soil is almost destitute of clay, consisting mostiy
of a dark loam which contains a large proportion of decayed vegetable material.  Good
crops are produced though not so easily worked as other parts of the county.  The north-
cast is quite low and level. In some places quite swampy, in a few places a hard clayey
soil, in others muck to quite a depth.  "The north and north-west portions are considerably
gravelly with a gravelly loam and clay. '

There is plenty of the best of water. ‘I'imber consists of whitewood, oak, ash,.basswouod,
beech, hickory, maple and ehn.  There are numerous quarries of sandstone which can be
quarried of any size desired. ‘The products are wheat, cats, corn, hay, clover, milk,
butter, cheese and maple sugar.

Out of 15,900 acres 2,464 are under cultivation, and there is an average tax valuation
of $20 per acre without buildings and 828,80 with,
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EDUCATION IN SUMMIT COUNTY.

AKRON STUDENTS AND AKRON SCHOOLS.

N e State of Ohio has bestowel the benefits of public education on all classes of her
citizens, and her. youth may extend their studies in the common schools until they are pre-
pared to enter callege work.

. ixperience has taught us that public education pays, and that money invested in good
sc_:h(.mls.unfa lingly produces an abundant harvest of all those elements which are necessary to
the lasting prosperity of the commonwealth., The history of the world does not present an
example of g pPeople more devoted to public education than the citizens of Ohio, who
um}ually spend over ten millions of dollars (of which over seven-tenths is raised by volun-
tarily immposed local taxes), in the support of common schools, and our people are too

practical in business matters to spend their money in obtaining what is not valuable to them.

Here the youth are tanght the virtues of industry, honesty, and economy so valuable to.

their possessor in the world of affairs.  Here are taught the lessons of patriotism and respect
for all properly constitutec authority, and here also are taught religious principles which
are generally coansidered  essential to right living. With the home protected and per-
petuated, and the school established and improved, the prosperity of our great common-
wealth is assured by raising the standard of ability and lessening crime. We can afford to
be third in area, or third in population, but we should be first in the efficiency of our public
schools, by which our intelligence will be estimated by the world, and, as the present system
origihated in our own county and city we may be pardoned for the pride we take in
enlarging “ipon the history of Akronschools, and the causes which brought about the present
contlition of educational affairs in Akron.

15t I.zgislation. 2nd. Early Schools.

ard, Akron School T.aws, 4th. The Board of Education.
sth, School Districts and Buildings. 6th. Course of Study.

7th. Supearintendents antd Teachers. 8th Children of the Schools.

The schools outsidle of Akron are taken up in the several township school histories fol-
lowing and furnish further information regarding educational affairs in Summit county.

T.IGIST.ATION.
The first immigrants came from the
older states to the Ohio Valley in1788.

[n 1800 the population was 45,305
In 1840 it reached 1,519,467 being the

third in rank, which peosition it has
maintained at each succeeding decen-

nial census. The organic laws in the
Ordinance of 1787, the constitution of
180z and that of 1851 provide, to a
greater or less extent, for free public
schools, reserving one section in each
township for the maintenance of public
townships. Surely
could be

schools  in such
no greater inducement
n('[crc‘(.l to immigrants than the endow-
me t of schools in every FU\\'11511i1) for
there could be no more solid basis for
(he structure of good citizens 1}1:‘1[1
ality and intelligence, On
the adimission of Ohio to the U'I}i()n one
thirty-sixth part of the -publlc lands
, aside for the maintenance of
public schools, the title being \'Csted.in
the State, so - that ever): _chlld .
educated in the public school lst in a peculiar manner a beneficiary of the Union.
1828 these lands were leased and the rentals applied to the education of the youth.
absolute

religion, mor

was set
JENNINGS SCHOOL, CORNER

Up to
From

hen until  nOW, sales have been made, and 823 distinct funds are held

in trust by the State for the use of common schools, They are called the irreducible fund.

I'his, with distrihutz‘tble SCI"_‘T’”IItf]Altl(F,’lft-)rllls the basis for the support.of the public schools.
I'he school distric; is t‘hf: ?“1‘1}’(;:'tlunént of the common school system of Ohio; its for-
ation was the first th lng'l'lt} ‘jv;“l“ 1‘<‘m 1}‘”' tl‘xe 'purpose of organizing the common schools.
In 1821 the first law 1'eg;11(”ln;.’n‘ Lh:"-;ll“l was .P'KISSe.d by the Legislature, although its pro-
visions were rendere‘d ‘““aa My by the option given to the electors in the several town-
ships to give th‘elll Eft‘jcr; «lied by an amendment o

In 1825 this was retmne ; 1ent making it compulsory on the part of the

iy to divide it into school districty
es of a townshil '
trustees of 2

EARLY SCHoOOLS.

-vpship was divided i - _— - .
I 1835 Portage tow nfvh;.l ‘ l‘ ided into seven school districts. The public schools
-2 . i district No. oy oo i .
were included in ¢istn tXo. 7 and in an old-faghioned 16 x 18 log school house,

P Akron it COTNE e Ned:
of Ak north-west corner of the Medina anq Portage roads (opposite the north-

) : the -

sitnated on S rESe Infirmary farmy. + . . s . .

situd Lemer of the l)lﬁht?f 1 II‘)“-;\ farm), the children living in the section now
rest COl Srosby erking 1 : C :
ve d by parts of the 1 5'" W ns, and Grace schools received their instruction
sovere yo Tarch, 1839. Akron was divided \ .
‘””"; rudiments In Marceh. 1859, Akron was divided into the North and South districts,
in the :

= anty, candi fates f cachi ] : :
Portage connty, o t or teaching had to go to Ravenna for examination

ceasonably proficient i 1 . . . .
ved reasonabiy ] ent I reading, writing and arithmetic, and paid the

-five cents, wer ;
geventy o ere fortunate to secure employment at from ten to
1, and boarded round.

andl, being in
and, having
certification f

jollars a montl S ddition (6 this « The average attendance in this district at that
twelve ¢ bout thirty: In addition to this ?ChOOL taught by S A. Lane, there were schools
time was a-g settlements the t.whc.rbfnuly neighborhoog, and the Old Forge In the North
in thf‘) ft}:{;:e was no geparate building for use as public school house, the nearest approach
distrnc :
R -

MILL AND SUMMIT, AKRON, OIITOQ.

to it being a small frame house for a selectschool, on Main street near Market, back of the
Congregational church. In the South district there was a small frame school house on the
north-east corner of Broadway and Middlebury street (now Buchtel Avenue) which was
afterwards replaced by a one-story stone building and known as the South Akron school
house. It was the only place in the neighborhood in which public meetings could be held.
This building is still standing and used as a dwelling house, being abandoned for school
purposes when the Howe school was occupied in 1884. The proportion of the public money
for the payment of teachers was so small that, rather than make up their pro rata of the
deficiency, most parents preferred sending their children to private schools. Among
the earlier schools and teachers were Miss Sarah Carpenter, Miss Amanda Blodgett, Nahum
Fay, Miss Emily Cummings, a Young Ladies’ school, by M. and A. C. Joyce in South
Akron; the *¢ Akron Select Schonl,” by Miss Susan E. Dodge. In 1837, Miss B. M. Hawkins
advertised that she would continue her ¢ Akron High School” in North Akron during the
winter term of twelve weeks. In the spring of 1837, ““Akron High School No. 2” appears as
a candidate for public patronage, with a regularly organized board of trustees, president,
vice president, secretary and treasurer and under the managernent of Mr. S. L. Sawtell;
this appears to have died out in the fall of 1838. Miss M. E. Hubbell, in the winter of
1837—8, advertised the opening of the «* Akron Female Seminary ” on the corner of Middle-
bury and High streets in South Akron. In 1844, Mr. Thomas P. Beach established a ¢ High
School” in a frame building near the corner of Summit and Mill streets; this continned until
his deathin 1846. Tebruary roth, 1845, a charter was granted by the L :gislature for the
«Akron Institute’ with power to confer degrees, the corporators being Simon Perkins.
Eliakim Crosby, Edwin Angel, Henry W. King, James R. Lord, L. V. Bierce and Samuel '
A.Wheeler. The last meution of this was a stockholders’ meeting in October, 1846, atwhich
Simon Perkins was elected president; H. W. King, secretary, and Richard Howe, treasurer.
Thus we have the early schools and legislation by the State which may be summarized as
follows, each statute initiating a new era in school history: 1st. The laws of 1821, providing
a way in which people might unite in building school houses and employing teachers, by the
formation of school districts; this law was entirely permissive. =znd. The law of 1335,
mandatory from the beginning to the end; thus shall it be and such shall be the penalty for
neglect.  This was the first law which levied a tax upon the principle that the property of
srd. The law of 1838, the characteristic of which
was organization, and, ' 4th. The law
of 1853, entitled ‘‘an act to provide
for the reorganization, supervision, and

all must help pay for popular education.

maintenance of common schools,” and
which established the rule that the
property of the State must pay all the
expense of public education. The
school law of Ohio, as it exists to-day,
is the result of more than half a century
of slow growth and careful experi-
ments. Up to 1846, the growth of the
public school system was very slow in
Akron. By reason of the disproportion
of Akron's quota of the State School
Fund to the number of children to be

educated, and each parent being
required to pay his pro rata of the
teacher’s salary, in excess of the

amount received from the State, the
attendance in 1845 was only about
fifty per cent. of the enrollment of
children of school age.
us to a marked era, not only in the
history of Akron schools, but of edu-
cation throughout the State, the con-
ception of the

This brings

AKRON SCHOOIL LAW.

As early as 1840, Ansel Miller, for many years a trustee in the South Akron School
district, realizing the many defects of the old common school system, began to advocate the
plan of educating all the children of the people at the public expense and the classifica-
tion of schools into distinct grades according to advancement. He was warmly seconded in
his views by many, both in the North and South villages, but found opposed to him many
wealthy property owners and large taxpayers, who, not having any children of their own to send
to the schools, thought that each parent should provide for the education of his own chil-
dren. For many years the question of adopting the Plan was agitated, until, at last,
May 14, 1846, a public meeting was held and a committee appointed to take into con-
sideration educational provisions, and the improvement, if any, which might be
made therein.. For over six months this committee, of which the Rev. Isaac Jennings,
pastor of the Congregational church, was chairman, studied the subject placed in their
hands for consideration, and, November 21st, 1846, at another public meeting, held for
that purpose, submitted an exhaustive report of over five thousand words setting forth the
defects of existing systems and the advantages of the proposed changes, securing an
enlarged scope of studies, with greater uniformity. It wassuch a good, sound, business-like
document, so clear in its statements, definite inits recommendations, and just and reasonable
in its views, that it received the unanimous approval of the citizens present at its reading,
and Rufus P. Spaulding, Henry W. King, Harvey B. Spelman, and Lucius V. Bierce
were appointed as a committee to secure the necessary legislation. Messrs. Spaulding and
King, as president and secretury of the committee, embodied the substance of the first
committee’s plan in a bill, which was enacted into a law, February 8, 1847. 'The plan
submitted by the first committee was: 1st. Let the whole village be incorporated into one
school district. 2nd. T.et there be established six primary schools in different parts of the
village, so as best to accommodale the whole. 3rd. Letthere be one Grammar School cen-
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trally located, where instruction may be given on the various studies and parts of studies
not provided for in the primary schools, and yet requisite to a respectable education. gth,
Let there be gratuitous admission to each school in the system for the children of residents,
with the following restrictions, viz:—No pupil shall be admitted to the Grammar School,
who fails to sustain a thorough examination in the studies of the primary school; and the
teacher shall have power, with the advice and direction of the superintendents, to exclude
for miscomluct in extreme cases, and to classify the pupils as the best good of the schools
may seem to require. sth. The expense of establishing and sustaining this system of schools
shall be thus provided for:—r. By appropriating what public school money the inhab-
itants of the village are entitled to and what other funds or property may be at the disposal
of the board for this purpose ; and 2. a tax to be levied by the common council upon the
taxable property of this village for the balance. 6th. ILet six superintendents be chosen by
the common council, who shall be charged with perfecting the system thus generally defined,
the bringing of it into, and the control of it when brought into operation. Let the six
superintendents be so chosen that the term of office of two of them shall expire each vear.
The plan was adopted by the Legislature as ¢an act for the support and better regulation
of the common schools of the town of Akron.” The impetus which this law gave to the
advancement of popular education in Ohjo, as the first in which the principle of free graded
schools was embodied, was so great that it was but a step from that to the law of 1853,
and is substantially the schoollaw of Ohio to-day. It was divided into ten sections, and
provided for the election of six directors, two each for one, two and three years, and the
annual election thereafter of two directors whose term of service should be three years.
It gave this board of education full control of all the schools of the town, which, by a
urion of the several school districts into which it was divided, became a single district, and
authorized this board to establish in the district, six or more primary schools and a central
grammar school; to fix the terms of transfer from one grade to another; to make and
enforce all necessary rules and regulations for the government of teachers and pupils ; to
employ and pay teachers; to purchase books and apparatus; to select sites and erect build-
ings; to certify to the town council the amount of money necessary for school purposes ; to
appoint thrée persons to act as examiners of teachers, and to appoint once each year public
examinations at such time as the board might deem fit. Section VII was amended in 1848
by limiting the tax to four mills on the dollar in any one

inconvenient, uncomfortable building the rent of which was donated ; private schools were
taught in rooms temporarily hired but very unsuited to the purpose, and a fair knowledge of
reading, writing, spelling, arithmetic, grammar and geography was considered a first-class
education.  One of the first acts of the new board was to divide the town into eight sub-dis-
tricts, and, true to the dictates of enlightened reason, their first thought was the establish-
ment of a central high school as a point of attraction and permanent interest. With that
end in view they purchased a pleasant lot of two and one-half acres on which the present
“Jennings School™ is located, at a cost of $2,137.31, fitting up the old one-story frame
building that was on the grounds, as a grammar school, at a cost of $0613.44, and engaged
M. D. Leggett as principal with Miss Lucretia Wolcott and Miss Helen Pomeroy as assistants,
at a total salary of 88350 per year. The work of this board from year to year would be inter-
esting but the limit of space compels brevity. The decade from 1817 to 1857 was a period
of organization and progress, and in 1857 grave doubts were entertained that Akron schools
did not sustain their relative rank in the State. The false economy of low wages had been
the rule, and acting on the conviction that low wages was not always the best economy, the
board took a new departure and, with more liberal views, paid for the best talent they could
procure. ‘The next decade showed the wisdom of this policy, and now Akron has no insti-
tution or interest so fostered and cherished as its schools.  The total amount expended for
the vear ending April 1st, 1848, was $2,979.10, including $1, 132.43 paid for teachers and
superintendents.  In 1846 the cost of instruction was $2,200 or $6.82 for each of the 373
pupils in attendance. In 1851 the average was $2 8o. In 1856 the pay roll was $2,777.42,
the salaries ranging from §4.75 a week to 365 a month. For the past twenty years the
average annual expense per pupil has ranged from $8.05 to$9.78 in the primary, from811.14
to $r5.18 in the grammar, and from $22. 30 to $38.17in the high; or an average of from $11.36
$15.20 in all departments, the details of which are given elsewere in statistical tables. Asg
near as can be ascertained the following have served as presidents of the Board since its
organization: General Lucius V. Bierce, six years: Judge James S. Carpenter, two years ;
Dr. Elias W. Howard, four years; Rev. 5. Williams, three years; Charles S. Bernard, two
years; Milton W. Henry, one year; Dr. I E. Carter, one year: Judge Stephen H. Pitkin,
four years; Dr. Wn. Bowen, one year; George W. Crouse, five years; Lewis Miller, five
years; Thomas McEbright, five years ; Col. George T. Perkins, one year; F. W. Rockwell,

two vears; A. H. Sargent, two vears: and the following

year. The Rev. Isaac Jennings was the father and
founder of the Akron public schools, and although many
friends of improvement in the system of education co-op-
erated with him in the work of reorganizing the schools,
yet whatever credit and distinction Akron may have
enjoyed for being the first to adopt the principle of free
graded schools is due to Mr. Jennings. The idea origin-
ated with him and, while others saw and felt the need
of improvement, it was in his practical and sagacious
mind, as chairman of the first cowmmittee, that the sub-
ject took form and proportion as an organic whole ; it
was he who, during the six months that the committee

labured, gathered statistics and presented them in such a
manner as to disarm all hostility and cause everyone to
be eager for the adoption of a plan so admirable in its
conception, so feasible in its workings and so flexible to
the needs of growth and enlargement, that, in its essential

constitute the Board for 189192 : E. F. Voris, president;
A, J. Weeks, treasurer; George C. Berry, clerk; First
ward, Johm McGregor, R. H. Wright; Second ward,
Gieorge C. Berry, Edwin T. Voris; Third ward, Lewis
Miller, W. A. Folger; Fourth ward, Louis Lauman, J. A.
Swinehart; Fifth ward, A. W. Hall, Angelo Andrew;
Sixth ward, Arthur J. Weeks, Joseph Cook: superintend-
ent of instruction, FElias Fraunfelter, For the first few
vears the principle of free graded schools was not clearly
recognized and many thought it a grievance to be taxed
to educate the children of others, and the earlier boards
were compelled to an economy of management that
would now be considered parsimonious. Buat once fairly

inaugurated, and our citizens awakened to the necessity
of better schools and more thorough system, and popular
pride was concentrated in their support.  Our best and
most intelligent citizens accepted positions on the board

features, it remains as it first took form on the statute LEGGETT SUHOOL, EAST THORNTON STREET, AKRON, OHIO. with the determination of placing them in the very front

books. The provisions of the law were gquickly grasped

by many educators throughout the State, and, in 1848, its provisions were extended to
every incorporated town or city in the State whenever two thirds of the qualified voters
favored such extension. In 1848-9 the # High" school was engrafted on the common
school system, not as an afterthought, but as a recognized necessity to the existence of
such a system. In 1853 the entire State was brought under a law substantially the same
as the Akron school law of 1846 and, while various laws have since been passed on the
subject by the Legislature, the general plan outlined by the first committee is the founda-
tion of them all and its main features have been adopted by many other States as the basis
for their educational legislation.  With these facts before themn the citizens of Akron may
well feel proud and erect a monument to the memory of Mr, Jennings b
to the oldest school building in the city.

y giving his name

P

THE BOARD OF LEDUCATION.

The first election under the Akron school law was held June rst, 1847, and the Board of
Education then elected consisted of Lucius V. Bierce, Harvey B. Spelman, Wm. H.
Dewey, Wm. M. Dodge, Juseph Cole and James Matthews, They organized by electing L.
V. Bierce, president; H. B. Spelman, secretary, and Wm. H. Dewey, treasurer. The
Common Council appointed James 8. Carpenter, Abel B, Berry and Horace K. Smith
examiners, and the new system was inaugurated. The board was a very able, energetic
and efficient one, composed of men who had labored faithfully to secure the passage of the
law and to them is lurgely due the eminent success of the Akron School Law. They
brought order out of chaos, and, so far as the means at their command would permit, they
accomplished the work they had set out to do, and put into practice what héretofore had
been but experimental theories.  The work of the board for the first year was mainly that
of arganization and was well done.  In it they had the very valuable assistance of Mortimer
D. Legge't, of Ithaca, New York, a ripe scholar and thorough disciplinarian, whao was
employed as superintendent of instruction and principal of the Grammar School ; and it is
probable that they builded better than they knew. Up to the spring of 1874 the board con-
sisted of six members elected by the city at large, two each year for a term of three vears
each. At that time the law was changed and it has since been composed of twelve mem-
bers, two from each ward, one each year for a term of two years. At the time the first
Board of Education was organized the entire town was denominated the “:Akron School
Distriet,” in which ter.itory in 1846 there were 6go children between the ages of 4 and 16,
of whom there was an average in all the schools, both public and private, of but 375. One
of the district schools was taught in the back room of a house, another in an uncouth,

rank with the Dest schools in the country. The present
condition of the schools in Akron has been the gradual development of a steady growth,
and, while like all good things, it has cost money and time, yet it has been money and
time well spent. Some idea of its value may be found in the following compilation of
expenditures which is complete so far as the figures can be obtained from the present
records.  For the vear ending April 1st, 1848, total expenses, $2,079.10; teachers’ salaries,
$1,132.43. DFrom April 1st, 1848, to Sept. 1st, 1868, the accessible records give no data from
which deductions can be made to complete a table which, no doubt, would be very inter-
esting for comparisons,

From Sept. 1st, 1868, to Sept. 1st, 1870, the total expenses, $72,003.79; teachers’ sal-
aries, $30,176.49; balance on hand, $5,837.64. TFrom Sept. 1st, 1870, to Sept. 1st, 1880,
total expenses, $530,429.80; teachers' salaries, $249,027.75; balance on hand, $268.64.
From Sept. 1st, 1880, to Sept. 1st, 1890, total expenses, §1,023,600.50; teachers’ salaries,
$406,80z2.41; balance on hand, $45,595.38. From Sept. 1st, 1890, to Sept. ist, 1891, total
expenses, $131,364.61; teachers’ salaries, $54,013.21; balance on hand, §36,781. 11, mak-
ing a grand total of $1,757,398.70, of which the teachers have received $7.40,019.86, as the
cost of educating the children of Akron during the last twenty-three years. To show what
has been done we take the schools as we now find them by

DISTRICTS AND BUILDINGS.

The present buildings are twelve in number, two central and ten primary or ward, and
when improvements now in progress have been completed, will contain 112 rooms with a
seating capacity of 543

The Akron school district is now divided, for school purposes, into ten sub-districts
(see map of school districts), the boundaries of which are changed from time to time as
new buildings are added and the convenience of the pupils may seem to require. FEFach
division is known by the name of its school which is located as nearly as possible in the
center of the sub-district. In March, 1839, Akron was divided into two school districts,
the north and south, both independent of each other. In the south district, on the corner
of Middlebury street {now Buchtel ave.) and Broadway, there was built a small one-story
building known as the  Stone School.”  The north district owned no school house and for
years depended upon rented rooms over stores or in private houses.

When the Akron school law went into effect there were but three public school houses
in the corporate imits of the town: one on High street, known afterwards as ¢ Number
Five;” the “Stone School,” on the corner of Broadway and Middlebury streets, and
another west of Oak (now Walnut) street, afterwards known as the ¢ Grove School.”
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In 1849 there was a primary school, since known as the << Bell School,” taught in a building
on the corner of High and Chestnut streets. This building was donated by Captain Howe
tor the use of the district. When the Howe School was opened in 1884 the ¢ Bell School”
was closed and the children sent to the « Perkins ' School.

After the passage of the Akron School Law the Board immediately began the erection
of two school buildings, at a cost of $37¢ each, one on the corner of Bowery and Exchange
streets, near the present ¢ Perkins” school, the other on Forge street near Lincoln (Lot 7,
Block 4, Perkins Addition), the lot on which the latter was built costing $400. In 1847
the town was divided into eight sub-districts with the intention of having eight primary and
one High School, the latter for the higher grades.

The school population of Akron since the War has increased so rapidly that the Board
of Education has many times been puzzled to find means to accommodate th= pupils. The
territory known as the ¢ Old Forge” with 156 children was annexed in 1886, and in the
following year territory on the south, west and north with 259 children. By reason of the
new buildings erected from year to year, the bounds of the several districts are continually
changing, being all in a radius of about half a mile convenient to each schonl house.

JENNINGS SCHOOL.

As a location for the Central School, the Board purchased two and one-half acres of
land on the north side of East Mill between South Summit and South Prospect streets, at a

cost of $2,187.31 and fitted up the frame dwelling as a grammar school at an expense of.

$613.44. August 18, 1851, the corner-stone of the new building was laid. This was a
two-story brick building, jo feet in length by so feet in width, costing $9,250, and was
dedicated October 13, 1853. In 1857 the lot was graded, shade trees planted, and a sub-
stantial stone wall built on the west side, the other three sides being protected by a high
board fence.

To the main building, in 1867, were added two wings at a cost of $13,000. In 1883
a two-rcom frame annex was built at a cost of $810, and another annex completed in 1885
at a cost of $goo, making the present building a six double-room school house, having a seating
capacity of 5go. There are thirteen teachers and an average daily attendance of 360
pupils in this building.

THYE BOWEN SCHOOL.

¢ Second Ward

$17,000 this building will contain 12 rooms and seat G4o pupils, requiring one principal

and 12 teachers.
THE HOWE SCHOOL.

This school is situated on the north-east corner of Bowery and Bartges streets, and
was formerly known as the St. Clair School. The site cost $5,000, the building erected in
1883 cost $18,600, and with the completion of the additions to be made in 1892 will require
one principal and 12 teachers. On the opening of this school in 1884, the ¢Grotery”
school, north of the fire department building on South Main street, was closed and the
children sent to the ““Allen” and from there to the “ Howe” school.

' THE HENRY SCHOOL:

In 1866 a lot on Forge street near Union was purchased for $600 and $1,000 put into
a building which is now part of the residence of Mr. A. D. Power and was known as the
Crouse School. This school was closed in 1884 and the children sent to the Henry School,
on the east side of North Forge between Arch and Nebraska streets, formerly known as the
» gchool. The site cost $6,000, and in 1883 an $18,000 building was
erected which has eight rooms, will seat 448 pupils and requires eight teachers.

THEHIGH SCHOOL.

The new High School building, located on the south side of North Forge between
College and Union streets, was built in 1883 and cost, when complete, about $135,000;
prior to the erection of this building, the Jennings School was used as a High school and
is now spoken of as the ‘¢ Old High School,” although more properly it is the Central
Grammar School. The building consists of a basement, two stories for school purposes,
and a third for society rooms, museum, etc. There are five direct entrances to the base-
ment proper, which is divided into two parts, one for the boys and the other for the girls.
Each side is provided with large play rooms, lavatories, water-closets, etc. The first story
consists of eight large school or study rooms, with their cloak-rooms, recitation-rooms,
etc., surrounding a large central hall, which is mainly lighted by means of an immense sky-
light. A grand staircase connects this story with the second, which consists of four large
study rooms, and a large assembly hall. Each of these schoolrooms will accommodate

about 45 pupils. The assembly hall has 650 opera chairs

. In 1849 a school was opened at the foot of Sand Hill
and known as the ¢ Lower School.” In 18535 the “ Lower
School ” was moved and placed by the side of a house on
AMain street erected in 1847, at the rear of the Congrega-
tional church. In 1869 a school site was purchased on
the west side of Broadway between East Market and Tall-
madge streets, at a cost of $6,000, and a building erected
at a cost of $r3,000. This was known as the “ Broadway
School.” In 1873 land adjoining was purchased and
additions built at a cost of $5,150, and makes the six

single-room schoolhouse now known as the Bowen School.

There is a seating capacity of 344, six teachers, and an
average daily attendance of 300 pupils in this building.
THE PERKINS SCHOOL.

This school is situated on the south side of West
Lixchange between Bowery and Locust streets, and was
built in 1872 at a cost of $ro,000. About 1880 a small
annex was built at a cost of $8co. It is now a six-room building with 344 seats, six
teachers, and an average daily attendance of 3oo pupils.

THE SPICER SCHOOL.

In December, 1865, the Board assumed control of the ‘¢ Spicer addition.” In 1874, 2
school lot was purchased on the south side of Carroll between Brown and Spicer streets,
at a cost of $5,000 and a $z5,000 building erected. In this there are 453 seats, eight
In 1892, an addition will be fin-
ished costing about $17,000, which will make it a 1z-room building having 640 seats and
requiring one principal and twelve teachers.

THE CROSBY SCHOOL.

Sarly in 1866 a frame schoolhouse was built on the west side at a cost of S1,0350, the
lot costing $200. This was called the Walnut Street School.  In 1877, a school lot was
purchased on the northeast corner of Smith and West streets at a cost of 85,600, and the
first part of a building costing $6,865 was erected. In June, 1884, an addition was built
costing 8,780, making an eight-room building with 440 seats. Eight teachers are required
and there is an average daily attendance of 4oo pupils,

THE ALLEN SCHOOL.

teachers, and an average daily attendance of 4oo pupils.

In 1847, a lot was purchased on Coburn street at a cost of $300, and in 1867 a $1,500
building was erected. The Vine street schoolhouse was built in 1868 at a cost of $1,300,
and in 1875 moved to the “Allen ” lot. Both of these were closed and merged into the
«Allen ” school on the completion of the present building. In 1874, a lot was purchased
on the south-east corner of South Main and East Thornton streets, costing $3,000, and in
1859 an eight-room building was erected at a cost of $22,925, with a seating capacity of
433, and has eight teachers and with an average attendance of goo pupils, This school
was first known as the « Thornton " and then as the ¢ South” school.

THE KENT SCHOOL.

Middlebury became a part of the Akron school district in 1872, bringing with it 163
pupils. The old Middlebury school building was sold to the city in 1884 and is now used
by the city fire department. The Kent School is located on the east side of South Arling-
ton between East Exchange and Johnston streets.  This was known as the ¢ Sixth Ward ”
The main building was erected in 1882 at a cost of $19,013, the site costing
This building has a seating capacity of 450, requires eight teachers and has an
With the additions to be completed in 1892 at a cost of

school.
$0,000.
average attendance of g4o0 pupils.

GRACE SCHOOL, CORNER OF SOUTH

and a large stage provided with all modern conveniences,
In the third story are the rooms of the literary societies,
museum, etc. All wood work of the two principal stories
is of solid oak, trimmed with bronze. The basement and
third story are finished in pine, excepting the water-closets,
which are finished in chestnut. A niche on each floor
contains 1oo feet of hose, with nozzle, connected with a
stand-pipe extending to the roof. The first and second
story courts also contain fine marble drinking fountains.
Dust flues connect each story with the proper receptacles
in the basement. A system of speaking tubes connects
each floor with the superintendent’s office, the principal’s
office and the janitor’s room. The building is heated
thronghout by steam, and veatilated by means of heated
flues for each room. The foundation walls are of sand-
stone; exterior superstructure walls of pressed brick with
terra cotta trimmings and brown sandstone caps, sills,
arches, etc. The extreme dimensions are 163xr1zo0 feet,
containing over 1oo separate rooms, halls, closets, etc., the whole is surmounted by a tower
160 feet high, and containing a z,000 pound bell and Seth Thomas clock with illuminated
dials eight feet in diameter., The style of architecture is of modern Romanesque designed
by Akron architects. There are 15 teachers in this building and an average daily attend-
ance of 463 pupils. |

MAPLE AND WEST EXCHANGE,

THE LEGGETT SCHOOL.

This school is situated an the north side of East Thornton between Sumner and Allyn
streets. In 1868, a frame Dbuilding was commenced at the corner of Washington and
Eagle stree:s just south of Pleasant Park; this was completed in 1870 and did duty for 2o
years until abandoned at the opening of the ¢‘Leggett” School in 1890, and was the last
frame primary school building sanctioned by the Board of Education. The present school

building has eight rooms, eight teachers, a seating capacity of 456, and an average daily
attendance of oo pupils.

THE GRACE SCHOOL.
. The ¢ Grace School” was built in 1891, at the intersection of South Maple and West

Exchange streets, at a cost of $28,000, with a seating capacity of 456.

There are eight
rooms in this building and eight teachers required.

COURSE OF STUDY.

In the Akron schools when first organized under the law of 1847 the following
branches were taught: Orthography, Reading, Writing, Arithmetic (mental and written),
Geography, History, Grammar, Algebra, Geometry, Trigonometry, Surveying, Physiology,
Natural Philosophy, Mental Philosophy, Chemistry, Book-Keeping, Astronomy and Pho-
nography. One hour each day was devoted to Composition and Declamation,
year under the new system Greek and Latin were added to the course.  In 1859 the Board
of Education adopted a course with some revisions later. The High School course had, in
1861, become one of four years, but in 1869 it was changed to a three years’ course. In-
1881 substantially the following, which is the present course, was adoptéd, German being
added in 1884 as-an elective study in the High School. »

Course oF Srtupy.—Primary, Grammar and High school hours are as follows:
F'rom 9 to 11 A M and from 2z to 4 P. M. in the C and D grades of Primary schools,
with a recess of ten minutes at the middie of each session. From g A. M. to 1z M. and
from 2 to 4 P. M. and from 2 to 4 P. M, in the A and B Priinary grades, with a recess of
15 minutes in the forenoon and one of 10 minutes in the afternoon session. In the Grammar

The second
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grades the hours are from ¢ A. M. to 1z M. and from 2 to 4 P. M., with a recess of 15
minutes in the forenoon session.  In the High School the hours are from g A M. to 2 P
M. with a recess of jo nunutes. The classes are prepared for graduation each vear. In
1885 the Board adopted the plan of holding semi-annual commencements, for the gradua-
tion of the classes in June and January; prior to this rule the January class was obliged to
wait until-June before graduating.

Since 1885 promotions in the school have been based on term work and not on exami-
nations; the teacher, from her knowledge of the pupil and his term work, reports to the
superintendent upon blanks especially prepared for that purpose, whether he is qualified or
not for promotion.  Experience has shown that term work is almost invariably the correct
test, as by it those who are qualified are not examined and those who are unqualified are
spared the examination ordeal.  After nearly a decade of successful experience with this
plan by Professors Fraunfelter and Kolbe in Buchtel College, the former carried it into the
public schools as soon as possible after becoming Superintendent, and it is now being gen-
erally adopted throughout the country.

COURSESOFSTUDYTFTORTHEAKRON HIGH SCHOOI..
(ADOPTED AUGUST 14, 1389.)

Lary Covrse.—MNiuth Year—Second C: Algebra, Latin {Grammar and Lessons),
Physiology, United States Government; First C: Algebra, Latin (Grammar, Lessons and
Cazsar), United States Government, General History.  Zents Year——Second B: Algebra,
Latin (Cwsar, Cicero and Prose Composition), General History, Natural Philosophy: First
B: Geometry, Latin (Cicero and Prose Composition), Natural Philosophy.  Zleventh Vear—
Second A: Geometry, Latin (Virgily, Chemistry; First A: Arithmetic (Review), Latin
(Virgil), Physical Geography. .

LENGLISH CoURSE. —A\7nth Vear—Second C: Algebra, English Grammar, Physiology,
United States Government; First C: Algebra. English Composition, United States Govern-
ment, General History.  Zeath Year—Second B: Algebra, Reading and Study of English,
General History, Natural Philosophy; First B: Geometry, Reading and Study of English,
Natural Philosophy. Zlevent/ Year—Second A: Geometry, Reading and Study of Eng-
lish, Chemistry; First A: Arithmetic (Review), English Grammar and Composition
(Review), Physical Geography. ‘

GERMAN Courst.-—N/uth Year—Second C: Algebra, German, Physiology, United
States Government; First C: Algebra, German, United States Government, General His-
tory.  Tenth Year—Second B: Algebra, German, General History, Natural Philosophy;
First B: Geometry, German, Natural Philosophy. Zlevent/i
Year—Second A: Geometry, German, Chemistry; First

A: Arithmetic {Review), German, Physical Geography.
NOTES.

1. Classes will not be formed in any study, with less
than five pupils. ,

2. When five or more pupils, who have completed the
ninth year of the Latin Course, desire to take up the study
of Greek, they may be permitted to pursue this study, the
Superintendent of Instruction to determine what studies
shall be displaced by such election.

3. When it is impracticable to form classes in any
study, pupils, who desife to pursue that study, may be
granted the privilege of private indtruction, and may
receive credit for the same in the course pursued.

4. There shall be two lessons a week in vocal music,
and one in drawing, throughout each of the courses; and
there shall be one lesson a week in book-keeping and writing, through the first half of the
ninth year. .

5. There shall be weekly exercises in declamation, composition, and extempore
speaking, throughout each of the courses.

SUPERINTENDENTS AND TEACHERS.

While it would be pleasant to recall a list of all who have trained the young idea in
Akron schools, necessity compels us to be brief and select only the more prominent ones in
this connection. The first superintendent appointed was Mortimer D Leggett who filled
the position from 1847 to 1849 as principal of the Grammar School and superintendent of
instruction, at a salary of Sso0 per annum, and a large and very effective part of the work
of organizing the Akron schools under the new law was done by him. He had for his
assistants Miss Lucretia Wolcott and Miss Helen Pomeroy, the former receiving $zoo and
the latter 150 per vear. At the end of the second year the Board, through the system of
economy which necessity forced upon it, was compelled (after paying him $1,180.56) to
part with his valuable services after he had done so much toward raising the character of
Akron’s schools.  Charles W. Palmer was engaged to succeed Mr. Leggett and had Mrs.
Palmer as his assistant, their joint salary being $600. Mr. Graham was placed in charge
of the Grammar School. Early in 1851, the illness of Mr. Palmer terminated his engage-
ment and as a financial necessity the Grammar School was closed.  The ardor of novelty
had subsided, but the sober judgment of the people fully sustained the new system and it is
a question if the mass of the people would have consented to relapse into the old rut. In
1851 Mr. E. B. Olmsted and wife were employed at a salary of $50 a month to teach a high
grade primary school which took the place of the Grammar School.  On the completion of
the new (Jennings) building which was dedicated October 13th, 1853, Mr. Samuel F.
Cooper was employed as superintendent of instruction. He was assisted in the High
department by Mrs. Cooper and Miss Annetta Voris, and the Grammar department was
placed in charge of Miss Elsie A. Codding assisted by Miss Mary Gilbert and Miss Rosetta
Pryne. The engagement of Mr. Cooper terminated in April, 1856, and in the fall he was
succeeded by Mr. Horace B, Foster, of Hudson. His assistants were Misses Barnard and
Williamson. At the end of a year, he declined a renewal of his engagement and Mr, Edwin
B. Olmstead was employed to take his place and the Grammar School placed in charge of
Mr. J. Park Alexander at a salary of $35 a month, the superintendent receiving 565 a month,
The entire pay roll for the school year ending April, 1856, was only $2,777.42.

COURT HOUSE, AKRON, OHIO.

This nutline closes the first decade of the Akron schools, and the Board, in its eleventh
annual report, declared their conviction that the low wage principle and necessary frequent
change of superintendents was not the best economy, and a step was taken to secure the
best skill and ability.  Acting upon this conviction they engaged Mr. Charles T, Pooler in
the fall of 1857 at a salary of $1,000, and with him began the practice of making annual
reports to the Board, and the school year changed so as to commence in September instead
of in April.  Mr. Pooler remained until 1860, but he declined a re-engagement and Mr.
Israel P. Hole was secured at a salary of $goo.  This was increased from year to vear until
in 18688 when his engagement terminated it was $r,50:. His report of 1864 contains the
first notice of graduation from the High School, the name of the pupil being Miss Pamela
H. Goodwin. In February, 1868, Mr. Hole resigned and the following September Mr.
Samuel Findley was elected as superintendent at a salary of 32,500, For the year ending
September 1st, 1860, the salaries amounted to 814,002,350, With Mr. Findley's election the
schools entered into a new era of improvement. He most ably and eficiently filled the

duties of his office for a term of 135 vears. TFeeling the absolute need of a rest from the

arduous labors of the position, he voluntarily tendered his resignation at the close of the
spring term of 1883, and was succeeded by Capt. Elias Fraunfelter, for several years pro-
fessor of mathematics in Buchtel College, He entered upon his duties in September, 1883,
and his administration has been quite satisfactory.  TFrom half a dozen small rooms and
two or three teachers in 1846 the schools have gzrown to 112 rooms and a corps of 120 reg-
ular teachers; and from less than oo pupils, not more than half of whom attended with
any degree of regularity, to an enrollment of 5,280, with an average daily attendance of
4,304 or about 62,5 per cent. of the entire enumeration.
CHILDREN OF THE SCHOOLS.

The number of children of school age in Akron in 18gr is 8,442 as against figo
in 1846. '

In the last twenty years there has been a marked fmmprovement in the deportment and
behavior of the school children.  Pupils generally ta<e interest in their work and a larger
per cent. of them really like to go to school. The reasons are obvious. The terrors of
examination have been done away with. There is no longer fear of corporal punishment.
School rooms have been made pleasant and attractive. The work is more interesting.
Public sentiment is entirely in favor of education and this sentiment naturally has its
proper effect on school children.  The parents of the present generation of school children
have largely been brought up in the public schools and heredity has its influence. The
attendance of the pupils registered in the schools is more
regular than ever before.  In 18go-g1 with 3,280 pupils
registered, the average daily absence was but 163. In
1868-¢9 with but 1,341 pupils registered, the average daily
absence was 84. There ars fewer cases of tardiness,
From 0,006 cases of tardiness 1868—¢ the number has
decreased to 544 in 18go-gr.  From 2064 cases of truancy
in 1873-4 the number has decreased to 55 in 1890-g1.
There were but 23 cases of corporal punishment in
the schools in 18go—g1. Those who went to the Akron
schools in the sixties can probably recall single days, in
one school, when this record was beaten.

The whole number of High School graduates from
1864 to June, 1891, is 747. Of the r7 who graduated in
1872, six were of the four years’ course, being the last
who took such a course. November 14th, 1881, the exec-
utive committee of the trustees of Buchtel College, Akron,
adopted the following resolution whici: is still in force: ““Resolved, That one scholarship
be granted annually to the City of Akron, to be awarded by competitive examination only
to the graduates of the High School qualified to enter the Freshman class in one of the
three courses of Buchtel Callege.

But in case there be no competitors for this scholarship among the graduates of the
High School it may be granted by competitive examination to any student in the city
schools who shall be qualified to enter the Senior Preparatory class of the college in either
of the three courses.” Several very bright students have taken advantage of this
scholarship.

OUTLINE HISTORY OF THE EARLY SCHOOLS OF SUMMIT COUNTY.

fLater information In reference to schools, school houses, sularies, teachers and pupils can be found in maps of
townships, school tables and statistics. ]

The pioneers of Summit County gave the cause of education their early attention.
Just as soon as it could be done a school was opened at each settlement, in any vacant
building that could be obtained. Schools were paid for by the subscription plan, with a
tuition fee of about 50 or 75 cents a month per scholar. The school houses were of the
poorest description, either dilapidated frame or log buildings, usually of one style of archi-
tecture, with a great fireplace built on the outside.

Greased paper, over openings left the entire length of the wall, admitted the light. For
seats, small logs were split open, the rough side smoothed with an ax, and stout pins were
driven into the round side to serve as legs.

A fewriting desk” which did duty for the entire school, was formed by driving stout
pins in a slanting direction in the log just under the window, and fastening a log puncheon
on them. A most promiscuous assortment of books was used,

In the fall and winter of 1801, George Peese taught the first scheol in Summit County,
in a house which stood on the south-west corner of lot36 of Fludson township. The
county now has several colleges, academies and high schools in addition to its common
schoaols.

The first permanent educational society, the Ohio Teachers’ Association, was formed
at Akron, Summit County, December 7th, 1847. At first semi-annual meetings were held,
but since 1858 only anaual meetings occur.

In 1838, a school journal, the Pestaloszion, by E. L. Sawtell and H. K. Smith, of
Akron, was issued.
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BATH.

The first school in Bath township was taught by Maria Lusk in 1811, in a Jog house
built in 1810 by Aaron Miller, one of the first settlers.  Schools were held for many years
in such localities as the greater number of pupils resided.  Alfred Wolcott was one of the
early teachers. As there were no schools in north-eastern Bath for a number of years, the
children attended a school in north-west Northampton. One of the first teachers in that
neighborhood was Mr. Lucas. The schools were, as a general thing, taught on the sub-
scription plan,

Although it seems unaccountable, yet no school house was erected in the north-eastern
part of the township until after 1830; but dwellings and abandoned houses were used for
that purpose. The first school house was a frame building about 16x16 feet and was occu-
pied for about twenty-five years.

As nearly as can be ascertained, the first teacher was Edward Brown, a nephew of the
John Brown, whose ¢“soul is marching on.” '

Previous to 1820 all schools were held in buildings temporarily devoted to that use.
Probably the first school house was erected either near Hammond's Corners or at Ghent,
though the facts or dates are uncertain. As early as 1816, school was taught at Latta’s
Corners, and a few years later at Ghent, In 1820, the children at Ghent attended school
in a log house about thirty rods from the present residence of Mr. Spitzer. This house had
been abandoned by William Wood and afterwards used for educational purposes, Henry Root
being one of the first teachers there: As eatly as 1818, Miss Evaline Hall taught in this
same building.

School was taught as early as 1828 in the Hurd neighborhood in 2 building vacated by
Mr. Banks. A school house was erected near by in 1829, and one of the first teachers
was Robert McNeil.

At first the township was divided into two school districts, but changes were made in
these every year until finally one or two were added, and the districts since have been
divided and subdivided many times,

BOSTON.

The first school in Boston township was taught during the summer of 1811, by Miss
Lois Ann Gear, at a salary of 75 cents per week and ‘“board ’round.”
months during the warm weather. The next school was

She taught six

The building now used as a town hall was purchased in 1858 for $1,000 by ten men.
They fitted up the building and secured the services of Rev. John Ensell to take charge of
the school. This school continued some five years. It was not until about 1828, that
schools were taught in other districts than north-west corner and center. The township
was laid out into school districts about this time.

COVENTRY.

Very little can be said of the early schools of Coventry township except that the
buildings and furniture were of the very rudest kind. The buildings were usually situated
in the forest on some road. One of these old log buildings, known as the ‘“Tamarack school
house,” was situated not far from the center of the township. = To suit the convenience of
the people town meetings and elections were frequently held in it.

In the woods on the road just west of the Gregg place there was another of these
early school houses. These were supposed to have been built between 1820 and 1825,

CUYAHOGA FALLS.

The first effort to establish a school, outside of the common school, was the organiza-
tion and charter of the Cuyahoga Falls Institute, under Rev. Brouks and Charles Clark.
It was abandoned in 1837. After the building of St. John’s church, Miss Sarah Carpenter
kept a seminary for girls in the adjoining school room. She was followed by Miss Frances
C. Barron, who in turn was succeeded by Miss Eliza Deaver.

Previous to the erection of the township of Cuyahoga Falls, April, 1851, the history of
the schools is that of the ordinary district schools of the country. The school building
north of St. John's church was built by the Wesleyans for church purposes, and afterwards
sold to the school directors for a IHigh School In 1872, the new High School building
was ready for use, since which time the other building has been used for schools of a
lower grade. '

The ¢ Cuyahoga Falls School District” was formed April 24th, 1854. June 26th, L.
1.. Holden was appointed acting manager of the schools of the township. May 15th, 1853,
Mr. H. K. Taylor was appointed principal of the central school and Mrs. Taylor his
assistant, their joint salary for the year of forty weeks 'being $700.

The whole number of pupils for the school year ending August 31st, 1857, was 482;
number of teachers employed, seven—one male and six females. Tuly 18th, 1861, Mr. L.
H. Delano was employed to teach the Central School.

taught, in 1816, in a log school house erected just north
of the residence of Mr. Stanford. It was a term of three
months, taught by the first settler, Alfred Wolcott, who
was also the surveyor of the. township. School was
taught in this, the first school house in the township,
every winter until 1820, when another was built in Boston
Village, and the old house abandoned. In 1826. the
house in Boston being too much to one side of the settle-
ment, to give satisfaction, the greater number of the chil-
dren attended the Brandywine school, and the building at
Boston was left vacant.

About 1836, a frame school house was built in Boston
Village and used until a brick building was erected just
before the late war.
a school was taught as early as 1812 or 1813.
cott is said to have been the teacher.

A school was taught in the south-east part of the town-
ship in about 1820, but nothing of importance is known of
this school.

I the north-eastern part of Boston
Mr. Wol-

School was taught at Everett probably as early as 1825.
directly of this school.

Nothing, however, is known
In a small log building near the residence of Mr., Swan, a school
was taught in about 1830. It is notknown who was the first teacher, but among the first
were Miss Gillett and Hector Osborn.  About the vear 1838 a small frame school building
was erected on an acre of land deeded by Mr. Swan to the school district for school pur-
poses. This building was replaced by another one.

Anather school house was built across the river from Everett, one and a half miles fur-
ther down the stream, in 1818,
subscription.

The first teacher, 'Squire Greenman, received his pay by
The house was built of logs and used about seven years,
in Peninsula in 1829, but it is not known if this was the first,
Payne.

School was held
The teacher was Miss Rhoda
Her weekly recompense was $1 paid by private subscription.

For a while the east and west sides had a common school, but afterwards it was found
advisable to divide the district, the river being the dividing line. Homer Warner was the
He received a salary of $13 a month and ¢ boarded
The east side school house was a two-story stone building, the upper story being
used as a town hall, erected about 18357. The west side house was a frame building. There
were six or seven school districts in the township, and the village of Peninsula was called
upon to pay from a fourth to a half of the school fund raised. A few years before the late
war the citizens of Peninsula, becoming discontented with the character of their schools as
compared with the amount of their school tax concluded to incorporate the school district
in the village of Peninsula. In 1826, the township was divided into six school districts,
and many changes have been made since.

COPLEY.

The first building at the Center was a school house built in 1819, opposite Mr. Cole's
Hotel, and Jonathan Starr is said to have taught the first school in it the following winter;
although it is claimed by some that John Codding, Esq., had that honor. They were both
very early teachers. The old log school house was used for school and many other pur-
poses some ten or twelve years when a frame building took its place. A brick school build-
ing was erected about 1838 and was used until 1872 when it was replaced by another.

A short time before the last war the Center school district, feeling that their school tax
was out of proportion with the benefits derived, secured the incorporation of the Center
school district, which freed them from any school tax except for, the maintenance of their
own schools.

first teacher on the west side.
round.”

SUMMIY COUNTY

July 22nd, 1863, the Board of Education employed W. I
Chamberlain, of Hudson, as principal of the High School
at 86oo per annum. The total enrollment at this date
was 452.  [ive school houses and five schools—one High
School and four common schools. The school library
consisted of 755 volumes, valued at $300. June z4th,
1864, Mr. Chamberlain’s salary was raised to $75 per
month.  June 26th, 1865, George McLaughlin was elected
as principal of the Central School at $650 pér annum.
At this time, besides the Central School, there were four
primaries. The next year the principal’s salary was raised
to $750.  July 18th, 1866, W. C. Rogers was employed as
principal at $75 per month. B. B. Tremlin succeeded
Mr. Rogers as principal, December, 1866. July 1st, 1867,
Virgil P. Kline was employed a$ principal. There were
in the district at this time five common schools and the
High School with an enrollment of 456 pupils. The
school house and grounds were valued at $2,400. May
Sth, 1868, Mr. Kline’s salary was raised to $1,000. Miss
Almeda A. Booth agreed July, 1859, to remain in the High School as teacher another year
upon a salary of $r1,000, Mr. Kline deciining to remain longer as principal.

INFIRMARY,

August 4th, 1869, George Allison, of Tallmadge, contracted with the Board to erect
the basement story of the Union school house for $5,200. In the following September,
Ldward Sill was employed as principal for $goo. March 1st, 1870, the Board entered into an
agreement with George Allison to do the mason work for the school building, except the
plastering, for S1r,701.51. Dunn & Witt, of Cincinnati, agreed to have the roofing and
galvanized iron work done for S12,400. Total contract price for the building amounted to
$31,931.51 exclusive of heating, which cost an additional $3,000, There was a'so paid Mr.
Allison 8617.37 for additional work. Thomas & Son were allowed $1,698 for extra work.
’l‘l‘le expense of seating the new High School building was $1,773.50, Onu the 12th of July,
1871, Miss A. A. Booth was engaged as superintendent of the schools at.a salary of $1,200.
In 1874, George L.'McMillan was secured as principal of the Union schools at a salary of
S1,000. The value of school property at this time was $36,000. There were six teachers
employed.  April 26th, 1875, Mr. A. N. Bernard was employed as principal of the Union

schools for the remainder of the school term at a salary of $1,200 per annum

: : ' His ser-
vices were continued at $1zo per month.

ces ‘ There were 4o1 pupils enrolled -this year. In
xby‘b it was found that Cuyahoga Falls having a population of more than 2,500, they were
entitled to a Board of Examiners of their own.

On the z.Sth of June, 1878, Mr. Bernard was retained at a salary of $r,100, The
enroliment this year was 502. In 1879 the Union School building was supplied with steam
heating apparatus at a cost of about $1,500.

The first class graduated June 25th, 1880, consisting of eight pupils—five girls and
three boys. J ]

Mr. Bernard was succeeded in 1883 by W,

he in turn was succeeded by Frederick Schnee
o ’

at a salary of $1,100.

H. Rowlen who remained two years, when
‘red in 1885, who is the present superintendent
' oo At this time there are the superintendent and ten teachers in
the High school building, and two teachers in the primary, with an enrollment of Gro
pupils.  Total number of graduates, go. Value of school’ property, $45,000.

The third story of the Union School building was completed and furnished in 1882.

The present course of study wag adopted in 1884
) 3.

———— M
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FRANKLIN,

At an early day schools were opened in this township. At the time the township was
first visited, some of the adjoining townships which had been settled earlier had already
opened school. Children who were large enough to be trusted so far, attended these
schools, but the younger children remained at home until the schools were brought nearer.
In the year 1817, a young man of German descent, named Joseph Mishle-, tanght in a church
which had been erected at Manchester as early as 1816 or 1817. This old house was
replaced in a few years by a larger and better one.  Fifty or sixty families resided at Savan-
nah for zeveral years, and it is probable that school was taught here, though nothing is
known definitely.

After Savannah was abandoned, a Duilding there was taken apart and conveyed to
Clinton, put together and used as a school house until about 1836, when a school house
was erected half a mile north of Clinton. At present Franklin has many good schools and
a common-school education is within reach of every child.

GREEN,

It is supposed that the first school in Green township was taught by Wm. Triplet, in an
old shanty on Section 106.

In those days they had to pay 50 cents a month for tuition for each pupil.

Several years after Triplet’s attempt, Nicholas Sichley tried to establish a school on
Section 16, but the support was insufficient; he was followed months afterwards in the same
building by Wm. Early, who also taught in other districts of this township. In 1820, he
taught in a building on the land which belonged to Foust heirs. Wm. Sweeney taught at
this place also. At an early day a school house was put up which was also used as a church,
in what is now the King District.

The first school was taught in what is now (Greensburg, about 1816, by Robert Lawson
in a building that had been erected for a weaver’s shop. At the time the first school house
was built in District 6, after 1820, buildings had been erected especially for schoal purposes
in other districts.

A German school was taught east of Iast Liberty in 1823, by a Mr. Crum, in a log
school house erected about two years previously. Itis thought that the first schoolin south-
west Green, was opened in 1827, Henry Beard having had
a few pupils at his home about this time.

Henry Gates, John Betz, Electa Tupper,
McCauley, Jacob Everhart, Geo. Tousley, ——— Sho-
walter, Alex. Johunston and Abram Hunsberger were
among the teachers in this township at an early day.
Abram Hunsberger taught twenty-one successive winters
in various districts.

HUDSON.

The first schoo! building in Hudson was erected on the
public green on the east side of Main street. Afterwards
two were built in the near vicinity.

The first teacher was Geo. Pease. Among the carly
teachers were Patty Fields, Miss Amy Cannou, Titus Wet-
more, Martha Filer, and Benjamin Whedon, the latter
teaching in 1807.

School houses were erected in different parts of the
township as the convenience of the population demanded
until, in 1823, the township was divided into five school
districts. Another district was added in 1827, another in
1830; and in 1838, District No. 1 was divided and another erected, making a total of nine
districts under the law of 1845. The two corporate districts were united in 1853, and
joint district set off as an independent one. After the schools were graded, Misses Sabin
and Birge were the first teachers. Another school building was erected at the end of the
old brick school house in 1857, and a third teacher added. In 1863, lot No. 13 was bought
of Mr. Porter for school purposes. In 1867 33,000 was voted for a school house, but
proving insufficient, $1,500 more was asked for and granted by the people in 1868. G. W,
Church took the contract for $6,225, and jt was completed and accepted by the Board of
Education November 18, 1868, In 1871 this buildiug was found to be insufficient for the
accommodation of the district, and the Seminary building on Baldwin street was occupied
by a part of the school,

In 1827, Mrs. Nutting opened a school for young ladies in the parlors of Mrs. Ray-
mond on Aurora street. Afterwards, Miss Lggleston, of New York, upened a select school
in the building south of Farrer's Block. In 1833, Miss Upham opened a school for young
ladies in a small school building, which had been erected by subscription, on the land
owned by Rev. Doolittle, Capt. Oviatt and Judge Humphrey.

In 1834, H. G. Gross, from Connecticut, opened a school on Aurora street, and in
1835, erected what is generally known as the ¢ Brick Academy,” a two-story brick building
with a basement, at a cost of $3,000. This building was afterwards purchased by a joint
stock company of the citizens in Hudson, and styled the Hudson Academy. It was fur-
nished rent free to the teachers who depended upon the receipts from tuition for their
salaries.

In the Spring of 1843, Miss Mary Strong became the principal of the schools. In
1845, she erected a two-story building on the west side of Main street and chrisiened it
“ Hudson Female Seminary.” The old brick building fell into the hands of the corpora-
tion school board. In 1854, Miss Strong’s health failed, and the school was suspended.
In the meantime there were two other female seminaries in Hudson; the ‘“Hudson Young
Ladies’ Seminary ” was opened by Rev. Mason Grosvenor in 1843, in a building on the east
side of the public square; in 1845 the school was discontinued until the fall of 1840, when
it was reopened by Mr, and Mrs, Skinner, of Massachusetts. The next spring the academic
department was taken charge of by Miss Charotte Lee. The school continued until about
1852, A ¢ Seminary for Ladies” was opened under the auspices of the Episcopal church
1849, by Rev. Mr. Phelps, in a building which is now used as a blacksmith shop,
on Aurora street. The school was discontinued in 1851.

SUMMIT COUNTY CHILDREN’S HOME.

In 1853, Mr. J. W. Smith furnished a suite of rooms in the third story of the Pentagon
and established Miss Elizabeth Burt, from Massachusetts, as Principal. On account of
business failure, this seminary wasclosedin 1855. 1In the fall of 18535, an association of the
citizens of Hudson, purchased this school furniture and placed Miss Everett of Mt. Holyoke
Female Seminary, over it. In 1860, Miss Emily Metcalf took charge, and in a few years
purchased the building and moved it to Baldwin street. In 1873 it was suspended. In
1875 it was opened by Rev. B. W. Hosford, whose daughters conducted it one year.

In January, 1825, the Commissioners, appointed by the Presbytery of the Western
Reserve selected Hudson as the site for the erection of the Western Reserve College, Hud-
son having subscribed §7,130, of which amount $2,142z was contributed by David Hudson,
who also gave 160 acres of land, that the building might be placed where it is instead of
one half mile south of the center of the township. February 13, 1825, the Board of Mana-
gers held their first meeting at Hudson. The charter for the Western Reserve College,
bears the date of February 7th, 1826, being the fifth college chartered in the State. The first
Tutor appointed was David L. Coe, September 22d, 1826. The first building was completed
August, 1827.

NORTHAMPTON,

Justus Remington, in 1809, taught the first school in Northampton in a school house
which stood on the lot line between lands owned by H. P. Smith and Martin Shellhorn.

The first building framed by square rule was a school house built in 1832 at Steel’s
corner by Ldward Prior, architect and boss carpenter. The timbers were not brought
together till ready for raising, being hewn and framed in different localities.

Though the pupils are in no way inferior to others in the county, and most thorough
and efficient schools have been taught, yet schools have been maintained in this township at
a great inconvenience owing to geographical diversities. The river divides the township
into two sections, and, with the deep gullies running down into the valley, makes it exceed-
ingly difficult to school a portion of the children.

NORTHFIELD.

It is generally believed that the first term of school taught at Northfield, was at Brandy-
wine, a Mr. Stiles having taught several terms there prior to 1820, in a log school house,
erected as early as 1817. Hewaspaid $1.00 per pupil for the
term. This building was used until a frame school house
was built on the opposite side of the road from the old one,
about 1830. This old school house was well attended, the
children being sent to it without regard to township lines.
So long as they paid their subscription promptly, it made
little difference whence they came.

As Brandywine was partly in Boston and partly in
Northfield township, it was deemed advisable to take two
lots from Boston and attach them to Northfield. Accord-
ingly, December 1st, 1827, the second school district in
the township of Northfield was annexed to the second
fractional school district in the township of Boston by the
trustees of those townships.

When the first school was taught in the township can
not be ascertained, but it is thought by several to have
been prior to 1817. A Mr. King is believed to have been
the first or one of the first two or three who taught there.
In 1819 a log school house was built less than a mile north
of the Center, Henry Wood being the first teacher in this
house. This building was used until about 1825, when two other school buildings were erected,
one at the Center and the other about two miles north of it. April 12th, 1826, the trustees of
Northfield divided the township into two school districts, designated as No. 1 and No. 2,
May 3d, 1828, district No. 1 was divided, the two districts thus formed being known as
1 and 3. Previous to thistime the schoolshad been supported by subscription and the houses
built by everybody. Robert Smith taught several terms of excellent school in the Putnam
storeroom, after Mr. Putnam had sold out. He also taught in the town hall, which was
built in 1848. Rev. Andrews taught a select school in the Presbyterian Church. Esther
Cramer taught the first school in Macedonia in 1833, a summer term of three months, at
ten shillings per week and ¢ boarded ’round.”

NORTON,

Of the early schools of Norton township little is known. Sarah Wyatt taught school
at New Portage in 1816, but whether it was in the township is a matter of dispute. She
taught in a log school house at Johnsons corners in 1818. This school was supported by
subscription.

The early energies of the Pennsylvania farmers were directed more to the tilling of
soil, the building of good barns and the raising of stock, than to the education of their
children.

This idea has been gradually supplanted till now the Norton district schools are num-
bered among the best in the county.

Gradually the two-room school buildings, the graded schools, are taking the place of
the single room. The High School is at Norton Center, the geographical center of the
township.

School commenced in it on the first Monday in September, 1881, with 40 pupils, A. 1.

" Jenness, teacher. The opposition was so great to the system that the school was dismissed.

Frederick Schnee took charge for the next two years, and the enrollment reached 43. The
large increase in wealth and population in this township, by reason of the building of Bar-
berton, necessitates the building of more schools and perhaps an entire change of the
whole system.
PORTAGE.

The pioneers of Portage township were early impressed with the necessity of providing
schools for the rising generation. The schools were held in any vacant house that could be
obtained. Such a school was maintained in what is known as the Sherbondy neighborhood.




These schools were generally paid for by private subscription.  About thefirst school house
in Portage township was a frame building erected about 1830, on what is now the
farm of Chas. W. Bauer, near the present school house of District No. 3. Three years
later a school house was built near the intersection of West Market street and Portage path.
0. P. Barnum taught the first school in this building, for which he received $12.00 per
month and © boarded round.” De Ball's Arithmetic, Introduction to the English Reader
and the Testament comprised the text-books used. In 1833 a school house was built on the
Loyal Oak road south-west of the city, and O. I'. Barnum was secured as teacher ata salary
of $20.00 per month, he paying his board. From that time on a public school was main-
tained in that part of the township. In 1850 a frame building was put up on the site of the
present school house, the first teacher being Silas Force. This building was replaced in
1888 by the present one. Several prominent Summit County men have taught in this school
house, among whom are Hon. J. P. Alexander, ex-Gov. R. A. Alger, ]. A Long, O, S.
Warner and David Ellett. Sometime in the thirties a log school house was built on the
present site of the N. C. Hawkins homestead, on West Market street extension at the inter-
section of Exchange and Market streets.  Subsequently a new brick building was built near
where the present school house stands.  This was ti.e first brick school house in the town-
ship. It served its purpose until about 1870 when the present house was erected

‘That portion of the township lying north of the city is divided into two sub-districts,
the school house across the river being known as the ¢ Underhill school,” the other as the
North Hill or ¢ Chuckery School.” In the latter district a four-room building was erected
in 1882 at a cost of $6,000, and in 1891 a two-room addition was built at a cost of §3,000.

About 1850 a school was opened on the corner of Cuyahoga street and Tallmadge
Avenue. Several years later a house was erected across the street on Tallmadge Avenue,
which, with a few enlargements, was used until 1882, when it was replaced by the present
building.

Abott 1849 or '30, a school was opened in a dwelling-house in the Old Forge District
near the present residence of Leroy Munson, 'That this was too near the dry house of the
Powder Mill, was demonstrated on an occasion when the powder exploded sending pieces
of the wrecked building through the school house, fortunately at a time when there was no
school. This accident so impressed upon the people of the neighborhoad the insecurity to
life of the children that a site was purchased on Arlington street. The house was ren’lod-
eled into a schoaol house and used for a few years, then torn down and a new one erected in
its stead. In 1870 more ground was bought and another building put up.
buildings served for school purposes until the Old
Forge District was taken into the city, when the

These two

About the year 1816, the first school building was erected at Monroe Falls. Other
houses have since been built, each an improvement on the one preceding it.

As early as 1810, school was taught in the cabin of Mr. Rice, by Emma Cannon,

Erastus Southmayd, one of the early settle's of the Center, taught many terms, and
was generally known as a competent instructor.

Notwithstanding their inconvenient and unattractive appearance the schools were well
attended and were the basis of the public school system of to-day.

TALLMADGE.

The first school in Tallmadge township was opened in the spring of 1810 and was
taught by Miss Lucy Foster, in a small log building. erected for school purposes at the south
four corners.

It is thought that a school house was built on the hill at the south-west four corners,
in the fall of 1810, and a school taught there during the winter of 181o-11. Soon after
those already mentioned, a house was erected in the east part of the township and another
at the south four corners. In 1814 a frame school house was commenced in the public
square where the Congregational Church now stands, but was not completed until the
following year. It was two stories high, 26x36 feet. The lower story was used by the
district school and the upper by the Academy, and for religious worship. Rey. Simeon
Woodruff was first teacher or principal of the Academy. Elizur Wright and others suc-
ceeded him, .

February 27th, 1816, an act was passed incorporating the Tallmadge Academy. On
the night of January rzth, 1820, the Academy Dbuilding was burned, but a new building
espec.ally for the purpose was erected the same year. South-east of the township hall a
separate building was erected for the district schools. Frame school buildings were erected
in other districts to meet the needs of the increased population, and some of them have
given place to handsome and commodious brick buildings.

At the building of the new town hall, a sufficient amount was subscribed by the people
to build a second story for the Academy, and that department was continued by competent
teachers for several vears; but the system of graded schools finally took the place of the
Academy. June rith, 1870, a special district was formed at the Center; a lot was pur-
chased and a building erected, which was afterwards burned, though speedily rebuilt and
furnished at a cost of $4,500. ' Competent teachers took charge of the four departments.

Tallmadge claims the honor of establishing the first Deaf and Dumb school in the
State. There was a family in the neighborhood who had three deaf mutes. March 1gth,

1827, a committee was appointed with power

school property was sold to Leroy Munson. One of
the buildings was converted into a dwelling and the
other fitted up for Sunday School purposes and
religious services.

At the present time there are eight school houses,
and 13 teachers, with a total enrollment of 465 pupils
for the year ending September, 18g1.  ‘Total salaries
paid teachers for vear, $4,539.50. Average salaries
paid teachers, Male, $352; Female, S40.

‘There is, perhaps, not a township in the county
where the schools are better provided for than in

Portage township. Every school buiding is provided
with Maps, Charts, Globes, Dictionary, Mathemati-
cal Blocks, ete. The houses are kept in good repair,
and the grounds, as a general thing, clean and tidy.

RICHFIELD.

The old Richfield Academy was built in 1836, and continued in operation for about
35 years, when it passed away giving place to the free school system, the first teacher being
a Mr. Farnum.

Under Rev., Harvey Lyons, who was its Principal for many years, it tock its place
among the foremost academical institutions of the west.

Richfield was among the first in Summit county to establish a township library, This
was done under the supervision of Dr. Rawson in 1825. It contained several hundred
volumes and was well patronized, until superseded by our common and High School

Libraries.
SPRINGFIELD.

In the winter of 1812, Reuben Upson taught the first school in Springfield township,ina
little log cabin which stood near Cass’s Camping ground, on the subseription and ¢ board
around” plan. Mr. Briggs taught the next school in the Vallandigham school house, and
was followed by Jesse Hall, who taught in what was known as the Virginia school house.
A school was taught next in the Sheep school house by Austin Weston. Benjamin
Meachem succeeded Weston and taught in the McGrew school house. Next came Wm. L.
Clark, who in turn was followed by Robert Baird, and taught in the Metlin school house.
Henry Westfall followed Baird and taught in the Dunbar school house.
Ellet taught in the Ellet school house.
in the Rodenbaugh school house,

This completes the historical list of the early schools and school teachers of Springfield
township, down to the free school system.

STOW.

Next Samuel
TFollowing him came . C. McDonald, who taught

Very little information can be obtained of the early schools of Stow township. Itis
thought that the first school in the township was taught in the cabin of Wm. Walker, in
1806 or 1807, by Dennis Ryan, from Virginia. The subscription was $1.50 per pupil for a
term of three months. The teacher ¢*boarded 'round.” About fifteen pupils were enrolled,
quite a number coming from the southern part of Hudson township. Beginning in 1808,
several terms were taught in a log cabin which had been vacated by Samuel Burnett in 1807,
A school house was built near Stow Corners about 1810 and used until about 1816, when a
frame building was erected south of where Josiah Wetmore’s residence now stands.  This
house was used from twenty to twenty-five years.

AMERICAN ALUMINA \VORKS, BARBERTON, OHIO.

. to act and devise means for a school. hey
- adopted measures to organize a Deaf and Dumb
school, and secured rooms. Col, Smith, who had
taken a thorough course in the Deaf and Dumb
Asylum at Hartford, Conn., was employed as
The school was opeted May 1st, 1827,
for a term of six months, tuitiod being $6 per quar-
ter. The Asylum for the deaf and dumb was estab-
lished at Columbus in 1829, and the school was
transferred to it. ’

teacher.

A library was organized in Tallmadge in 1813,
which existed for over fifty years, and contained over
three hundred volumes of standard works.

TWINSBURG.

The first public building in Twinsburg township
was a log school house built upon the square, in the
year 1822, and used as a school house, town hall,
anda church. The firstschool was a subscription school taught by Miss Lovina M. Miream. No
other district schools were instituted until about 1828, and some as late as 1833. These
Stfllools were mainly primary, for the reason that usually, as soon as scholars were suffi-
ciently advanced they attended the Twinsburg Institute. This institute dates back as far as
1828.  Its founder and supporter was Rev. Samuel Bissell, of Connecticut, and a Yale
graduate.  Soon after his ordination he came to Ohio, and in 1826 opened a private school
at .L.\urora, which continued until 1828, when he accepted the charge of the Congregational
society .at Twinsburg. 1In 1831, a building was erected to be used as a church and school
house, in which Mr. Bissell taught and preached, until 1835, at which time he went to
Portage county; but he returned in 1837 and erected a building 20x 35 feet, in which he
taught twenty consecutive years. Two years later this building was enlarged. In 1843, a
two story building was fitted up to accommodate students from a distance. In the next
five }"?ars two other buildings were secured for the same purpose. .

T'he last war greatly injured the institute. The buildings, amounting to some $6,000,
were sold to pay debts. A few hundred dollars were left which purchased a small building
for. the use of the school. It was at this time that the foundation.was laid for the present
building, the entire cost of which was about 38,000,

The Parochial and Private Schools of the County are treated of in another article.
See Tndex.

OFFICERS OF THE STATE OF OHIO.

18T, LEGISLATIVE, 2D, EXECUTIVE, 3D, JUDICIAL.

The government of the State is divided into four parts: viz., Political, Civil, Reme-
dial and Penal,

Under Political we have the Laws, Legislative, Executive and Judicial.

. Legislature composed of Senate and House of Representatives and their appointed

assigtants. . '

Senators are elected from Senatorial Districts, at November elections.

Lieutenant Governor, who is ex-officio President of the Senate, elected at large.

Representatives usually elected, one from each county. The duties of these two bodies
are to pass and repeal all general and local laws for the government of the State.
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STATE OF OHIO.

Officers of Senate are elected by the members and consist of President pro tempore,
Clerk; five Agsistant Clerks, Sergeant at Arms with two Assistants.

Officers of the house are the Speaker, Speaker pro tempore, Clerk and five Assistants,
Sergeant at arms and three Assistants, ’ ’

And can be removed at any time by vote of Sznate or House.

The President of the Senate appoints three Pages and the Speaker of the House, five
Pages.

The Executive Department is composed of Governor, Secretary of State, Auditor
of State, Treasurer of State, Attorney General, Commissioners of the Sinking Fund, Commis-
sionerof Railroads and Telegraphs, Superintendent of Insurance, Supervisor of Public Printing,
State Librarian, State Commissioner of the Common Schools, Inspector of Mines. Commis-
sioner of Labor Statistics, Inspector of Oils, Commissioners of Fisheries, with their respective
Deputies, Clerks and Assistants. Offices held at State Capitol at Columbus.

Judicial: Supreme Court held at Columbus. Circuit Court in their respective Dis-
tricts. Common Pleas and Probate Court in their respective Counties, and Justices’ Courts
in their respective Townships. Attorneys at Law must pass an examination before the
Supreme Court, before being admitted to practice in any Court.

BENEVOLENT INSTITUTIONS.
The Board of State Charities consists of six members, not more than three of whom
“shall be from any one political party, and are appointed annually by the Governor for a
term of three years. They serve without compensation. The Governor is ex-officio presi-
dent and member. The Secretary is appointed by the Board and receives a salary of not
more than $1,200.00. Their duties are to investigate the whole system of public charities
and correctional in-titutions of the State.

Benevolent Institutions are under the management of a Board of five Trustees appoint-
ed one each year, by the Governor, unde: advice and consent of the Senate; and vacancies
filled the same way. Trustees appoint Superintendent and Subordinates.

Benevolent Institutions are Deaf and Dumb, Blind, Feeble Minded Youth, Soldiers’
and Sailors” Orphans Home, Insane and Longview Asylum, Boys’ Industrial School, Girls’
Industrial Home. ) )

SUMMIT COUNTY OFFICERS.

In the following classification of information concerning Summit County Officers,
their duties, fees, etc., we have simply outlined the main
features, so that people may be generally informed concern-
ing them. For special information we refer our patrons to
standard works. such as: The Yearly Laws, Compiled
Statutes, Special Treatise, Supreme Court Proceedings and
Yearly Directories. .

Summit County Officers are of three classes, viz.: Legis-
lative, Judicial and Executive. These three classifications
are divided into Elective and Appointive, some of which
have jurisdiction out of the County, and others of only part of
the County.

Legislative: Senators and Representatives.

Tudicial: Three Circuit Judges, two Common Pleas
Tudges, one Probate Judge, and thirty-nine Justices of the
Peace.

Official: Three Commissioners, Auditor, Treasurer, Cierk
of Court of Common Pleas, Sheriff, Recorder, Coroner, three
Infirmary Directors, Surveyor, Prosecuting Attorney.

Appointive officers:  Superintendent of Infirmary, Soldiers. Relief Commission, Trus-
tees of Children’s Home, Superintendent and Matron of the Home, and Deputies of the
different County Officers.

JUDICIAL.

‘Summit County Officials are elected by the people at their November election.

Circvir Junces.—Three Circuit Judges of the Eighth Judicial Circuit of Ohio, com-
prisingthe Counties of Cuyahoga, Summit, Lorain and Medina, are elected in these counties;
one chosen every two years and holds six years, beginning gth of February, after election;
and hold their Courts at stated times fixed by Circuit Judges at their annual meeting in Col-
umbus, held third Tuesday in September. Duties, to hear and decide cases appealed from
Common Pleas Court.  Salary, $4,000 per vear. Eight circuits in the State.

CoayoN Preas Jubces.—Two ‘Common Pleas Judges are elected in Second sub-
division, Fourth Judicial District comprising the Counties of Lorain, Medina and Summit,
and hold Court in_ these different Counties at stated periods, fixed by judges of district
annually on third Tuesday in October. Must hold no less than three terms each year, and
may hold special terms if necessary. Salary, $2,500. Vacancies filled by the Governor,
Court consists of judges, sheriff, clerk, bailiff, atlorneys, stenographer, and jury men,

Proeare Courr.—Judge elected tri-ennially, (18g0). Takes office second Monday in
February. Court shall have jurisdiction of wills, grant and revoke letters testamentary and
of administration. Direct and control the conduct and settle the accounts of Executors
and Administrators, and order distribution of estates. Appoint and remove Guardians,
direct and control their conduct, and settle their accounts. To grant Marriage Licenses
and Licenses to Ministers to solemnize marriages. :

To make inquests respecting lunaties, insane persons, idiotics and deaf and duml per-
sons. To make inquest of the amount of compensation due owners in appropriation cases.
Try contests of the election of justices of the Peace. To qualify assignees, appoint and
qualify trustees and commissioners of insolvent debtors, control their conduct and settle
their accounts.  Administer oaths. Take acknowledgments and depositions.  Must keep
administrator’s execution and guardian’s docket.

Must keep record of accounts of criminals, marriages, bonds, naturalization. May act as
his own clerk or appoint a deputy, who has same power as Clerk of Court. Judge shall
observe rules of Common Pleas as far as applicable.  Has power to punish for contempt,
to issue warrants, attachments and other process notices, commissions, rules and orders

WINDSOR HOTEL, CORNER MILL AND BROADWAY,

(. M. CADWELL, Proprietor,

necessary to carry into effect power grant‘ed him. Remuneration fees, see statutes.

Justices.—Justices are elected for three years, at spring or fall elections. Receive
commission from the Governor. Give bond to trustees of township from §1,000 to $3,000.
Duties: Jurisdiction in township where elected and resides (except as provided by
Statute). Exclusive jurisdiction to $10s, concurrent jurisdiction with Common Pleas to
$300. In trespass, where damage does not exceed $100. To administer oaths; take
acknowledgments; solemnize marriages; issue subpoenas; try action for forcible entry and
detention, or detention only; to proceed against constable failing to make returns for meney
collected, or execution; try action against justices; try contest election cases, if Probate
Judge is absent; may punish for contempt; has certain criminal duties and power; shall act
as coroner in certain cases; must keep docket provided by trustees, and in it enter the facts
of every case tried by him, as provided by statutes; must keep criminal docket; pay over
fines collected to County Treasurer; render to Auditor yearly statements.

Noraries' Pueric are appointed by the Governor for the term of three years. Appli-
cants must be examined by Court of Common Pleas. All necessary blanks will be
furnished applicants by the Governor. Bond 32,000. For list of Notaries see Directory.
Duties, see Statutes. .

EXECUTIVE.

County CoamissioNers.—Board of County Commissioners consists of three members,

“one chosen yearly, who holds for three years. Takes office first Monday in January. Bond

not less than $5,000, approved by Probate Judge, deposited with Treasurer. Vacancy
filled by Probate Judge, Auditorand Recorder. Absence six months, vacates office. Have
general custody of property of county (may sue and be sued). Four regular sessions
each year, first Monday of March, June, September and December.

Organized annually, first Monday in December. Majority a quorum. Proceedings
public and record kept. At September session, must examine accounts of County Auditor
and Treasurer, and count funds in treasury. Special session may be held as often as neces-
sary. Board may authorize Auditor to make certain contracts. May rélease or compound
for fines. No commissioner shall be interested in contracts. May administer oaths in
discharge of duties of their office.  Shall provide places for holding Court and oftices for
county officers.

Shall construct and repair bridges, and with County Commissioners of adjoining coun-
ties may build bridges near county line, and keep in repair; straighten creeks and water
courses; purchase land for Court House, Jail or Infirmary;
may borrow money on bonds of county, to build same, also
bridges and for relief of poor; sell real estate not needed;
may require corners of Townships to be established; may
appoint Surveyor and Engineer for their work; execute bonds
of idemnity; receive bequests to erect monument to soldiers
of war of 1861 and build same.

Allow claims against county; subscribe for certain news-
papers published in county, to be kept on file at Auditors
office; may have records of Auditor, Recorder and Surveyor,
and records wholly or partially destroyed, transeribed; shall
cause true meridian lines to be established, and appoint per-
sons to make observations; allow fees for posse comitatus;
may execute leases of mineral lands; make written report to
Court of Common Pleas; may offer reward for apprehension
of criminal; may pay expenses of capture and return of
felon.

Shall break counterfeit instruments and melt counterfeit
coin and sell the metal. May receive bequests for the erection of Orphan Asylums,
appoint Board of Directors who shalt make annual report; said asylum may be changed
into Children’s Home, when not inconsistent with terms of any devise, bequest or donation;
may submit question of Children’s Home to electors; adjoining counties may unite in
purchase of site; may receive devise or bequest, and issue bonds in anticipation of taxes.

Shall appoint Board of Trustees for Children’s Home, who report to them (see Trus-
tees Children’s Home). Their decisions may be appealed from to the Court of Common
Pleas. Compensatiofl, $3 oo per day for actual service, and mileage, five cents per mile.

Avvitor.—Election is for three years from November, 188¢g. Takes posse:sion
second Monday of September, after election; salary fixed by the Commissioners on basis of
quadrennial enumeration, also certain fees; see Statutes; appoints his deputy by recording
the fact in'his office and furnishing certified copy to Treasurer. Duties are to audit
accounts of the county, and prepare duplicates for self and Treasurer for collection of
taxes; transfer deeds and plats of land, keep accounts current with Treasurer, and issue
warrants on him; to certify all moneys into the treasury, except what is collected on the
tax duplicate; make certain corrections in tax list; deduct from tax list for destroyed and
injured buildings; add omitted land tax; settle with Treasurer semi-annually, 15th of
February and 3d of August; may discharge prisoners in certain cases; shall transmit to
Auditor of State duplicates of certificates, and abstracts of settlements; keep records of
delinguent lands and lots; keep accounts with townships, city, village, hamiet and special
schoo! districts, and after semi-annual settlement with County Treasurer, upon application

from Treasurer of said city, village, etc., issue warrants upon County Treasurer for amount
.3 b -

due them; shall open accounts with new townships; shall on or before July 1st, annually,
make return to Auditor of State of the number of horses, cattle and encumbrances; make
quadrennial report to Secretary of State of all deaf, dumb, insane and idiotics; and annual
report of the number of sheep killed or injured by dogs, and loss sustained thereby, and
the condition of the dog tax fund; draw warrants for interest and principal of funded debts;
is county Sealer-of weights and measures, and may appoint deputy Sealer; is ex-officio
Secretary of the County Commissioners.

TrEASURER.— Elected bi-ennially (18go); takes office first Monday of September after
election; gives bonds acceptable to the Commissioners, who may require additional sureties,
and fill vacancies; paid by percentage of collections. Duties are, to collect taxes and
public funds and disburse same upon State and County Auditors’ warrants. When he
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receives money he shall issue duplicate receipts, and deliver one to person payving and one
to Auditor; shall give notice of rates of tax when he receives tax duplicate from County
Auditor and shall keep office open for the collection of taxes from the time duplicates are
received to January 25th, and from April 1stto July zoth. For duties and laws governing
the collection and payment of taxes, see heading called ¢¢Taxes.” He shall pay State
Treasurer, upon warrant of State Auditor, amount due State, and all other moneys upon
warrant of County Aditor; deliver to successor all public property in his possession; shall
together with the County Auditor, publish statement of amount of money in each fund in
treasury, on first day of February, and last day of August: shall make settlement with County
Commissioners annually on first Monday of September.

Examination of books and funds of Treasurer is made as follows: Once every six
months an examination of the books and funds of the County Treasurer is made by the Com-
missioners and Auditor.  Also, once in six months by two persons of opposite politics
appointed by the Probat: Judge. An examination may also be made on petition of twenty
tax payers.

If County Treasurer fail to make settlement or pay over oney, the County Auditor,
on advice of Commissioners or State Auditor, shall institute suit against Treasurer and his
sureties.  If examiners of treasury report that an embezzlement has heen committed, the
County Commissioners shall remove Treasurer and appoint another.

CrLerk oF THE Courrs.—Clerk, Court of Common Pleas; ex-officio Clerk Circuit
Court; elected tri-ennially, (18g0); Takes office February gth, following election; bond
approved by County Commissioners, not less than $10,000 nor more than %40,000; vacancy
filled by County Commissioners; may appoint deputy to be approved by Court of Common
Pleas.

Duties, to indorse time of filing all pleadings or papers filed in his office, and enter all
orders, decrees, judgments and proceedings of the Court of which he is by law the clerk.

Make record of every cause, unless by law or Court dispensed with; on failure to make
record, may be removed; shall pay over to the proper parties all money coming into his
hands as Cler«; administer oaths: take and cenify affidavits, depositions and acknowledg-
ments; make special report of crimes to Secretary of State; make quadrennial report of
male inhabitants over twenty-one years of age to Auditor of State; furnish poll books and
tally sheets for elections; take charge of all law books.

tri-ennially, (18g0); takes

Remuneration, fees, see Statutes.

Rrcorner. — Elected

Duties, to hold inquest upon bodies or persons whose death is supposed to have been
caused by violence; may issue subpoenas for witnesses; administer oath and inquire;
reduce testimony to writing; return to Court of Common Pleas with findings and recogni-
zance.

As part of findings, must give description of deceased; notify relatives; make inventory
of property found upon person. Probate Court makes disposition of property.

TFees, see Statutes.

He may order witness to give bond to appear at succeeding term of Court, and may
commit persons so neglecting to give bond, to prison of County.

If person or persons charged in his findings is present at inquest, he shall arrest and
convey such persons immediately before a proper officer for an examination according to
law, and if not present, shall inform one or more Justices and Prosecuting Attorney; may
issue writ to Constable or any discreet person. If Coroner refuses to perform duty, may
be fined on conviction, not to exceed $500.

SurvEYOR. —Elected tri-ennially, (1889); takes office first Monday in January; bond of
$3000.00 to satisfaction of Commissioners; may appoint three deputies; bond optional;
Common Pleas Court fills vacancies; if in vacation County Commissioners may fill vacancies;
calculations to ascertain contents of a plat of land, if to be used in evidence, must be made
by latitude and departure; surveyor may swear and examine witnesses and take testimony
in writing; may call upon Sheriff to remove obstructions if interfered with in discharge of
duty, and persons interfering shall be subject to prosecution.

Chain-men must take oath, and their fees paid in advance if required; no other Sur-
veyor's re-survey to be taken in evidence except by mutual consent, or by appointment of
Court; County Surveyor may administer oath and take acknowledgments; official records
(open to inspection) shall be kept of his own, and approved surveys of other Surveyors,

Shall, upon application, survey lands sold for taxes; compensation, fees, see Statutes;
must deliver to successor all property in his office; may be removed by civil action and

. sued on his bond; may be called upon to plant monuments and establish lines; may issue war-

rants for witnesses and take their deposition by giving notice; keep record and deliver
original to person employing himy; such record, evidence in Court, (except deposition of
witness, unless dead). May ascertain extent of trespass on canal, school or Ministerial
lands, and report to Prosecuting Attorney.

INFiRMARY DireCTORS.—Three Infirmary Directors;

office first Monday of January; bond $2,000.00 approv-
ed by County Commissioners; may appoint deputy to be
approved by Court of Common Pleas; vacancies filied
by County Commissioners; must keep four (nine) sets
of records: viz., Deeds, Mortgages, Plats, Leases,
Soldier’s Discharge, Liens, Railroad Liens, Miscellane-
ous Records and Chattel Mortgage Index; must endorse
receipt of papers and exact time of day received, and
give receipt if required.

Must record in regular succession in proper record
boek, all papers presented that are required by luw to
be recorded, within twenty days after receipt; must,
upon application, furnish certified copies; deliver seal
and books to successor; liable to suit on bond for neg-
lect of duty: way transcribe records of other Counties
pertaining to hts County, when ordered by Commis-
sioners,

Alphabetical index to be made and kept up; general
index of sub-division to be made when ordered by Com-

one elected every vear and holds office three years,
commencing first Monday in January; Commissioners
approve bond, not less than $2,000 nor more than
$70,000, and shall fill vacancy; majority a quorumj
shall elect President and Clerk at annual meeting; shall
make all contracts and purchases for Infirmary; pre-
scribe rules for management for same; meet quarterly
at Infirmary; have special meetings when necessary.

Clerk shall keep record open to inspection; they
shall appoint a Superintendent and fix his salary, who
shall reside at the Inflrmary or contiguous thereto, and
give bond not less than $2,000; he must receive inmate
upon. proper legal voucher; keep itemized accounts;
Directors shall, first Monday in March, certify to
County Commissioners amount needed for support of
Infirmary; may make needful repairs to the amount of
$z00 annually.

Auditor shall receive vouchers given by Directors,
countersigned by Clerk; Directors shall quarterly

missioners,
Fees payable in advance; deeds and plats must be transferred by Auditor before
recorded.

SHERIFF. —Sheriff elected bi ennially, (1890); takes office first Monday in January;
bond approved by Commissioners, not less than $5000, nor more than $50,000; additional
sureties may be required.

Commissioners fill vacancies,
of Common Pleas.

Duties, to preserve the public peace; execute all warrants, writs and other processes
directed to him by proper legal authority; attend upon Common Pleas and Circuit Court
during session and Probate when required; may call to his aid in the execution of his duties,
persons or power of the County; shall have charge of Court House under directionof County
Commissioners: shall keep foreign execution docket and cash book; books shall be open to
examination; deliver books, money, process goods and prisoners to successor; may be
altowed by Court, for Criminal business, extra compensation. Remuneration, fees, see
Statute; Sherifi to have charge of jail and all persons confined therein; shall govern and
regulate the same according to rules prescribed by Court of Common Pleas; shall keep a
jail register; shall file, November 1st, jail report with Clerk, Auditor and Secretary of
State; shall visit jail and examine into condition of prisoners once a month, and once dur-
ing each term of Court; cause cells and rooms of prisoners to be white-washed three times
each year; may appointdeputy to be keeper of jail.

Sheriff appoints deputies approved by Judge of Court

May be fired for neglect of duty;: printed rules furnished by Court to be posted in each
room and cell, and provide prisoners fuel, bed, washing and nursing.

Prosecurise ATTorRNEY. —Elected tri-ennially (1888), takes office first Monday in
January after election; bond fixed by Court of Common Pleas or Probate Court, in sum of
not less than $1oo0.00; vacancies filled by Court of Common Pleas. Dulies, legal advice
of County officers; shall prepare all official bonds of same; prosecute all claims in Probate,
Common Dleas and Circuit Court, in which the State is a party; may nolle cases by con-
sent of Court; must make annual report to Attorney General, and County Commissioners.
Salary and fees, see Statutes.

Coroxgr.—Coroner is elected bi-ennially, (1890); holds office from lirst Monday in
January: bond, approved by Commissioners, not less than $3,000; vacancie: filled by
Commissioners.

inspect Infirmary, farm, paupers and accounts of Sup-
erintendent, and report first Monday of March and September to Commissioners, with
complete statistical information concerning the Institution; may remove foreign paupers;
must keep separate rooms for lunatics, idiots and epileptics;.must care for persons requir-
ing public relief in institution; may transfer children to private charitable homes; may

TI)I)Fe11t1ce pauper males until eighteen years of age, females to sixteen. ' Compensation fixed
hy Statu e.

OFTFICERS APPOINTED.

CuiLDREN's Home.—Board of Trustees appointed by Commissioners to hold office
one, t\\"0 and three years respectively, from first Monday of March, and receive no com-
pensation; tney shall designate a Superintendent, who shall have entire charge of said
Home. Trustees shall, under direction of Superintendent,appoint Matron and assistant Matron
and "l‘eachers, whose duties are to direct employment of the children and give them suitable
physical, mental and moral training. Matron has supervision of household duties; assistant
and teachers are under direction of Trustees. A

{\dmission: Children under sixteen years of age, of sound mind, free from contagious
and infectious disease; residents in the County not less than one year. Children from
other Counties where there is no home admitted upon suth terms as can be agreed
upon ‘between Trustees and party having custody of child.

Children under three years, whose mother is an inmate of Infirmary, cannot be trans-
ferred to Children’s Home.

Children in Infirmary or found by Township Trustees eligible to Children’s Homé,
shall be certified to Trustees of Children’s Home, who shall admit them. Eligible children
found abandoned and destitute, shall be provided for temporarily by Superintendent.
'(lzhildr;n} neglected and abused by parents may be sent to Children’s Home by Trustees of

ownship.

Trustees have control of children until sixteen years of age, unless adopted or indentured,
and may find suitable homes for inmates. ' .

Trustees to make quarterly report to Commissioners and make certain contracts with
them. See Statute.

SoLprers’ RErier CoaumissioN.—The fund livied by the County Commissioners for
the relief of indigent soldiers and sailors is distributed by the above commission, which is
composed of three persons, residents of the county, two. of whom are ex-soldiers, and to
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serve for three years. They shall meet on the fourth Monday of November, and at such
other times as may be necessary to make a list of and fix the amount to be paid per month
to each person or family, who has made application to said commission for aid, and certify
the same to the Auditor, who shall, on the first day of cach month, issue warrant upon the
County 'Ireasurer, payable to Township Treasurer for the amount so fixed by the commis-
sion; said commission may increase, decrease or discontinue, as they may see proper any
allowance they may have awarded.  They shall also on first Monday in January appoint
for each township and ward in any city a soldiers’ relief committee of three persons, hon-
orably discharged Union soldiers, sailors or marines, whose duty it shall be to receive all
applications for relief, to examine carefully into the case of each applicant, and on first
Monday in May make a list of names of all indigent Union soldiers, sailors and marines,
indigent parents, wives, widows, and minor children of same, who are residents in such
township or ward, bona fide residents of the State one year and of the county six months next
prior to first Monday in May, who in the opinion of the committee require aid and are en-
titled to relief, and deliver such list to the commission before lust Monday in May. Said
statements to set forth the amount of taxable property each applicant may have,

TOWNSHIP OFFICERS.

Llection held on first Monday of April, annually, at place appointed by Trustees.
They shall elect a Clerk for two vears; Trustee for three vears; Treasnrer for two years:
Assessor for one year, for each election precinct: and such number of Constables as Trus-
tees may direct, for three years: and one Supervisor of roads (by the electors of) for each
Road District, for one year.

Where no election is held Trustees appoint and fill all vacancies, except Trustees which
is filled by Justice.

Penalty of $2.00 for refusing to hold office. Clerk immediately after election gives
notice to Township officers elected or appointed, to appear and qualify by taking oath and
giving bond within ten days after election. But Clerk and Treasurer (who take office
September 1st), may do so any time before that date. If oath is taken before any officer,
except Clerk, certificate shall be filed with Clerk. If elective officer fail to take oath or
give bond, if required, it is deemed a declination and vacancy filled.

TREASURER, — Treasurer shail give bond to Trustees. May be required to give addi-
tional surety, or new bond when Trustees deem necessary, and if refuses within ten days,
office considered vacant. Bond recorded by Clerk.
When money received from County Treasurerfor road
IJ(II‘I)OSCS; shall notify Trustees. Books, accounts
and vouchers and money in treasury, at all times sub-
ject to inspection of Trustees; and they shall make an
examination of same at least once each vear, or
canse some competent person to do it,

No money ta be paid out by Treasurer except
upon order of Trustees, countersigned by Clerk.
AMust deliver  all property in his possession  as
Treastirer to successor.  In case of death, administra-
tor shall do it.  Where no fire or burglar proof safe
has been provided, funds may be deposited in bank
or other safe place. Treasurer held responsible for
maney lost.

CLERK. — Township Clerk shall give bond to
Trustees. Keep account of the proceedings of the
Trustees. Record all Township roads established
by Trustees. Record ear marks or brands of cattle, hogs and sheep used by owners.
Keep three sets of books:  viz., Record of Township Roads, Marks and Brands, Official
Oaths and Bonds; make detailed statement of receipts, expenditures and all habilities of
Township, immediately after township officers have made their annual settlement.

Also statement of receipts, expenses and liabilities of Township Board of Education,
and shall set up copy of same on the morning of the first Monday of April, annually, at
place of holding Township meetings; may be fined for neglect; may administer oaths,
take and certify affidavits in all business pertaining to Township and Board of Education,
and renew chattel mortgages: shall report bonds of Township Officers, and copy of bond
evidence in Court.

TrUsTEES. — Trustees shall meet annually, first Monday in March, and divide Town-
ship into Road Districts when it has not been divided, and make any alteration they think
proper; agree as to the number of Constables to be voted for, settle with Treasurer and
Supervisor and others; money received from County Treasurer for roads and bridges, shall
be appropriated and work let to lowest bidder (if competent), and when work is done, draw
order for the payment of same.

Purchase plows and scrapers and put in hands of Supervisors; Trustees pay judgment
against "Uownship upon notice of Clerk that certified abstract from Justice has been filed,
unless it is appealed to higher Court; Trustees may restrain all persons, except Physicians
and attendants, from visiting all places where infectious discases prevail and prevent people
from infected districts coming into Township, and shall make arrangements to prevent
spread of infection.

Trustees may submit the question of Cemetery to voters of Township, at April election;
if «favorable, Trustees may accept, purchase or appropriate lands for Cemetery, and levy
taxes to purchase and keep in repair, lay out in lots, make plat, make and enforce all needful
rules and regulations; may appoint three Directors to take charge, but control vested in
said Trustees,

Directors appointed annually and hold office for three years, from first Monday in May
after appointment.

Two or more Townships may unite in care of joint cemetery. Soldier’s Monument
erected by the people, erected on public ground, may be enclosed by the Trustees; take
care of monument and keep the same in repair, the amount not to exceed annual average of
#25; hearse and vault may be provided.

In Townships having villages of not more than rooo inhabitants, may submit the ques-
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tion of public library to people upon petition of twenty voters, and if voted yes, may levy
taX Lo maintain, and appoint three Trustees of library.  School libraries may be transferred
to public library by consent of School Board, after voting ves.

Question of Town Hall submitted to electors, at spring or fall election; if voted *“ Yes,”
Trustees may levy tax, borrow wmoney and issue bonds in anticipation of taxes; may in
their discretion purchase second story of a building; may lease what is not needed to
private persons; may receive donations for Township use by devise, deed or gift any
real or personal property.

After voting ves, may sell any buildings not needed, may purchase stone or gravel to
improve public roads, not to exceed Sroo any one year; may condemn gravel bed; owner
of bed may appeal to Probate Court if compensation not enough; may issue bonds in antic-
ipation of taxes: mayv afford public support and relief to residents of Township needing it;
on complaint, Trustees shall visit persons requiring relief; shall remove foreign paupers.

Shall make semi-annual settlement with Clerk for expenses ineurred for support of poor,
first Monday of March and September: shall bury paupers or unknown persons and be
refunded by County Commissioners out of County Treasury on warrant of County Auditor.

Constapre.—Constables give bond to Trustees: vacancies filled by Township Trustees.
Justices may appoint Constable for special purpose; for such appointed Constable, Justice
shall stand as surety. Constables are ministerial officers in Justices” Court in their town-
ships.

Duties: To serve amd execute warrants, writs, precepts, executions and other processes
to him directed; may call to their aidd power of the county in discharge of duties; must
make due returns of process on proper day and to proper party. ’

Must note time of receiving writ and time of serving it; must go to defendant’s resi-
dence before returning ‘‘not found;” must apprehend on view or warrant and bring to
justice felons and violators of the law, and suppress all riots and affrays, and unlawful
assemblics which may come under his knowledge, and generally keep the peace in his
proper County.

Duties generally extend throughout the County: shall have and exercise the same
authority and power over goods and chattels, and the person of parties, as is granted by
law to a Sheriff or Coroner, under like process issned from Courts of Record; when required
by creditor, may levy any execution in his hands upon personal property already levied
upon, and in custody of the Sheriff or other officers or persons having charge of said
property.  Shall leave copy of process with jailer, when
it shall become his duty to take the body of any person
to the jail: shall pay over to the party entitled thereto
all moneys received by him in his official capacity, if
demand be made by such party, agent or attorney
before returning writ to Justice: if no demand is
made shall pay same to Justice.

Penalties of ten per cent. are added to judgments
entered against constable for failing to make re-
turns, making false returns or failing to pay over
money by him collected.

AssEssoR-—Assessor gives bond to Trustees of
Township not less than $r,000.  Bond with oath of
office indorsed to bereturned to Township Clerk and
recorded.  Vacancies filled by County Auditor.

Clerk shall notify Auditor of qualification.
CORDAGE WORKS,

. Duties: Assessor shall make a list of valuation of
all property in his township or precinet now or hereafter taxalile, and discharge such other
duties as may be imposed upon him by law,

Must actually administer oath to every person upon whom he calls to list property for
taxation, and to urge and insist upon a strict compliance to law in the making of said list.
Failing to do so he is guilty of a misdemeanor and on conviction be fined not less than $1o,
nor more than $200.  Not required if person declines or is unable from sickness or absence.
The following statistics shall be taken by him in listing property for taxation:  Agriculture,
Manufactures, Water Crafts, Mines and Miners’ Wages, Investments and Social, and
return statistics to County Auditor with personal property lists.

Penalty for failure from Sz20 to $100. Persons failing to make returns shall forfeit from
$50 to $100.  Shall make quadrennial enumeration of deaf and dumb, blind, insane, and
idiotic.  Also once every four vears the enumeration of male inhabitants over twenty-one
years of age.  All blanks necessary furnished by the Auditor.  For fees of Township officers,
see Statutes. '

SUPERVISOR. —A Supervisor of Roads ix elected annually by the electors in each road
district in the Township. Gives bond with sureties approved by the Trustees, which is
deposited with the Clerk.

Supervisor must be resident of district in which he is elected. No voter shall vote for
more than one Supervisor, and that the one in his district.

Duties: To open and keep in repair all public roads laid out in his district; to remove
all encroachments and obstructions, by fence or otherwise, that may from time to time be
found thereon; may enter upon land unincumbered by crops near to or adjoining roads, cut
or carry away certain timber, gravel, sand or stone, which may be necessary to make or
improve any road, and pay reasonable compensation assessed by Trustees to owner; owner
may appeal decision; Supervisor may enter upon such lands and make drains or ditches in
same, necessary for the benefit of the road, and conduct to the nearest water course,
which drain shall not be obstructed by any one, under penalty of a fine of ten dollars.
All male peréons between the ages of twenty-one and fifty-five, able to perform the
Jabor herein required, except honorably discharged soldiers, pensioners, acting and contrib-
uting members of companies of O. N. G., members of fire engine, hook and ladder, hose,
and other companies (who receive no pay for services), shall perform two days’ labor
each year on highway, under direction of Supervisor. In lieu of labor, must pay $3.co.
But no labor shall be performed on any road not regulirly laid out and established by law.
Shall impound swine running at large; shall remove drift from bridges, etc., and
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obstructions in ditches, culverts, etc.; construct foot-walk, foot-bridge, ete., when author-
ized by Trustees; give Trustees receipt for plows and scrapers; Township Clerkshall certify
road tax to Supervisor; passways may be comsiructed by land owner under direction of
supervisor. Shall allow inhab:tants same compensationas road work for extinguishing fires in
woods.  If public good demands it, may fill up mill race or water course constructed by
private parties across public highway, if thirty days’ notice of such construction is not given
to Trustees; shall supervise in improving and graveling road near turnpike, and allow com-
pensation; shall destroy weeds, burrs, bushes and briers in July, August, September and
October, and allow reasonable compensation to land owner for doingit. Shall turn over
balance of money in his hands to successor and take receipt; shall level off earth and gravel
hauled into public road at his direction; in opening new roads, persons employed shall
work under direction of Supervisor; shall collect by suit or otherwise, fines, forfeitures
and penalties aceruing under the laws governing Supervisors; shall direct where persons
employed shall work. Protection fence for hedge or live fence shall be permitted by the
Supervisor for seven years, and continued by Trustees indcfinitely; said fence may occupy
six feet of the road.  Supervisors shall superintend labor on the road and give receipt for
Township roads not less than thirty fect wide. commencing in State Turnpike,
Township or County road shall be opened and kept in repair by Supervisor; shall settle
with Trustees first Monday of March; Supervisor of hamlets appointed by Trustees; shall
notify in writing persons who unlawfully put or permit dead animals, offal, ete., upon land
or water.

services.

CHURCHES OF SUMMIT COUNTY.
THEIR DISTINCTIVE FEATURES.

As this is (uite a wooted question amonyg a farge proportion of even Christian people,
we have endeavored to give the important differences in creeds of those denominations
jucated in Summit County, and as much as possible the location of churches and number of
wembers. The detail non-taxable table will ¢nable
the reader to get a more complete location of the

churches and their value as rated by assessors.

NoTE: The number following the name of 4 chureh represents the
pumber of members,

APOSTLES CREED.

I believe in God the Father Almighty, Maker of
heaven and earth; and in Jesus Christ, His only
begotten Son, our Lord; who was conceived by the
Holy Ghost, born of the Virgin Mary; suffered under
PPontius Pilate; was crucified, dead, and buried; He
descended into Hades; the third day he rose from the
dead; he ascended into heaven, and sitteth on the right
hand of God the Father Almighty; from whence he
shall come to judge the quick and the dead. I believe
in the Holy Ghost; the holy Catholic Church; the
communion of saints; the forgivenessof sins; theresur-

rection of the body, and the life everlasting.  Amen.

BAPTIST.

The Baptists t-ace their origin to the primitive
Church itself, and refer to the Acts of the Apostles
and their Epistles for evidence that theirleading doc-
trines had the sanction of inspiration. They believe
in the Trinity; adopted the Westminster Confession
of Faith with some omissions and changes.
ment, congregational. They are distinguished by
their denial of baptism of infants. They baptize by
immersion only, Believing that immersion in water
is the baptism enjoined in the New Testament. In this country, the Baptists are close
communion. Akron (1st Ward), members, 255; Akron (1st Ward, Shiloh): Coventry
{Welsh); West Richfield; Sherman, 50; Twinshurg Center.

Govern-

"The German Baptists adopted the Bible as their creed without any catechism or other
confession of faith. TForm of government is Congregational. Believe in baptism by
immersion, unpaid ministry, non-conformity to the world in dress, etc. Not to take oath
or to engage in war. In addition to these views and belief in the Trinity, ete. {the funda-
mental doctrines of Christians), they agree not to go to law, or to invoke the aid of the
civil authorities even in self-defense; to refuse interest on money; to salute one another
with the kiss of charity; to anoint the sick with oil for recovery, and to celebrate the
communion in connection with the Agape or love feast (in imitation of the Paschal Supper),
feet-washing, the salutation or ‘*holy kiss,” and give the right hand of fellowship. They
also adopt the trine immersion (in the name of the Father, the Son, and the Holy Ghost),
the candidate kneeling, and being plunged by a forward movement under the water.

Springfield, members, 100.

THE CHRISTIAN SCIENCE CHURCH.

All are members of this church who subscribe in the beart to the following statement
of Faith: Godis. Godis All. God is The Good. Thus The Good is All.  As The Good is
All, that which is not Good is nes.  Therefore evil is non est.

God is Immortal Spirit.  As God is All, so Twmortal Spirit is All, and that which is
not Immortal Spiritis #er  Therefore, Mortality is nan esi.

God is Life.  As God is All, so Lifeis All, and that which is not Life is xot,
fare, death is wen est.

God is Truth. As God is A, so Truth is All, and that which is not Truth is nor,
Therefore, Sin (error) is non est,

God is Love. As God is All, so Love'is All, and that which is not Love is nor.

Therefore, hate (unloveliness) is non est.

There-
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As God is All, so Peace is All, and that which is not Peace is nof.

Therefore, disease (unpeace) is non est.
God is Mind. All, so Mind is All, and that which is not Mind is noes,

Therefore, matter is non est.

God is Peace.
As God is

Akron, membership, 50.
CHURCH OF GOD, OR WINEBRENNERIANS.

The Church of God is a sect named from its founder, the Rev. John Winebrenner, of
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. It isa small Baptist denomination established in 1830c. They
reject infant baptism, and practice immersion, and the literal washing of the Saints’ feet,
as an appointed ordinance. They hold that domestic slavery and civil war are sinful, and
believe in the personal reign of Christ.

Comet, members, 30; Copley (Lot 27); Greensburg (Lot 12), 25.

CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH.

The Congregationalists hold to a system of church government which embraces these
two principles; viz., (1) that every local congregation of believers united for worship, sacra-
ments and discipline, is a complete church, and not to be subject in government to any
ecclesiastical authority outside of itself; and (2) that all such local churches are in com-
munion with one another, and bound to fulfill all the duties involved in such fellowship.

Like the Presbyterians they build their institutions upon the principle of educated
ministers, and believe in the eternal blessedness of the righteous and the everlasting punish-
ment of the wicked.

While ¢ sprinkling or affusion” is the customary mode of baptism, adults may choose
the mode they prefer.

The doctrine of the Lord’s Supper is variously held though rarely debated.

While only persons professing change of heart are admitted to communion, the mem-
bership of all evangelical churches are freely welcomed.

The church may excommunicate a member, and no power outside can replace him in
that church; but as the effect of that excommunica-
tion is to cut him off from the communion of all |
churches. the other churches have the right (and in
some cases it is their duty) to examine the case,
and if the church appears to have erred, to recom-
mend his restoration; in default of which they
determine that his fellowship with them -ought to
continue, and they advise any church to which he
may apply to receive him.

Akron (1st Ward), members, 810; Akron (3d
Ward), 194; Copley Center (Lot 28); C(uyahoga
Falls, 150; Hudson (Calvinistic), 257; Richfield
Center, 61; Sherman, 1z; Tallmadge Center, 295;
Twinsburg Ceater, 134.

DISCIPLES OF CHRIST.

The Disciples of Christ wish to be known only
by the names applied to followers. of Christ in the
inspired word, believing that sectarian names are
unscriptural.  They rvepudiate all Awman creeds as of
any binding authority. TReceiving Jesus in all his -
divinity and Christhood, they accept the truth that
he is the Christ, as ke one article of faith, the creed
ot the church.

Immersion with them is the only baptism that is
scriptural, and hold that faith and repentance are
the divinely appointed antecedents of baptism.
(Baptizing for ¢“the remission of sins,” they claim
that the sinner in obeying the ordinance, appropri-
ates God’'s pardon), relying on the divine testimony ¢ He that believeth and is baptized
shall be saved;”i. e., pardoned, and that i( is the privilege and duty of the Christian min-
ister to say to all who believe and repent, ““Be immersed, every one of you, in the name of
the Lord Jesus Christ, for the remission of sins, and you shall receive the gift of the Holy
Spirit.” .

They are congregational in their organization.
doctrine and discipline. Their motto:
silent where it is silent.”

The Bible is their only book of
“The Bible—to speak when it speaks and to be

Akron (2d \\’afcl, First), members, 551; Akron (6th Ward, Second), 120; Copley
Center; Cuyahoga Falls, 1o0; East Liberty, 15: Manchester, 135; Mogadore, 6o.

EPISCOPAL.

.'I'he‘ﬁrst part of the name of the Protestant Episcopal Church indicates its position
relatively to the Roman Catholic Church, as protesting against the errors and repudiating
the claims of that church, its supremacy in doctrine, discipline, and worship; the second
pa‘rt of the title expresses its attitude toward other Christian bodies who have rejected
episcopacy on the ground that it is not of divine origin.

The history of this church is of more than ordinary interest; on the one hand it has
been compelled to resist the Roman Catholics in their progress, and on the other, been

forc':ed to maintain its position among Protestants without being able to unite in any concert
action with them.

They Dbelieve the bishops to be the successors of the Apostles, and that they possess in
their own persons the right of ordination and jurisdiction; being overseers not only of the
people, but also of the clergy. The High-Church' theory maintains the dizine right of
episcopacy, and its absolute necessity to the existence of the church. .

The Low-Church deny that there is any Scriptural comman

d which makes episcopacy
to be of the essence of a church. o . I P
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The High-Church maintain and the Low-Church reject the theory of the * exclusive
validity of episcopal orders,”

Akron (St Pauly; Cuyrahoga Falls (St. John’s), members, 150; Hudson, 40; Peninsula
(Bethel), zo0.

EVANGELICAL ASSOCIATION.

The Confession of Faith and the polity of this church are similar to that of the Metho-
dist Episcopal. Like the M. E. it has Annual Conferences, and a General Conference
which meets every four vears. Its form of government is Episcopal, but its bishops are
elected only for a term of four years.

Akron (sth Ward, Calvary), members. 291: Bath (Lot 48): Coventry (Hope) s1;
Greensburg, 100; East Liberty, 3.1.

HUEBREW,

The primitive form of Christianity was Jewish Christianity, The divine decalogue
received by Moses on Mt. Sinai contain not only the fundamental points of every moral
and legal code, but alse includes the sublime doctrine of monotheisi, the great social
institution of the Sabbath, and the lofty precept ““Thou shalt not covet.” These com-
mandments together with the successively promulgated statutes, precepts, etc., constitutes
the Mosaic law, which is contained principally in the 2d and 3d and repeated in the gth
book of the Pentateuch and for about fifteen centuries remained, and with the exception of
a strictly national part, is still the general code of the Hebrews.

The prayers which take the place of the daily sacrifices are offered up also at those
hours when the daily sacrifices were made.

The main part of the daily service was the Shema and the eighteen benedictions, The
prayer was follow.d on Sabbath and festivals by the reading of the sections of the law, after
which a section from the Prophets was read. Then came the homily or exposition. The
service closed with the benediction, to which the congregati n responded by saying
“Amen.”  The elders and the rulers of the synagogue constitute the local Sanhedrim,

Hebrew Synagogue, Akron (1st Ward).

LUTHERAN.,

I'he Lutheran Church endorses the Apostles’ Creed and holds that the Augsburg Con-
fession of Faith contains a correct exhibition of
the fundamental doctrines of the word of God and R
of the faith of their church founded upon that i
word.

Akron (15t Ward, Eng. Trinity), members, 494;
Akron (2d Ward, German), 730; Clinton (Evan-
gelical), go; Franklin (Livangelical), 82; East
Liberty; ILoyal Oak (Evangelical), 200; Man-
chester.

METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH.

“The Apostles” Creed is the M. I¥ Church creed.
Iivery person to be baptized may have the choice
of sprinkling, pouring or immersion; they believe
in infant baptismm. No one to be received into
full membership until such person has been at
least six manths on probation.

Class meetings were organized to establish a
system of pastoral oversight thatshould effectively
reach every member of the church.

The churches are supplied with pastors by the
itinerant system. ? ; ;

Akron (2d Ward), members, 1080; Akron (4th ‘ s Rt e
Ward), 52; Akron (6th Ward, Grace), 159; Bath (Lot
28); Clinton, 18; Cuyahoga Talls, 232; Hudson,
34; Johnson’s Corners, 6o; Macedonia, 40; Mogadore, 125; New Portage, 140; North-
field, 4o; Peninsula. 100; Pleasant Valley, 75; West Richfield, 6o; Stow, 30; Tallmadge
Center, r12; Twinsburg (Tract 3, Lot 1o); Akron (North Hill), 49: Akron (South Endy;
Akron (Zion A. M. L),

PRESBYTERIAN,

The doctrines of this church are found in the Westminster Confession of Faith, and in
the larger and shorter Catechisms.  They believein One Gad; One Word, the Scriptures of
the Old and New Testaments; One Condemnation; One Savior, the Tord Jesus Christ:
One Atonement for Sin; One Spirit, God the Holy Ghost; One Life, the life hid with Christ
in God—the life eternal; One Church, which is Christ’s bodv: Two Sacraments, Baptismn
and the Lord’s Supper: One Judgment.

Presbyterianism is the government of elders. It is distinguished from others by the
ascending series of appellate courts: Session, Presbytery, Synod and General Assembly.
While modeled after the plan laid down by Calvin, they accept his views with qualifications
and claim S5t. Paul as the author of their system.

Their views are set forth in the decisions of the Svnod of Dort.  The doctrine of
predestination or fore-ordination is guarded from fatalism in several ways. Elect infants
dying in infancy, and other elect persons who are incapable of the outward call are saved
by Christ through the Spirit.

Baptism is administered by pouring or sprinkling: immersion is not forbidden, but is
pronounced unnecessary.

The key ta their declining to bow to the name of Jesus, avoiding the sign of the cross
in baptism and its form in church architecture, refusing sponsors and confirmation. not
marrying with a ring, discountenancing clevrical vestments, ete., is found in the principle that
nothing is allowable in divine worship but what is divinely commanded.

Akron (6th Ward, First), members, 130; North Springfield, 6o: Thomastown (Welsh).

REFORMED.
The doctrinal standard of this church is found in the Heidelberg Catechism, which
teaches the doctrine of natural depravity, and salvation by free grace alone, but it does

HOTEL BUCHTEL, AKRON, OHIO.

not teach a double decree—a decree of reprobation and salvation, and leaves room for
differences of opinion on this subject. The Apostles’ Creed is given a central position in
this Catechism.

The polity is presbyterial. Every congregation is governed by a consistory, composed
of the pastor, elders and deacons. The various judicatories are named—Consistory,
Classis, District Synod and General Synod.

It has a liturgy, known as < The Directory of Worship,” an order in which the people
take part with the minister in the worship of God. In its eschatology, this church teaches
the cternal rewards of the righteous, and the ‘everlasting punishment” of the wicked.

Sprinkling is the mode of baptism, but other modes are considered valid. The baptism
of infants is universally observed. Sponsors are allowed, but the parents must also be
present and assume the obligations.

The principal church festivals, Christmas, Good Friday, Easter, and Pentecost are
held in ligh honor and observed with munch solemnity,

Akron (2d Ward, First), members, 1043; Akron (2d Ward, Grace), g30; Grill’s (St
Peter’s), 35: ] hnson's Corners (Salem), 62; East Liberty (Good Hope). 93; Loyal QOak
{Grace), tqo; Manchester { Emenaunel), 35; Manchester (Trinity), 170; Millheim, 50; New
Portage (First), 25; Portage (North Hill, Trinity), 181.

ROMAN CATHOLIC.

The Roman Catholic Church is a spiritual monarchy, culminating in the Pope, who
claims to be the infallible head of the church,

The people must obey the priest; the priests, the bishop; and the bishops, the Pope, to
whom they are bound by oath. ’

‘This church receives its members into life by baptism, and dismisses them into the
other world by extreme-unction. Their worship is the same all over the world even in
langunage, the Latin being its sacred organ,

They bold that there is a purgatory; but where this place may be, of what nature or
quality the pains be, or how long souls may be there detained, in what manner
the suffrages may on their behalf be appl.ed—are questions superfluous and impertinent to
the faith. The confession of sins is considered to be one of the seven sacraments. Since
the 16th century the custom of paying a tax to the
priest hearing confessions was generally optional.

The priest who hears the confession must
observe, with regard to it, absolute silence. No
exception zwhatever is allowed to this rule.

Akron (2d Ward, St. Bernard, German); Akron
(3d Ward, St. Vincent De Paul's), members, 1250;
Akron (sth Ward, St. Mary’s), 500; Cuyahoga
Falls (St. Joseph), 150; Hudson (St. Mary’sy, 18o0;
Peninsula, 1350.

UNITED BRETHREN,

is distinguished as an organization in which the
ministry and the people have an equal proportion
of power, and the rulers hold office only by the
authority of the governed. The itinerant system
isused to supply the churches with pastors. They
believe in the Trinity.

Slavery, the use of intoxicating drinks as a
beverage, and the making and trading in ardent
spirits, Iree Masonry, and other secret societies
-~ are prohibited on pain of excommunication.

There shall be no rule adopted that shall
infringe upon the rights of any as relates to the
mode of baptism, and sacrament of the Lord’s Supper.  Also the example of washing feet is
left to the judgment of every one, to practice or not; and any of the preachers or members,
who shall traduce any of their brethren whose judgment and understanding in these respects
are different from their own, either in public or private, shall be considered a traducer of
his brethren, and shall be answerable for the same.

Bath (Lot 58); Copley (Lot 11); Copley (Lot 13); Coventry, members, 50; Clinton,

130: Hammond’s Corners: Richfield (Tract 3, Lot 14); Western Star, 22.
UNITED PRESBYTERIAN.

The United Presbyterian Church is distinguished by the exclusive use of the Scriptural
Psalmody in the worship of God. The exclusion from membership of persons who belong
to oath-bound secret associations or societies, which require a promise to obey a code
of unknown laws; and the practice of restricted communion.

Metz, members, go; Northfield Center, 83.

UNIVERSALISM.

Universalism is the form of faith which they hold who declare that all souls will finally
be saved.  The organization and government of this body is essentially congregational.

The * have no academy for one sex only; they would have education Christian, butnot
sectarian.

In its doctrine of the Divine Person, Universalism is essentially Unitarian.

Universalists believe that thete is one God who is the Father of all souls: and that, in
this.and all worlds, his treatment of his children—both the evil and the good
spired by His desire to make them holy and happy. ,

In respect to the nature of Jesus, different views are held; some believing that in him
the moral and spiritual qualities of human nature reached the complete development; while
others credit him with superhuman attributes. All, however, agreein accepting him as the per-

fect teacher and guide, the highest revelation of what God is and would have us to become,
Universalists regard the opposite results of good and evil conduct as essential parts of
a moral and spiritual education, to be continued in this life and the next until its mission is
accomplished in the final holiness of all souls. :
Akron (15t Ward), members, 300.

will be in-

The church of the United Brethren in Christ .




BARBERTON, OHIO.

Only eighteen months have passed since our newspapers broke the monotony of indus-
trial routine by vague rumors of an extensive Salt and Potash plant soon to be erected in
the neighborhood of New Portage. Several farms in Norton township were purchased by
the parties interested, upon which to establish the proposed industry. Subsequent investi-
gations developed the fact that the site selected could not advantageously be used as a place
What to
do with the land purchased was the serious problem then presented to the purchasers. But
not many weeks elapsed before steps were taken to put the land to use. In another place

for the manufacture of soda ash and all plans in relation thereto were abandoned.

in the book will be a double page map of Barberton, showing how the projectors platted
said land and in which provision has been made in the original plan for all necessary fran-
chises, such as water-works, gas, electric lights, street cars, etc., as soon as needed. A six
mile belt line railroad leading around the city, with all necessary spurs and switches to the
manufactories has been constructed to facilitate business.

Many places have been built on paper, and the people have been relied on to come in
and build them up—newspapers have boomed them, real estate men have shouted them,
and an unsophisticated public has bought them.  But lacking the financial or business
backing they have taken unto themselves wings and flown away. Not so with Barberton.
It was the policy of its projectors to start the industries first, and put the town upon a sub-
stantial basis before a lot wassold. The plans outlined were but preliminaries for the sub-
stantial foundations that have since been made.

AMERICAN STRAWBOARD WORKKS.

Within a stone’s throw and now a part of Barberton, the massive establishment of the
American Strawboard Co., covering about forty acres, is turning out daily twenty-five tons
of strawboard of which a large proportion is used in the manufacture of Lignistra of various
designs for decorating interiors of buildings taking the place of plastering.

This institution was built in 1882 and known as the Portage Strawboard works. It
became one of the American Strawboard plants in July, 1889, and in 18go a large addition
was made for the manufacture of Lignistra. About rzo hands are employed.

other countries.” Prior to its introduction much loss was sustained from breakage or wet
and the prevention of the escape of flame through the joint of the breech was almost impos.
sible.  The advantages of the metallic cartridge are many, its simplicity and completeness,
being either self-primed or capped with great facility and used as a whole in loading.

In connection with this great and growing industry we refer to the immense plant bearing
the above name, located at Barberton, Summit County, under the general management of Mr.
N. P. Leach, an expert and authority in firearms or anything pertaining thereto. The
works were incorporated in September, 18g0o, with a capital stock of $500,000. The officers
are, (0. C. Barber, President; C. E. Sheldon, Vice President; N. P. Leach, General Man-
ager; 12, A. Worthen, Superintendent; M. R. Hayne, Secretary and Treasurer.

The company manufacture fixed ammunition, sporting and military metallic cartridges,
brass and paper shot-shells and primers.  So extensive has their foreign trade alone, become, -
largely in the West Indies, Japan, Australia, Africa and Central America in addition to trade
in this country, that greatly enlarged facilities will be added at once.

THIE AMERICAN ALUMINA COMPANY -

Was organized in the fall of 18go by O. C. Barber, George W. Crouse, T. W. Cornell,
George T, Perkins, F. M. Atterholt, Charles Baird, and a number of others, of Akron, and
H E. Picket, of Indianapolis, Indiana. Capital stock, $500,000. President, O. C. Barber;
Vice President, H. E Picket; Treasurer, Geo. T. Perkins; Secretary, H. Dewolf.

The principal products of the works will be at first Sulphate of Alumina (Paper-maker’s
Alum)and Alumin ous Cake, to be followed later by the manufacture of sulphuric acid, of which
they consume large quantities in the manufacture of their goods, and such other productsas
come in their line: also, barrels to contain the same. This is the only concern making
these goods in the Uaitzad States west of the State of Pennsylvania, and the only one in the
country manufacturing from raw material produced in the United States, and which the
company own and produce themselves. When fairly under way the output will be about
ote car load per day, or 5,000 tons per annum, which it is expected to double in a reasona-
ble time.

NATIONAL SEWER PIPE o
COMPANY.

The first company to be organized was the
National Sewer Pipe Company, the works of
which are the largest in the world. The establish-
ment throughout is a model of mechanical skill,
every wheel and shaft, crook and cranny, has
been constructed perfect, substantial, and with
anly one other thoughtin view; viz., to turn out
the largest amount of merchantable ware for the
least amount of cost. The mawn building is 370
x So feet, and is supplied with the most modern
hydraulic compresses, converters, crushers and
mixers. There are four foors supplied with
hydraulic elevators, patent heating, sprinkling,

and ventilating systems. Adjoining are thirty-
two furnaces, with chimneys for burning and
glazing. The rear building is devoted to the
preparation of raw clay for the machines. A
battery of eight boilers supplies steam power

for over 1,000 horse power of engines and dyna-
mos

The National Sewer Pipe Company will have a finished output of two hundred tons
claily, one machine alone turning out five miles of six-inch pipe daily. Mr. H. A. Robinson
is general manager. The capital stock of the company is 8250,000. The office building
of the company is a handsome brick building containing an enormous burglar and fire-

NATIONAL HOTEL,

proof vault.
NATIONAL HOTEL.

With proper rest, shelter and food the world is willing to toil.  Thatsuch a state of
affairs existed in Barberton, the National Sewer Pipe Company was not slow in
observing and proceeded to construct the National Hotel, costing 330,000—a neat and
attractive hostelry of forty-eight rooms, thoroughly equipped for its purpose; under the
genial influence of its first proprietor, Mr. Charles Mast, it has Hourished like a green bay
tree; but this is for the wanderer, the tired business man and the unfortunate man who is
without a family. Most of the laboring men who shape and mold the clay are men of
families, and for them the company erected thirty neat five and six-room cottages upon
National avenue, which are supplied by the company with water and sewerage system, and
lighted by electricity from the works.

THE CREEDMOOR CARTRIDGE COMPANY.
METALLIC CARTRIDGES——Use, Advantages and Manufacture.

The improvement in the making of fire-arms is one of the most noticeable features of
the modern era of industry. General Norton, of the United States Army, in his work on
i+Small Arms and Heavy Ordnance,” says: **The success of breech-loading arms is dueina
great measure to the cartridges in the improvement of which there has been the same
advance as in the arms themselves. A cartridge containing its own ignition is, by wno
means, a recent discovery, for such a one was patented as early as 1827, and m 18306, a
Parisian gun-maker introduced the metallic cartridge, which, with modifications, is in gen-
eral use at present for smooth bore sporting guns. The nmetallic cartridge for weapons of
war was first largely adopted in our own armies during the rebellion, and was the parent of
many beautiful and useful inventions in breech-loading small arms, both in our own and
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BARDBERTON,

¥ TIR KIRKHAM ART TILE AND POTTERY COMPANY.

America's Wedgewood-Minton Works—Ancient
and Modern Gems of Ware.

AN ARTISTIC INDUSTRY.

One of the earliest arts attained by man-
kind was that of making pottery. The frequent
use in the Old Testament f the terms taken
from this industry, and the many cases in which
figures are drawn from articles of pottery, cleatly
show that the manufacture was well established
among the Jews, and that domestic articles of
pottery were in common use.

Notwithstanding that the knowledgé of pot-
tery was wide-spread among the nations of antig-
uity, yet the Japanese aud -Chinese are the
only nations who had any idea, long ago, of the
art of making porcelain. T'he most celebrated
among the ancients in the manufacture of pot-
tery were the Greeks and Etruscans. Their pro-
ductions were very fragile in character, yet it
wits the custom of nations of antiyuity to frequently bury numbers of those vases in the
tombs of their dead, many valuable ones of which have been exhumed. One of the most valu-
able in this connection is that known as tlie Barber'ni or Portland vase, the original of which
is now one of the chief treasures of the British Museum. It is about fifteen inches high
and is covered with a thin covering of a beautiful dark blue, upon which the figures are
raised in white. A few copies of it were made by Wedgewood, the famous English manu-
facturer of ornamental pottery and porcelain, which were sold to subscribers at fabulous
prices.

OHIO.

The manufacture of porcelain in China first supplied the demand in Europe, from which
originated the name “China,” now in ordinary use for cups, saucers and plates. The
Chinese ascribe the invention of pottery to the Emperor Hoang-ti in 2700 B C., and
that of porcelain to the vear of 185 B. C.  Porcelain is also used for architectural purposes
in China. ‘The art of making decorative pottery disappeared from Europe with the over-
throw of the Roman limpire, but was brought back into Spain by the Arabs, after they had !
obtained a foothold in that country in the eighth century, and into Sicily the following cen-
tury. During this time the manufactories of Majolica ware, so—carlled, flourished. Distin-
guished artists devoted themselves to the decoration of this ware, and it is said that
Raphael prepared the designs for many of the pieces, such as pla_ttersw and other vessels.
The decorations were so artistic, and the ornaments so rich and varied that the originalwidea
for domestic use was lost sight of entirely, and the vases, plates, cups and other vessels came
to be vzgued and usedd only as luxuries of decoration. The fifteenth century developed a
glazed pottery ware known as the Delft ware, manufactured in Germany from ideas gath-
ered from the introduction of Japanese ware into Europe. The manufacture of porce-
lain was introduced into .:.'saxony in 1709 by Bottcher, and a factory established at Weissen
with Bottcher at the head of it.  This was the origin of the fam 3 i 3
works ware established at Dresden and ifienna, w}ich are stillai;xe;lpglajisg:.n C}S)ilxl’:ill.ar ilsatfll)’-
hsh-menti were pu’t‘m 01)%‘*1'at10n in 1735 in Chantilly, France; in 1745 at Vincennes, and in
1754 at Sevres. The chief pottery manufactories of England are at Staffordshire and oceupy
the same spots in which pottery was made during the Roman occupation of England. Here
at Burslem, a little town, Josiah Wedgewood was born in 1730. He commen.ced the
manufacture of a cream-colored ware which Decame very popular under the name of

Lty




““QQueen’s ware.”  This title was gained by the fact that Queen Charlotte accepted from
Wedgewood several sets of ware and conferred on him the title “Queen’s Potter.”

Gladstone, in his speech laying the corner-stone of -the Wedgewood Institute, said, of
all the subjects he ever thought and spoke of, the art of pottery was the most difficult and
vet the most interesting.

Within this century the manufacture of porcelain has been introduced into this country
and become an important industry.  One of the largest establishments of this kind in the
world has recently been erected at Barberton, Ohio, known as the Kirkham Art Tile and
Pottery Company, designed andd constructed under the supervision of Mr. Joseph Kirkham,
an Englishman and a pupil of the famed Wedgewood, who is considered the best ceramist
in his line in the country. The institution was incorporated May 8th, 1891, by Joseph
Kirkham, O. C. Barber, Chas. Baird, (George W. Crouse, M. Frost and others with a capital
stock of $300,000.  The plant covers seven acres, and employs seven hundred persons, both
male and female, with a capacity of $1,000,000, annually. The officers of this corporation
ate President, O. C. Barber; Vice President, Geo. W. Crouse; Secretary and Treasurer,
Charles Biird; Superintendent, Joseph Kirkham.

A large amount of ware to be manufactured here is not made anywhere else in this
country, and much of it not made elsewhere. All styles of ceramics will be produced in-
cluding Pate-sur-Pate, Samian, Pallisy, Roubelle, Limoges, Vergonia, Jasper, etc., some of
which are not manufactured elsewhere in America.  Sculpture, mantels and sanitary goods
will also be a specialty. Nothing but fine goods, ancient and modern in design, will be
nmade, the production of which will enable this vast enterprise to compete with the leading
manufacturers of Europe.  None but the best artists in designing will be employed, all
under the direction of Mr. Joseph B. Evans, Art Director, an Englishman and a pupil also
of Wedgewood and Minton, made famous for their works of art. Huge vaults have been
constructed for the preservation of the rarest and costliest productions.

THE STIRLING COMPANY.
MANUFACTURERS OF WATER TURE SAFETY BOILERS.

*“The Stirling” boiler is the invention of Allen Stirling, M. E., of New York City. It
Is the most recent of improvements in water tube boilers. They are practically non-
explosive, and so constructed as to stand a very high pressure of steam without danger of
straining any of its parts. It produces steam with the greatest economy to fuel.

The manufacture of the boiler is now controlled in the United States by The Stirling
Co. The Company comprises some of the strongest financial men, as well as the best
mechanical engineers in the Country. The location of this enterprise at Barberton, O.,
was brought about by O. C. Barber, President of the Company, Thomas Deegan of Chicago,
General Manager, Allen Stirling Secretary and Treasurer, H. S, Pell, General Superintendent
of the works.

The Company was incorporated in 18go by O. C. Barber, Allan Stirling, Charles Baird,
Thomas Deegan, H. S. Pell and others.

The size of the present plant is zoo by 85 feet, with a capacity of 400 horse power
per day, employing 7o persons.

The business has been a success since its establishment, owing to the superior quality
of the boiler.

THE BARBERTON BRICK AND TILE ’CO.

Was organized February 15th, 1891, with a capital stock of $r5,000, for the purpose of
manufacturing Brick and Tile. The works are located on Wooster road, south-west of Bar-
berton. It has a capacity of 20,000 brick daily. The directors are S. Dickerman, Wel-
lington Miller, P. R. Miller, A. D. Betz and O. Wilcox; President, S. Dickerman; Secre-
tary and Treasurer, Wellington Miller. :

BARBERTON INN.
Located on the square bounded by Tuscarawas, 4th, 5th and Park Avenues and over-

looking Lake Anna, is the beautiful structure costing $75,000, known as Barberton Inn,
designed by Architect George T. Piersons, of Philadelphia, Pa., and owned by the Barber-

ton Land Company. It contains fifty sleeping rooms and twenty-five special rooms, fitted
up in the most modern style.  The design is Queen Anne, the lower stories of brown stone
and above that, frame with shingle covering and slate roof. The interior is finished in nat-
ural wood of different varieties. The design is rich and cheerful, with wide balcony and
lawn with fountain, fronting Lake Anna

LAKE ANNA.

Qne of the most delightful spots for the eye to rest upon, and seen from all parts of the
city, is Lake Anna, covering eighteen acres of land and lving in the center of the place. It
is named in honor of Miss Anna, daughter of (). C. Barber.

TRACY BLOCK.

Situated on Tuscarawas Avenue is the Tracy block, a three-story brick block, costing
325,000, built and owned by B. F. Tracy. It has four store rooms on .first floor;
occupied as follows: one by the Kirkham Art Tile and Pottery Co., as a display and sales-
room; one by Charles B. Carr, druggist; one by T. J. Davies, grocer; and one by Miller
Brothers & Hoffman, hardware; the second floor is occupied by offices, while the third fAoor
has three halls, the center one a public hall and the side halls for secret societies; the east
hall being occupied by the Barberton Lodge, K. of P.

MOORE & ST. JOHN’'S BLOCK.

Where the post office is located is a neat three-story brick building. On first floor are
two store rooms and post office.

OTHER BUSINESS BLOCKS.

The leading business blocks not referred to above are two fine brick blocks, with pressed
brick fronts, two stories high, calculat=d for storerooms below and offices above, located
on Tuscarawas avenue, one belonging to M. L. Painter and George Detar, and the other to
D. C. Ogden and L. W. Bott. A two-story brick building, corner of Paige avenue and
Second street, owned by the Barberton Land Company and Messrs. Byers & Clark, in
surance and real estate operators. Three two-story brick business blocks on Second street,
the property of A. Welker, H. B. Frase and H. Bevard, respectively. Two frame build-
ings, each two-story, intended for storerooms and residences, one owned by C. H. Stauffer,
the other by Dr. Tait.

‘ HOTUSES.

Many handsome residences adorn the streets and avenues, the most prominent of which
are the homes of W. A. Johnston, resident Manager of the Barberton Land Company, and
Joseph B. Evans, Art Director of the Kirkham Art Tile and Pottery works. There are
already erected about 300 houses ranging in price from $700 to $4000, which are occupied
as soon as completed.

SALE oF Lors.—Investors were not slow to take advantage of the desirable lots offered
for sale here and already three-fifths of them are sold, which are now, or will be occupied by
buildings in the near future.

Cray anp CoaL.—An abundance of desirable potters’, sewer-pipe, and brick clay and
coal may be found within two miles of Barberton, which are being utilized in the manu-
facture of merchandise.

THe Satt WeLL.—The salt well, which was one of the first projects, is now at a depth
of 2800 fect.  An extensive article bearing upon this well and the salt deposits in this county
and vicinity can be found on the page with Franklin Township map.

BARBERTON SavINGs Bank.—Barberton Savings Bank, located in the National Sewer
Pipe Company’s office building, was organized with an authorized capital of $ro00,000; it
has a paid up capital of $50,000 and is doing a good business.

ScHoOLS —A two-room school building was erected in 1891. There is an attend-
ance of 130 scholars and two teachers. A large and commodious school building will be
built in the near future to accommodate the increasing demand.

Engravings may be found in this work of the Strawboard, Alumina, Sewer Pipe, Art Tile and Pottery, Stirling Boller, and
Cartridge Works, National Hotel, Barberton Inn and Lake Anna.

OHIO C. BARBER.

Ohio C. Barber, from whom Barberton takes its name and
who isin a business way identified with nearly every enterprise
in it, was born in Middlebury, now Sixth Ward of Akron, April
20th, 1841, and is the fourth of eight children born to George and
Eliza (Smith) Barber, natives of Connecticut and Ohio respec-
tively. George Barber commenced the manufacture of lucifer
matches in 1845. The subject of our sketch received a common
school education and at sixteen the circumstances of the fanul?'
necessitating his services, he began seilling matches, and through

his activity the reputation of the Barber Match soon became
established. In 1862 the entire management was left to his dicta-
tion. In 1864 the business was merged into a stoek company with
George Barber, President; O. C. Barber, Secretary and Treasurer;
and John K. Robinson as General Agent. InJanuary,1881,the com-
pany had by far the largest and best equipped match workson this
continent, It was then Messrs, Barber and Robinson conceived
the idea of consolidating all the mateh factories of the country;
the result was the present Diamond Mateh Company, of which
Mr. Barber is President, with twenty-eight factories, and a capital
of §6,000,000. Ile organized the Portage Strawboard Company,
with works at New Portage and Circleville, now with twenty-two
other similar works merged in the American Strawboard Company
with $6,000,000 capital, with Mr. Barber as President. He is also
President of the National Sewer Pipe Company at Barberton,
capital $250,000; Neracher Automatic Sprinkler Company, Warren,
Ohio, $200,000; Creedmoor Cartridge Company, $500,000; Stirlin
Company, $500,000; American Alumina Company, $500,000; The
Barberton Savings Bank, $100,000; Barberton Belt Line Railroad,
$50,000; Barberton Land and Improvement Company, $240,000;
Paige Tube Company,Warren, Ohio, $500,000; Akron Woolen & Felt
Company, Akron, §100,000.  He was one of the original projectors
and Is now a director in the Frasch Process Soda Company, of
Cleveland, manufacturers of soda, soda ash and other products,
capital $1,000,000; and of the United Salt Company, Cleveland,
capital 31,000,000, IHe is extensively interested in banking and is
a director of the First National Bank, Akron; Second National
Bank, Akron; and Union National Bank, Chicago.

He was married to Laura L, Brown, October 10th, 1866, by
which unjon there were two children—Anna Laura, living, and
Charles H. Barber, who died in infancy.

The biographical outline of the life and business achievements
of Mr. Barber i worthy of more than a passing notice by us; not in
laudation of him or in disparagement of the career of others, but
because it points out some very valuable lessons to the rising
generation, No one could achieve his jp()sition without a combi-
nation of circumstances similar to his; let us see what they were,
His parents, though not poor in the common acception of the
term, were Tugged, hard working people, but their ancestors were
of the Mayflower and the Charter Oak. e was not reared in

luxury; other children divided the parents’ attention, and he wag"

often left to shift for himself. This condition of affairs endowed
him with a strong constitution, resolute purpose, a brilliant mind,
and a commanding presence, and this combination made him a
horn leader of men and measures that no tide could turn, no con-
dition of affairs could prevent, and without an explanation all
who met him knew it and accepted it without asking why. Tt was
this combination of moral, physical and mental power that
asserted itself, and at the early age of sixteen we find him ready
for the hattle of life, to do, and be, but without funds. Many a
young man would have put hig hands in his pockets and waited
for something to turn up. Young Barber goes out and turns it
up. He gathersabout him other youngmen and they advise, plan
and work together. Many & man may hold three winning cards,
but not the tourth, He may plan but not be able to execute.
He may execute but not bt able to accumulate. He may
accnmulate but not he able to save. By the cirenmstance of
his birth, and his early business career, huilded ag it was upon
the foundation here given, it is plain to he seen Mr. Barber held
the four cards. With eternal vigilance which is the price of sue-
cess, he has watched when others slept; he has worked when
others rested. The careless observer wﬁl say, what does it profit
him, he had better divide it with the poor. Let us see what use
he has made of it, Has he stored his wealth in an iron kettle and
drawn his chair close to his cosy fire when others were crying for
bread? (o first to the Diamond Mateh Factory and see how many
are employed there, then go to their homes and see how many
are fed by their labor; then go to Cleveland. Warren, Chi g0,
Ountonogan, Barberton and other places, where his factories are
located, and where 5,000 employes come under the influence of
his busy life, then ask yourself the question if hiswealth and fac-
tories were divided among them how long would it be till every
wheellwould be stopped and every one retrograding and discon-
tented.

Young men, when you look at him and wonder if you will
ever he asrich, remember how he madeit. Try and get someidea
of what it costs him to keep it, and then remember he is only the
custodian for but a short time, of a trust fund that nature has
endowed him with. When you have dose this you will perhaps
be wiser, happier and more contented with your condition.

In conclusion, we desire to say that we have only cited Mr,
Barber as o sample of thousands of leaders who must hold the
levers to the great industrial and commercial world of ours, or it
will go to pieces and we with it.
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JOIIN KELLY ROBINSON.

John XK. Robinson, son of John II. and Margaret (Kelly)
Robinson, was born on a farm in Springfield, near Middlebury,
May 26th, 1842; he received his education in Middlebury and
Akron schools, and for a time clerked in the bookstore of his
brother, Wilson G. Robinson: he learned telegraphy under
William €. Allen; went as ““Squirrel Hunter” to the defense of
Cincinnati from the threatened attack of rebel Gen. Kirby Smith,
in September, 1862; same year started out on a peddling wagon
for the sale of matches manufactured in Middlebury by George
and 0. C. Barber. In 1863 he was admitted as partner in the busi-
ness. When the Barber Match Co. was organized in 1865, he
became its general agent, and afterwards its president. On sale
of the works to the Diamond Match Company, in 1881, he
removed to Chicago as general manager of the Chicago branch,
and is now treasurer of the company. He is one of the four orig-
inal projectors of Barberton, and largely interested in her
industries.

He wasg married to Miss Henrietta Eleanor Barber, daughter
of Gteorge and Eliza (Smith) Barber, January 1st, 1868, who has
horne him five children—Margaret Elizabeth, born January 15th,
1869; Mary Frances, December 14th, 1870; Laura Barber, October
27th, 1872; John Kelly, Jr., October 15th, 1879; and Eleanor, July
28th, 1587

CYRUS BAILEY.

Cyrus Bailey, whose homeis at No. 108 Adolph avenue, Akron,
Ohio, was born in Modagore, Summit County, July 19th, 1847, sl
cante to Akron when about seven years old. He obtained a liberal
edueation in the High school of Akron, and adopted mechanical
engineering, of which he is the peer of any person, as a profes-
sion.  On the 28th day oi September, 1870, he married Miss Bell 'T.
Sapp of Ravenna, Ohio, by whom they have one bright interest-
ing daughter, Cora Bessie.  Mr. Bailey held the responsible posi-
tion of mechanical engineer with the F. Schumacher Milling Co.,
for fourteen years; then engaging with the Piamond Mateh Com-
pany for whom he counstructed the large paper mill at Wabash,
Indiana. Since the contemplation of the thriving village of Dar-
berton to the present day he has been an important factor in
designing the vast enterprises already there and also those to be
builtatanearly day, hisofficebeing located in Barberton.  Among
themany mammaoth establishments that show his handiwork may
be mentioned The Kirkham Art Tile & Pottery Works, Creedmoor
Cartridge Works, National Sewer Pipe Works, Stirling Boiler
Works, Tracy Block and the Barberton Land Company and
the Byers, Lyon & Co.’s Block. Heis a member of the Universal-
ist Chureh, MePherson Lodge K. of P, and the American Society
of Mechanical Engineers.

ALBERT T. PAIGE.

Albert T. Paige was born in Madison, Lake County, Ohio,
March 15th, 1830, and moved with his parents to Painesville, 1860,
where he was educated in the Painesville public schools; from
1866 to 1873, he was employed in City National Bank of Cleveland.
In 1873 he came to Akron and engaged in the hardware business
with his brother, Hon. David R. Paige, under the firm name of
Paige Bros. Co. of Akron. Helis treasurer and general manager
of Paige Tube Co., of Warren; is one of the four original pur-
chasers of the land of Barberton, and interested in nearly all of
the industrial enterprises of that city.

In 1890 Mr. Paige huilt Albert Hall, on South Main street,
Akron, the finest block in Akron, and the finest hall in Ohio.
For several years he was treasurer of the Summit County Agricul-
tural Society.

May 25th, 1875, he was married to Miss Carrie J. Adams, of
Painesville, who died January 23rd, 1881, leaving one son, Albert
Adams Paige, born March 7th, 1876, now attending school at
Painesville.

JOSEPIH KIRKHAM.

Joseph Kirkham the eapable and courteous superintendent
of the Kirkham Art Tile & Pottery Company at Barberton, Ohio,
was born at Staffordshive, England, May 14th, 1845, at which place
he received a good edueation. 1le learned the pottery business in
England, finished under Josiah Wedgewood & Sons, famed ~pot-
ters of Etruria. e was considered of so much service to them
that in hopes of retaining him large inducements were oftered
but he. came to Ameriea, loeating at Trenton, New Jersey, zmd’
was (uick to notice that a difficulty existed in manufacturing fine
pottery goods in this country.  Satisfied that all ohjections could
he overcome in this diveetion e eame West to look for a location.
After visiting various cities, from all of which he received Hatter-
ing offers to locate, he selected Barberton, where the immense
works constructed ander his supervision and bearing his name
are erected and placed in successtul operation, a desecription of
which oceurs elsewhere,

Mr. Kirkham made a visit to England in 1889 with goods pro-
(luced‘in this country by him which were considered k:y English
connoigseurs in ceramics to he A 1,

Mr. Kirklinm married Miss Elizabeth Ball who together with
an adopted boy constitute the home circle.

CHHARLES BAIRD.

Charles Baird, son of Robert and Helen Knox (Moir) Baird,
was born in Akron, March 25th, 1853, Ie attended the public
schools of Akron, graduating in 1872, and in August, 1873, com-
menced the study of law with Upson & Ford. IIe was admitted
to the bar November 2nd, 1875, and immediately afterwards
formed a partnership with William . Upson, as Upson & Baird;
changed to Upson, Ford & Baird, January 10th, 1877. He served
as clerk of Portage township from "October 20th, 1875, to April,
1878; was appointed canal collector, and served till January 15th,
1881; was elected prosecuting attorney in 1880, and re-elected in-
1882, holding the office five years. He is now actively engaged
in the practice of law as member of the firm of Baird & Voris at
Akron, Ohio.

Mr. Baird took part as attorney in the organization and
reorganization of lhe Diamond Mateh Company, and in the
organization of the American Straw Board Company. He is one
of the four original projectors of Barberton. He wasincorporator,
director, and is interested in the following important industrial
enterprises: The Paige Tube Company and Neracher Sprinkler
t ompany at Warren, Ohio; the Portage Straw Board Company, of
New Portage, Ohio; The Goodrich Hard Rubber Company and the
Akron Woolen & Felt Company, of Akron, Ohio; the National
sewer Pipe Company; the American Alumina Company; the
Stirling Company; the Creedmoor Cartridge Company: the United
Salt Company; the Barberton Havings Bank Company; the Bar-
berton Belt Line R. R. Company; the Kirkham Art Tile & Pottery
Company; the Barberton Land & Improvement Company, and is
treagurer of the three last named companies. ’

He wus married, February 10th, 1882, to Lucy Allyn Voris,
celdest danghter of Gen. Alvin C. Voris, who has borne him five
children -Alvin Voris, born December 3rd, 1852; ITelen Elizabeth,
August 30th, 1884; Betsey Coe, June 11th, 1886; Charles, Jr.,
October 15th, 1888, and Katharine, November 19th, 1890.

NINLINE

JOSEPH B. EVANS.

';Y‘Q.)segh B. Evans, the efficient Art Director for the Kirkham
Art Tile & Pottery Company, ol Barberton, Ohio, was born at Staf-
tordshire, England, March 4th, 1840. After receiving an ordinary
schooling he - devoted himself to the study of art under Mrs. S.
Rice, a School of Art teacher, and later under the efficient tutor-
age of the famous Mons. Arnoux, who was the sole director of
Minton & Co.’s celebrated potteries of England.

__Mr. Evans became art director tor Josiah Wedgeweod & Sons
of Etruria, England. While in thiscapacity he made the acquaint-
ance of Mr. Kirkham, now superintendent of the Kirkham Art
Tile & Pottery Works of Barberton, while they were both in the
employ of Josiah Wedgewood & Sons. Mr, Evans hag studied in
some of the finest schools of design in England, winning the
Queen’s prize, the National Medallion in the department of Science
and Art at South Kensington, also prizes at London Society of
Arts, the prize medal at Paris, 1867, and at Memorial Hall Build-
ing llli Philadelpbia. '

[Le was married to EllenJ. Cooper, March 8th, 1 v m

%fﬁ*gl)m: t]trtee ‘%oyi zu;d one gil)‘}. H é came to Améri%g,zir? ?A:yéllgst,
79, and to Barberton in I891.. . Evans i idered

Artiss Tt Barberton Mr. Evans is considered by the

v
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N. P. LEACIL.

N. P. Leach, the efficient manager of the Creedmoor Car-
tridge Company of Barberton, Ohio, was born in Fairtield, Vit.,
July 20th, 1839, and received a general academic and mechanical
education. Mr. Leach is authority on the subject of metallic

gporting and military ammunition, having been engaged in the

manufacture and the sale of the same since its infancy. He has
worked up an extensive foreign trade, having secured large con-
tracts with nearly all the foreign countries, and is thoroughly con-
versant with the Central and South American trade. For many
years his delight has been to spend several months each year
hunting “big game’ in the northern Rockies. Mr. Leach
removed to Barberton in 1890, where the extensive (reedmoor
Cartridge Works, that he hagbeen instrumentalin establishing, are
located.

He belongs to the Masonic Order and is a member of the
Episcopal Church.

HARRY D. VAN CAMPEN.

H. D. Van Campen was born at Elmira, New York, December
20th, 1848, and is a Hollander by descent, belonging to-a family
of rank and influence in the mother country., At an early age
he went to Belfast, New York, where in due time he received an
academic English education. On the Ist day of July, 1865, he
was united in wedlock with Miss Fanny L. Ilolden, a graduate
and also a native of Belfast, N. Y. Two interexting daughters
have been added to their household.

During the war he served three years and was promoted to
the first Heutenancy of Company E, ¢srd Regiment, New York
Volunteers, He organized the firm of A. W, Miner & Co., Bel-
mont, New York, manufacturers of farming implements, and
was the general manager of the company until their plant was
destroyed by fire. Being well versed in geology, both in theory
and practice, he has done much to develop the hidden resources
of the land, much of his efforts being spent in thig section in
developing fine beds of salt, a history of which appears else-
where in this volume. :

Mr. Van Campen belongs to the Masonie Order, hasg excellent
judgment and adds vim and vigor to any enterprise in which he
is interested.

DI THOMAS ELIOT TAIT.

Dr. T. Eliot Tait was born in Ontario, Canada, May 14th, 1840,
In 1860 he removed to Des Moines, Iowa, where, after receiving
a thorough English educatinn, he studied medicine, graduating
from the Towa College of Physiciany and Surgeons, now the
medieal department of the Drake University, at Des Moiner.
The doctor was married October 17th, 1884, to Miss Dessie Robin-
son. The fruit of thiz union has been one boy and two girls, all
living. Dr. Tait is now located at Barberton, Summit County,
Ohio, where he enjoys a large practice. He is a member of the
Congregational Church, and of the Masonie, I. O, O, F.,and K. of
P. Orders.

WILLIAM R. BROWN.

W. R. Brown, the present efficient manager of the American
Strawboard Company’s Works at Darberton, Ohio, was born in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, August I5th, 1861, e received his edu-
cation in Boston, Massachusetts, and on removing to Akron in
March, 1880, accepted a position with the Barber Match Company,
where he remained until February, 1835, when he severed his
connection with that company to take a position with the
Portage Strawboard Company, with whom he remained until the
organization of the American Strawhoard Company, in July, 1859,
when he was appointed manager of the New Portage works.

ARTHUR A. MOORE.

Arthur A. Moore, son of Reuben F. and Lavantia (Adams)
Moore, was born at Sheffield, Ashtabula County, September 15th,
1858, Ile obtained a common school education at Grand River
Institute, Austinburg, Ohio.

September 1tith, 1870, he married Miss Dora Bailey, daughter
of Hiram and Elizabeth Bailey, of Leon, Ohio. Three bright
daughters, Nellie, Lena and Hattie, grace their home through the
alliance.

On May 5th, 1801, he eame to Barberton, Summit County, and
was the first to invest in property there. May 21st, 1891, he was
appointed pustmaster by the present administration, and con-
ducted the office in the National House, pending the completion
of the elegant brick block now owned and oceupied by the firm
of Moore & 8t. John, as a general store and postoffice.

Previous to removing to Barberton, he conducted a general
store at Leon, Ashtabula County, Ohio, for thirteen years, Mr.
Moore is & member of the United Brethren Church, a Royal
Templar, and a shrewd, enterprising business man.

ITENRY A, ROBINSON.

Henry A. Robinson, was horn March 15th, 1858, in Middlebury,
now the Sixth Ward, Akron. Ile graduated from the Akron
High School in 1876, Shortly afterwards he was engaged with
Whitmore, Robinson & Co., and also Robinson Bros. & Co., East
Akron, in the manufacture and sale of stoneware and sewer pipe,
where he remained until March 17th, 1800, when the National
Sewer Pipe Company of Barberton was organized, and of which
he was given the management of construction and operation.
Mr. Robinson is algo, one of the incorporators and a director of
the Barberton Savings Bank; General Manager Barberton Belt
Line Railway Company; ineorporator and member huilding com-
mittee Whiteware Company. He enjoys the distinetion of turning
the first soil for building purposegin the now thriving Barbertun.

[EXD OF BARBERTON EXNGRAVINGS.]

MERRICK BURTOXN,

Merrick Burton, one of the early settlers of Akron, who died
at his home, 405 West Market street, February 8rd, 1891, was born
at Sutton, Worcester County, Massachusetts, June 9th, 1807 ; his
mother died when he was a mere lad, after which le went to
Williston, Vermont, to reside with an aunt. At the age of 14
years he went to Canada, where, after aequiring a eommon school
education he learned the trade of tanner and currier. He
remained there working at his calling until he was of age, when
he returned to Williston where he engaged in his business for
fourteen years. On the 24th day of February, 1833, he married Miss
Adaline Wells, of Williston, and in the following month of July,
they arrived in Akron, on Independence Day, where he has since
resided, In April, 1837, he was elected Constable, which position
he filled for twenty-four consecutive years, and was olso United
States Deputy Marshal for this distriet for twenty years, the
duties of which he conducted with signal ability and fidelity.
Mr. Burton took and prepared the census of Summit County in
1860, which work was highly commended for accuracy.

The deceased was & valuéd member of the Universalist
Church of Akron, and one of its organizers; he was also a promi-
nent member of Summit Lodge, I. 0. O. F. His aged wife sur-
vives him, who, together with his daughter, Louisa B., the wife of
John H. Christy, and Johu W., comprise the family.

One characteristic of Mr. Burton, which clearly showed his
sterling qualities, was never to gpeak ill of any person. He died
respected by all who knew him.
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JOY II. PENDLETON.

J. H. Pendleton, late president of the Second National Bank
of Akron, who died October 10th, 1841, after an illness of two
months at the advanced age of 81 years, § months and 9 days, was
a remarkable man.

lorn in Litchtield, Connecticut, February 1st, 1810, the eldest
of eleven children born to Ward and Sallie (Cooke) Pendleton,
natives of Connectieut, who came to Ohio in 1819, settling in
Stow Township, Portage County, now Summit County. His
parentz purchased land, then a wilderness, and proceeded to
improve and eultivate it. s mother died June 6th, 1860, and
his father, Mareh ith, 1865.

Atthe age of 20 years our subject engaged in business as 4
clerk in a general store, owned and operated by Stow & Wetmore
at Cayahoga Falls, e continued as a salesman with them until

=

early in 1833, when he assumed the position of traveling salesman

for the same firm, selling goods throughout Northern Ohio.

Soon afterwards, however, he, in company with his brother
opened a general store at Brunswick, Medina County, Ohio,
which after a few months was removed to Franklin Millg, now
Kent, where the same was conducted until 1840, when the busi-
ness was disposed of and he engaged with B, I'. Hopking, in
operating a tour and saw mill, and woolen factory known asThe
Center Manufacturing Company, and a General Merchandise
Store.  About 1847, the business was dissolved, and three years
later, Mr, Pendleton went to Cineinnati where he was engaged in
the eonstruetion of railroads, with headguarters at Dayton and
Cincinnati, until 1860. Ile returned to Akron in 183, and upon
the organization of the Second National Bank became Vice
President of it, which position he tilled until about two years pre-
vious to his death, when he was chosen President.

Mr. Pendleton served as trustee of Buechtel College and was
treasurer of the same when he died. He was 2 member of the
Episcopal Church and a benevolent and upright man.

He was married three times—first, in 1832, to Miss JTulia Corpy;
she died July 5th, 1833 ; second, in November, 1834, to Miss Sybil
Fletcher, who died May 29th, 1841; third, September 17th, 1842, to
Miss Eunice M. Post, a native of Summit County, who survives
him. They havetwochildren, Nellie A., Mrs. Joseph N, Ferguson,
Detroit, Michigan; and Bird A., who married Dr. Kent O. Foltz,
November 25th, 1841,

EDWIN HUBBARD MERRBILL.

Edwin H. Merrill was a son of Abijah and Abigail (Scott) Mer.
rilkand was born February 9th, 1808, in Painesville, Ohio, where he
went to school in the winter and began his trade of potter with his
father when but a mere lad, growing up with the business. When

which he had sec

he was twenty-two years olid he came to Sprinfield township, locat-
ing at Mogadore, working successively for Fisk and for Purdy,
when he bought out Fisk, Shortly after he purchased, his fath-
er's family came on (about 1833) and they hegan the manufacture
of beer hottles, by machinery invented by our suhject, and upon
ured a patent. They remained in Springfield
township until 1847 and had in the meantime begun the manufac-
tory of tobaceo pipes by machinery, and made principally beer
hottles, tobaceo and water pipes—making 310,000 bottles per year.
They also invented a machine for making stone pumps, which
they manufactured for a time.  In 1834, they, the Merrill Broth-
ers, invented a machine for working =ewer-pipe and began the
manufacture, under the tirm name of Merrill, Powers & Co., the
brothers owning one-half interest. In 1557, Edwin bought his
brother'sinterest in the bottle factory, which he continued until
1860, when it was destroyed by fire, proving a total loss. He then
located on sSouth Main street, corner of State street, under the
tirm name of Merrill & Sons, which was conducted under that title
until February, 1830, when higson William, now located at Pam-
plin City, Virginia, retired, and F. W. Butlerbecame a partner and
the firm was changed to E. H. Merrill & Co. Mr. Merrill repre-
zented the Fourth Ward in the City Council in 1873-1874 and 1875,
On May #1st, 18385, he wasmarried to Miss Emily Gleeson, of Cuya-
hoga County, who survives him together with two children, Wil-
fnm (roand Henry E. Mervill,  Mr. Merrill diel January 25th, 1888,
his death being occagioned by a general breaking down of the
system, universally respected for his henevolence and other noble
qualities.

PETER M. REESER.

Peter M. Reeser, was born in Northumberland County, Penn
sylvania, July th, 1813, where he received an education in both
Germanand English.  On the 25th day of November, 1840, he mar-
ried Miss Sarah Arnold, atSanbury, Northumberland County, a
native also of that county. In the month of March, 1866, Mr. Ree-
ser and his family eame to Rummit County, Ohio, locating in
Springfield township where he engaged in farming. Three years
later they removed to Akron purchasing the property on the north-
east corner of Sherman and South streets where they resided and
where the widow still lives. After locating here he engaged in
general teaming which he condueted nntil shortly before his death
which oceurred May 25ed, 1800, of heart failure.  Eightchildren are
living, Jeremiah, Davil, Lucinda, Landis, Mary, Sarah, Barbara
and Celen A, The deceased was a member of Trinity Lutheran
Chureliand an honest npright citizen. ’

WILLIAM J. FINK, JR.
) William J. F_ink,» Jr., & well-known ecitizen of Akron, was born
in Llevela.n‘d, Ohio, January 1st, 1850, coming to Akron in 1852. At
the age of fourteen years he went to $t. Louis, Mo., where he was
employed by Messrs, Fink, Goldsmith & Co., wholesale £TOCETS,

until he was seventeen years old, He was then engaged and
employed two years as receiving clerk in a Mississippl river trans-
portation office on the wharf in 8t. Louis. Returning to Akron he
worked for his father, William Fink, Sr., in the grocery businessat
the corner of Broadway and Exchange for several years. In 1872
he embarked in the butchering trade which he sueccessfully con-
ducted until 1881 when, disposing of his business, he opened a gro-
cery and provision store at the “White Grocery”. in Springfield
township where heremained until 1884, when heremoved to Akron
and engaged in the same business at the corner of Broadway and
Exchange streets. In the spring of 1800 he built the brick block
now occupied by him where he enjoys a large patronage. Mr,
Fink married Miss Margaret Brodt Jannary 4th, 1872, by whom he
has three living children, George, Henry and Ruth. They havea
pleasant and commodious home on the corner of Thornton and
May streets. Our subject is a member of the German Reformed
church and Aetolia Lodge, K. of .

THHOMAS WATERS.

Thomas Waters, residing in an elegant home at No. 107 East
Buchtel avenue, Akron, was born in Wales, February 4th, 1846,
coming to' America with his parents when but thirteen months old.
His parents settled in New Castle, Pa., where his father, William
Waters, an experienced iron worker, obtained employment. After
gaining a common school education he also commenced work in a
rolling mill under the tutorship of his father. In 1864 he enlisted
in the one hundred day service in Company E, 198rd Regt. Penn-
sylvania Volunteers, but shortly afterwards re-enlisted for three
years in Battery E., P. V., and served until the close of the war,
being mustered out at Pittsburgh, Pa. Returning to New Castle,
Pa., he became an iron worker in the Cossalo iron works where he
remained two years. IHe then accepted a position as a roller in
April, 1867, in the works of the Akron Tron Company, then under
the charge of Benj. Grovenor, who built the mill, and who shortly
afterward removed to Terre Haute, Ind., where he died. Buta
ShOl:t time elapsed before Mr. Waters, who had the distinction of
h.zwmg worked the first bar of iron ever made in the mill, was
given the general supervision and management of therolls, which
position he held until 1889, when he accepted a like position with
1%1e Cherry Valley Iron Company at Leetonia, Ohio, which situa-
tion he was compelled to relinquish in three or four monthsafter-
wards m_ving to ill health of a pulmonic order. He has sought
many climates in hopes of restoring his health but the result has
not b.een satistactory. On July 4, 1868, at New Casﬂe,' Pa., he was’
married to Miss Ellen Colley, and five children, all living, have

been the fruit of this union, William, Frederick, Charles, Ellen
and Edward, .

(1)
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WILLIAM D, STEVENS.

William D. Stevens, was, up to the time of his death, which
occurred Jan. 27th, 1886, one of the most prominent and prosper-
ous colored men in the city of Akron, Q. e was born in Win-
chester, Virginia, May 23d, 1819, and brought to Ohio in his
infaney. A touching incident in this connection, illustrating a
mother’s love, is the fact that notwithstanding he was a free ¢hild
his devoted mother fearing that he might be torn from her and
placed in bondage, determined to prevent such a calamity, and
with that view she ran away, bearing her babe in safety after
enduring many hardships, to Ohio. This heroine mother is still
living at the age of ninety years with a daughter at Zanesville, 0.
On the 25th day of October, 1855, he married Miss Minerva Ann
Davis at Massillon, 0., who survives him. /Three children were born
to them, George D., Grantand Mary, wife of George W. ITale. Mr,
Stevens conducted a barber shop at No. 169 South Main street,
Akron, O., for years, and enjoyed the patronage of the best ele-
ment of citizens. He was intelligent and well informed on
current matters, had a remarkably retentive memory and was a
member of the Masonic fraternity. To his energy and public
spirit as much as to that of any other man is due the complete
closing up of the Ohio & Pennsylvania Canal on Main street, an
unclean stream and general eyesore to the publie, that had been
allowed to exist for years to the detriment of health and pros-
perity of the city.

SOLOMON KOPLIN,

Solomon Koplin, but of late years better known as “’Squire
Koplin”, was born in Wadsworth, Medina County, March 3d, 1828,
_Heis the son of Christian and Magdalena (Baughmanj Koplin.
Iis father died July 12th, 1884, when ke was but six years old.
Iis mother died January 28th, 1890, at the age of eighty-six years.
He received his education in the Wadsworth schools, ana on
September 7th, 1850, married Miss Sarah Miller, daughter of
George Miller. :

Mr. Koplin is a substantial farmer in Portage township. IHe
wag elected Justice of the Peace in 1888 and re-elected in 1801,
Heis a member of ¥, & A, M., No, 83, Royal Arch Masons, and
Grace Reformed church.

He is the father of eight children, Edith, the oldest, died in
1854; Mary R. Shayes, died July 23d, 1891 at the age of thirty-
seven years, and one child died when but an infant. IIe has five
boys living—Charles M., George A., Rollin P.,, Homer 8. and
Walter S,

PHILIP . DOCK.

Philip P. Bock, the pioneer insurance and real estuate agent uf
Akron, Ohio, was born at Michanbach-Hessian ITambury, Prussia,
February 10th, 1830, and caume to Akron with his parents when
ten years of age.

Ie was educated in the Akron High Schools, after which he
took up the battle of life for himself, for several years clerking
for various firms in Akron. He was employed by the County
Commissioners to compile general indexes of the county records.
He was, in 1858, elected and in 1861 re-elected County Recorder.
On retiring he was for a short time engaged in the lumber husi-
ness.  Later he embarked in the insurance business, subsequently
adding real estate and loan departments to his already well
established insurance agency.

Mr. Boek was united in marriage to Miss Ellen Schultes, of
Buffalo, New York, July 81st, 1860, by which union there were
five children—Ada ., Mae C., Annie, Philip ., who died young,
and Charles 8., the latter one of Akron’s favorite boys, whose
lamentable death ocecurred after a brief illness, September 2th,
1888, at the age of twenty-five years.

Mr. Bock, by his conservative policy, his strict attention to
husiness, hiz earnest and straight forward manner in dealing with
all questions that come before him, has won for him the enco-
mium of a good and responsible citizen, a pleasant friend and
neighbor,

DR, WARREXN J. UNDERWOOD—DECEASED,

Dr. W.J. Underwood, was born in Dillsburg, Pa., March 20th,

15840, to Joseph and Hanna (Wells) Underwood. His father wax
of Quakerdescent,a whip-maker,and diedin 1848, Hismother was
of German descent, The Dr. acquired a common schoo! educa-
tion and remained at home, teaching school during the winters,
until 1860, when he began reading medicine with Dr. Ira Day, of
Mechaniesburg, Pa. In 1862 he went with the 19th Pa. V., M., as
Medical Otficer, afterwards assigned as Assistant Surgeon to the
hospital at Chambersburg and then to camyp Curtin, He was then
assigned to the 151st P, V. L, where he served as Assistant Surgeon
during the term of that regiment’s enlistment. Returning howe,
he eompleted his studiex and graduated in the Jetferson Medical
College, of Philadelphia, in 1864. e then came to Canal Fulton,
Ohio, where he remained three years, forming a partnership with
Dr. AL Hontz, which lasted two years. In 1867 lie came to Akron
where he was ever after actively engaged in his profession until
his untimely death oceurred June 9th, 1800,

He was married in December, 1864, to Miss MHarriet Shoe-
maker, of Harrishurg, Pa., who died Dec, 9th, 1873.
1877, he married Mrs. Frances C. Pizzola, of Brooklyn, New York.
Dr, Underwood was the father of three children by his fivst wife,
only one of whom survives him, Bdward 8. Underwood, physician
and surgeon, Akron, Ohio.

Feb, 28th,

MAJOR JOSEPH C. EWART.

Joseph €. Ewart, son of Rehert L. and Martha (Lemmon)
Bwart, was born in Springfield, Ohio, March 25th, 1841. e was
educated in the Springfield district schools and Akron High
schools. e enlisted August I861, in the 20th O. V. T., and was
dixcharged in 1862 for disability. Recovering he re-enlisted
August 1862 i 45th 0. V', I, as 2 non-commissioned officer serving
to July Ist, 1865, when he was mustered out with his regiment.

After the war he worked one year at sash making with the
Weary, Snyder," Wileox manutacturing company. Tor nine years
he oceupied n prominent position in the shipping department of
Aultman, Miller & ('o.’x mower and reaper works, In 1875 he
associated himself with IL. K. Merrill, in the manufacture of roof-
ing tile, the pioneer works of its kind in the United States. In
1832 he hought the Merrill interest and later associated with him
Charlex E. Howland under the firm name of J. C. Ewart & Co.,
greatly enlarging the works and now doing a large business, 1fe
is also interested in several other industrial enterprises, e is
president of the Akron Vitritied Pre.sed Brick Company located
at Independence, Cuyahoga county. From 1866 to 1876 was a
volunteer fireman.

On the 30th day of March 1881 he was wedded to Mrs. TTelen
E. Phillips, who died November 16th, 1857, Ile was again married
April 23d, 1800 to Miss Flora B. Cook.

Since the war Captain Ewart has been prominent in military
aflairs, organizing in 187 the 6th Battery, Light Artillery, now
Battery I, 1st Regiment, Light Artillery, O.N. (f.  August 20th,
1891, he was promoted to the position of Major of the regiment,
which place he fills with signal ability,

o

WILLIAM BURKITARDT, : -

William Burkhardt was born in Germany, July Slat, 1844,
where he received a common: school edueation in the Brewers
College. IHemoved to Cleveland in 1864, and married Margaretha
Wagemann in 1872, by whom he has three children. e started
the Burkhardt Brewery in 1874, which has been condueted and
greatly enlarged by his widow and heirs since his death, which
oceurred April 13th, 1882,

Mr, Burkhardt was a member of the (erman Reformed
church, the German Singing Societies and of the 1, 0. O. T. Te
was prompt in his business transactions, benevolent with his
fellow men and beloved by his family and associates who deeply
mourned his early death.
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FOLTZ BROTHERS.

The group portrait herewith represents five of the Foltz brothers, of Akron, who have a
remarkable war record. They are the sons of Moses and Sarah (Kean) Foltz, whose residence
at the time of their decease was Smithville, Wayne County, Ohio.
County, Pennsylvania, February 18th, 1307, and moved to Wooster, Ohio, in 1829,

He married Sarah Kean, May 19th, 1831, who was born in Mifflin County, Pennsylvania, June
4th, 1807. By this union there are eight children living. Mnses Foltz devoted his attention on his
arrival in Ohio to the teaching of school in winter and to the carpenter trade in the snmmer,

Continuing thus until 1864, he enlisted in the United
States Quartermaster™s service as carpenter, and
was sent to Nashville, Tenn., where he met his five
soldier sons who were stationed at that place. In
July following, hie was taken sick with camp fever.
He was honorably discharged and returned to his
home where he died Aug. 17th.

At tihe beginning of the war, Mrs. Foltz was
in poor health and reluetant to see her sons enlist,
but in Aug., 62, when the prospects of the Union
cause were gloomy, she called them together and
bade them volunteer. Five of them at once en-
listed, The blow was a fatal one. She went into
a decline and died Feb. 17th, 1863, as truly a vietim
of the war as those who perished by the sword.

The five brothers who enlisted, and whose por-
traits are given here, remained together through
the war and were discharged and returned home
about the same time. They are all residents of
Akron.

JOSEPI M. FOLTZ.

Joseph M., Foltz, whose residence iz 2041 West
Chestnut street, was born in Juniata County,
Pennsylvania, Dec. 8th, 1830. e received a com-
mon school education, and on June 24, 1880,
married Sarah L. ITersh. They have five children
living. He enlisted with his brothers at Wooster,
Ohio, Aug. 8th, 1862, and was discharged June
30th, 1865, having participated in all the services
performed by the regiment and was never in the
hospital. He moved to Akron in May, 1875, and i3
engaged in the business of photography, He 15 o
member of the G. A. R. and of the Lutheran
chureh.

HEBER MINOTT FOLTZ.

Heber Minott FFoltz, a carpenter and sign paint-
ter, residence southeast corner of Bowery and
Bartges streets, was born at Wayne County Ohio,
April 10th, 1842, He received a common school
edueation, married Hattie G. Pomeroy, March 16th,
1868, and has three children living—A. E., aged
twenty-one; G. P., nineteen, and (. E., seventeen.
He enlisted as a private in Co. T, 102d O, V. L,

Aug. 8th, 1862, and in October, 18G4, was detailed to Hospital ITeadqguarters, Distriet of North
Alabama, as a guard. Afterwards he became Assistant Steward and Assistant Druggist at the
ITe wasin all of the engagements of the regiment and was
ITe is a member of the Disciple chureh, the G, A, R. and

Post Hospital, Huntsville, Alabama,
discharged at Nashville, June 30th, 1865,
the Loval Templars,

WILLIAM ITENRY STELLER.

Williamy Henry Steller, who resides at the corner of Maple
and Exchange streets, was born in Cleveland, Ohio, Oct, ith, 1856,
where he received a good common sehool education.  He married
Mary Rush, by whom he hasg one child.

Mr. Steller moved to Akron in 1883 and is o contractor of
painting and decorating. IHe stands foremost in his business, as
is evidenced by the ¢lass of work which he is called upon to exe-
cute, among which may be named the Conger residence, Akron,
and the Monroe Seiberling residence, Kokomo, Indiana,

The father was born in Juniata

HEBER M.

Davis and Harry Foltz.

ADNER E.
JUSEPH M. JOIUN K.

FOLTZ SOLDIER BROTHERS.

Co, I, 1i2d Regiment, O. V. L., August Tth, 1862 to June 30th, 18635,

27th, 1833, and moved to Akron in 1874.

union there are six sons and one daughter.
He enlisted in Ang. 1862, in Co. T, 102¢ Regiment, O, V. I., and served as a private, being

discharged on the 13th day of September, 1863, by reason of a surgeon’s certificate of disability.

HIRAM H. FOLTZ.

Hiram H. Foltz, present Collector for the Ohio Canal, was born at McCoy’s Corners, Wayne
County, Ohio, June 30th, 1837. He received a common school education in Wayne county and
married Cynthia B. Hughes, March 27th, 1862, by whom he has had two children—Mrs. Minnie

He enlisted with his brothers in the 102d Regiment, O. V. I., and was a non-commissioned
officer from the organization of the regiment to his discharge which occurred May 13th, 1865. He
served as clerk in the office of United States Sanitary Commission by order of Major General

G. H. Thomas, and on a surgeon’s certificate of dis-
ability, On account of increased disability he was
transferred to the Quarter-Master’s quarters as
clerk in A. W. Well’s office in Naghville.

e was a member of the Board of Education
from 1881 to 1885. Ie is a member of Buckley
Tost and of the Disciple church, is a director of
Summit County Fair Association, Chairman of the
City Republican Committee, and a member of the
State Executive Committee, National Union.

ABNER E. FOLTZ.

Abner E. Foltz, physician, surgeon and oculist,
residence and office No. 156 South Broadway, was
born in Wayne County, Ohio, Jan. 29th, 1840, and
removed to Akron in January, 1870. IHe married
Frances C. Bowen, daughter of Dr. Wm. Bowen,
Oct. 6th, 1869, by which union there is one child,
Edgar Bowen.

Dr. Foltz received a common school education
and afterwards attended Sharon Academy, and
Aungust Tth, 1862, enlisted in Co. I, 102d Regiment,
0. V. L, a8 a private, doing mostly detached ser-
vice as surveyor and engincer in Tennessee and
Northern Alabama. He was discharged May 16th,
1865. He then studied medicine with Dr. W. XK.
Foltz at Sharon Center, entered the Medical Depart-
ment of the University of Michigan, and was grad-
uated from the Medical Department of the Univer-
sity of Wooster, at Cleveland, 0., in 1868. He
practiced medicine one year in Aghland, Ohio,
then toolk a course of lectures at Jefferson Medical
College, Philadelphia, paying special attention to
Ophthalmology and Otology.

He is a member of Buckley Post, G. A. R,
National Union, U. V. U., The County and State
Medical Societies, The U. M. A. of N, E. 0,,and
has been jail physician for 20 years,

Dr. Foltz has won the esteem of the citizens of
Summit county by his kindness and pleasant ways
and by hig ability as a physician in which capacity
hie ranks among the lirst in the State.

HIRAM H.

JOHON K. FOLTZ.

Johan K. Foltz, carpenter, resides 107 Blaine
avenue, Akron. He was ‘born at Wooster, Jan.
He married Rebecca Motz in 1856, from which

ITe is a maember of Buekley Post, No. 12, G. A. R. and of the Reformed church.

SAMUEL WILSON PARSHALL,

5, W. Parshall, the present efficient engineer of the city of
Akron, was born in Tidioute, Pa., May 11th, 1856, and moved to
Akron in Nov. 1883, He finished his education at Buehtel Col-
lege, and was united to Hattie 1. Pardee, Ieb, th, 1880, by which
union there are five children,

Iis business is that of a Civil Engineer.

DR. JAMES PETER BOYD. ,
Dr. J. P. Boyd was born in Wiinblédon, ‘England, Dec. 9th,

1850. He was graduated from the Acacdemic Depart -
town Union Sehool and Collegiate Institute, in 18%]’76.1113’}1']3 Fvas
graduated in pharmacy from the University of Michigan, in 1873
and in medicine from the Long Island ‘College Hosplta,l’ in 1875’
in which lattgr laqe he remained as interne for one year’ : '

He married Miss Maria A, Partridge, of Jamestown. N. Y.
Mareh 20th, 1879, by which union there are two sons and a
daughter; He cameé to Akron Oct. 16th, 1876, and has since

practiced his profession here. He ig ¢ of
Poteood, Clu?r "ol e 18 a membey of th‘e Protesta11t
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DR. ABNER E. FOLTZ, TORTRAIT AND BIOGRAPHY WITH
FOLTZ BRos. GROUP,

GEORGE W, BURGESS.

Georue W, Durgess was born at Johnston's Corners, Summit
County, Ohio, September th, 1861, where his aged and respected
parents still reside.  After obtaining a good English edueation in
the schools of Sununit County, he coneluded to study law. With
that conelnson he went to Ann Arbor, Michigan, where he pur-
sued a thorough conrse of study and was admitted with honor to
the bar of Summit County, in October, 1840, shortly after his
admission he was offered the responsible position of Attorney and
Adjuster of Claims with the Aultman, Taylor & Co., of Manstield,
Ohio, which position he ocenpies to-day.  Iis business requires
an immense amount of traveling, visiting the various agencies of
the company, adjusting claims, and ¢ounseling with the represent-
atives of the company. A bright and substantial future awaits
this young attorney.

JAMES WILDES.

JAMES WILDES,

James Wildes, who resides at 116 South College <treet, Akron,
wus born in Kinderhook, New York, to Patrick and Mary {tiough)
Wildes, December 24th, 1833, IHis parents came to Portage
County near Ravenna, when James was quite young. For four
years he assisted his father who was superintendent of the Penn-
sylvania and Ohio Canal from Breaknpeek to Akron. e then
went to California via Panama, and worked in the gold and cop-
per mines of Calaveras County, returning by water. IHe was in
Michigan one vear, then in Kent, and tinally came to Akron in
1864, Ie built the DBrewster railroad and remained in the com-
pany’s employ ten years.  He was elected street commmissioner in
April 1881 and serveld four years, since which he has devoted hig
attention as general contractor in grading streets, stone aml brick
paving and sidewalks, sewering aud masonry,

e was married in November, 1864, to Miss Lizzie Calluban, by
whom he has four childien—two boys and two girls,

JOSEPIT II. DERITAMMER.

Joxeph 11, Derhammer was born in Medina County, Ohio,
June 16th, 1837, where he was educated in both English and
German. He was married Junuary Itith, 1550, to Miss Mary B,
Shook. Three boys, William H., Daniel J., and Rudolph N., are
the result of this marriage. Mr. Derhammer hax been a promi-
nent contractor and builder in Akron, where he sustaing an
unsullied reputation, both as an honest workman and a eitizen,
In 1875 amd 1876 he represented the fourth ward in the City
Couneil where he rendered valuable service to the city. [le is
also engaged in the general coal buzines< with his son William
H., having offices in-the fourth and sixth wards,

DANIEL O'MARR

Daniel O°Marr, the well-known brick, stone and paving con-
tractor, was born in the city of Cleveland, May 8d, 1849, where he
received an education and came to Akron in September, 1583, In
1873 he was married to Miss Mary Conners, who died September
16th, 1882, the mother of four children—three girls and one boy.
Mr. O'Marr for three years had charge of the stone work on the
Ohio Canal, from Clinton, Summit County, to and incinding
Cleveland. He left the employ of the State to engage in business
for himself. At the expiration of three years he formed a co-
partnership with William Barnett, 2 prominent contractor, under
the firm name of Barnett & O*Marr. This alliance continued for
three years, when a dissolution occuarred and Mr., O'Mawr
embarked again in business on his own account which he is now
successfully engaged in.

On November 26th, 1890, he was married to Miss Katie Glen-
nan, at §t. Vincent De Paul’s church, of which he is a member,
by Father Mahar, before & large audience. e resides in a cosy

cottage at No. 342 West North street, Akron, where the latch-key
is always out to friends.

CHARLES WILHELM,

Charles Withelm, of Akron, Ohio, was born in France, May
4th, 1833, and emigrated to the United States with his parents in
1855, He received a common sehool edueationin hoth the French
and German languages,

In 185%, he married his present wite,  They had four children,
three of whom are living,.

He engaged in the hostlery business and farming in Spring-
tield township, at what is now known as Brittain P. O., Summit
County, where he remained for eleven years, after which he
removed to Akron, and with his brother-in-law, engaged in pork
packing, continuing in that business for thirteen years, Selling
his interest, be started a general mill supply store on Main street
bhetween Mill and Market streets. Thix was the pioneer store in
that section of the street before the mill-race was covered and the
street improved, for both of which Mr. Wilhelm labored very
hard. Iix next enterprize was the formation of a stock company
which resulted in the Akron Cracker Works, 1Te was the Secre-
tary until it merged into the United states Baking Co., whose
efficient manager he is at the present time.,

CAPTAIN GEORGE EDWARD BUCKINGHAM.

Captain Buckingham, wag born in Waterbury, Conn., July
15th, 1835, and was the eldest of three children, of George and
Betsey {(Merriman) Buckingham who moved to Middlebury,
Summit County, in 1844,  In 1855 he was engaged in the mercan-
tile business in Cleveland. In 1857 he accepted a position in the
postoffice at Indjanapolis which he held three years., In August
1862 he enlisted in the 115th O. V. [, entering the service as First
Lieutenant and in three months was promoted to Captain of his
company, being for a time Provost Marshal of Cincinnati and
Murfreeshoro—of the former place during the Morgan raid.
After the close of the war he returned to Akron and was ap-
pointed Collector of Internal Revenue, serving in this eapacity
until 1871, when he was elected Auditor of Summit County by the
Republican party, which responsible position hie held for nine
congecutive years—being re-elected in '74 and '77,

March 10th, 1863, he was married to Miss Frances P, daughter
of Hon. John Johnston and Elizabeth (Newton) Johnston, of
Akron. Six children were born to them—four of whom are liv-
ing; viz., George L., John 8., William J., and Hulda. Captain
Buckingham, though reticent and always dignitied in hig bearing,
was universally popular and had a charm in his demeanor that
won him hosts of lasting friends. His untimely death occurred
August 30th, 1881,
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HERMAN €, TITEISS, M. D.

Herman Christian Theiss, M. D, of No. 16 N. Walnut sireet,
Akron, Ohio, was born near Pittsburg, Pa., May 4th, 1564, of Ger-
man parentage. ITe is the sixth son of the nine sons and five
daughters horn to Christian and Charlotte (Noej Theiss.  When
the subject of this sketeh was eighteen months old, his parents
moved to Northampton township, this eounty, where he spent his
early life on a farm, attending the country schools in the winter
and working on the farm in the summer, until at the age of fif-
teen, when he attended a year at the Akron Iligh School, after
which he took a classical course at Buchtel College. Tle then
began his medieal cducation as an office student with Dr. E.W.
Howard, gradunting from the Columbus Medieal College, Colum-
bus, Ohio, with honors from that institution.
partner with his preceptor under the tfirm name of brs. Howard
& Theiss in the practice of medicine and surgery at Akron, Ohio,
which partnership continued until the death of Dr. Howard, after
which he continued alone at the old stand at which place he now
enjoys a luerative practice.

e was married September 25th, 1888, to Miss lva B, Manton, of
Akron, a graduate of Akron High School, elassof 1854, One son,
Fred. (i, born September 22d, 1884, is the fruit of their marriage.

Tle is o member of the Ohio State, the Northeastern Ohio and
the Summit County Medical and Surgical Societies,

JOIIN RTCITARD BUCHTEL.

John 1. Buehtel, the founder of Buchtel College, was born
in Green township, Summit County, Ohio, January I1N¥th, 1822,
He reccived no schooling aind was hardly able to write a legible
hand at twenty-one. Endowed with a rugged constitution, reso-
jute purpose and a cheerful disposttion, poverty was no obstacle
to suecess.  Te commenced the hattle of life at twenty-two, by
working land on shares, and subsequently purehazed twenty
acres upon which he lived two years. Selling this, he purchased
160 acres in Coventry which he sold in 1854, and purchased a
farm in La Dorte county, Indinna, intending to continue farming;
instead, he engaged with Ball, Aultman & Co., of Canton, as
agent of the * Ohio” afterwards the ** Buckeye " mower. In 1856,
the firm asigned to him, and with his assistance they resumed
operations under the firm nameof . Aultman & Co.  Ieinduced
them to establish a factory in Akron, he taking & one-sixth
interest and position as superintendent of construction. This
plant was in operation in the Spring of 1365, and known as
Aultman, Miller & Co. The next year it was organized as &
stock company, of which he was president. From this time
on his business achievements were numerous, among which
we mention the Akron Iron Co., The Columbug and Hock-
ing Coal and fron Co., Weary, Snyder & Wilcox, Bank of

ITe s00n entered as

Akron and other smaller institutions, in all of which he was
director.  One of the most successtul of Mr. Buchtel’s un-
dertakings was the purchase of the Athens County mineral
fands by the Akron Iron Co., in which he took a prominent
part. The result of their purchase was the thriving village
hearing his name, now a place of several thouzand inhabitants.

He has always contributed liberally to the support of the
churehes and especially the Universalist Church of which he is
a member.

He is a Republiean in polities, and at Grant's second election.
he was an elector.  In 1874 he was a candidate for Secretary of
State on the Probibition ticket. e was appointed by Governor
Muyes as one of the Trustees of the State Agrienltural College,
and was 1 member of the executive committee during the erection
of its buildings.

The erowning work of his long and useful career is shown in
the establishment and endowment of Buchtel College, the corner-
«tone of which was laid by Horace Greeley, July 4th, 1871.

The work of his lifetime is centered in this college, and
already he has given it $i00,000. It remains an ornament to the
state, 1 monument to his unstinted liberality, end the crowning
glory to a busy aml unselfish life, a life worthy of emnlation.

GREGORY J. GONDER.

Gregory J. Gonder, who resides at 165 South Broadway, was
bhorn in Akron, May 28th, 1854, where he received a common
school edueation.  ITe married Emma M. Edwards, September
25rd, 1878, by whom he has two children, tGregory and Howard.

Mr. Gonder gave his early attention to painting, paper
hanging and decorating. ITe has been in business for himself
sinee 1836, commencing at 145 East Market street, where he
remained a year, then removing to his present commadious gquar-
ters wndder the Windsor fTotel. He hax executed many large con-
tracts in this ¢ity and given aniversal =atisfaetion.

By hix honorable dealing and good Husiness ability, combined
with his thorough knowledge of the business, artistie skill and
harmony, he has built up a fine business employing from six to
fifteen practieal and efficient workmen in hix different depart-
ments, with a constant and increasing patronagse,

JOHN II. DOYLE.

Joln . Doyle, was born in Canada West, January 21st, 1841.
He moved to Hudzon in May, 1849, and received a High School
education in Hudson and Akron. He married Elizabeth A
Shouler, January 1st, 1863, Mr. Doyle resides on Bartges street'
Akron, Ohio. '

Heis now and has been for a great many yearg engaged in
arading streets, paving, flagging, ete.

S e,

GEORGE W. GLINES—DECEASED.

George W. Glines was born in Vermont, October 10th, 1832,
died March 4th, 1878, He was the son of Asa and Roxana (Sin-
elair) Glines, who removed to Lakeé county and settled near
Painesville, when their son was quite small.  Asa afterwards set-
tled in Cleveland; his wife died in 1849, and shortly atterwards,
while keeping a store on the west side, he suddenly disappeared
and was never heard from.

Gieorge W, was married June -th, 1836, to Miss Julia Fergu-
son, who was born in Willonghby, Lake County, December 24th,
1532, She was the daughter of Finley and Julia (Judd) Ferguson.
In 1834 Mr. (ilines enlisted in an artillery regiment and served
until the eivil war closed. e held several minor offices in Cuya-
hoga County and on April 1st, 1868, was appointed superintendent
of the Xummit County Infirmary, which position he held until
his death. The directors, knowing of the efficiency and executive
ability of Mrs, Glines, appoiated her to fill the vacaney. So suc-
cessful was the management under her administration that she
was reappointed in January, 1881,

Mr. and Mrs. Glines were both members of the M, 1, Chureh.
Two children were the result of their marringe—Julia, who was
born December 20th, 1858, and Charles, who died in infancy.

i - I BB

JOHN FREDERICK KUHLKE.

John Frederick Kuhlke who resides at 706 South High street,
Akron, Obhio, was born in Germany, September 8th, 1846, and
came to the United States in December, 1864. On arriving in
New York, he soon found employment in a grocery store, but
hearing of the fame of Akron as a prosperous business place he
came here March 17¢h, 1866, Being industrious and determined
to succeed he took up with anything to earn an honest living.
From common labor he entered the Excelsior shops, now known
as the Empire; from there to the Mateh Factory, and later, to the
Buc%{eye. In 1882 he became unable to do hard work frominjury
to his spine, and engaged in the refreshment business. In 1886
he purchased the oldest established bakery in the city, located
on Sc‘mth High street, where he commenced with one wagon, and
by his strict attention to business and fair dealing he hasincreased
to five,

He married Miss Mary Bremer, June 26th, 1869, by whom he
hasg four children, Urias M., George H., Carl J. and Meta H.

Mr. Kuhlke is a member of Summit Lodge No. 50, a charter
member of Granite Lodge, 522, in which he i8 a Past Grand and
trustee; a member of Akron Encampment, No. 18; of Summit
Council, No. 253, A. L. of H.; and was first Sachem of the
Improved Order of Red Men; a. Democrati¢c member of the School
Board in 1875-"76, and in 1876 hecame prominently identified with
the labor movement.. Was a delegate to Cincinnati conference
May 19th, 1891, where the People’s Party was born.
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COL. DUDLEY SEW

Col. Dudley Seward was born in Utica, New York, January
14th, 1819, to Timothy (. and Elizabeth Seward, and died at
Akron, May 24th, 1852, He was the fifth of nine children.
When sixteen years old he clerked in a general store at Man-
chester, New York, where he remained four years, after which
he taught school in winter and worked on a farm in summer until
1842, when he came to Ohio, locating in Middlebury, from there
to Wadswoerth and Tallmadge and finally to Akron. He served
Summit county as deputy sherift from 1847 to 1852, and thereafter
as sheriff two terms. In April, 1861, he enlisted in Company G,
19th O. V. I., as private and at expiration of service in company
with Capt. Purington recruited Company &, 2nd O. V. C., in
which company he was first lieuntenant, He remained in the ser-
vice until October, 1865, when he was mustered out as Colonel,
having been promoted by regular gradation. He saw much hard
service at Rich Mountain, the battles of the Wilderness, in pur-
suit of Morgan, Wilson and Kanty, in Shenandoah Valley cam-
paign and in other places. At the close of the war he was assist-
ant clerk in the -Ohio Senate one term.

He then served four years as captainin 8th U. 8 Cavalry,
Regular Army, through California, Oregon and the territories,
and was commissioned Brevet Major, U. 8. Army, for gallant and
meritorious service and action at Monticello, Kentucky. Ife
returned home in 1871, and was elected justice of the peace of
Portage township, which office he held at the time of his death,

He was married November 2nd, 1848, to Lois Clark, by which
union there were three children, of whom two are now living—-
Louis D., attorney-at-law and ex-mayor of ‘Akron, and Mary .,
wife of John L. Taplin.

ALFRED M. BARBER,

A. M. Barber, a well-known and wealthy citizen of Akron,
Ohio, has always resided in Summit County, having been born in
Bath Township, October 2nd, 1830,

In 1858, after receiving a common school edueation, he came
to Akron and embarked in the milling business, which he con-
duected for four years. Disposing of his plant he formed a part-
nership in April, 1863, with H. H. Clark, of Hartford, Connecticut,
under the firm name of Clark & Barber, in the purchase and
shipping of grain, Hour and produce. But a short time elapsed
before the firm were the most extensive shippers in Northern Ohio,
80 great was their trade that they were known as the heaviest
shippers on the Atlantic & Great Western Railway, now the N. Y.,
P.& 0.R.R.,and ., A. & C., their consignments principally going
to the oil producing country, and the eastern cities, establishing
a business of $1,500,000 per annum. After a period of thirteen
years, Mr. Clark withdrew; a co-partnership was then formed
with E. R. Grant, which continued until 1880, when Mr. Grant
retired. ‘The business since has been continued by Mr. Barber,

notwith=tanding the fact that he is actively engaged in various
other enterprizes that require much of his time, being Vice Presi-
dent of the City National Bank, of Akron; Vice President, Akron
Belting Company, besides being a director in the American
Cereal Company, of Akron: Shelby Milling Company, Shelby,
Ohio; Dinmond Plate Glaxs Company, of Kokomo and Ellwood,
Indiana; and Taplin, Rice & Co's, of Akron: the latter position
he has filled for the last twenty-two vears. As a publie-spirited
gitizen he ranks with the foremost, and van always be found
working in the interest of the city and community.

His modest retiring disposition has won for him the esteem of
all with whom he comes in contact, and has prevenied him from
accepting positions of trust amd honor that have repeatedly been
tendered him.

On the tth day of October, 1857, he married Miss Sarah,
daughter of Henry and Mary (Enunonsi Van Sickle, of Bath, and
resides in o sumptuous home at No. 107 North Prospeet street.

Mr. Barber has successfully engaged in farming, manufac-
turing, mercantile and banking business, making an envious
record in all, until he stands today o monument of what energy
and good judgment can do. e has large land interests alxo
in Summit County and owns one of the finest brick blocks in
the City of Akron, ‘

DR, WILLIAM KEAN FOLTZ.

Dr. Willlam Kean Foltz, of 225 South Union Street, Akron,
Ohio, was born at Mifllin, Juniata County, Pa., November 15th,
1520, He came with his parents to Wooster, Ohio, in the spring
of 1831, where he received a common school education and sab-
sequently attending Heidelberg College in the direction of medi-
cine, He was married to Caroline Lehman, May 12th, 1835, by
whom he has one =on.

Dr. Foltz is engaged in the practice of medicine and surgery,
office in Kelly Block. e is o member of the Ohlo State Eeleetie
Medical Association, National Eeleetie Mellieal Association and
the Akron Scientitie Club.

FRANCIS J. LIBIS.

PHOTOGRAPHED BY COURTNEY.

Francix J. Libis, the efficient and genial Deputy Clerk of the
Court of Common Pleas, was born in Portage Township, Summit
County, Ohio, October 27th, 1865, to Lucas and Elizabeth (Heller)
Libis. His father was in Co. G, 6th Ohio. Frank was educated in
the Akron schoolsand was appointed Deputy by Clerk Hale at the
commencement of his administration, February 19th, 1885, remain-
ing through it, and up to the present time with Clerk Goodhue.

He was married to Miss Metta M., daughter of George W. and
Ellen P. Miller, of Oberlin, Ohio, July 6th, 1886, He is a member
of the First Congregational Church of Akron, a young man of
good moral courage, business sagacity and thoroughly acquainted
with the duties of his office.

MAJOR ALBERT A, BARTLETT.

AL AL Bartlett was born in Chautawgua County, New York,
June 22d, I840; living upon the farm until seventeen years old,
when he went to work in a saw-mill for a year or two, subse.
quently conducting the mill on shares. e enlisted in July
1861, in Company A, 40th N. Y. V. L., serving in all of the engage-
ments of the regimnent in the Army of the Potomac, until the bat-
tle of Antietam, where he was wonnded, and lost his left arm.,
April 6th, 1863, he wax discharged and returned to higs home in
New York, and gave his attention to a small place he owned.
Two years later he went to Corry, Pa., and engaged as engineer
of & saw-mill. At the end ol a year took charge of the business-
From 1867 to 1871, he was connected with the planing mill of
George Thomas & Son, of Akron, the last eight years as foreman,
He was elected county recorder in INTS, serving six years with
signal ability and honor to the office. During his term of office
he made a new and valuable index of the county records.  Soon
after his retirement from office he formed a partnership with
Heminger & Coney, and engaged in the planing mill business, sub-
sequently purchasing his partner’s interest and now operating it
with g son-in-law, Cieorge J. Snook, under the firm name of
AL Al Bartlett & Co.

He was married in 1850 to Mixs Imogen Travers, of Chautau-
qua County, New York, by whom he has two children, Mary, now
Mrs. George J. Snook, and Jennie, now Mrs. Dr. W. B. Conner.
ITe ix a member of Buckley Post, No. 12, 5. A, R L OO0 F Red
Cross, and at present Adjutant of the Sth Begiment, Ohio
National Guard.

DR. KENT O. FOLTZ.

Dr. Kent 0. Foltz, residence 225 South Union street, uffice,
KellyBlock, Akron,wasborn inMedina County, February 16th, 1857,
and came to Akron in 1877, He received his education in the
Ashland High School, Buchtel College, New York College of
Pharmacy, Eclectic Medical Institute, of Cincinnati, ()., New York
Post Graduate Medieal School and Hospital and New York
Polychnic.

He is President of the Ohio State Eelectic Medical Associa-
tion, member of the National Eclectic Association, honorary
member of the Central Ohio Eclectic Medical Association, member
of the American Assoeiation for the Advancement of Science,
member of the Akron Seientific Club, Vice President of the Botan-
ical Section of the Akron Scientific Club and P. (. MePherson
Lodge No. 63, K. of .

Dr. Foltz is a close and earnest student and though but a
young man in his profession has won an enviable reputation as
an Qculist and Aurist.

He married Bird A. Pendleton, daughter of J. H. Pendleton,
November 25, 1891.
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NOAIT X. LEOHNER.

N. N. Leohner, a prominent citizen of Akron, was born at
Lancaster, Ohio, October 29th, 1%44. When about ten years of
age, his parents removed to Cireensburg, Summit County, Ohio,
where his father engaged in the milling business,  He obtained a
thorough education at the ¢Gireensburg Seminary. Young Leoh-
ner, full of patriotism, enlisted at Greensburg, August 18th, 1861,
at the early age of sixteen years, in Company D, 0. V. 1. a8 a
private, was honorably discharged at Washington, I, ., Febru-
ary 28th, 1868. He re-enlisted in tireensburg, May 2d, 1864, as
Orderly Sergeant, Company I, 16dith 0.V, I, and wax honorably
discharged at Cleveland, Ohio, Augnst 2th, Is64. He was mar-
ried in March 1867, to Miss Sophis M. Crouse, who died TFebruary
29th, 1880, the mother of three chilidren, who survive—treorge W.,
now the chiet book-keeper inn the Cleveland workhouse, Grace
M., and Noah Arthur.

He was 2 member of the ¢ity couneil from the Fourth Ward
in 1872, and as chairman of the gas committee, by bis wise and
judicions management, rertdl ered the city valuable =erviee in what
was known as the gas war. Fle wasinstrumental in materially
aiding in the passage of an ordinancegrading Main and Exchange
streets. ITe declined a remormmination to thecouneil, but the peo-
ple persisted in his serving them wul u!m:t‘ml.him to the school
board in 1872, re-electing him in I=T4h While in this eapacity as
a public servant he was ¢hiety instruwental in securing the
erection of what is knowrn a= the Thoraton Scehool) a necessity
that required prompt attention aml good husiness sagacigy to
accomplish. The fact that he was elected asn Republican from a
hopelessly Denocratie ward i= evidenee that he was the right man
in the right place, and the pes e !‘t"::fﬂrdu'-w 0t puhm-s, knew it.

Mr. Leohner was marricsdd to Miss Maraaret E. Hilbish, of
Selines Girove, Pa., May 18th, 1=~ ¥l_\" whon he hias two ehildren
—Guy Thompson, and Marzarer Ruth. e 3= o prominent
member of Buckley Post, i A Hoonnd ol the Methodist ehureh.

~ PFEIFFER.

cHARLE

He has been an orphan since he was two yeurs old, worked
on a farm until eighteen, afterwards elerking in a grocery a short
time; he then learned his trade, that of a pressman, and was for
some time superintendent of the press room of the Argus. Mr.
Pfeiffer was for six years a commereial traveler, but was obliged
to abandon it on account of his increaging business at home, it
requiring his entire attention. Ie has been a life-long Democrat,
isa member of the German Reformed Church, a Past Chancellor
of Etolia Lodge, No. 24, K. of P., a member of Summit Lodge,
No. 132, Red Men and various other organizations in all of which
he has been called upon to hold official positions.

GEORGE ARTHUR MYERS.

George A. Myers, the well-known collector, who resides in a
pleasant home corner Goodrich and South High streets, Akron,
Ohio, was born in Clinton, Summit County, Ohio, August 18th,
1859, where he obtained a common school education in English.
On April 28th, 1882, he married Miss Emma L. Mest. TFor several
yvears he was constable in this city and discharged his duties
with fidelity and energy. For the past five years he has con-
ducted a Collection, Loan and Real Xstate office in Akron, and
since 1883, has in addition to his other business, charge of the
eolleetions of the Mercantile Association organized in that year.

Gteorge is a good business man and thoroughly awake to the
interests of his patrons,

e isx a member of the American Legion of Honor.

CHRISTIAN J. KITTLEBERGER.

Christian J. Kittleberger, whose residence at the time of his
decease, Nuvember 17th, 1886, was at Cuyahoga Falls, was born
in Metzingen, Germany, May 6th, 1836. His parents removed
from Germany to Buffalo, New York, when he was but eleven
years of age. Later, they removed to Erie, Pennsylvania, where
he married o most estimable lady, Miss Rose L. Shaal, December
24th, 1857, who has borne him nine children. He removed to
Cuyahoga Falls in November, 1866, where he engaged in the tan-
nery business, which is still successtully operated by the \Vidow‘
and heirs, He established a wholesale hide, leather and saddlery

DR. LEWIS E. SISLER.

Dr. Lewis E. Sisler, a practicing physician and surgeon of
Clinton, Ohio, was born at Manchester, Ohio, April 8th, 1860. He
was educated in the High School of Manchester, the Smithville
Academy, and Northwestern Ohio Normal University at Ada, Ohio.

He was married to Miss Metta B. Miller, October 8th, 1884, by
whom he has one child.

Dr. Sisler is a member of the Summit County Medical and
Surgical Society, Recording Secretary Union Medieal Association
of Northeastern Ohio, Ohio State Medical Society, American Medi-
cal Association, National Association Railway Surgeons, local sur-
geon for C., A. & C. and B. & O. R. R., United States Pension
Kxamining Board, Knights of the Maceabees and of the Christian
Church.

FREDERICK WILLIAM FUCHS,

Frederick William Fuchs, agent of the L. Schlather Brewing
Co., of Cleveland, was born in Akron August 18th, 1838, and
received his education in the public schools of Akron. For six
years he held an important position with the C., A. & C. R. R. Co.,
and -for some time was business manager of the IHigh Bridge
pleasure resort at the Glens, Cuyahoga Falls. Energetic and
prompt in his business engagements, and social in his disposition,
he has many warm friends. He is an active member of Aetolia
Lodge No. 24, Knights of Pythias, and of Summit Tribe (Stamm)
No. 238, Independent Order of Red Men.

FREDERICK STAHLI,

. Fred, Stahli wag born in the city of Thun, Canton of Bern,
Switzerland, December 25, 1852, where he obtained a liheral edyca.-
tion, and came to Ohio in 1880, locating in Akron.

. e i T . 8 as ol i lloek to Miss Catharine K
o . pesidenee i Forest v . . ) . o o . : He was joined in wed . \enny, at
Charles Dfeiffer, “"1‘09"; t.orn in Litehfield, 3\[2&;1&’ foot of Dhardware house at 114 South Main street, Akrom, now in success-  parker’s Landing, Crawford County, Pennsylvania, May 15th,18,76.
Walnut Street, Akron, “'““) sugust 27th, 1853, g1 ta County, ful opem’mon,‘muz'(-(_m(lucted by Wm. C. Kittleberger, undet the geven children—five boys and two girls—are the vesult of the
Ohio, of German parentage: 1 Medina and Qim, © Teceived a firm name of C. Kittleberger & Son. * union.
common school educatlm.]tx:lin 1834, it (’Ountles’ ITe commanded the Iefspect of all who knew him by his 11(?11- Mr, Stahli has been identified with the brewing interest singe hig
removing to the latter cg}lﬂ o Irown Mareh 1st, 15 ol-ablfa and L.‘horough l)uSlnes.s ways, and was a representative  gdventinto the city, representing some of the best establishmentg
He was married tO 1.\11'}? ‘und Freddie. $ T by whom  man in the ‘{ﬂlfa g«61WhGI.‘e he died. Atone time he wasa member = jn the country, and known as a hustler in anything he attempts to
‘ ildren, Allie I \ o . of the Board of Education, and at the time of his death he was &  dp, TUrbane in manner, prompt and faithful in bi i
he has t_wo chi | ,ietOI‘ of the .lfxrg,f‘.»t and the onjy Eurgpe member of the Council. in which latter capacity he had served transactions, charitable to, the needy, are known ch 8 ?usjmesg
He is the proprie the Daciic tanden, 118 Nopgy, hg Péan . twelve years He left a valuable business and beautiful home A ber of 8 ’B o coaracteristics of
Restaurant in the city, * Toward  for the comtort and welfare of his family. One of the finest 0ur subject. He isa memberol St. Bernard’s Catholic Churel
street, employing ten mei- monuments in Oakwood Cemetery is erected 1o his memory. and a good citizen. ’
—
e —— |
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DR. CIIARLES B. CARR.

Dr. Charles B. Carr was born in East Union township, Wayne
county, Ohio, July 25th, 1865, on a farm which was settled upon at
a very early dale by his grandfather, a prominent pioneer of that
section. IHis early years were spent in working upon the farm in
simmer and attending the district schools in the winter. HHe at-
tended the 8Smithville Academy a number of terms, then entered
Wooster University and prepared himself for the study of medi-
cine. Later he entered the office of Dr. S, P. Grew, of Orrville,
one of the leading physicians and surgeons of Wayne county, for
preliminary study prior to entering the Cincinnati Medical Col-
lege. In 1887 he entered that institution for a course of lectures
lasting three years, being graduated in 1890 with tle tirst honors
of hisg class. ‘

After a short time spent in hospital practice he returned home
and in July located in Barberton for the practice of his profession.
His practice has rapidly increased until he now enjoys the dis-
tinction of being one of the leading practitioners in Southern
Summit county.

Though but a young man in years and in his profession, he
enjoys the entire confidence of the people. In addition to his
practice he owns a first-clags drug store which ix in charge of an
efficient pharmaeist.

CAPTAIN GEORGE BILLOW.

FHOTOGRAFH BY COURTNEY.

Captain (3eorge Billow, of 104 West Market street, Akron, is
one of the pioneer undertakers of Summit county. IHe was born
in Messen-Darmstadt, Germany, April 2d, 1833, and is the fourth
son of John and Elizabeth (Mililts) Billau, natives of the same
place. He received a common school education until eleven years
of age, when his parents emigrated to this country in ]§44, .zmd
settled in the ¢ Black Swamps,”’ in Sandusky county, Ohio, eight
miles from Fremont. At the age of sixteen years, he was appren-
ticed to learn the wagon maker’s trade at Fremont where he u.lso
learned his English in Sunday and night schools. Aftex: serving
his apprenticeship he was employed for three years in J ac‘:f)l)
" Lawman’s carriage factory in Cleveland, O. In Feb_ruary, 1854,

he eame to Middlebury and was employed 1n the carriage factory
of C. A. Collins, where, in a few years, he' established business for
himself. _ )
e enlisted as private in Company I, 107th O. V. L, serving
in the campaign of Fredericksburg, Va., December zm('l January,
1862-63. The captain was mustered in as Lientenant just before
a battle under the name of Billow and as there wasno oppor-
- tunity to change the name he served his full term under it and
has ever since retained it. He was in the battle of Chancellors.
ville, May 2d, 1863, and the campaign and battles of Gettyshurg,

Pa., July 1st, 2d, and 3d, 1863, at which his regiment of 563 men
fost over 400. The remainder of his division was transferred to
South Carolina, where it engaged in many minor battles amd
skirmishes throughout the Department of the Sonth, and until the
close of the war., During the latter part of the war,on account
of broken down health, Mr Billow served much on detached duty
as provost marshal and commissary of subsistenice on the staff of
the general commanding the department, having meanwhile been
promoted to second and first Heutenant and captain, and was
mustered out with the regiment at Charleston, South Carolina,
July, 18645,

Returning to Akron, he engaged in eommercial business, and
in 1871 moved with his family to Huntsvitle, Alabama, hut becom-
ing disappointed in the development of the New South, he again
returned to his more than ever appreciated home, Akron,.Ohio,
where, since the spring of 1875, by his good judgment, skill and
natural adaptation he has built up for himself a well established
business as one of the leading funeral direetors of Akron, in
which he still continues, as<isted by his son, C. F. Billow.

Captain Billow is a staunch republican, although not a poli-
tictan. He is a member of St. Paul’s Episcopal church, and sev-
eral beneficial societies: The Masonie, Knights Templar, Odd
Fellows, a Past Commander of Buckley Post, (. A. R., the Loyal
Legion and Union Veteran’s Union, Knights of Honor and
Knights and Ladies of Honor.

e has eight children—{five sons and three daughters,

DIL ELIZUR HITCHCOCK.

Dr. Elizur Hiteheoek, physician of Akron, was born in Tall-
Jvnadge, Aug. 15th, 1832, and is the fourth of seven children born
to Lucius W. and Eleanor (Woleott) Hitechcock, His parents were
natives of Connecticut, his father coming on foot to Tallmadge,
where he bought a farm, married and raised his family.

Dr. Hiteheock remained at home until 1850, working upon
the farm and gaining sach education as the schools of the neigh-
borhood afforded. At eighteen he entered Western Reserve
College at Fludson, where he studied two years, then entered the
junior class in Yale College, graduating in 1854, During the next
four years he taught select school at Tallmadge and (tustavus, di-
viding the time between them. In 1857 he began reading medicine
with Dr. Dudley Allen, at Kinsman, Ohio. Took a medical course
at Ann Arbor, Mich., and in 1860, graduated at the Medical
Department of Western Reserve College, at Cleveland.

He commenced his practice at Mecca, but soon removed to
Orwell, remaining two years. Was surgeon of the 7th O.V. 1.
about six months.

From 1863 to 1869, practiced in West Williamsfield, Ohin,
then attended the Bellevue Hospital. Came to Akron in 1870 and
has since practiced his profession here. Married Miss Hattie Reed,
of Mecea, Ohio, Nov. 24th, 1861, by whom he has one c¢hild, Ger-
trude Reed Hiichcock., His wife died in May, 1864. Ile married
Lucretia Kellogg, in Nov. 1864, by whom he has two children,
Ialbert K. and Lucius W.

GREORGE (., JACKSON.

George C. Jacksun, of the firm of George . Jackson & Co.,
general job printers in the basement of Schumacher’s Office
Building, Akron, Ohio, was born in Sandusky, Ohio, Dee, 22q,
1869, to Joel R. and Anna M. (Stone) Jackson, He received his
education in Sandusky and Akron, taking special instruction at
Buchtel College. Ie came to Akron in August, 1888, and has
worked in different printing establishments since he was fourteen
years old and has become thoroughly acquainted with hoth news-
paper and job office printing. Ile has been a member of the Uni-
versalist church since 1880, Iis father, who is blind, is the
pioneer piano dealer of Northern Ohio, having sold more pianos
than any other man in the State. His mother died January 12th,
1890.

Ie associated with him W. H. Denham, April, 1891, and the
firm is now better prepared than ever to attend to the wants of
the public who are in need of general or artistic job printing.

J. MARTIN BECK.

J. Martin Beek, born in the town of Selb, Bavaria, Germany,
Oct. 14th, 1843, At fourteen, entered wholesale grocery and drug
house as an apprentice, serving four years, not only without com-
pensation, but paying over 300 to learn the business; passing a
regular examination, he came to the United States, and to Akron
in August, 1862, First entered the employ of M. W. Henry & Co.,
of which firm his half-brother, John Wolf, was =a partner;
remaining six years, when he entered the service of E. I. Baldwin
& Ca., of Cleveland, for one year. Being in rather poor ‘health,
he went to Europe in the spring of 1864, returning to Akron in
the fall, entering into partnership with John Wolf and H. J.
Church, under the firm name of Wolf, Church & Beck, retiring
in 1878, and establishing with Mr. E. G. Kubler, the Akron
Varnish Works, the first and then the only works of the kind
in Summit county, and now among the most prosperous in the
United States,

January 12th, 1871, Mr. Beck was married to Miss Katie J.
Buchtel, daughter of William Buchtel, Esq., of Akron, by whom
he has four children: William B., Edward M., Martha Louige, and
Carl F.

JOIIN McNAMARA,

FHATOGRAPHED BY CQURTNEY,

But few men are hetter known in Summit county than John
MeNamara, Born in Treland February 15th, 1838, he came to the
land of his adoption when twenty-five years of age, locating at
New Portage, hispresent home. Possessing a good businesseduca-
tion, of good judgment and sagacious he was not long in accu-
mulating sufficient funds to engage in the mercantile business,
which he has conducted snccessfully for the past thirty years.
In August 1864, he was married to Miss Hannah Wood; four
children have graced their home,

Although an uncompromising Democrat he has filled the
position of postmaster at New Portage for thirteen years, the
only Democratic administration under which he served being that
of Pregident Cleveland. He wasa township trustee for years and
is at present Justice of the Ieace, serving on his third term and
a member of the Norton Township School Board.

He belongs to St. Vincent De Paul's Catholic Chuarch, of
Akron. Mr., McNamara enjoys the reputation of the greatest
integrity in his business and has a pardonable pride in the Prog-
perity of New Portage

In the Democratic State Convention held in Cleveland, J uly
15th, 1891, he was nominated by acclamation, for member of the
State Board of Public Works.
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BENJAMIN F. MANDERBACH.

The present efficient Chief of Akron's Fire Department, was
born at New Berlin, Ohio, January 1st, 1844, and received his
education at Uniontown, Stark county.

He enlisted in the 20th Regiment, O. V. L, September 80th,
1801, re-enlisted in December, 1863 and was discharged, July 24,
1865, In the 20th Regiment, O. V.I., he received the following
promotions: Corporal, Jaly 1st, 1862; Sergeant, May 9th, 1864;
1st Sergeant, July 1st, 1864; 1st Lieutenant, January 15th, 1865.
He served with General Shield’s division in the Shenandoah Val-
ley, and was at the first battle of Winchester, March 23d, 1862;
Port Republic, Virgmia, June 9th, 1862; Cedar Mountain, August
Oth, 1862; Chancellorsville, Virginia, May 1st, 2d, 3d and 4th, 1863;
Gettyshurg, Pa., July 2d and 3d, 1863, In the fall of 1863, he was
transferred to Chattanoga, Tenn., with the reliet of Gen. Rose-
crans then attached to the 20th Army Corps. He was with Gen*
Sherman from Chattanoga, to Atlanta, Ga., went from there to
Savannah, Ga., then to Goldsboro and Raleigh, N. (., from there
to Richmond, Va., Washington, D. C., to the Grand Review; to
Louisville, Ky.. then to Cleveland where he was discharged.

ITe moved to Akron, July 24th, 1865, He joined the Mechan-
ies ook and Ladder Co., April, 1868, serving until 1874, He then
joined the present Fire Department, assisting in its organization.
In 1875 he was elected foreman of the Hook and Ladder Co. On
the retirement of Mr. John Hays as Chief of the Department, he
was made Assistant Chief under Chief Simpson. On the retire-
ment of Chief Simpson in 1884, he was elected Chief of the
Department.

DR, WILLIAM C. JACODBS,

Dr. William Cloyd Jacobs, 605 High street, Akron, is a native
of Lima Ohio, where he was born Feb, 26th, 1840. His parents,
T. K. and Ann (Elder) Jacobs, were natives of Juniata Co., Pa.,
whence they came in 1836, to Ashland, moving two years later to
Lima, where they have since lived. Iis father was a tailor by
trade, though turning his attention to real estate and farming in
the new country, and was oneof the early pioneers of the latter
place.

Dr. Jacobs, the fourth in a family of nine children, spent his
early years on the farm and in the village until the age of sixteen,
when he received an appointment to the National Naval Acade-
my at Annapolis, Md. He resigned in 1859, and began the study
of medieine in Cincinnati with Dr. William Carson, graduating in
1862, at the Ohio Medical College in that city, In April, 1862, he
was appointed assistant surgeon in the 4th O. V. C., and served
with the regiment until December, 1862, when he was promoted
to the position of surgeon and assigned to the 818t O, V. L., with
which he served until the end of the war.

During the Atlanta campaign, lie served on the operating
hoard of the Second Division, Sixteenth Army Corps, and when
mustered out was Surgeon in Chief of the 1st Division 15th A. C.
October, 1865, he came to Akron, where he has since practiced his
profeszion,

He is 2 member of the Summit County Medical Society, of
the Union Medical Society of Northeastern Ohio, of the State
Medical Society, the American Medical Association, and the
Mississippi Valley Medieal Association. Of the second named
society, Dr. Jacobs was the first secretary, and has served as presi-
dent of both it and the county society. ITe has always been &
careful and conseientious physician, and has occupied a promi-
nent position in his profession.

Dr. Jacobs was one of the pioneers in the oil fields of Ohio,
and to him and his associates more than to any other one firm,
belongs the credit of starting that great industry in the state.

September 10th, 1863, he married Huldah M. IHill, a native of
Knox County, Ohio. Her father, Luther Iill, was a native of
New York, and settled with his parents in Richland County,
Ohio, in 1811, Dr. Jacobs has one child—Harold H., who is also a
physician in company with hig father.

CITARLES SCIITULER.

PHOTOGRAPHED BY WOLFRAM,

Charles 8chuler, the proprietor of the West 1Iill Marble and
Granite Works, office 246 West Market street, residence 134 Silver
street, was born in Baltimore, Md., July 20th, 1850. His parents
moved to Ohio when he was but six months old. He secured a
common school education in Cleveland and on Oct. 12th, 1871, he
married Miss Katie Snyder, by whom he has two children, George
¢, angd Katie E. Mr. Schuler was engaged in business from 1871
to 1875, when he removed to Akron where he has since resided.
He is a member of West Hill Congregational church, of Aetolia
Lodge, No. 24. K. of P., Granite Lodge, No. 522, [, 0.0. . and
Star Commandery, No. 7, Red Cross. Mr. Schuler is highly
esteemed by all who know him,

ROBERT ALVA STINEIIOUR,.

Robert Alva Stinehour was born May 12th, 1811
Vermont, and came to Ohio in 1884 locating in Akron, and en-
gaging at his trade of painter. IIe was industrious, thi'ifby and’
prompt in his transactions and accumulated considerable prop-
erty, dying after a lingering illness September 24th, 1881, On
December 8th, 1835, he was united dn marriage to .P’ermelia E
Bowen, of Copley, who departed this life January 28th 1884‘
Five children were born to them all of whom are now (lead’. HIS
se?oncl marriage occurred June 4th, 1848, when he was wedded tlo
Miss Hara.h Rebecea Douglass, of Tallmadge, who survives him to-
gether with two children —Edward and Lillian, nee Mrs. Alexan-
der. The deceased was a prominent Mason and a good citizen:

, it Highgate,

FRANK WERNER.

Frank Werner was born in Zanesville, Muskingum County,
Obio, May 21st, 1868, and is the youngestof four brothers; and the
son of Hartman and Mary (Jockers) Werner.

He received his education in the Public schools of Zanesville,
graduating from the High School in 1885,

Hisg father was for many years a shoemaker, but for several
years before his death, which occurred in July, 1876, he carried
on a wholesale and retail boot, shoe, leather and finding business
in Zanesville. His three brothers are all engaged in the boot and
shoe business., Fred, A., a manufacturer in Boston, Mass., Henry
C., an exclusive jobber, and William N., an extensive retailer in
Zanesville. His brother, Fred A. located in Akron in 1881, and
established the present business to which Frank succeeded in
Dec. 1889. His aim has always been to lead all of his competitors,
and, although he has had but a short residence in Akron, (since
Dec. 1889) lie has won the reputation of being a wide-awake shoe-
man, and carries one of the largest stocks of footwear in the
county, if not on the Reserve. He is a firm believer in the ad-
vantages to be gained by a liberal use of printers’ ink and profit
sharing with his customers, One of the most important of his
profit sharing enterprises, was the giving away of a neat two-story
house and lot in South Akron, Dec. 20th, 1890, the fortunate per-
son being a poor widow with six children, Mrs. Mary A. Laube.
The beautiful minature pony and cart which has adorned the
streets of Akron, and Mr. Werner's show window, will be the next
gift at 12 m. Christmas, 1881. Mr. Werner merits success and is
achieving it.

SAMUEL ALANSON LANE.

Samuel Alanson Lane, born in Suffield, Conn., June 29th,
1815; in early boyhood attended district school with one term at
academy; worked on farmand at painting in father’s carriage shop;
from 16 to 18, clerked in store; 18 to 20, canvassed for books; at 21,
engaged in painting in Akron, algo, two years later, starting a
small paper called the “ Buzzard,”afterwards converted into a tem-
perance paper called the “ Cascads Roarer;”’ in 1889, engaged in
carriage making, continuing four yvears; in 1850, went overland to
California, remaining two years, engaged in painting and selling
goods at auction; in 1853, embarked in clothing trade in Akron,
burning out in 1855; 1854-57, served in village council and on
school board; 1836 to 1861 , sheriff of Summit 06L111ty; 1861 to 1875,
editor Summit County Beacon, founding Akron Daily Bewcon in
1869; 1877 to 1881, again county sheriff; 1881 to 1883, mayor of
‘Akron » and since engaged in local historical work, and author of
2 1,200 page volume entitled “Fifty Years and Over of Akron and
Summit County;’’ Nov. 11, 1838, was married to Miss Paulina Potter,
who bore him eight children, four of whom are now living - Julins
8., of Chicago; Fred. A., of Akron, and Arthur M., and Carrie M.,
(now Mrs., Albert J. Pitkin) of Schenectady, N, Y.  rs. Lane
dying July 2, 1871, Mr. L. was again married, to her sister, Mrs.
Emeline (Potter) Manning, Nov. 11, 1872, who still survives,
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DR. WILLIAM BOWEN—DECEASED.

The expressive features that mark the head of this article are
those of Doctor William Bowen, by whose death Summit county
was deprived of one of the brightest, deepest minds, both literary
and medical that ever adorned the society of Akron. He was
born at Genesee county, New York, July 30th, 1805, and was of
Welsh extraction. His father lost his way and perished from
cold while returning from his term of enlistment in the War of
1812, while crossing the ice on Lake Erie, leaving a widow and
six children. William was apprenticed to the carpenter’s trade
which he completed. He came west stopping in Stark county,
Ohio, obtaining employment with John Brown, who was building
a grist mill for William Reynolds. Mr. Brown took kindly to the
studious qualities of young Bowen, assisted him to a term of pri-
vate studies, upon the completion of which he commenced teach-
ing school in Paris, Stark county. Under the influence of Dr.
Robert Estep, Mr. Bowen was induced to study medicine, in con-
nection with his teaching. Ie began the practice of medicine at
Doylestown in 1832, and in 1836 was graduated at the Medical Col-
lege of Ohio; after which for twenty years he practiced in Canton
and Massillon, gaining an extensive practice and wide-spread
reputation.

In 1857 he came to Akron and continued his practice until
his death, Jan. 14th, 1880.

He married Miss ITildah Chittenden and by this union there
were nine children, only three of whom survived him. He was
emphatically a self-made man.

LOUIS J. PROEHL, M. D.

Louis J. Proehl was born in Akron, Ohio, July 18th, 1830, of
German parentage. ITis education and advancement in life were
entirely due to his own exertions. When but a mere lad, fourteen
years of age, he was apprenticed to learn the trade of a stone
mason. At the age of twenty years he began teaching school in
the winter time and working at his trade in the summer until he
had acenmulated money sufficient to complete his education. In
August, 1876, he was graduated from the N ational Normal School
located at Lebanon, Ohio, with a highly creditable record. The
following autumn he entered the Ohio Medieal College at Cincin-
nati, meanwhile reading medicine with Dr. W. C.J acobs, graduu‘t-
ing in the spring of 1879. On hisreturn to Akron, he entered the
office of Dr. W. J. Underwood, with whom he remained until the
summer of 1885. He was always an earnest student, untiring in
his devotion to hisprofession. IHis constantly increasing practice
gave promise of wide usefulness in the future. In the spring of
1886 in hopes of recuperating his rapidly failing health he went

to Tenuessee, where, after remaining some time he returned some-
what improved. A few weeks later he determined to try the
climate of the north-west and went to Dakota. But a short time
elapsed, however, after his arrival until he was seized with a low
form of fever which eonfined him to his rooms the greater part of
the six weeks he spent there. He returned to his home in Akron
August, 1886, completety broken in health, where after a painful
illness, borne with wonderful patience and fortitude, he died
April 27th, 1887, leaving a widow nee Jennie MeCoy, towhom he was
married April 18th, 1883, and a bright daughter, Bessie Louise,
two years of age, together with hosts of sorrowing relatives and
friends to mourn his demise.

The deceased was an honored member of Akron Lodge, No.
83, F. & A. M., a member of Washington Chapter, No. 25, R. A.
M., alzo 2 member of the ¢ North-western Medical Society,” Sum-
mit County Medical Society and the North America Medical
Society.

HARRY ALBERT WARNER.

Harry Albert Warner, was Lorn in Akron to W. Wallace
and Annie M. (Yeamans) Warner, January 14th, 1871, He ig the
twin of Arthur Lee Warner who died when ten years old of diph-
theria. e attended the publie schools of Akron until he was
eighteen years old, then took a course in Hammel's Business Col-
lege after which he attended the National Business University of
Columbus, where he took a special courze in penmanship. Inthe
summer of 1840 he received special instructions from Prof. F. G.
Steele, at Xenia, in penmanship and drawing, and then taught
penmanship in the schools of Cuyahoga Falls one year, giving
entire satisfaction. Again in the summer of 1841 he devoted him-
self to special work with Prof. Steele, at the end of which time he
accepted the position of teacher of penmanship, drawing and
book-keeping in the public¢ schools of Painesville, which position
he isnow filling.

CITARLES . NMORTON,

Charles H. Morton, of 108 North Balch street, was born in
Kingsville, Ohio, Oct. 12th, 1846, and moved to Akron in Septem-
ber, 1879.

He received a literary education in Mt. Vernon College, and
in Dec. 1883, married Maggie Lake, by whom he has two children.
He is a member of Aetolia Lodge, No. 24, K. of P.

Mr. Morton has been for twelve years engaged as manager of
several base ball clubs, among which are the Akron, Toledo,
Detroit, Savannah, Ga., Des Moines, Iowsa, and Rochester, New
York.

M. W. HOYE.

PHOTOGRAPH 3¥ COLURTNEY,

M. W. Hoye first saw the light of day at Castle Dlermott,
County Kildare, Treland, April 22, 1843, In 1847 his parents
emigrated to this country and loeated in Akron, Ohio, where in
due time our subject received a liberal edueation. At the age of
eighteen years, full of patriotizin, he enlisted August 28th, 1861,
in Co, K, 10th O, V. L., and was honorably discharged October
24th, 1865, Shortly after returning home he entered the employ
of Messrs, Abbey & Johnston, manufacturers of stoneware, where
he remained six years. On April 1st, 1872, he accepted the fore-
manship of the extensive coopering establishment of C. B.
Maurer, which position he filled until January 1lst, 1886, then
engaging as traveling salesman for the Franklin Milling Com-
pany. In 1867, October 3d, he was married to Miss Isabella Mul-
ligan, two children being the resuit of the union, William J., a
letter carrier, and A. P., now a clerk in the Boston Store in
Chicago, Il Mrs. Hoye died May 16th, 1872, Mr. Hoye married
Misg Mary Cumming October 14th, 1872, and five children—four
girls and one boy—have been the result of this alliance. In May,
1887, he was appointed sanitary peliceman of Akron, and in 1889
was also appointed milk inspector, both offices he continues to fill
withability and fidelity tothe city. He has twice been a candi-
date for sheriff of the county, on the Democratic ticket, and each
time ran far ahead of his ticket, so great is his popularvity.

EDWARD GEORGE KUBLER.

Edward George Kubler, born in Munich Germany, Feh. 26,
1846; educated in Munich and Nuremberg, Bavaria, in the higher
classes of the Polytechnic School. 1In the war of 1866 he enlisted
in the army, serving during the war. In August, 1869, came to
the United States, engaging in busginess in New York City. In
February, 1878, came to Akron and started what has ever since
been known as the “Akron Varnish Works,” six months later,
associating with himself, Mr. J. Martin Beck., ‘This is one of the
most suceessful of Akron’s many prosperous industries; Mr.
Kubler looking after the outside interests of the conecern.

He isalso director of the European Department of the “Gilson
Asphaltum Co.,’” of St. Louis, Mo., of which himself and Mr. Beck
are stockholders. He i in possession of his family record since
1467, the successive generation of the family all being prominent
citizens of Southern Germany, Mr. Kubler being the only one that
has ever emigrated.

In 1878, he married Miss Emili Dushard, who was born at
Hennepin, T11., April 16, 1848. They have three sons and one
daughter. The family reside in Europe, pending the education
of their sons.
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JOHN McCAUSLAND. -

John MeCausland, farmer and brick manufacturer until his
death November 12th, 1884, was born June 26th, 1824, in county
Antrim, Ireland, and was a son of James and Jane (Drain)
MeCausland.  John emigrated to Ohio in 1849 in straightened eir-
cumstances to seek his fortune. Hebegan work in this country as
a common laborer, receiving at first §3.50 per month; afterwards
by the year receiving 3120, then 3150 yearly

Ti 1853 he married Mary Ann MeQuillan, who was born in
county Antrim, Ireland,in April, 1827, After Mr. MeCausland, by
industry and frugality, had acquired sufficient means he pur-
chased a team and the necessary outfit and engaged in farming,
renting land on the Phelps farm. In 1859 he bought a fine farm
of one hundred and twelve acres on the Tallmadge road, North
Hill. In 1871 he engaged in the manufacture of brick and was
suceessful in establishing one of the greatest industries of the kind
in the county, which is still in operation and managed by his two
sons, James and John. Mr. McCausiand was a good and sub-
stantial citizen, for years a Trustee of Portage township and a
life-long member of $t. Vincent de Paul’s Catholic Church.

MARY ANN McCAUSLAND.

Mrs. Mary A, MeCausland, relict of the late John MeCausland,
was born in county Antrim, Ireland, April 18th, 1827, and came to
Ohio in 1852, She was educated in Ireland. In 1853 she married
Mr. McCaugland, four children being the result of that union—
James, John, Margaret and Mary.

Just previous to the death of her husband.an elegant brick
mansion was erected on the old homestead, which death prevented
the devoted husband from enjoyingeven forone hour. Therethe
devoted wife now resides with and surrounded by her children,
enjoyingherdeclining yearsin easeand affiuence. She is a devout
member of St. Vincent de Paul’s Church, respected hy her neigh-
bors and acquaintances and revered by her children.

JAMES LAFAYETTE PORTER.

James Lafayette Porter was born October 3d, 1843, in Milton
{then Trumbull county, Ohio), and moved to Sharon, Medina
county, Ohio in 1850, where he received a common school educa-
tion. He iz the father of eight children, six song and two daugh-
ters, having been married October 18th, 1870 to Amelia Ream, of
Sharon. In 1862 he went to visit relativesin Venango county,
Pa., and in September enlisted in Co. E., 16th Pa. Vol. Cavalry.
In the following March he was detailed as orderly at headquarters
of the 2nd Army Corps at Falmouth, Va. in which capacity he
gerved under Generals Conch, Hancock, Caldwell and Warren

during the Chancellorsville and Gettyshurg campaigns and the
return of the Army of the Potomac to Rappahannock, when he
was ordered back to Company service and took part in twenty-one
hattles and skirmishes, not being off duty a single day until Aug.
16th, 1864, when, in an engagement at Deep Bottom, Va., he was
wounded in the right leg which was amputated on the field. He
was discharged at Christian street Hospital, Philadelphia, Pa., in
May, 1865, and returning to Venango county taught school one
term and learned photography. In 1867 he was candidate for
County Treasurer on the Democratic ticket and was defeated by a
small majority. In 1868 he engaged with D, Ransom & Co., of
Buffalo, New York, and in 1879 returned with his family to Ohio
and settled in Coventry township. In 1881 he was elected Justice
of the Peace and was re-elected three times, receiving nearly the
unanimous vote of the township at each election.

JOIHN ROBB.

John Robb was of Scottish origin, born at Glasgow, Scotland,
March 19th, 1842, Atanearly age he emigrated to Toronto, Canada,
where he received a liberal education. In 1868 he came to Akron
and opened a plumbing establishment in the Cramer and May
block, North Howard street. After remaining there for some
time he removed to rooms in the Academy of Music building
where he remained until the completion of the Robb block, North
Howard street, when he removed there. He was a thorongh
mechanic, energetic and prompt and conducted an extensive busi-
ness.  On May 20th, 1872, he was married to Miss Mary E. Ginther.
Seven bright and interesting children—four boys and three girls—
bless that union. Mr. Robb died January 27th, 1891, after a brief
illness, beloved by his family and respected by all who knew him.
Iis funeral was largely attended from St. Bernard's Catholic
Church of which he was a devout member,

GEORGE A. SITAW,

) George A, Shaw is a native of the Buckeye State and of Sum.
mit county, having been born in Norton township, September 1st;
1838, He obtained, in the Wadsworth, Medina county schoolg ai
good English and German eduecation. Afterwards Le sought tile
north-west and engaged in railroading in Dakota, filling some
important positions. Returning he embarked in the mercantile
trade at New Portage seven years ago and has built up an exten
give business by perseverance and fair dealing, )

Mr. Shaw is the present postmaster at New Portage, and an
influential member of the Methodist Episcopal Church: a’member
of Barberton Lodge No. 486, K. of P., and also of Daniel W
Council No. 90, 0. U. A. M. He is a Republican in
the Republican Central Committee-man for N
& citizen of Sterling Worth.

ebster
politics being
orton township and
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T. J. DAVIES.

It falls to the lot of but few young men to establish a more
prosperous business and social career than that established by T.
J. Davies. He was born in Wales, July 22d, 1861, and came to
Ohio, June, 1875. After receiving a good English education he
embarked in the mercantile business at Sherman and afterwards
at Hametown, Norton township, Summit county. When the
present thriving village of Barberton presented a field for business
he removed there and is extensively engaged in the grocery and
provisiom trade, having two large establishments. December 29th,
1888, he was wedded to Miss Jennie Herbert, and one child, a
pretty girl, Ethel, gladdens their cosy home. Mr, Davies is a
prominent K of P., belonging to Doylestown Lodge, No. 185.

DR. ALBERT CLINTON BELDEN—DECEASED.

Dr. Beld_en was born in Castile, New . York, September 14th,
1845, removing, with his parents when quite young to Bureau,
Ill.. In 1863, he enlisted in Co. I, 64th Illinois Infantry, as a
private and was honorably discharged at the close of the war in
July, 1865. e then commenced the study of medicine and was
grad.uated with distinguished honors from the Bellevue Hospital
fv\Iech-cal College, New York City, in 1875, having begun his stud-
ies Wlﬂ} Dr. Thompson, of Princeton, I11., the home of his parents
at the. time. In 1876 he removed to this city and in 1877 began the
practllce of medicine associating with Dr. A. K. Fouser, which part-
nership cqntinued until September 1st, 1881‘, when he formed a
pz.mrtnm_'shlp with Dr. W. C. Jacobs, with whom he remained until
his untimely death, Dec. 20th, 1890.

Dr. Belden was married at Breinigsville, Pa., May 5th, 1874, to
Hlannah E. Mogser, daughter of a prominent pllysidian’of timt
})ds;c:é&viz 1ix;l.rwves him with three interesting daughters—Jessie,

_The doctor’s death resulted from injuries sustained by a fall
Wh}ch he received in his office on South High street, Dec. 10th
while stepping from a bookcase into a chair which Was’overizurnéci
tl'lrowmg him to the floor, 2o that his head struck a stove. Durin
hl.s illness he was unconscious part of the time, but w'hen cong
sclous seemed to be in the full use of his mental facultieg )

-He was a prominent member of Buckley Post, & A ' R
the oldest ranking surgeon of the Ohio National G"m rd,
one of the surgeons of the New York, Pennsylvani
Valley railroads. He enjoyed a‘large practice an
sally esteemed both as a practitioner and ag 5 citize
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W. WALLACE WARNER.

PHOTOGRAPHED 9Y COURTNEY.

W. Wallace Warner was born in Springfield Township, Sum-
mit County, Ohio, Feb. 28, 1848, is the eighth child of John and
Mary Ettie (Woodard) Warner, his mother a native of New York
and his father of Middletown, Conn. They eame to Portage town-
ship in 1839, Young Warner received a high school education at
Cuyahoga Falls, and a business education at Quaker City Business

" College in Philadelphia. Returning to Cuyahoga Fallg in 1867,
he kept books for Hanfurd & Yeamans, and Hanford Bros., for
one year, in 1868 accepted the position of Deputy Recorder under
James A. Lantz, continning for a while with Thorp. In 1871 em-
barked in the abstract business, making and operating a set of
abstract hooks of the county. He formed a partnership with E,
C. Ruggles in 1874 and added real estate and loan to the business.
This partnership was dissolved in 1876, Mr. Warner continuing the
buginess, and in 1882 he' formed a partnership with F. A. Wilcox,
under the tirm name of Warner & Wilcox, and a year later selling
his remaining interest to said Wilcox. In 1886, he engaged in the
real estate business in Washington, operating in southern lands.
He returned to Akron in 1888 and was engaged with T. D. Paul,
in the publication of City Maps of Akron, Zanesville and other
places, and has devoted most of his time since to the publication
of maps. In July 1800, he engaged as manager of the Akron
Map and Atlas Co., in the publication of ¢ Illustrated Summit
County,”” which work is before the readers and speaks for itself.

He was married in Philadeiphia to Annie M., daughter of
Robert and Mary (Grier) Yeamans, April 15, 1849, Of this union

two children (twins) were born, Arthur Lee, who died eleven,

yvears ago, and Harry Albert, who still survives his brother and
mother, the latter dying Oct. 27, 1870. Mr. Warner was married
to Miss AliceGirace, daughter of George and Susannah Lyttleton,
of Cleveland, Oct. 25,1877. To this union three children arve born:
George Lyttleton, aged twelve years: Wallace Vinecent, nine years
and Mabel Maryetta, seven years.

EUGENE OAKLEY KNOX.

Eugene Oakley Knox, deceased, born at Danville, N. Y.,
Nov. 17, 1849, died at Hot Springs, Ark., May 7, 1801, of valvular
disease of the heart. Thus the beginning and the end, not so
the intervening.

It was a life of earnest work, of patient painstaking, and of
indomitable energy. He was never contented except when busy.
He came to Cuyahoga Falls with his parents when guite young,
Here he received a good Girammar school edneation under Taylor,
Delano and Chamberlain. When 17 he went to Corning, N. Y.,
where he resided for eighteen months with an uncle, studying

medicine under one Dr. May, hut was obliged to abandon it on
aceount of §l heaith, Retnroing o the Falls, he assisted his
father, Alanson R., for a time in the hook-hinding business,
After awhile he started a job printing office, December, 1870, and
before he was of age he commenced the publication of the
Cuyalwga Falls Reporter, a bright, erisp, seven-column weckly.
The five, Thursday evening, Sept. 1852 alestroyed everything,
which was a total loss of 35000, Friday his paper was published
as usual, and it has continued to he published ever since without
the loss of an issue.

He was married to Miss Ellen Lyttleton at Cleveland, Dee., 24,
1874, from which union has been horn four children: Osear A,
15 years of age, a student of Western Reserve A aderny: Percival
AL, died Feb. 1881: Portin E., now 9 vears old and Julian 0.,
HOVenN years.

Hix estate is administered by his widow, and the business of
editing and publishing s conducted by her,

CHESTER F, LAMD.

Chester F. Lamb was horn in Vermont, Nov. 30, 1844, and
graduated from the public schools of Fitehburg, Mass, In 1862 he
enlisted in the 36th Regiment Massachusetts Volunteer Infantry,
in which he served till the elose of the war.

In Sept. 1864, he came to Akron, and entered the employ of
the Whitman & Barnes M'f'g. Co., with whom he remained for
over twenty years.

In I887-88 he served asxa member of the Boanl of Education
of Akron. July 18, 1870, he was married to Ellen M. Smith, of
Fitchburg, Mass. e ix an active member of the (3. A, R., heing
Past Post Commander of Buckley Poxt, and in 1880 was assistant
Quartermaster General of the Department of Ohio. He is also a
member of Akron Commandery, No. 25, Kunights Templars.

HUDSON KINGSLEY TAYLOR,

ITudson Kingsley Taylor was born in West Bloomfield (now
Montelairy, Essex county, New Jersey, June 2d, 1827,

Ifis grandfather, David Taylor, was a revolutionary soldier,
having entered the army at the age of =eventeen and participated
in many of the severe hattles fought in New Jersey and Pennsyl-
vania, among which may be mentioned Trenton and Monmouth.
In the latter battle he was woouded but recovered and lived to
see the country, for which he fought, independent and pros-
perous. ‘

Matthias Taylor, the father of the subject of this sketeh, was
an officer in the war of 1812 and died in 1568, at the age of 70.
The mother still survives at the age of 91 and resides with a
vounger son (M. B. Taylor) in Keyport, N.J,

Hudson K. Taylor pursued hix eollegiate stuwdies at Western
Reserve College, graduating with the class of 1851, On leaving
college he immiediately engaged in tenching, which he followed
for ten years, seven of which were =pent in the charge of the
schools of Cuyahoga Falls. In 1861, in consequence of partial
deafness he was obliged to abandon his mueh loved profession of
teaching. In 1866, he hecame interested in oil refining and was
for many years engaged in the business. During the past eleven
years he has been in charge of inspection department of the
Lubricating Oil Works of the Standard Ol Co., at Cleveland.

CHARLES DIETZ. .

Charles Dietz was born in Cleveland, Ohio, Nov. 23, 1856, and
moved to Akron in 1884 and engaged as a eontractor at the Akron
Iron Co/s works forall general teaming and then opened a livery,
transfer and boarding stable on North High street. He is 1 mem-
ber of Akron Lodge, No. 547, I. 0. O, ¥. 'Ie received a goud

English education in the common schools of Cuyahoga and -

Summit counties. December 20, 1878, was married to Clars Bell
Davis, of Bath township, and has two children, Frank H. and
Josie.

ALVIN IRWIN FINDLEY.

Alvin Irwin Findley, son of Mary Hardie amd Dr. Samuel
Findley (for sixteen years Superintendent of Akron Schools and
now editor of Olio Educational Monthly), was born in Monmounth,
., June 29,1850, A pupil of the graded schools of Cleveland
and Akron, and later graduating from Akron High Schoaol, he en-
tered Duchtel College in the fall of 1873, At the end of his
Sophomore year, he hecame city editor of the Ukron Duily Beacon.
Resigning the position in 1889, he went to Wooster University,
Wooster, Ohio, graduating in 1831 with the degree of A. L., later
receiving the degree of A. M.

The week after leaving eollege he hegan work on the Chicago
Interior, The following year he went to Philadelphia, aceepting
a position on the City Staff of the Press, doing political work for
that paper in the important Pennsylvania campaign of 1882, In
the latter part of that year he aceepted an offer to return to
Akron as associate editor of the Duily Beacon. That position he
held for seven years, resigning in 189 to give his time to the
Akron work of the Clerelund Press,

He became a partner in the book and stationery firm of Chan-
dler, Findley & Co., in June of 188, Since 1871, he has been a
member of the Congregatiomal Church of Akron.

Miss Belle Holloway, daughter of Mr. and Mrs. J. W. Hollo-
way, was wedded to Mr, Findley, May 25, 1884, They have one
daughter, Grace Helen.

MARK LUKEY EDWARDS.

Mark Lukey Edwards who keeps a restaurant at 7013 South
sroadway, came to this ecounty in the Spring of 1873, He was
born in Zunner County, Cornwall, England, Oetober 3, 1841, and
in December, 1865, married Anna West, by whom he ix the father
of four children. e is a member of the Harmonie Society in
Akron and of the Lodge and Encampment of the Odd Fellows in
Butler, Pennsylvania., :

M. OTIS TTOWER.

AL this Hower, son of John 1L amd Swan (Yonnker; Hower,
was born at Doylestown, Wayne County, Ohio, Nov. 25, 1858,
moved to Akron in 1866, He received a high sehonl edueation in
the public schools and a special course in Buchtel Coltege. He
married Blanch B., daughter of James P, Bruot, from which
union there is one child, Grace.  Mr. Hower is 2 member of Trin-
ity Lutheran Church, and a stannch Republiean.,  Is prominently
identified with many of the important mannfactaring and busi-
ness concerns of the city. He is loeal manager and assistant
treasurer of the American Cereal Co. (managing the Hower Millg),
a director in the Board of Trade, Akron Light, Heat & Power Co,,
and Home Building und Loan Association.
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CITARLES L. ADAMS,

Charles L. Adams is an energetie school teacher who was barn
in the village of Nimisila, township of Franklin, Summit county,
Ohio, November Yth, 1862, and “native to the manor born he liveg
there xtill”" He had 2 common school edueation in the township
schools and, in 1874, at the age of 17, began his career as a school
teacher, attending xchonl winters until his majority was reached,
sinee which he has taught from two to three terms each year, nine-
teen of which were in four adjoining sub-districts in Franklin
township. July 31st, 1881, he was married to Mary E. Grabb and
three ehildren eall him father.

C. W. F. DICK,

Charles W. I, Dick is the son of Gottleib and Mary (Ilandel
bick and was born November 3, 1858, After receiving an educa-
tion in the public schools of Akron, he entered the employ of
Chipman & Barnes, as clerk in their hat store, and remained with
thent for two years, when he accepted the position of bookkeeper
with the Citizens Savings and Loan Association, where he remained
tor six years, leaving them to take a similar situation with the

impire Reaper and Mower Works, with whom he remained two

yvears. In 1881 he associated himself with Lucius Miles, under
the firm name of Dick & Miles, in the general produce and grain
commission business  J. Edward Peterson purchased the interest
of Mr. Miles and in February 1860, the firm changed w its present
name, ek & Peterson.

Always an ardent Republican, his fealty to that party was
rewarded by being nominated and November 1886, elected to the
office of County Auditor, to which he was re-elected in November
1889, For many years he took an active interest in local military
affairs and enlisting in tho Obhio National Guards, was Captain of
Company B, 8th Regiment. In March 1888, elected Junior Major
of the regiment,

June 30, 1831, he married Carrie May, daughter of Dr. James
H. Peterson, by whom he has tour ehildren, all hoys. -

He is a member of the Odd Fellows, Scottish Rite Masons and
K. of P.

ANDREW M. NOAIL

Andrew 1L Noah, of the tirm of Wilcox & Noah, generul ab-
straet, real estate, loan and insurance agents of Akron, Ohio, was
horn in Bath township, Feb. 18,1838, to Elmus IT. and Esther (Mott)
Noah. e received a classical education at Oberlin College and
married Miss Katie B, MeGill, Dec. 20, 1880,

He is Secretary of the Akron Bailding and Loan Asgociation,
a Past Grand of Akron Lodge, [ 0. 0, F., and formerly a mem-
ber of the Board of Control, Akron Public Library.

sy,

GEORGE D. STEVENS,

The aboved named was horn in Akron, January 31, 1860, and
received a good English education in the public schools. In 1878
he entered the manufacturing establishment of Taplin, Rice &
Co., and served a thurough apprenticeship as a machinist. After
working there at his trade sonetime as o journeyman he aceepted
the chief engim*ershipnf the American Strawhoard Works, located
at New Portage, O., to which point he removed March 12, 1884,
Mr. Stevens isa Benediet, having linked his Tortunes with Miss Eva,
Dinpuier, of Akron, on the 24 day of ebruary, 1883, Was for.
merly the secretary of the Firemen's Relief Association, of Akron ,
and for years a valued volunteer fireman. & charter member of
Barberton Lodge, No. 486 K. of Do No better evidence of the
esteem in which he is held by his eraftsmen can be given than the
tact that he is the president of Lodge No. 28, Akron, 0., of the
National Association of Stationary Enginecrs,  Capable, energetic
and urbane in manner.

FRANK A, WILCOX,

Frank A. Wileox, who resides 110 Park Place, Akron, Ohio,

was born in Riehfield, Ohio, May 17, 1823, to Dr, Jereminh ¢, ang

Julia (Wilder) Wileox.

He received & good common sehool education, and graduated
in the classical vourse of Oberlin College, Read law with T ¢,
surton, Cleveland, from 1875 to 1878, wax Superintendent of the
Glenville sehools from 1879 to 1852, and a0 couneilman of said
village from 1880 to 1882 e removed to Akron in 1889, having
purchased a half interes in the r'eul estate and loan business of
W, W, Warner, which husiness he is now engaged in with A, 11,
Noah, He is a member of the First Congregational Churel of
Akron, was a member of the A kron Couneil from 1885 to 1887, Iu
4 Past Grand of Akron Lodge, I 00 001 Past Patriareh of Akron
Enecaumpment, aml representalive nf tlw'lh':uul Eneampment of
Ohio, He is a director in the Akron Savings Bank, Akron Build.
ing and Loan Assgeiation, and Sul!(' Gear Co., President of the
Akron Chemical (o, Akron Electrieal Manufacturing Co,, Seere-
tary of the Zanesville Strect Ruilway Co., Treasurer of the Lalke.
side Park Co., and is unmarticd.

JOSEPIT MOORIE,

Jogeph Moore,of 214 Fir strect, Akr.t'm, washorn in Lake town-
ship, County of Stark, Decentber 6, 1515, He married Sarah Ful.
kerson, by whom he has had four ('hlhlren.’ He is & member of
the First Congregational (Jhurch,;\kro'n. ]"()}' four years he was
Infirmary Direetor and was Assessor of the lflrst Ward for eleven
vears. The most of higlife wasspent on o farm,  IMis portrait is
found with County Officers’ group.

HOUSTON KEPLER.

Houston Kepler, of New Portage, Ohio, was born in Coventry
township August 25th, 1839, and received a common school edy.
cation in the township sehools. In April 1863 he was married to
Catharine Foust and has four children living, Clara A., Laura J,
Maggie E. and Nelson . For many years he was a member of
the Coventry school board, for six consecutive terms Township
Clerk, and Justice of the Peace for 24 years. IFrom his early life
he has always been a friend of the common schools and a faithful
worker in their interests. e and all his family are members of
the Reformed Church in the work ol which he has always been
liberal and taken an active part. ITeis now a thrifty farmer in
his native township and socially stands very high in the estima-
tion of his neighbors. :

WILLTAM IIENRY MILLER.

Hon. William Henry Miller, the present mayor of the city of
Akron, was born in Perry township, Stark county, Ohio, April 17,
1843, e received his education in the district sclools and in the
Canton public schools. He lived with his parents on the farm
until he was twenty-one, afterwards learning the trade of machin-
i‘st. He continued this avocation with Aultman, Miller & Co., for
Just one quarter of acentury., He was elected & member of the City
Couneil from the Second Ward in 1883 and elected mayor April 1,
1889, bemng re-elected in 1891, Heis a member of Summit Lodge
No. 30, I. 0. 0. 1., Colfax Lodge No. 8, D, of R., Akron Encamp-
nlfilllﬁ No. 18, 1. 0. 0, F., Grand Canton Ohio No. 1, Patriarchs
Militant I. O. 0. F. of Columbus, Ohio, and ranks as P. G¢., D. D,
G. M., P.C.P, D.D. ¢ P., and Capt, I, M.

) Mr. Miller is one of Akron’s substantial men, and in his offi-
cial capacity has given satisfaction to all parties.

CAPT, HUGHLIN HARRISON.,
Capt. Hughlin Harrison wag born in

Aug. 24, 1838, and during the eivi
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CITARLES R. GRANT.

PHOTOG™AYHED EY COURTNEY.

Charles R. Grant, was born at Orange, New IHaven County,
Conn., Oct. 23, 1846, Nov. 14, 1861, he joined the 12th Connecticut
Volunteers, and participated in the service of his regiment in the
department of the Gulf until after the capture of Port Hudson,
July 4, 1863, when he was discharged.

In April, 1864, he came to Cuyahoga Falls, and resided there
till he entered Western Reserve College in 1868, From this insti-
tution he graduated in 1872, with the highest honors of his class.

Having passed one year in Colorado, Oct. 20, 1874, he returned
to this county and began the study of law in the office of Hon. N.
D. Tibbals, at Akron. During ‘the succeeding year, while study-
ing law he also taught lor a part of each week in the College at
Hudson. '

September 2, 1874, he was admitted to the bar by the District
Court, then sitting at Akron.

January 1, 1876, he became aswociated in practice with Hon.
H. B. Foster, of Hudson.

November 19, 1876, he removed to Akron and became the
junior member of the law firm of Marvin & Grant, which partner-
ship continaed until the senior member, Judge U. L. Marvin, was
elected to the Comumon Pleas bench in May, 1883,

September 15, 1833, Mr. Grant was appointed Probate Judge
of this county to fill the vacancy caused by the death of Judge
Goodhue. He was successively elected and re-elected to the
same office, in 1854 and 1887,

His second term being expired by limitation in February, 1801,
Judge Grant at once resumed the active practice of his profession,
and in the succeeding April became & member of the law firm of
Green, Graut & Sieber, in which he still remains.

He has been three times married: to Francis J. Wadhams,
Oct. 4, 1878, whao died Sept. 14,1874; to Luey J. Alexander, Nov. 4,
1876, who died June 8, 1820, and to Ida A. Schick, Aug. 19, 1801,

He has one child, Frances Virginia Grant, wha was born Sept.
24, 1877, He is now instructor in law in Buebtel College.

COL. DAVID W, TILOMAS.

Col. David W. Thomas, President of the Thomas Lumber &
Building Co., was born at Millersburg, O., March 9th, 1841, and
came to Akron with his father, George, in 1845, his mother, Jane
(Wilson) Thomas having died in 1842,

He attended school in Akron until sixteen, then served an ap-
prenticeship of four years with Oviatt & Sperry at Tallmadge, in
the carriage business, returning to Akron in 1861.

He enlisted in Co. G, of the #0ld 19th,” for three months and
was at the battle of Rich Mountain. In October 1861, he enlisted
in Co. H..20th O. V. L., and was in the engagements at Winches-
ter, Port Republic, Cedar Mountain, Chancellorsville and Get-

tysbury, and took part in quelling the riot at New York. From
there he was sent to the South-west, e wox in the battles of
Wauhatehie and Lookeut Mountain, and participated in all of the
engagements of Gren. Sherman’s *“march to the sen.”” e enlisted
as u private and rose through the ditferent grades to Corporal,
Sergeant, Orderly-Sergeant, Sergeant-Major, First Lieutenant,
and at Savannah was finally promoted to Captain, He was then
assigned to Co. A, the post of honor in the regiment, aml was
mustered out at Lonisville, Ky., June 22d, 1865, On his return to
Akron he engaged in the lumber business with his father and hax
continued in it ever since.

In 1876 he was elected Colonel of the 9th 0. N. G serving five
yearsin commamd, For many vears he was a valuable member of
the Board of Education of Akron. e has always been an active
and influential member of Buckley Post, and hax tilied nearly
every office in it, and was elected Department Commander of
Ohio, at Cleveland, Jan, v1st, 1830,

Col. Thomas wax married to Alice E. Hale, Sept. Oth, 1868, who
died January 11th, 1880, leaving tour c¢hildren, three somns and a
daughter. He married Mrs. Isabella (rage, Dec, 18th, 18

N
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WILLTAM T. ALLEN.

William T. Allen was bornin Montreal, Canada, September 14,
1514, At the age of eight or nine he removed with his parents to
Hudson, New York. On the death of his father he removed, at
the age of fourteen years, with his mother, to Albany., He
received a common school education, read law and was admitted
to the bar in Albany, but did not enter into practice. He engaged
with R. P. Myers in the dry goods business in Albany under the
firm name of Allen & Myers. In 1844 he remaved to Akron. In
1846 he embarked in the stove businessand soon afterwards with
others established the Akron Stove Company, which after a pros-
perous career in Akron was removed to Cleveland, under the cor-
porate name of Cleveland Stove Company, In connection with
the above Mr. Allen condueted a stove store on his own account,
in Fort Wayne, Ind., from 1857 to 1864, He was a stockholder,
director and treasurer of the Wehster, Camp & Lane Machine Com-
pany, and astockholder and director in the First National Bank of
Akron, He wasa raember of the Village Couneil in 1853 and 1854
a member of the City Couneil in 1870, °71, 772,778, 74, 75, '81, N2,
83, and "84, and for years was the chairman of its Finanee Com-
mittee.

Mr. Allen was married July 31, 1852, at Milwaukee, Wis., to
Miss Laura Melar ey, a native of Romulus, New York, then teach.
ing music in Akron.  He died November 13, 1866, at the age of
seventy-two years.

OLIVER P. FALOR,

Oliver P. Falor, a retired farmer, was born in Coventry, Oct,
28th, 1835, and lived there on a farm until he was nineteen years of
age, when, in 1835, he doubled Cape Horn and went to California
by water. e remained there three years, mining gold and
engaged in the lumber business. He then returned home and
spent the winter, and the following spring went to Council Bluits,
and, forming a company, started for Pike’s Peak, but, digressing,
went into Kansas, and folowed the oceupation of deer hunting,
being on the plams June -Lth, 1559, at the time of the severe frost,
He would be on the prairies for weeks at a time and see no one
except members of hix own party. In the fall of 1859, he went to
Massillon and secured a situation as warehouseman on the P, Ft.
W. & C. Ry.,in whose employ he remained for six years,  As con-
ductor, he took the first train (twelve box cars) of rebel soldiers
ever taken over the road. They had been captured and were
being sent east by Uncle Sam. In 1868 he returned to Coventry,
purchased & farm, and May 3d, 1570, was married to Mary Adelia
Weidman, who died in 1884, Three of his children are still living
—all huys—Oliver D., Shelby A., Clarence K,

From 1876 to 1888 he lived in Akron and kept a grocery store,
In 1886 he went to the National Eneampment, (+. A, R., in San
Franeisco, and while there visited with his brother in Humboldt
county. In 1888 he moved back to the farm in Coventry. Ile
has served on the Coventry School Board, been Supervisor and
Clerk of Coventry township, and was Justice of the Peace for
twelve years in succession. e is an active member of Summit
Lodge No. 50, 1. O. O, I,

WILLIAM B. DOYLE.

The pleasant portrait that heads this biography, is only a fair
representation of the every-day life of Wm. B. Doyle, whose long
and suceesstul buxiness eareer ended only with his death which
occeurred Ang. 6, 1800,

Mr. Doyle was born in Doylesburg, Franklin County, Pa.,
March 3, 1525, the youngest of three children born to Thomas J.
Soand Ann (Taylor) Doyle. IIis father was a native of said
Doylesburg, and his moher of Carlisle, Camberland County, Pa.
[is father was a deseendant of Felix Doyle, who emigrated to this
country from Ireland, before the French and Indian War.

William B. was schooled until thirteen, and for three years
thereafter, was apprenticed to the cabinet trade, after which he
worked for his brother at Williamsport, Md. He came to Akron
in 1841, worked at his trade, and finally commenced business for
himself. Subsequently engaged in farming in Coventry, and
later organized the lLumber and manufacturing tirm of Wm. B.
Doyle & Co., which business he was engaged in and entire owner
of at the time of his death. He left five children: Dayton A.,
lawyer; Wm. B. Doyle (Jr.), Secretary and Treasurer, Akron Elec-
trical Work; Delia M., Dean L. and Anna L. Doyle.

Mr. Doyle was a staunch Republican from 1856, when he
voted for Fremont and Dayton. He was al=o one of the original
abolitionists of the eommunity.

WILLEAM Z. MeDONALD.

The above porteait represents William 7. McDonald, Chief
Inspector off Workshops and Factories for the State of Ohio, ITe
was born at Wooster, Ohio, January 15, 1838, and hecame a resi-
dent of Akran, Ohi, in September, 1884, where he now resides.

Mr. MeDonald received a common sehool edueation in the
public schools of Wuoster and Millersburg, Olio.  After leaving
school, and while engaged in mechanical pursaits, hig education
was largely supplemented by private study.  Oct. 12, 1882, he was
married to Miss Lillie A, Estill, only danghter of Hon. James A.
Estill, of Millersburg, Ohio, and from that union has two bright
children living, 1 son and a daughter,

Alr. MeDonakl was appointed First District Tuspector of
Workshops and Factories of Ohio, Sept. 6, 1885, to fill an unex-
pired term, and was reappointed for a term of three years May
8, 1888, in which capacity he served until April 24, 1889, when his
ability and services to the State were recognized by Governor
J. B Foraker, who placed him at the head of that department,
by appointing him Chief Inspector, which position he now holds,
Mr. McDonald is an earnest worker in the Republican party and
has accomplished much good for the same throughout the State,
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EVA CATHERINE BECK,

Eva Catheriné¢ Beek, the owner of a fine farm in Coventry
township, on the Coventry road two miles south of the Akron City
limits, washorn in Bavaria, Germany, 1826, She cameto this country
in 1843 and two years latermarried George Beck, whodied June 26,
1886, leaving a family of seven children. Mrs. Beck belongs tothe
Lutheran Chureh and is a prominent wember of the Danghters 6f
Rebecea.

=

ELMER ELLSWORTIT PAINE.

PHOTOGRAPHED 8Y WOLFRAM,

Elmer Ellsworth Paine, Editor of the Akron Daily Beacon and
tepublican, was born fu Xenia, Ohio, April 5, 1861, He is the son
of George L. and Eliza A, Paine. Iix father, for forty yearsa
dentist in Xenia, is an exceptional linguist, and the owner of one
of the finest private classical libraries in Ohio.  Editor Paine's lin-
guistie ability isdoubtless, in sone measure, therefore, o matter of
inheritance. s conunon and high school stwdies at Xenia were
supplemented by three vears at Antinch College, Yellow Springs,
and hiscollege work was finished at the Ohio State University, Col-
umbus,

His first newspaper work, begun when he was still in eollege,
was on the Xenia Geazette.  In 1833 he became city editor of the
Lrening Republican, at Columbus, Ind., andin 1884 heaccepied the
city editorship of the Xenia Daily Torehlight, of which ne became
editor and one of the proprietors.  In February, 1853, he disposed
of his interest in th Toreldight to become city editor of the Spring-
field, (Ohio) Duaily Republica, Two years later he resigned to take
the city editorship of the Chawpion City Times, Springheld.

e was elected  Secretary of the Springtield DBoard of Trade
Sept. 1, 1888, hut resigned that position after re-election in 1889,
to come to Akron as managing editor of the Deaily Beacop,  Onthe
merging of the Beacon and the Republican in January, 1591, he
was elected Editor-in-Cnief. IHis industry awd talent have heen
rewarded by the healthy ineréase in the cireulation of the paper,
and the prestige gained in the years of hard work put upon the
paper by his predecessor has been more than sustained,

Mr. Paine was for three years, in Xenin, a member of Co. E.
of the dth, afterwards the 13th O N G, as private, Sccond Lieu-
tenant and Capt.

On June 25, 1883, at Ann Arbor, Michigan, Mr. Paine was
married to Miss Margaret Humphreys, assistant dehonsteator of
operative dentistry in theUniversity of Michigan. Their ehiblren
are, Roger, Warde and Margaret.

NRLOW,

DR CHARLES E. NORRIS,

Dir. Charles B, Norris, was born in Indinna in 1854, and
received a medienl education at the University of Michigan, Ann
Arbor. He removed to Akron in 1887, and bas practiced his pPro-
fession here ever since.  Office and residence 04 East Exchange.

EDWARD W, WIESE.

PHOTOGRAFHED BY GLURTHNEY,

Edward W. Wiese, residing at 1075 South Main street, Akron,
was horn in Germany in 1846, e came to America in 1858 when
only twelve years of age, and an orphan. He was educated at
Dutf College, Pittshurg, Pa., from which institution he was gradu-
ated.  He learned his trade) that of 2 tanner, came to Akron in
1568 and worked for James Christy in 1858 and 1869. )

e married Miss Margaretha Fink, by whom he has three
children, two sons and one daughter.  He is now engaged as ship-
per for the Goodrich Hard Rubber Co., having been employed in
the rubber works since 1870, )

He served in Co. F, 130th O, V. T, from 1865 to close of the
War: He was a member of the Akron Board of Education from
INTT to 1882, being secretary of the board one termy, has heen a
member of the Board of Health since its organization in 1881, and
secretary since 1880, his present term expiring 1802, Member of
Buckley Post, No. 12, (6. AL R, Akron Lodge, No. &3, F. & A. M.,
and Aetolia Lodge No. 24, I, ol P,

WILLIAYM DA I{.\'l‘l'if'l‘.

It ix seldom that a man becotes more generally known in
seore of years than has Wailliam Barnett. Born in the city of Exeter
Devonshire, Englaml, on the 28th day of April, 134;5, at whic'h’
place he received an Engli-h eduecation, he emigrated to this
cutntry, Nov, 1, 1865, with his wile Louise (e Stancombe) an(‘l
only chilil, Emma, arriving at Akron, Ohio, June 1, 1871,

A thorough mechanie in brick and stone, his rise in his call-
ing has been rapid and substantinl ax the character of llis"\\:()‘rl'
and his continual engagements will attest. As g cuntfact&r he i:
ltlllxl(‘ l]:(,“( lr](v,:l];l_““ while as an cuergetic honest workman he has

!n IST7, aceompanied by his wife and daughters, Emma
ll.uttw, add Atiee, he sailed for Plymouth, ltlm_rlan(l,’ his (){({
wime, t) visit his mother, agine his erief wn o
learn that she hzu.ll:;k:;rlx‘xtriml It;)lll:h‘llll;: 11:11: t&lrlléet' 11‘1.)0’11 nding to

i s Vol e g L very day they set
sail at New York City, Full of joy at the thought of meeting the
loved mother and grandmother, eHng the

Sinee their return, two other bright daughters have bee
added ta the family cirele, Jeanette and Louise, and t{l(‘ fmniln
are pleaxantly located No. 104 East Cedar street, ’ 7 ¥

Mr. Barnett is a lover of athletic exere
teacher of the same. Many ol the citize
dexterows in defending themselves with natural weapons owe
their skill and protection to his instructions, Jlis exhil;itions
were always condueted with propriety and attended by the best
clement ot people,

wes and a competent
ns of Akron who are

and the son are married

He belongs -to the Protestant Episcopal church, Ie is o
member and also a trustee of the Order of the Sons of St
George; prominent and active member of th'e B‘]‘ick.lﬂ,yer’g
Union, having repeatedly represented that organization in con.
ventions; a’ member of the Ancient Order of Foresters; of the
Benéficial Order of Maccabees; . member of the Akron Lieder-
kranz Singing Society.

The enterprise of Mr. Barnett as & public spirited citizen can-
not be-better illustrated than by reference to the fact that he i
the founder of the first public market house erceted in the city
of Akron.  Ile is genial and numbers his friends by scores.

S. K. BLACK.

S. K. Black, better known as Black the Druggist, originator
and manufacturer of Black’s Akronian Remedies, was born in
Ashland County, Ohio, Jan. 31, 1847, The first twenty years of

his life, owing to his mother's ill health, were spent with his’

grandparents. In April, 1867, he purchased a small and poorly
stocked drugstore in Hayesville, Ashland County, Ohio.

In 1871, having increased his stoek in husiness, he erected a
fine building costing $35,000, which with its contents ias
destroyed by fire May 23, 1872; loss, $12,500, insurance $6,000. He
immediately removed to Manstield, Ohio, and in 1876 to Dela-
ware, Ohio, hut in 1879 returned to Hayesville. On the 16th of
Oct., 1885, Mr. Black removed to Akron where he has ever since
resided, entering first the stove of €. Clough & Co., as preserip-
tion elerk, and six months later purchasing the store.

In January, 1888, he began introducing what is sn well and
favorably known as Black's Akronian Remedies, and has suc-
ceeded in building up a prosperous business, He married, Rosina
Reading, of Hayesville, Sept. 22, 1869, by which union there are
three children, two boys and a girl,

ABEL G. ALLYN.

Abel G, Allyn, residing at 410 Eagt South street, was born in
Goventry, October 4th, 1820, and has always lived in that Eownship
of which he was Treasurer for two terms, HMis parents, Israel and
Lucy Allyn were .us.tives of New London County, &}onn., and
fﬁﬁ(} Eg?u‘(.jovently in 1818, locating on their farm March 21st of

On October 40th, 1847,

he was married t i
i '- S A 0 Adelin ; ]
has six children living e Capron, and

—one boy and five girls. Two daughters

the latter living in Nel
on, are ) ng i Nebraska. Or
daughter resides in Akron and another in Michigan o one

\ n.iIcI({,1 éx'a:s; imlsfva‘ys taken a Prominent partin the Summit County
agricuitural Society of which he wag g director for sixteen years
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ITOSEA PATUIL.

Hosea Paul, whose portrait adorns
this group, was born in Northfield, Vt.,
April 6th, 1809, died May 30th,1870. He re-
ceived an English and Civil Engineering
education in Vermont and Ohio. He
moved to Cuyahoga Falls in 1884, married
Ellen Gamble in1833. Of this union there
are seven children; Henry D., George,
Mary, Robert 8., Hosea, T. Dwight, and
Edward J.

Mr. Paul held many positions of trust
and honor. He was Postmaster at Ca-
naan, Vermont, Mayor of Cuyahoga Falls,
Justice of the Peace, Assistant engineer.
in charge of the location of the Akron’
Branch Railroad, and of the N. Y.,P. & O.
For many years County Surveyor of Sum-
mit County, Chief Engineer of several
Ohio Railroads, U. 8. Assistant Engineer,
department of the Cumberland 1863-64-65.

Hosea Paul by his earnest work in the
temperance cause, and for the abolition
of slavery, by his strict integrity and his
watchfulness of the rights of the weak,

commanded the respect and confidence of
all who knew him,

ROBERT S. PAUL.

Robert 8. Paul, fourth son of MHosea
and Ellen Paul, was born at Cuyahoga
Falls, Oct. 3d, 1842. Received hiseducation
in English, Classical, and Civil Engineer-
ing, at Cuyahoga Falls, Lebanon, Ohio,
University, and Pennsylvania Polytechnic
University, respectively.

He married Sarah M. Romig, July
25, 1872, and of this union there are five
children; Ellen C., Ada L., Laura A.,
Mary and Edward W.

He was assistant to Hosea Paul, Sen.,
from 1855 to 1862 and taught school two
terms. 1862 to 1865, was with the U. S.
Engineering Corps Army of the Cumber-
land; 1865 to 1867, surveying in Venango
and Forest counties, Penn. (oil region);
1867 and 1868, surveyed in Cleveland,
Ohio; County Surveyor from 1870 to 1884
(except one term 1874 to 1877, engaged in
surveying and Chief Engineer O. & T, R.
R.) Chief Engineer of the Valley Rail-
way, 1887 and part of 1888. President two
terms of the County Surveyors’ Associa-
tion (mow Surveyors’ and Civil Engineers’
Association of Ohio); Secretary and Treas-
urer of the Ohio Institute Mining Engi-
neers; Past Grand, Akron Lodge No. 547

or Castle Garfield, No. 14, Knights of the
Golden Rule. Member of the firm Paul
ros., Civil, Mining & Hydraulic Engi-
neers, one of the oldest, best known, and
having as large a quantity and as high a
grade of work as any firm in the State.

HON. GEORGE PAUL.

George, the second son of Hosea and
Ellen Paul, was born at Cuyahoga Falls
(where he has always resided), Sept. 8th,
1837. Received a High School education
at Cuyahoga Fally, and a technieal educa-
tion in Philadelphia. He learned the
machinist’s trade, Worked as draught-
man, ete,, until he wentinto the U.S. Navy;
served from 1862 to 1865 ag engineer in the
U. 5. Navy. Was on a Monitor in 1864,
In all the engagements of the South At-
lantic Sguadron. Inattacks on Ft. Sum-
ter, taking of Morris Island, and bombard-
ment of Ft. Wagner. Since the war has
followed civil engineering, and is au-
thority upon that sublect, was at one
time chief engineer of the Chicago and
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Atlantic Railroad. He has given much
attention to designing systems for sewer-
age in the employ of the city and is quite
frequently called upon as expert and
consulting engineer. Ile was married to
Olive A. Babeock, May 10th, 1871, Is a
member of the (+. A. R.,a Mason, and was
a member of the Board of Public Works of
Ohio from Feb. 1874 to 1885,

~ T.DWIGHT PAUL.

T. Dwight Paul was born in Cuyahoga
Falls, July 21, 1848, and received a High
school and later on an Engineering edu-
cation, paid for by himself at the Pennsyl-
vania Polytechnic College of Philadelphia.
He has served on many railroads in the
United States and Canada, among others
the Canada Southern, the Cleveland,
Lorain & Wheeling, the Bellaire & South-
western as Chief Enigineer and Union Pa-
citic two years as Assistant Engineer.
From 1880 to 1884 he was resident engi-
neer of the public works of Ohio and in
1887 was United States Deputy Miner-
al Surveyor for Montana, .

He was married in 1877 to Miss Emma
Owens of Belmont County, Ohio, and has
two children; Ethel B., and Frank D.
Paul. His work isx noted for accuracy,

WION PREYA-ENE 0@ GLE v.'/

I. 0. 0. I',; Member of Akron Encamp-
ment No. 18, I. 0. 0. F.; McPhersonLodge
No. 83, K. of P.; and at present Command-

[N,

PETER H. HOFFMAN.

Peter Fl. Hoffman, otherwise and perhaps better ‘known as
“Qquire Hoffman,” whose residence is at 1204 South High street,
Akron, and office in the Arcade Block, was }?orn in Green FOW?'
ghip, Summit county, Feb. 16th, 1850. He received his educatl?n in
the common schools of Summit county and in Greensburg be’nn-
nary. Je was united in marriage to Catherine Koong, Aug, 15th,
1871, and has two children living—Alfred, aged nineteen and
Elsie, aged twelve. )

I,Ie gservtéfl as Justice of the Peace of Green towush}p frqm
1876 to 1879, and removed fo Akron in 1881.. He was as‘smtant nt
the County Treasurer’s office during the wmter_ot 1§82—§3, and
from 1883 to 1885 he was bookkeeper for 8. N. Wilson in his lum-
ber business. Ile was salesman for L. A. Barmore in his Mz?m
street furniture house until Nov. 1888, when he was .elected Justice
of the Peace of Akron township, which office he gtill holds.

He is o charter member of Nemo Lodge, No. 748, 1.0.0.F,
and a member of McPherson Lodge, No. 63, K. of P. o

“Squire Hoffman, by his genial ways and honest dealing, has
won for himself a host of friends.

HOSEA PAUL AND SOXNS.

MOSES FALOR.

Moszes Falor is as hale and hearty at the age of sixty-five as
most men are at forty. He was born in Portage township, Sum-
mit county, February 8d, 1827, and the following January moved
to Coventry, which he has since made his residence. He is
engaged in farming and in the real estate business.

He received the best education to be had in Coventry schools
and in 1852 bought his present place. February 10th, 1853, he
married Miss Hannah H. Wilson, who died May 31st, 1882, leaving
him six children, four boys—Albert, Clinton, Rowland and Jasper;
and two girls—Jane and Cora.

He is & member of the Disciple church, and is Township
Supervisor.

In 1876 he visited the Centennial Exposition and took an ex-
tended eastern tour, and ten years later on the G. A. R. excursion
to California, he viewed many of the wonders of the western
coast. He recently purchased the J. Harter farm, and with his
gon, Rowland, bought seven acres near Lakeside for a park.

and by earnest and faithful endeavor, he
has aéquired a pleasant home and the re-
spect of all who know him.

CURTIS C. SITERBONDY.

Curtis C. Sherbondy was horn in Portage township, Summit
county, Ohio, November 25th, 1852, He received a high school
education in the Akron schools, At the age of twenty he was
engaged with the Akron Knife Works, and continued in their
employ until June 1st, 1885, when he wasappointed agent for the
Ohio Farmers Insurance Co., in Summit county, which company
he now represents, with office at 130 South Howard street, where
e is engaged in the insurance and real estate business.

He was married August 12th, 1874, to Julia A. Viall, by whom
he has one child, Jesse R., aged fifteen.

He was a member of the Old Eagle ITose Company for four
years and at the timeit disbanded. Fe was elected to the City
Council from the Third Ward in 1890, and is chairman of the Fire
and Water Committée, He is a stockholder and director of the
Brigger Belting Co., 2 member of the K. of I1., Red Cross, Ameri-
can Fraternal Circle, and Knights of the Golden Rule,

Mr. Sherhondy, by his strict attention to business, his geni-
ality, and respect for the rights of others, has endeared himself to
the people of Akron, and has started well.on the road to success.
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DR. SAMUEL W. BARTGES.

John M. Bartges, the father of Samuel W. Bartges, was the
son of Christopher Bartges, one of the Huguenots who flel to
this country and was born in Northumberland County Pa., April
261h, 1771, and from 1795 till 1832 was engaged in the manufac-
ture of nails in Miffinburg, Union County, Pa., where, on April
19th, 1814, ~amuel W, was born to >usanna (Shively) Bartges. In
Aypril, 1833, the father, John M. and family loeated in Columbiana
County, Ohio, on a tract of land previously bought.

Dr. Bartges was then nineteen years old and opened up a
country store in North Georgetown, a village near his father's
farm. He was merchant, postmaster and medical student for
several years, IHe then quit merchandising and devoted his time
and energy to the study of medicine. He removed to Akron in
January, 1842, and opened an office for the practice of medicine
in South Akron. In Februnary, 1851, he bought the property on
the corner of Market and High streets, which he occupied as an
office and residence till 1873, when he removed to his new house,
943 East Market street, still keeping his office at the old place.

Aside from a very large practice as a physician, Dr. Bartges
was largely interested in real estate and made a number of impor-
tant and valuable additions to the City plat of Akron. In May,
1863, he allotted thirty acres lying between Main street and the
Ohio Canal, known as Bartgestown, making 96 lots. In October,
1870, he allotted part of the land known as the Mallison Addition,
making 92 lots, and in 1874 a further allotment of 120 lots in
same tract. Other allotments in additions made by him aided
greatly to the growth and development of the city.

At an carly day Dr. Bartges became deeply interested in
Magonry and goon became an active and industrious worker in
that fraternity. He was repeatedly elected Master of the lodge
and held other important offices and positions in this order. In
politics he was a Republican.

In 1835 Dr. Bartges married Catherine A. Crumps, the daugh-
ter of Alexander and Margaret (Walters) Crumps, natives of
Virginia and Maryland, and to them was born Margaret 8., Arthar
F., and Arabella E., now Mrs. Ilenry E. Merrill. On November

24, 1882, Dir. Bartges died of Bright’s disease, leaving a large:

“estate—the result of his industry.
The widow and children above mentioned still reside in
Akron.

MAJ., EMMET F. TAGGART,

PHOTOGRAFHED BY COURTNEY.

Maj. Emmet I, Taggart, of No. 100 Christy street, Akron, 0,,
was horn in Wayne Co., Ohin, Oct. 20th, 1846, He is the sixth son
of William and Lydia A. (Reiter) Taggart, of Wooster, (0. He
was brought up on a farm where he remained until the breaking
out of the Civil War.” Being then a boy only sixteen years old,

with the congent of his patrintic mother, he enlisted as a private
in Co. I, 102nd Reg't, O V.I.which was organized in August, 1862,
Serving with his regiment until Sept. 24th 1864, at the battle of
Athens, Ala., he was captured with one hundred and fifty others
of the regiment. He was sent to Andersonville Prison, Georgia,
and held a prisoner until the close of the war, being seven months
and four days a prisoner. The hardships and starvation reduced
him to a mere skeleton, weighing only 63 pounds, when his
mother brought bim home. After months of careful nursing, he
was able to attend school, completing his course of studies at the
Academy in Smithville, 0., in 1868, He married Miss Sarah E.
Brown, of Wooster, June 1st, 1848, Eight children were born of
this union, six boys and two girls, of whom only four are now
living. Edward C., Nellie B., Loretta M. and Fred F. He moved
to Akron, Oct. 18th, 1880, and engaged in the grocery business,
continuing in thisuntil 1874, when, his health failmg, he sold out.
He was then employed with the U. 8. Express Co., for some time,
then for three years was employed in the shipping department of
Taplin, Rice & Co., and The B. I, Goodrich Co., jointly, was then
employed permanently by Taplin, Rice & Co. as shipping clerk,
which position he occupied until 1836, when, health again failing
with close confinement, he started on the road March 1st, 1886,
selling goods for them. e still holds that position.

He was an active factor in the organization of the Akron City
Gruards, receiving the appointment as first sergeant at the organi-
zation Dec. 13th, 1875. He was promoted to be first licutenant
April 2nd, 1877, and was promoted to be Adjutant Sth Infty. Sept.
5th, 1881. Serving six years in that position he was promoted to
be Major, June 22nd, 1887, which position he now occupies. He
has always taken an active part in the military affairs of the
State, having been continously in the service for sixteen years, .

He is an active member of Nemo Lodge, No.746 1. 0. O. F.,
having been an Odd Fellow since 1867. He was the promoter of
the Knights of Pythias in Akron organizing Aetolia Lodge, No. 24.
April 5th, 1871, heing at present one of the trustees of that lodge ;
a member of Commandery No. 7 0. R. C.; and is an active mem-
her of Buckley Post No. 12 . A, R., having held many honorable
positions in the order, among the niost important, that of Asssist-
ant Adjutant General of the Department of Ohio, which he filled
with distinguished honor, receiving the highest encominms from
the Department Commander and other department officers.
Politically, he isa staunch Republican.

GEORGE MASON CADWELL.

George M. Cadwell, the genial host of the Windsor ITotel,
Akron, O., was born in Hiram, Portage county, Ohio, Mareh 8,

- 1839, and received a classical course in Allegheny College. He

married Mary A. Seontan December 5th, 1863, and Eva A. Lang
February 28th, 1859, He is the father of five children, four boys
and one girl. i
He enlisted inthe 7th 0. V. L. and went to the front June Oth,
1861, but before active service was stricken with the southern
fever. He remained in the hospital until February 15th, 1862,
His first engagement was at Fort Republic June 9th, 1862, was
wounded at the battle of Cedar Mountain August Oth, 1862, heing

‘disabled for overa year, and was honorably discharged July 24th,

1864, He thereafter engaged in farming in Eaton county,
Michigan, until 1870, when for two years he was foreman of g
cheese factory in Nelson, Portage county. In 1872 he engaged ag
hookkeeper with A, B. Iigley, of Windham, for two vears. In
1875, *76, he was manager of the Sovereigns of Tondustry Store ;
then was three years a clerk for Southworth. From 1880 to 1886
he was proprietor of the Model Coffee House on Seneca street,
Cleveland, and from that time until he came to Akron was pro-
prietor of Stribenger House, Fle i3 a consistent member of the
Methodist Episcopal Church with strong convictions of right, and
an unselfishness born of self-sacrifice, o firm believer in total
abstinence and at present Grand Councilor of Ohio in the Royal
Templars of Temperance. He has been able to demonstrate in
his short but pleasant acquaintance in Akron that a firgt-class
hotel ean be practically run without a bar.

JAMES C. McNEIL.

James C. McNeil established and was the proprietor of the
Akron Boiler Works until the time of his lamentable death which
occurred November 25th, 1885. ITe was born in Onondaga County,
New York, May 8th, 1836—a son of Samuel and Nancy (Cokely)
McNeil, who were natives of New York. The family emigrated
to Ohio in 1888, settling in Coshocton county where they engaged
in farming. Mr. McNeil’s death oceurred in 1847, Ilis widow
continued farming until 1859, when she came to Akron to reside
with the subject of this notice, and died in 1867. At the death of
his father, Mr. McNeil came to Akron to live with his brother and
attended the public schools. At the age of eighteen years, he
was apprenticed to the machinist trade with Webster & Taplin,
of Akron, and served until he became of age. Ile followed the
trade about six years in Cleveland, with the Cleveland and
Mahoning Railroad Company, three and half years as foreman of
the shops, and two and a half years as engineer on the road. e
then returned to Akron and assumed charge of the machinery in
the Akron Barrel Factory, where he continued for two and a
half years, In 1866 the firm of Moffatt & MeNeil was formed and
engaged in the manufacture of hoilers and boiler plate-work;
they continued four years when Mr. McNeil became sole proprie-
tor and remained so until his death. In 1880 le built a large
brick shop on tlie corner of Broadway and Center streets, which
wag used until recently when the company removed into more
commodious quarters in the southern portion of the city.

He was married in 1859 to Miss Mary Gale, the youngest child
of Justus and Sarah (Hyde) Gale, natives of and prominent in
Akron. Two children have blessed their union—Grant C. and

Barah G. From 1866 to 1869 he wag chief of the Akron Fire
Department.

JOHN BENTAMIN CAMPBELL.

John Benjamin Cam
pbell, the presen
anfl manager of the McNeil hoiler WOII)
boilers, is one of Akron’s
through his own

t secretary, treasurer
ks, manufacturers of steam
young men who hag rigen to prominence

personal energy, abilit i
Tt ) 1ty and business worth.
hough buttwenty-seven years of age he ranks high in business

ir : .
2&?5.& j;?;n In Clinton, Summit county, July 15th, 1864, he re-
office boy 1 rnr;ﬁn ic]llool edueatiqn. During the year 1881, he was
A ¢ Akron Sewer l?q?e Co.,and on J anuary 2d, 1882,
became b T ce of J - C. MeN eil in the same capacity. Lat’er he
ot C ok gel')ler and remained as such until the organization
o a. d.\ ' Neil Co., March 6th, 1888, when he wag elected Sec-
Y and Manager. March 6th, 1889, the office of Treasurefr WS(:S

dded to hl (.1utles y -
* h]c 1 C E
a ]. l ) y W 1 he hiLS ever sin e ga tlﬂfd,ﬂtoll] pel

He was married to Miss Maggie M, Berger, September 15t] 1886
) .
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1, NATHANIEL P. GOODHUE, Clerk of the Courts.

COUNTY OFFICERS.

2 JAMES H. SeyMOUR, Ex-County Treasurer. 3. DAVID R, BUNN, Sheriff.

| w BTGy
4 GEO. W, BREWSTER, Coroner. 8. EXMONS 8. OVIATT, Treasurer. .

7. ELT SMITH, Infirmary Director.

5, EDWARD W, STUART, Probate Judge. 10, WASHINGTON G. JOHNSTON, County Commissioner,

. 8, JOSEPH MOORE, Infirmary Director. 9. HENRY FREDERICK, County Commissioner,
11, CHAS. E PERKINS, Surveyor, 12. BENTAMIN F, CLARK, Recorder, 13, CrAs, C. HINE, County Commissioner. 14, CrAS. W. B, DICK, Auditor.
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1, FRANK H, WATERS,

4. Hox, EDwiN

0. GEORGE

& WEST: Eue. CRPHIL

MEMBERS OF SUMMIT COUNTY BAR

————

PLATE 1,

2. HON, WinLiAM H. UpRoN, Judge of Circuit Court

5 1 $th Judicial Ciregi : ‘ :
. GREEY. Ex. L . Mo ; ALVIN (5 Vv » vt ciul Circuit. THEODORE W, W :
P, (xRLL..\, ‘144\ Jml;zf. Court of Common Pleas, 3. H:). - ALVIN C. VoRs, Judge Conmmon Pleas Court, Second Suly Division, 4tk Tudics AK-EMéI\.
6. CILARLES BAIRD, 7 THOMAS F, WarLsy, ) 1t wecond “; I«“ ision, Bl udicial District of O,

T 1 T W . : . FRED, C. BRYAN. '

M, WRIGHT ] . . HORATIO ’1.~\\ Ir,[i,\um. 1. ORLANDO WILCOX. 5 K 12, JAMES Y
. ALBERT B. PINKER. 14 EMORY A, PRIOR. 1. DAYTON A, Doy : 16, BEOWIN . Vorrs, MBS V. Weray
- STer e 2 o1 3, N * 8, .
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